
AGENDA 

WILSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MARCH 19, 2012 7 P.M. 

CITY HALL 
29799 Sw TOWN CENTER LOOP 

WILSONVILLE, OREGON 

Mayor Tim Knapp 
Council President Celia Ni:iflez 

	
Councilor Steve Hurst 

Councilor Richard Goddard 
	

Councilor Scott Starr 

CITY COUNCIL MISSION STATEMENT 
To protect and enhance Wilsonville's livability by providing quality servie to ensure a safe, attractive, 

economically vital community while preserving our natural environment and heritage. 

Executive Session is held in the Willamette River Room, City Hall, 2nd Floor 

5:00 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
A. 	Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) Litigation 

5:15 P.M. COUNCILORS' CONCERNS 

5:20 P.M. PRE-COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

Storm Water SDCs and Utility Rates (staff - Rappold/Wallis) 
WWTP Owner's Rep & Staff Quarterly Report (staff -Mende) 
Water System Master Plan Update (staff - Mende) 
1-5/Wilsonville Road Interchange Project Update (staff = Mende) 
Basalt Creek Planning Update (staff - Cosgrove) 
Review of Agenda 
Recap of Work Session (staff - Cosgrove) 

6:50 P.M. ADJOURN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
The following is a summary of the legislative and other matters to come before the Wilsonville City Council a regular session 
to be held Monday, March 19, 2012 at City Hall. Legislative matters must have been filed in the office of the City Recorder by 
10 a.m. on March 6, 2012. Remonstrances and other documents pertaining to any matters listed in said summary filed at or 
prior to the time of the meeting may be considered therewith except where a time limit for filing has been fixed. 

City Council Agenda March 19, 2012 
Page 1 of 3 
N:\City  Recorder\Agenda\3 191 2cc.docx 



7:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER 
Roll Call 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Motion to approve the following order of the agenda and to remove items from the consent 
agenda. 

7:05 P.M. MAYOR'S BUSINESS 

Council Board and Commission Liaison Appointments 
Upcoming Meetings 

7:15 P.M. COMMUNICATIONS 

A. 	Tourism Grant Program Recipients. (staff - Watters) 

7:25 P.M. CITIZEN INPUT & COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
This is an opportunity for visitors to address the City Council on items not on the agenda. It is also the time to address items 
that are on the agenda but not scheduled for a public hearing. Staff and the City Council will make every effort to respond to 
questions raised during citizens input before tonight's meeting ends or as quickly as possible thereafter. Please limit your 
comments to three minutes. 

7:20 P.M. COUNCILOR COMMENTS, LIAISON REPORTS & MEETING 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Council President Ntiñez - Chamber and Library Board liaison 

Councilor Hurst - Parks and Recreation Board and Library Board liaison 

Councilor Goddard - DRB and Clackamas County Business Alliance liaison 

Coundilor Starr - Planning Commission and Wilsonville Community Seniors Inc. liaison 

7:30 P.M. CONSENT AGENDA 

Resolution No. 2349 
A Resolution Of The City Of Wilsonville Revising A "Local Share" Project List To Be 
Funded With A Portion Of Metro's November 2006 Natural Areas Bond Measure (Staff - 
Rappold) 

Minutes Of the February 23, 2012 and March 5, 2012 Council Meetings. (staff - King) 

7:45 P.M. NEW BUSINESS 

A. 	Resolution No. 2348 
A Resolution Of The City Of Wilsonville Authorizing The Mayor To Execute A Local 
Agency Agreement And Right Of Way Services Agreement Between The City Of 
Wilsonville And The Oregon Department Of Transportation For The Reconstruction Of 

City Council Agenda March 19, 2012 
Page 2of3 
N:\City  Recorder\Agenda\31912cc.docx 



Tooze Road Between 110th  Avenue And The Intersection With Grahams Ferry Road 
(Wilsonville). (staff-Retherford) 

8:20 P.M. CITY MANAGER'S BUSINESS 

8:25 P.M. LEGAL BUSINESS 

8:30 P.M. ADJOURN 

Time frames for agenda items are not time certain (i.e. Agenda items may be considered earlier than indicated. The Mayor will 
call for a majority vote of the Council before allotting more time than indicated for an agenda item.) Assistive Listening 
Devices (ALD) are available for persons with impaired hearing and can be scheduled for this meeting if required at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. The city will also endeavor to provide the following services, without cost, if requested at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting:-Qualified sign language interpreters for persons with speech or hearing impairments. Qualified 
bilingual interpreters. To obtain services, please contact the City Recorder, (503)570-1506 or king@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

City Council Agenda March 19, 2012 
Page 3 of 3 
N:\City  Recorder\Agenda\3 1912cc.docx 



Last Updated 3/12/2012 11:54 AM 
City of Wilsonville 

Work Session and City Council Calendar 

ITEMS ARE TENTATIVELY SCHED ULED AND MA Y BE MO VED TO ANO THER MEETING. 

Meeting Date Agenda Items 

Executive Session 
April 2 Work Session 

• 	Mayoral Compensation Gather Mayoral task 
Staff reports due • 	City Land Disposal (Yellow House) (Retherford) force recommendation, 

March 20 • Ben & MEK's reports 
Com munications  

• 	Clackamas County Sheriffs Department Annual Report - Nick Watt 
• 	Arbor Week and Tree City USA Proclamation (Pauley) 
• 	2011 Annual Report Wilsonville Chamber of Commerce/Tourism (Jennifer Johnson) 

Consent Agenda 
• 	Property Tax Exemptions for low-income housing (Rodocker) 

Public Hearing 
• 	Storm Water SDCs and Rates (Rappold) 

Continuing Business 

New Business 
• 	Gift acceptance policy for the City of Wilsonville (Rose/Kohihoft) 
• 	Establishing Reimbursement District Segment 1 of Coffee Lake Drive Sewer Line Infrastructure. 

(Adams/Kohihoff) 

C:\Users\king\Desktop\Council  Calendar (3) wo exssn.docx 	 Page 1 of 4 



Last Updated 3/12/2012 11:54 AM 
Executive Session 

April 16 Work Session 
TSP (Neamtzu) 

Staff Reports due • 	Brenchley Estates North Zone Map Amendment (Edmonds) 

April 3 Bicycle/Pedestrian/Emergency Bridge (Neamtzu) 
: 

Communications 

Consent Agenda 

Public Hearing 
. 	Brenchley Estates - North zone map amendment (Edmonds) 

Continuing Business 

New Business 

April 24 Joint meeting with TVF&R 
5:30 p.m. at new CBOC facility in Tigard 

Joint meeting with TVF&R 
Board of Directors 

Budget Committee Meeting 
April 30 

Budget Committee Meeting 
May 3 

C:\Users\king\Desktop\Council  Calendar (3) wo exssri.docx 	 Page 2 of 4 



Last Updated 3/12/2012 11:54 AM 
May 7 Executive Session 

Work Session 
Staff reports due • 	Sign Code Amendments (Neamtzu) 

April 17 
: 	

Joint work session [1.5 hr.] with Planning Commission on draft TSP Solutions (Neamtzu) 

Communications 
S 

Consent Agenda 
S 

Public Hearing 

Continuing Business 

New Business 

May 10 Budget Committee Meeting 
May 21 Executive Session 

Work Session 
Staff report due May 8 

Communications 

Consent Agenda 

Public Hearing 
• 	Sign Code Amendments (Neamtzu) 
• 

Continuing Business 

New Business 

C:\Users\king\Desktop\Couricil  Calendar (3) wo exssn.docx 	 Page 3 of 4 



Last Updated 3/12/2012 11:54 AM 

June 4 Executive Session 
Work Session 

Staff reports due May 22 
Communications 

Consent Agenda 

Public Hearing 
Budget Adoption Resolutions 

Continuing Business 

New Business 
final supplemental budget adjustment to the first meeting in June Rodocker 

Also URA Meeting for budget adoption. 

June 18 Executive Session 
Work Session 

Staff reports due June 
5th Communications 

Consent Agenda 

Public Hearing 

Continuing Business 

New Business 

UNSCHEDULED ITEMS 
• Amend Res. Declaring an emergency 

succession statement 
• Road Maintenance Fee 

C:\Users\king\Desktop\Council  Calendar (3) wo exssn.docx 	 Page 4 of 4 



Cily of 

WILSON VILLE 
in OREGON 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
INFORMATION ITEM 

Proposed Stormwater Fee and System Development Charge 

Meeting Date: March 19, 2012 
	

Contact: Kerry Rappold 
Report Date: March 13, 2012 

	
Contact Telephone Number: 503-570-1570 

Source of Item: CD/Natural Resources Program 	 Contact E-Mail: rappold@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

ISSUE STATEMENT 
The City Council approved an update to the Stormwater Master Plan with Ordinance No. 700 on February 23, 
2012. The master plan includes policies, a Capital Improvement Program, and a funding model for stormwater 
management. Chapter 10 (i.e., Financial Analysis) of the Stormwater Master Plan identifies modeling 
assumptions and outcomes, and proposed stormwater fee and system development charge (SDC) to fund the 
stormwater management program. 

Based on the funding model in the master plan, the stormwater fee would increase from $3.72 to $5.00 per 
equivalent residential unit (ERU), and an increase in the stormwater system development charge from $492 to 
$1,356 per ERU would be phased over three years. These increases are necessary to support the existing and 
future needs of the City's stormwater system. The following table provides the schedule for implementing the 
increases in the stormwater fee and SDC over the next five years: 

Forecast of Stormwater Rates 
(Per ERU) 

Current July 1, 2012 July 1,2013 July 1, 2014 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2016 

Stormwater Fee $3.72 $5.00 $5.10 $5.25 $5.45 $5.60 

SDC 
$492 $620 $748 $876 $876 $876 

Improvement Fee 

SDC 
0 $160 $320 $480 $480 $480 

Reimbursement Fee 

Total SDC $492 $780 $1,068 $1,356 $1,356 $1,356 

BACKGROUND 
The existing stormwater fee and SDC were established by Resolution No. 1732 that was adopted by the City 
Council on November 19, 2001. The resolution included a stormwater fee of $3.58 per ERU and a SDC of $421 
per ERU. 

Ordinance No. 433, adopted by the City Council on September 19, 1994, established the overall program for the 
stormwater fee for storm drainage services and stormwater quality management. In conjunction with Ordinance 
No. 433, Resolution No. 1129, which was adopted by the City Council on August 15, 1994, provided the first 
stormwater fee of $1.40 per ERU. 

The statutory basis for system development charges in Oregon is included in ORS 223.297 through 223.3 14. The 
Council Agenda Report 	 Page 1 of 2 
C:\Users\king\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary  Internet Files\Content.Outlook\YJKI2LE4\CC Work Session 3 19 1 2.doc 



purpose of these statutory requirements "is to provide a uniform framework for the imposition of system 
development charges by local governments, to provide equitable funding for orderly growth and development in 
Oregon's communities and to establish that the charges may be used only for capital improvements". The overall 
guidance for system development charges in Wilsonville was established by Ordinance No. 386, which was 
adopted by the City Council on July 1, 1991. 

The proposed method of funding for the Capital Improvement Program, contained within the recently approved 
Stormwater Master Plan, is to use a combination of revenue bonds, stormwater system development charge and 
stormwater fee. The funding methodology included the following assumptions: 

20-year revenue bonding at an interest rate of 5.0% 
A coverage factor of 1.25 times maximum annual debt service 
Level debt service 
An Operating Fund balance at no less than $200,000 
ERU growth of 1 3/4 % per year 
Cost escalation generally at 3% with the exception of 4.5% for personal services and 4.5% for transfers 

The methodology for calculation of the stormwater fee and system development charge is contained within 
Chapter 10 of the master plan, attached as Exhibit A. The Finance Director has provided some additional 
comments about the proposed stormwater fee and system development charge, attached as Exhibit B. A 
comparison of the proposed stormwater fee with other jurisdictions is found within Exhibit C. 

City staff hosted a public meeting on April 29, 2010 to provide an overall summary of the system development 
charge methodology and to answer any specific questions. Potentially impacted developers were invited to the 
meeting. An updated notice will be mailed to the same parties for the scheduled public hearing on April 2, 2012. 

RELATED CITY POLICIES 
Comprehensive Plan, Public Facilities and Services (Storm Drainage Plan) 
Stormwater Master Plan (Ordinance No. 700) 
Stormwater fee 
a. Ordinance No. 433 
Stormwater system development charge 
a. Ordinance No. 386 

NEXT STEPS 
Conduct a public hearing on April 2, 2012 to adopt the proposed stormwater fee and system development charge. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Chapter 10 of Stormwater Master Plan 
Finance Director's Comments 
Comparison of stormwater fee with other jurisdictions 

Council Agenda Report 	 Page 2 of 2 
C:\Users\king\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary  Internet Files\Content.Outlook\YJKI2LE4\CC Work Session 3 19 I 2.doc 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.0 FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

10.1 INTRODUCTION 

Stormwater management services within Wilsonville are provided through two City 
departments, Public Works and Community Development. City staff are responsible for 
managing both the quantity and quality of stormwater runoff while ensuring there is 
adequate stormwater drainage capacity. These activities are performed in a manner 
consistent with the City's goal of protecting local streams and habitat to ensure that 
connections to the stormwater system are constructed and maintained in compliance 
with all federal and state water quality regulations. Stormwater staff is responsible for 
the operation and maintenance of all publically owned catch basins, pipes, 
sedimentation manholes along with water quality facilities and stormwater detention 
ponds. All of these stormwater services are funded through the Stormwater Utility fee 
which is also referred to as the City's "stormwater surcharge" in some of Wilsonville's 
documentation. 

10.2 STORM WATER UTILITY FEE 

Stormwater management utilities are authorized by Oregon statute as enterprise funds 
within a City's budget structure. They are defined as being financially self-sufficient and 
can be designed to furnish a comprehensive set of services related to stormwater 
quantity and quality management. Services that stormwater management utilities 
provide include not only the construction and maintenance of facilities necessary to 
control flooding and improve the character of surface runoff, but also implementation of 
best management practices (BMP5) designed to address nonpoint source pollution. 
These BMPs may include water quality sampling, public education and plan review, 
stormwater system maintenance, site inspections and basin planning. All of these 
program elements are part of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit requirements. 

Wilsonville's current Stormwater Utility fee (see Resolution No. 1732) is applied to 
customers based on an equivalent residential units" (ERU) approach. Under this 
structure, single-family homes are counted as one ERU and, on average, contain 2,750 
square feet of impervious area. All non single-family residential customers are charged 
based on their measured impervious surface area for each developed property which is 
then divided by the ERU value of 2,750 square feet of impervious surface. This 
determines the total number of ERUs billed to that non single-family residential 
customer. The City's current monthly stormwater rate is $3.72 per ERU. 

10.3 STORMWATER RATE MODEL 

The technical analysis contained in Wilsonville's Stormwater Master Plan produced 
operations, maintenance and capital improvement program activities and costs. This 
financial review assesses the impact of the program on the City's Stormwater Utility 

L 0  'p,  I 
	

"UI 



Chapter 10 
Financial A 

rates and SDCs. A funding model was developed as an electronic spreadsheet-based 
(Excel) work product. This model simulates the fiscal management of the City's 
Stormwater Utility and accommodates the following conditions: 

A 20-year forecast horizon (the current start year is fiscal 2012) 

• A Capital Projects Fund where capital improvement projects are budgeted 

• A Stormwater SDC Fund where system development charges are 
budgeted 

• An Operating Fund where revenues and expenses are budgeted 

• Issuing and servicing debt to fund capital improvements 

• Rate-making based on the revenue requirements for the utility during each 
forecast year. 

The model then calculates monthly user charges (rates) based on variable inputs for 
inflation, operating costs, customer base (i.e., number of ERUs) and capital improvements. 
The model is designed as an integrated set of spreadsheets that also provides toggles for 
various input assumptions. These are summarized in Table 10-1. 

Table 10-1 
Summary of Modelina AssumDtions 

;MODEL INPUTS 

Userinputs Required... 	..... Purpose 

Financing Assumptions Type of debt financing to be used, term of indenture, Debt sizing and 
interest rates etc. In Wilsonville's case the debt is servicing 
issued through revenue bonds 

Capital Improvement Project cost, description, year of implementation, CIP costing 
Projects and Schedule CIP inflation rate 

Operating Revenues and Start year budgeted revenues and expenses by line Cash flow and 
Expenses item, billable ERUs, general cost inflation index, income statement 

projected growth in ERU (as a percent) for the utility 

ERU5 Growth in ERUs through the planning period Forecast of 
estimating billable 

ERUs 

10.3.1 Assumptions 

Key modeling assumptions were developed over multiple meetings with City staff and 
are summarized below: 

20-year revenue bonding at an interest rate of 5.0% 

10-2 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

• 	A coverage factor of 1.25 times maximum annual debt service 

• 	Level debt service 

• 	An Operating Fund balance @ no less than $200,000 

• 	ERU growth of 1 3/4 % per year 

• 	Cost escalation generally at 3% with the exception of 4.5% for personal 
services and 4.5% for transfers. 

10.3.2 Model Outputs and Reports 

The model has a series of standard reports which include: 

• 	Schedule of financing assumptions - This report itemizes the user 
inputs that are required by the model to create debt issuances and bond 
proceeds that will be used to pay for capital improvements. It is always 
assumed that debt proceeds are only used to pay for capital 
improvement projects and related coverage, issuance and reserve 
funding requirements. This disallows use of bond proceeds to fund the 
cost of operations and maintenance expenses. These costs are 
assumed to be funded through user charges (rates). 

• 	Debt sizing and servicing report - This report itemizes the calculated 
amount of annual debt service for each forecast year. The analysis is 
based on the level of capital improvement spending in any forecast year 
and the revenue bond debt funding costs including principal, interest, 
coverage and reserve funding requirements. 

• 	Listing of capital projects and construction fund activity - This 
report itemizes the capital improvement projects (last edition October 
2011) over the planning period. The model adjusts project costs for the 
effects of inflation as future projects are scheduled for implementation. 
This report also tracks the activity within the capital projects fund for 
transfers, interest earnings on fund balance and beginning and ending 
fund balances. 

Schedule of revenue requirements and monthly rates - The rate-
making results are displayed in this report. The model uses two tests to 
solve for rates. The first is for the sufficienc7of cash flows to fund 
operations and debt service. The second is a test of bonded debt 
coverage requirements. After solving for each of these tests in each 
forecast year, the model calculates a user charge that will be sufficient to 
fund the more stringent test. 

Statement of revenues and expenses - This report calculates the 
results of operations for each forecast year prior to rate adjustments. 
Based on a start-year level of operating revenues and expenses, the 
model forecasts the net utility income if revenues and expenses are 

UM 	10-3 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

incurred as projected based on inflation assumptions and customer base 
growth. 

Debt service worksheet; revenue bonds-This worksheet shows the 
debt servicing for revenue bonds by year and by issuance. The model 
assumes level debt service for all revenue bonds that are issued over 
the forecast horizon. The purpose of this report is to show the total debt 
service in any year, but also to see how much of the total service 
consists of interest and principal repayment. 

10.4 GENERAL ECONOMIC AND PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS 

The model assigns independent inflation factors for various categories of costs. 
These are noted in Table 10-2: 

Table 10-2 

Inflation and Economic Forecastina Assumotions 
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Inflation Forecast: 
Personal serices Budget 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 
Materials and sen.ices Budget 3.00% 3,00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Capital outlays Budget 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Transfers to other funds Budget 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 

Revenue Growth Forecast: 

lntergoemmental Budget 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 100% 3.00% 
Transfers from other funds Budget 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
lnestment income Budget 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 
Miscellaneous Budget 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Growth Customer Base 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 

Unit SWM SOC $ 	492 	$ 780' $ 1068' $ 1356' $ 1,356' $ 1,356' $ 1,356' $ 1,356' $ 1,356' $ 1,356 
ERU furecast: 

Estimated ERUs beginning 20,172 20,524 20,882 21,246 21,616 21,993 22,376 22,766 23,163 23,567 
Annual additions 352 358 364 370 377 383 390 397 404 411 

Estimated ERUs ending 20,524 iO, 882 21,616 21,993 21,246  22,376 22,766 23,163 23,567 23,978 

10.5 STORM WATER SDC FUND 

• The Stormwater SDC Fund receives revenues collected from the City's SDCs 
and, when required, transfers money to the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund to 
pay for construction. Historically, annual revenues from SDCs have varied from a 
high of $402,000 in 2008 (actual) to $91,233 (actual) in 2010. For forecast 
purposes based on 1% % growth and the proposed phasing in of the full SDC 
through 2015, annual SDC revenues are expected to be more in the $400,000 
per year range. The forecast does not anticipate the issuance of any long term 
debt for the first five (5) years to finance capital needs. Internally generated free 
cash flows are assumed to be sufficient to meet SWM system capital investing 
needs over this first five years of the forecast. The forecast does assume the 
City will be issuing revenue bonds in years six through fourteen to meet the 
funding requirements of the capital improvement plan. Starting in 2013, the 

I 

 L ii 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

increasing capital needs and escalating operating costs in excess of customer 
growth will require increases in rates (see Table 10-3). 

• Two funding sources for capital construction will be revenues from the 
Stormwater SDC Fund and the Stormwater Operating Fund which will be 
transferred to the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund. 

The estimated FY 2011 ending fund balance in the Stormwater SDC Fund was 
$411,844 (see Table 10-4). Over the forecast horizon, this balance is drawn 
down to zero and held at that level. In each forecast year, all cash entering the 
Stormwater SDC Fund is transferred to the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund to 
support master plan construction work. In addition to these resources, the 
Stormwater Capital Projects fund receives cash transfers from the Stormwater 
Operating Fund in excess of $100,000 per year in each of the forecast years 
FY20 1 2-2022. 

Table 10-3 
Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates. 

Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates - $ per Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) 

$6.88 

11111111 
2012 	 2013 	 2014 	 2018 	 2016 	 2011 	 2018 	 2019 	 2020 	 2021 

	

Monthly rate based on rosined (10 - October?, 2011 	—I— Current monthly rate- $332 per 660 per Month 

* assumes a rate increase to $5.00/ERU effective 1/1/12 

$10.00 

tI3 



Chapter 10 
Financial A 

Table 10-4 
Forecast of Stormwater SDC Fund Cash Flows 

City of WilsonAIte 
Analysis of Stormwater SDC Fund Cash Flow 

Budget Budget    Forecast  
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Resources: 
Beginning Fund Balance 673,247 608,432 475,002 - - - - - - - - 
Sales and SenAces: 

System Development Charges 
Interest Income 

256,588 
13,000 

293,227 
5,000 

279,016 
4,750 

388,701 
- 

502,122 
- 

510,867 
- 

519,776 
- 

528,828 
- 

538,045 
- 

547,428 
- 

556,976 
- 

Miscellaneous - - - - - - - - - - - 

Total Resources $ 	942,835 $ 	906,659 $ 	758,768 $ 	388,701 $ 	502,122 $ 	510,867 $ 	519,776 $ 	528,828 $ 	538,045 $ 	547,428 $ 	556,976 
Requirements: 

Materials and 5er4ces 1,430 1.430 1,473 1,517 1,563 1,609 1,658 1,707 1,759 1,811 1,866 

Transfrs OUT: 
Streets Capital Projects Fund - - - - - - - - - - - 

Storm Water Capital Projects Fund 332,973 430,227 757,295 387,184 500,560 509,257 518,11.9 527121 536,287 545,616 555,110 
332,973 430,227 757,295 387,184 500,560 509,257 518,119 527,121 536,287 545,616 555,110 Subtotal Transfers OUT 

Contingency 196,588 - - - - - - - - - - 

Ending Fund Balance 411,844 475,002 - - - - - - - - - 

Total Requirements $ 	942,835 $ 	906,659 $ 	758,768 $ 	388,701 $ 	502122 $ 	510,867 $ 	519,776 $ 	528,828 $ 	538.045 $ 	547428 $ 	556,976 

10-6 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.6 STORMWATER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

The Stormwater Master Plan produced the capital improvement program and schedule 
summarized in Table 10-5: 

Table 10-5 
Schedule of Capital Improvement Projects 

City of WilOorwille 
Summary of Slorriwtet System Capitol lmpr000mcat Plan 

'ost Escalation Ric 	3.00% 	I 

MP 	Cast In FY 	I  
Rank 	2011 	 Y.ar Project 

Annual 
Maintenance Coat 

Project 
Nianb.r 

- 	 . l4lhPdoeftProjecti,.0.SYeas 
255.500 2012 11hrargroan 	op 	Pm  2,2151 ReOolO 
577.266 2012 B0,c 	Cr 	P 	lgr, 	4 2200 BC-? 

- 51400 2012 . —Invmvevempmem Do In Standards end In98ementatlOn Itulde 0 StudySt-S 
45,466 2013 Vewilll Two Permanent Stacnrvater Flow Moq8*ostaO Slatlons and Two ROIn GoOeti 0 Study ST-B 
18,240 2013 Purchm InfoswMM Model 0 Study ST'9 

- 142.500 2013 snamoorwmenu ,trrmwucture rurylecornent Study 0 Study 574 
135.114 2014 Gesetadsaft Water Wa8 Charted Restoqttllon 1.800 01>4 
203,148 2014 i#otnontjt Park Ptttlth5 Lot W,Iated Swabs (3) 6.800 Up, 
129.504 2014 enyoot Creek Estates Pl(se IkeffiOstd 1.500 
213.196 2015 Barber Street PIpe Ropb000ment 1,200 504205 & $04209 
56.482 2015 Sw Cometol 	rean threai MId-thQCIt Curb Extor4lons (2 ettlonalon,) 5.300 L103 

064.071 2015 CarnmerceC1rcteCharme4 RestootIos, 5.700 CLC-3 
- 57m000  2016 thtcy to artalyza erca notlh 04 Eegsan RetEast of I-S 0 Study ST-I 

285.000 2016 uIut. Projeci Den.topment and tmpten*nt000n 0 FP 
Medbm Pñoetty Pysleces - 5-10 Y..  

167,580 2017 Boec6nmarr Creek Outing RcltabBtatlon 1400 9C-2 
1.366,949 2017 iAiItIpbe Oltontlon Rpe irrslnentlon 1.100 BC-B 

- 29.441 2017 """ ' 	"" Rea lignment 1300 BC-5 
610.109 2018 Ca 	Loop Pet 	ye 	ri 1.100 0C4 

2018 Momonat P 	tan an 	0 testament 2.900 BC-la 
111720 2018 MemorIal b...,. P86rwntt ,..,.. 	 ...,.un RepaIr 0 BC.'9 

- 526,338 2019 S5 Camelol Gras 	H 	lb Satentboss (18 estensIans) 47,700 (.103 
362.794 2019 SW Wa3amitle Rwo SbDmrmater PISM. 6.700 1.107 
279.420 2059 SW Panr"YAveMeRestoration 4200 CLC-2 
115.028 2020 !2b= Lane CuhWt Replacement 2200 CLC-9 

457.405 2020 SW Parkway Pipes Replacement 2,200 
505707,5109. 5714. 

5719 
57,000 2020 Mnance Road School Stts thuty 0 Study ST2 

3516,900 2ót DeIeIlbOnlW4ttand Enhancement noes Thbuins'4m to BannS Crook 4,900 CLC-I 
- 881.411 2021 French Pririrse Road In NW Chattannenu PIpe Reptncenremrt 1.500 SD9 

1.043,501 . 	2021 Curry Dove and Ftanth Prattle Road In NW Cttmtasmnenu ('Ipe Replacement 2.100 500062 
285400 2021 luturo Projoct Devement end tmptementailor 0 

Low Petodty  
342,000 2022 Master Plan and Model  
5.00 2022 Survey of Open Channel Conveynoce 0 Study S1'-3 

5,448350 2022 Wlndonrtvn Aoad Reitbonti6 thatmwaier OetentlonrStroam EntlIrncomont 4,900 BC-i 
283.778 2023 RIdder Road mu,.,...,..  Rostmition  2.900 C1.C-4 
336.938 2023 SW 49man Green Stroot Stormwater Curb Etctonanns 4,000 1.102 
339.844 2023 Coffee Lake Creek Stream andR4 ,rlsmt Enlmoncerrent 2,900 d.C-S 
490.286 2024 C 	Sooth T 	Wetland Entueme,rt 2,900  
495.114 2024 Irmlawy Stream ResterotlOn 2900 CLC-7 
65393 2024 uooe, ,tooa cureesr Mefiacoment 2,200 5046218 504022 

486,81? 2025 Cotle. 1.480 Creek Restoration 4.300 Cl.C-6 
- 57,000 2025 BonoSman Creek at Boeclitnan Road Stonnwatnr Study 0 Study St1 
- 733.5901 2025 Boberp Rood I4po Replacement 2200 S0400S- S03028 

1,052,432 202 MoOWa Oantlon Pipe instaltallon - Onat. Croet tlpra'tmems IiOO 6C4 
522.989.260 Net Constsucdon Cost 5136 600 	1  

The total cost for the high priority projects (years 0 - 5) is $2,771 ,697 or $3,014,636 
(inflated). These high priority projects are to be funded from a combination of cash on 
hand and future internally generated cash. No long term debt issuances are expected 
to be used to fund these high priority projects. Contributions are anticipated in 2013-
from the Stormwater SDC Fund of $757,295 and from the Stormwater Operating Fund 
of $130,000. Stormwater SDC Fund transfers will drop to about $500,000 per year after 
2013 while the analysis assumes continued use of Operating Fund resources at about 
$400,000 per year through 2022. 

The total cost of the medium priority projects is $10,129,961 (years 5 - 10) 
($13,146,987 inflated). The total cost of the low priority projects (years 10— 20) is 

UW 	10-7 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

$10,087,602 ($14,387,059 inflated). In order to fund the medium and long term priority 
projects, it is assumed the City will issue revenue bonds starting in fiscal 2017. The 
modeling assumes long term debt will be issued in each forecast year from fiscal 2017 
to fiscal 2025. As discussed above, it is assumed the City will be contributing free cash 
flows in support of these future construction costs. Over the2017 to 2025 time frame, 
modeling indicates the City will contribute $7,075,000 in support of these medium and 
low priority master plan projects. 

Also, over this time frame, the modeling indicates the City will borrow a total of 
$22,488,464. This total exceeds the net inflated cost of the projects (i.e., inflated costs 
of projects less equity contributions from the City) because of issuance costs and 
upsizing of borrowings to fund anticipated revenue bond reserve account requirements. 
This highlights the need to bundle projects (and debt) to minimize issuance costs. 

Bond covenants require that stormwater user fees be set at a rate sufficient to recover 
at least 1.25 times the actual amount of current bonded debt service in addition to 
operating expenses, and require a reserve equal to the highest principal and interest 
payments due in any future year. The stormwater financial model takes these coverage 
and reserve requirements into account and tests for sufficiency in every year of the 
forecast. Table 10-6 shows the forecast of annual costs for the high priority projects. 

Table 10-6 
Annual Master Plan High Priority Capital Improvement Costs (years 0-5) 

10-8 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-7 
Forecast of Stormwater Capital Projects Fund Cash Flows 

City of Wilsonille 
Analysis of Stormwater Capital Projects Fund Cash Flow 

Budget Budget    Forecast  
2011 2012 2013 1 	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Resources: 
Beginning Fund Balance 
Revenues: 

11,272 10,272 10,272 555,993 445,453 515,623 753,324 392,245 721,959 1,078,661 1.449,305 

lntergo.emmental - 410.000 - - - - - - - - 
lnestment income 
Contdbutions 

1,000 
500,000 

- 

- 
103 
- 

5,560 
- 

4,455 
- 

5,156 
- 

7,533 
- 

3,922 
- 

7,220 
- 

10,787 
- 

14,493 
- 

Subtotal renues 
Transfers from other funds - IN: 

501,000 410,000 103 5,560 4,455 5156 7,533 3,922 7,220 10,787 14,493 

Stormwater Operating Fund 159,760 252,373 130,000 137,000 640,000 260,000 400,000 550,000 550,000 775,000 400,000 
Stormwater SDC Fund 332,973 430,227 757,295 387,184 500,560 509,257 518,119 527,121 536,287 545,616 555,110 

492,733 682,600 887,295 524,184 1,140,560 769,257 918,119 1,077,121 1,086,287 1,320,616 955,110 Subtotal transfers IN 
Bond proceeds: - 

Oregon DEQ reotAng loans - - - - - - - - - - - 
New reenue bonds - resee requirement - - - - - - 59,819 51,818 73,233 6,479 644,101 
New reenue bonds - project funding - - - - - - 678,207 587,486 830,287 73,458 7,302,550 

- - - - - - 738,027 639,303 903,520 79,937 7,946,650 Subtotal bond proceeds 

Total Resources $ 1.005,005 $ 1,102,872 $ 	897.670 $ 1,085,737 $ 1,690,467 $ 1,290,036 $ 	2,417,003 $ 	2,112,591 $ 	2,718,985 $ 2,490,002 $10,365,558 
Requirements: 

Expenditures: 
Capital projects 873,450 975,000 218785 511,862 940,643 396,472 1,878,207 1,237,486 1,480,287 873,458 7,677,550 

Transfers to other funds - OUT: 
General'Fund 8,469 11,300 11,809 12,340 12,895 13,475 14,082 14,716 15,378 16,070 16.793 
Community Deelopment Fund 110,814 106,300 111,084 116,082 121,306 126,765 132,469 138,430 144.660 151,169 157,972 

119,283 117,600 122,892 128,422 134,201 140,240 146,551 153.146 160,037 167,239 174,765 Subtotal transfers to other funds - OUT 

Contingency 12,272 - - - - - - - - - - 
New reenue bonds - reser 	requirement - - - - - - 59,819 111,637 184,870 191,349 835,450 

- 10,272 555,993 445,453 515,623 753,324 332,425 610,323 893,7911 1,257.955 1,677,794 Unappropiiated ending fund balance 

Total Requirements $ 1,005,005 $ 1,102,872 $ 	897,670 $ 1,085,737 $ 1,590,467 $ 1.290,036 $ 	2,417,003 $ 	2,112,591 $ 	2.718,985 $ 	2,490,002 $ 10,365,558 

EWE 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

It should also be noted that there are annual transfers out of the Stormwater Capital 
Projects Fund (see Table 10-7) to the General Fund ($11,300) and to the 
Community Development Fund ($106,300). These have been included in this 
analysis. 

10.7 STORM WATER OPERATING FUND 

The estimated 2012 Stormwater Operating Fund beginning balance is $497,712. 
As reflected in this rate forecast, the Operating Fund receives approximately 
$1,000,000 annually from stormwater service charges. The Fund's major 
expenses are for personal services at $236,000; materials and services at 
$487,000 and, as estimated in the Master Plan, additional maintenance costs 
related to the recommended new facilities of between $10,000 and $144,000 
annually (see line item "materials and services - new CIP" in Operating Fund 
detail sheet). 

• Transfers Out - The second largest financial requirement of the Stormwater 
Operating Fund (see Table 10-8) is cash transfers to other funds. The financial 
model fully funds all required transfers out including the following (2012 budget): 

General Fund.................................................................................$166,700 

Community Development Fund .......................................................$77,000 

Stormwater Capital Projects Fund.................................................$252,373 

• Contingency and unappropriated ending fund balances - For the base case 
forecast, it has been assumed that future rates will be set to meet all financial 
requirements, and keep an ending fund balance at a threshold of not less than 
$200,000. 

"Ut'] 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-8 
Forecast of Stormwater Operating Fund Cash Flows 

City ofWilson.ille 
Analysis of Stormwater Operating Fund Cash Flow 

Budget Budget    Forecast 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 	2020 2021 

Resources: 
Beginning Fund Balance 653450 497712 353767 501,767 617,767 202767 277767 292,767 263767 281,767 274,767 

Revenues: 
Stormwater utility charges 
lntergoemmental 

955,000 
- 

1,073,816 
- 

1,278,072 
- 

1,299,621 1323,204 
- 

1478,701 
- 

1,665,250 
- 

1,872462 
- 

2,112,575 2375,116 
- 

2,745,174 
- 

In.estment income 
Miscellaneous 

10,000 
- 

2,000 
- 

3,538 
- 

5,018 
- 

6,178 
- 

2,028 
- 

2,778 
- 

2,928 
- 

2,638 2,818 
- 

2,748 
- 

Subtotal reenues 965,000 1,075,816 1,281,609 1,304,638 1,329,381 1,480,729 1,668,027 1,875,390 2,115,213 2,377,934 2.747,922 

Total Resources $ 	1,618,450 $ 	1,573,528 $ 	1,635,376 $ 	1,806,405 $ 	1,947,148 $ 	1,683,496 $ 	1,945,794 $ 	2,168,156 $ 	2,378,980 $ 	2,659,701 $ 	3,022,689 
Requirements: 

Expenditures: 
Personal serices 
Materials and serAces - base line 
Materials and senAces -on new CIP 
Capital outlays 

219,440 
502,338 

- 

2,500 

236,290 
487,398 

- 

- 

246,923 
502,020 

- 
- 

258,035 
517,081 

10,397 
- 

269,646 
532,593 

24,040 
- 

281,780 
548,571 

24,761 
- 

294,460 
565,028 

30,025 
- 

307,711 
581,979 
35,702 

- 

321,558 
599,438 
109,705 

- 

336,028 
617,421 
118,570 

- 

351,149 
635,944 
133,217 

- 

Subtotal expenditures 724278 723,688 748,943 785,512 826,279 855,112 889,513 925,392 1,030,701 1,072,019 1,120,311 

Transfers to other funds - OUT 
General Fund 
Community Development Fund 
Stormwater Capital Projects Fund 

163,700 
73,000 

159,760 

166,700 
77,000 

252,373 

174,202 
80,465 

130,000 

182,041 
84,086 

137,000 

190,232 
87,870 

640,000 

198,793 
91,824 

260,000 

207,739 
95,956 

400,000 

217,087 
100,274 
550,000 

226,856 
104,786 
550,000 

237,064 
109,502 
775,000 

247,732 
114,429 
400,000 

396,460 496,073 384,667 403,126 918,102 550,617 703,695 867,361 881,642 1,121,566 762,161 Subtotal transfers to otherfunds 

Debt serice: 
DEQ reolng loans - - - - - - - - - - - 

New Revenue bonds - - - - - - 59,819 111,637 184,870 191,349 835,450 
- - - - - - 59,819 111,637 184,870 191,349 835,450 Subtotal debt service 

ContingencieslDesignations 50,170 272,563 

Unappropriated ending fund balance 447,542 81,204 501,767 617,767 202,767 277,767 292,767 263.767 261,767 274,767 304,767 

Total Requirements $ 	1,618,450 $ 	1,573,528 $ 	1,635,376 $ 	1,806,405 $ 	1,947,148 $ 	1,683,496 $ 	1,945,794 $ 	2,168,156 $ 	2,378,980 $ 	2,659,701 $ 	3,022,689 

10-1 1 



Chapter 10 
Financial A 

10.7.1 Analysis of Revenue Requirements 

This task calculates the revenue needed from rates. It is driven by utility cash flow or 
income requirements, constraints of bond covenants and specific fiscal policies related 
to the development, operation and maintenance of a "stand alone" stormwater 
management utility. Based on cost and planning information discussed above, and 
shared with City Staff, the following forecast, displayed in Table 10-0, of future 
stormwater revenue requirements was developed: 

UM 10-12 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-9 
Forecast of Stormwater System Revenue Requirements 

City of Wilsondule 
Projection of Stomiwater Operating Fund Revenue Requirements 

Budget    Forecast  
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2016 2019 	2020 2021 Une Item DescrIption 2012 

Projection of Cash Flow: 
Revenues: 

Stormwater utility charges 1073,816 1.073,816 1,278,072 1299,621 1.323,204 1478.701 1665,250 1,872,462 2,112,575 2,375.116 
lntergosetnmental - - 
Investment income 2,000 3,538 5,018 6,178 2,028 2,778 2,928 2638 2,818 2,748 
Miscellaneous 	 , - - - - - - - - - - 

1,075,816 1,077.353 1,263,089 1,305,798 1,325,231 1,481,479 1,668,177 1,875,100 2,115,393 2,377.864 Subtotal revenues 
Expenditures: 

Operations and maintenance 723,688 748,943 785,512 826,279 855,112 889,513 925,382 1,030,701 1,072.019 1,120,311 
Transfers to Other Funds - excluding SWM 5055troction lUnd 243,700 254,667 266,126 278,102 290,617 303,695 317,361 331.642 348,566 362,161 

Debt serurce - - - - 59,819 111,637 184,870 191,349 835,450 
Use of Operating Fund balance 100.580 278,000 253.000 225,000 335,000 415,000 521,000 568,000 768,000 430,000 

1,067968 1,281.609 1,304,638 1.329.381 1,480.729 1,668,027 1,875.390 2,115,213 2,377,934 2,747,922 Subtotal expendItures 

Net Cash 7,848 (204,256) (21,549) (23,583) (155,498) (186.548) (207.212) (240,113) (262.541) (370.058) 

Net Dellciency/(Surptus) (7,848) 204,256 21,549 23.583 155,498 - 186,548 207,212 240,113 262,541 370,058 

Test of Coverage Requirement: 
Operating Revenues: 

Stormwater utility charges 1,073,816 1,073,816 1,278,072 1,299,621 1,323,204 1,478,701 1,665,250 1,872,462 2,112,575 2.375,116 
Intergoxemmental - - ' - - - - 
System Development Charges 293.227 279.016 388,701 502,122 510.867 519,776 528,828 538.045 547,428 556,976 
Transfers (To) From Rate Stabilization Account - - - - - - - - 

1,367,043 1,352,832 1,666.773 1,801,743 1,834,070 1,998,478 2,194,078 2,410,507 2,660,003 2.932,092 Total Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenses: 

Operations & Maintenance Expense 723,688 748.943 785,512 826,279 855,112 889,513 925,392 1,030,701 1.072.019 1.120,311 
Transfers to Other Funds 243,700 254,667 266,126 278,102 290,617 303,695 317,361 331,642 346,566 362,181 

967,388 1,003,609 1,051,638 1,104,381 1,145,729 1,193,208 1,242,753 1,362,343 1,418,585 1,482,472 Total Operating Expenses 

Net Operating Income 399,655 349,222 615,135 697,362 688,341 805,270 951,325 1,048,164 1,241,418 1,449.620 

Noncperating Income (Expense): 
Interest Income: 

Storrnwater Operating Fund 2,000 3,538 5,018 6,178 2,028 2,778 2,928 2.638 2,818 2.748 
Stomiwater Capital Projects Fund - 103 5,560 4,455 5,156 7,533 3,922 7.220 10.787 14,493 
Stoenwoler SDC Fund 5,000 4.750 - - 

Other Nonopnrating income (expense) 
Miscellaneous - - - - - - 

7,000 8,390 10,578 10,632 7.184 10,311 6,850 9,857 13,604 17,241 Total Nonoperating IncOme 

Total Not Revenues Arellabla for Debt Scrvrce 4013,1355 357,613 825,712 707,994 695.525 815,581 958,175 1,058,022 1,255,022 1.466,881 

Debt Sersice: 
Senior LIen Parity Obligations: 

Oregon DEQ Revoistng Loan - - - - - - - 
New revenue bonds - - - 59.819 111,637 184,870 191,349 835,450 

- - - - - 59,819 111,637 184,870 191,349 835,450 Total Senior Uen Parity Obligations 

Senior Lien Parity Obligations Coverage Recognized N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 13.63 8.58 5.72 6.56 1.76 
Senior Uen Parity Obligations Coverage Required 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 

Senior Lien Coverage DeOclency - - - - - - 

NetOetciency/(Surluu) - - - - - - - - - 

Projection of Revenue Sufficiency: 
Maximum Defciericy - 204,256 21,549 23.583 155,498 186,548 207.212 240,113 262,541 370,058 
Percent increase Required Over Current Rate Revenues 0.00/ 19.02% 1.69% 1.81% 11.75% 12,62% 12.44% 12.82% 12.43% 15.58 

Slormwater rales reconciliation: 
Revenues recognized from current rates 1,073,816 1,073,816 1,278,072 1,299,621 1,323,204 1,478,701 1,665,250 1,872.452 2,112,575 2,375,116 

Add revenues from rate increase - 204,256 21,549 23,583 155,498 186.548 207,212 240,113 262.541 370,058 

1,073,816 1,278,072 1,299,621 1,323,204 1,478,701 1,665,250 7 ,872,462 2.112,575 2,375,116 2,745.174 Total revenues recognized from rate increase 

UM 10-13 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.8 RATE ANALYSIS 

In Wilsonville, service charges for stormwater management reflect a rationale that those 
who contribute runoff to the stormwater system should proportionately contribute to the 
costs of providing services. This approach is now regarded by most administrators and 
the courts as an appropriate technique for financing stormwater programs. A basic 
assumption in this rate analysis is that services will continue to be billed on the basis of 
impervious surface. For single family residential property owners, the average amount 
of impervious area on a developed residential lot is 2,750 square feet. This value 
provides the basis for and equates to one ERU. Non-residential property owners are 
billed based on their measured impervious area divided by 2,750 which is then 
multiplied by the rate per ERU of $3.72 (current rate). The base case forecast has 
assumed that the percentage change in revenue requirements in any forecast year will 
be applied to the prior year's rate to arrive at that year's calculated rate per ERU. Table 
10-10 shows the rate forecast per ERU over the forecast horizon. 

Note: the budgeted rate for fiscal 2012 is $4.33; the forecast assumes a rate increase to $5.00 effective 
1/1/12. 

Table 10-10 
Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates per ERU 

City of Wilsonriule 
Projection of Storniwater Operating Fund Revenue Requirements and Derivation of Monthly Rates per ERU 

Budget  Forecast  
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Gross revenues requIred from rates: 
Operations and maintenance expense 723,688 748,943 785,512 826,279 655112 889513 925,392 1.030,701 1,072,019 1.120311 
Operating fund capital outlays . - . - - - 

Transfers to other funds 'less transfers to constructIon 243,700 254667 266,126 278,102 290,617 303,695 317,361 331642 346,566 362,161 
Debt ser.ico - - - . 59,819 111,637 184,870 191,349 635,450 
(Use)iReplacement of Operating Fund balance 100,580 278,000 253,000 225000 335,000 415,000 521000 568,000 768,000 430,000 

1,067,968 1,281,609 1,304,638 1,329,381 1,480,729 1,668,027 1,875,390 2,115,213 2,377,934 2,747,922 Subtotal gross revenues required from rates 
Revenue offsets to cost of service: 

Intergovernmental . . . - - - 
Investment Income 2,000 3,538 5,018 6,178 2,028 2,778 2,928 2,638 2,818 2,748 
Miscellaneous - - - ' - . - - . - 

2,000 3538 5,018 8,178 2.028 2,778 2,928 2,638 2,818 2,748 Subtotal revenue offsets to cost of service 

Net revenues required from rates 1,065,968 1,278,072 1,299.621 1,323,204 1,478.701 1,665,250 1,872,462 2,112,575 2,375,116 2,745,174 

Forecasted billable retail ERIJs 20.524 20.882 21,248 21,616 21,993 22,376 22,766 23,163 23,567 23.978 

Current monthly rate$3.72 per ERU per Month S 	3.72 S 	172 $ 	3.72 S 	3.72 $ 	3.72 S 	3.72 S 	3.72 5 	3,72 5 	3.72 S 	3.72 
Monthly rate based on revised CIP - October 7.2011 $ 	4,33 $ 	5.10 $ 	5.10 S 	5.10 S 	5.60 S 	6.20 S 	6.85 $ 	7.60 S 	8.40 S 	9.54 

UM 10-14 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

As the data in Table 10-11 shows, the longer range rate forecast shows significant 
increases as the cumulative effect of issuing revenue bonds to pay for the capital 
improvements is reflected in the rate. This forecast also assumes that the City will use 
available resources within its Stormwater SDC and Operating Funds to support 
identified capital needs during the initial phase of capital construction. These rate 
projections and specifically the rate effects related to capital funding are also based on 
increasing the City's current Stormwater SDC of $492 per ERU based on the following 
step increases: 

July 1,2012-$780perERU 

July 1,2013-$1,068perERU 

July 1,2014 -$1,356 per ERU 

Table 10-11 
Long Range Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates per ERU 

	

$12.00 	
Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates - $ per Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) 

$10.00 

$0.40 

	

$8.00 	 $7.60 

$6.85 

6.20 

	

$5.00 	 $5.60 
$5.10 	 $0.10 	 $5.10 

::: 

2012 	 2013 	 2014 	 2015 	 2016 	 2017 	 0018 	 2019 	 2020 	 2021 

	

Monthly rote bo5nd on eevked CIP . October 7,2011 	 '—U'-'- Correct monthly rote. $3.72 per LOU per Month 

IM 	10-15 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.8.1 Service Charge Credits 

Implementation of a stormwater funding structure requires policy direction regarding 
whether specific classifications of property or uses of such property will qualify for 
service charge exemption or credit. The amount of a property's service charge must be 
linked to its proportionate share of stormwater program costs. Issues of equity or legal 
defensibility arise when exemption or credit policies move away from this utility rate 
making premise. Service charges must be fair and reasonable and bear a substantial 
relationship to the cost of providing services and facilities. 

Many basic policy decisions revolve around "who pays" when a stormwater service 
charge is applied to individual properties. The ERU approach is based on impervious 
area and would, therefore, exempt undeveloped properties which, by definition, do not 
have impervious area. If truly undeveloped i.e., left in its natural state, it is difficult to 
include undeveloped land in a rate structure based on impervious area and contribution 
of runoff factors. 

Most stormwater service charge structures do not consider property ownership in 
establishing rates. Instead, charges are based on property conditions/improvements 
which affect runoff in some manner. One exception is publicly owned properties where 
a variety of policies have been implemented. Some utilities apply stormwater service 
charges to public properties in the same manner as private properties. Others do not 
charge public properties because it is believed that the process only takes money from 
one City fund and transfers it to another. However, the method most often employed is 
to bill all public owned facilities (schools, city buildings, etc.) but exempt publicly owned 
streets. The logic supporting the exemption for streets being that they are designed and 
operated as part of the City's stormwater conveyance system. 

Another question in the stormwater rate is exemption or reduction of the charge based 
on social issues of low income or elderly. No general rule has been set which.enables 
service charge reductions based solely on ability to pay or age making this issue one 
established by local policy. The stormwater charge should be consistent with the City's 
other rate structures. 

The issue of tax-exempt properties being excluded from the service charge is legally 
straightforward. For the sake of maintaining consistency with legal requirements of 
service charges, the stormwater fee should be applied to properties owned by churches, 
non-profit agencies and others having tax exempt status. 

Most stormwater utilities do provide for credits against service charges to recognize the 
effects of on-site detention, water quality mitigation or other means of stormwater 
control. Wilsonville's stormwater rate is related to each property's contribution of runoff 
to the system. The objective of a service charge credit system is to provide incentives 
for developers to meet or exceed stormwater quantity/quality requirements. The level of 
credit should reflect the reduced effect a property with on-site controls has over a similar 
property lacking this mitigation. The amount of reduction is a function of the service 

10-16 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

charge rate structure. Under the impervious surface approach, the credit results in a 
reduction of the equivalent units attributable to the property. 

The next question is how much of the service charge should be made available for 
credit. The case for making the entire charge available for credit would assume that if 
the site totally retains stormwater runoff, that customer is not being served by any of the 
programs or services offered by the utility. However, given the fact that access to the 
property is available during storm events and those stormwater utility activities such as 
water quality management, channel maintenance, regulatory compliance and public 
information will continue to benefit all the City's customers, it is questionable whether 
any property is left totally unserved by the program. Based on this logic, it is generally 
accepted that some level of the fee remain in place regardless of the on-site facility 
constructed by the customer. The level of credit available is then a function of allocating 
program costs to "base" versus "use" factors. Base can be defined as program costs 
that are largely unaffected by storm water flows. These typically include water quality 
management, regulatory compliance and billing/administration. Use costs are those that 
are related to storm water flow and may include budget categories such as maintenance 
and some capital improvements. 

A final consideration deals with the calculation of the credit itself. There are a number of 
variations all of which revolve around the desired level of simplicity, equity and 
administrative ease. At its simplest, a service charge credit is calculated as a 
percentage reduction based on the type of facility. A detention facility equals a certain 
percentage reduction; a retention facility another percentage; sumps another 
percentage. A higher level of accuracy is achieved when the calculation is based on a 
case by case comparison of pre and post development flows from the site. 

The City's current Resolution No. 1732 (Part Ill Article l.A) stipulates the following 
regarding eligibility for a reduction in the stormwater service charge: 

The applicant must show to the Department of Public Work's (DPW) 
satisfaction, the amount of permanent reduction to the total run-off or run-off 
coefficient for the property. Extra capacity facilities or improvements above 
the requirements as described in the Stormwater Master Plan as described 
in Part II Definitions of this Resolution that are installed and maintained by 
the applicant may be used to show the amount of permanent reduction to 
the total runoff or runoff coefficient. 

This credit procedure does provide the City with the mechanism to establish rate 
incentives for upsizing or providing levels of treatment that go beyond the requirements 
established for the stormwater program. However, the Resolution could be improved by 
including a more specific calculation of how the oversizing or other stormwater 
improvements on the property are translated into a reduction of the rate. It is assumed 
that the current methodology applies the same percentage reduction of flows from the 
site as the basis for a percentage reduction of the service charge applied to the site. 

U&S 	10-17 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.9 SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE METHODOLOGY 

10.9.1 Background 

This update of Wilsonville's system development charges (SDC) for stormwater was 
done in conjunction with completion of the Stormwater Master Plan. As part of this 
update process, issues related to the current stormwater SDC structure were addressed 
through Wilsonville's Finance and Community Development Departments. These 
groups, working with the URS Project Team, established the proposed direction on the 
structure and calculation of the draft stormwater SDCs. 

For this SDC update, Wilsonville established a number of objectives: 

• Review the basis for the SDCs to ensure a consistent methodology; 

• Develop a reimbursement element of the SDC; and 

• Consider possible revisions to the structure or basis of the charge that might 
improve equity or proportionality to demand. 

The City's current stormwater SDC is $492 per ERU. This SDC was established in 2001 
(CIP costs have been escalated over time but the basis for the charge has not been 
updated since 2001). The sole basis for the SDC is future project costs allocated to 
growth which in 2001 were valued at $4,543,981. This cost base was allocated over 
planned future growth in ERUs of 9,189. The City then applied a "debt service 
redUction" of $74 per ERU which resulted in a total SOC of $421 in 2001. Again, as 
capital costs have been adjusted over time, this rate has increased to the current $492. 

This Stormwater Master Plan also identified a new category of project referred to as low 
impact development (LID) which are projects oriented toward improved stormwater 
quality. Because of the overall benefit to the City's stormwater program these water 
quality projects will provide, it was not possible to apportion specific projects or 
elements of projects to growth. Rather, the approach was to take the total LID project 
cost of $1 387,700 and divide that amount by total ERUs (current and future) in the 
system of 28,502. This proportionately allocates these LID costs over the entire 
stormwater customer base as opposed to specific project allocations to growth in ERUs. 

Finally, the City requested that a reimbursement element of the stormwater SDC also 
be evaluated as part of this project. Based on the City's fixed asset schedule, the costs 
for existing stormwater facilities were identified. From this base all developer 
contributions and grant funded improvements were subtracted from that total as 
contributed capital not eligible for SDC reimbursement. As is the case for the LID 
projects, there was no attempt to allocate specific assets to growth. Rather, the overall 
stormwater system assets (less contributed capital) provide capacity to new 

Im 10-18 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

connections, the cost of which has been paid by the City and its ratepayers. These 
costs should be proportionately shared by new connections to the system. Therefore, 
the book value of stormwater system assets (less contributed capital and less 
depreciation) of $13,693,030 is divided by the total ERUs in the system (current and 
future) of 28,502 to derive the reimbursement SDC of $480. 

Table 10-12 summarizes the elements of the proposed stormwater SDC: 

Table 10-12 
uIIIIIIdi y UI ri UpUeu QW111MCILVI L.?¼Sb 

City of Wilsonville 
Stormwater - System Development Charge Analysis 

Summary of Fee Components 

Reimbursement fee 
Improvement fee: 

Water quantity 
Water quality 

Total improvement fee 

Total System Development Fee 

$480 

827 
49 
876 876 

$1,356 

10.10 STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS 

Wilsonville's Resolution No. 1732 Article Ill establishes the Stormwater SDC for the 
City. While indexed to reflect current construction costs indices, the Resolution was last 
updated in November 2001. The intent of the City through this proposed stormwater 
SDC is to ensure that each project contained in the Stormwater Master Plan is 
evaluated in order to determine whether or to what extent each project is eligible to be 
included in the SDC cost base. The evaluation of these stormwater projects for SDC 
eligibility employed the following guidelines: 

ORS 223 Reciuirements: 

Capital improvements mean the facilities or assets used for stormwater 
management. This definition DOES NOT ALLOW costs for operation or routine 
maintenance of the improvements. 
The SDC improvement fee shall consider the cost of projected capital 
improvements needed to increase the capacity of the stormwater system to 
accommodate future growth. 

Lu ;; 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

3. 	An increase in system capacity is established if a capital improvement increases 
the "level of performance or service" provided by existing facilities or provides 
new facilities in order to accommodate anticipated growth. 

Under this aDDroach. the followina rules were followed: 

Repair costs are not included; 
Replacement costs will not be included unless the replacement includes an 
upsizing of stormwater syétem capacity; 
Costs will not be included which bring deficient systems up to established 
standards. 

Wilsonville's Stormwater Utility service charge and SDC are based on measured 
impervious surface area. The average amount of impervious area on a single family 
residential developed lot within the City is set at 2,750 square feet. This equates to one 
ERU. Both rates and SDCs are calculated as a function of ERUs meaning that each 
property's fee is calculated as follows: Measured Impervious Surface / 2,750 Sq Ft. = 
# of ER Us. The number of ERUs is then multiplied by the unit rate to determine the 
service charge or SDC amount. 

The number of ERUs currently connected to the City's system is 20,524 as established 
through the City's Stormwater Utility billing records. Based on growth projections of 
1% % per year, the total number of ERUs in Wilsonville at the end of the forecast period 
will be 28,502. This reflects growth of 7,978 ERUs. 

10.11 SDC STRUCTURE 

Under ORS 223.297-.314, there are two elements to an SDC: 

The reimbursement fee considers the cost of existing facilities, prior contributions by 
existing users of those facilities, the value of the unused/available capacity, and 
generally accepted ratemaking principles (see Table 10-13). The objective is that "future 
system users contribute no more than an equitable share to the cost of existing 
facilities." The calculation of the reimbursement fee is based on the original cost of 
stormwater system facilities identified in the City's fixed asset schedule. An original cost 
base better reflects the fact that most stormwater infrastructure is not mechanical in 
nature and prone to the same level of depreciation as are water and sewer systems. 
Any outstanding principal on debt for these facilities has been removed to more 
accurately reflect the actual investment made by the City and its stormwater customers. 
Accordingly, any grant funded facility costs were also removed from the reimbursement 
fee calculation. 

10-20 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-13 
Stormwater Reimbursement SDC Components 

City of Wilsonville 
Stormwater - System Development Charge Analysis 

Reimbursement Fee Calculation 

Original 	Accumulated 	Book 
Cost 	DeDreciation 	Value 

Total SWM utility plant-in-service balance 
less projects funded from: 

Grants 
Contributed capital 
System Development Charges 

Total 

$41,276,993 $21,118,799 $20,158,194 

338,033 4,225 333,807 
6,278,174 407,217 5,870,957 

275,937 15,536 260,401 

6,892,144 426,979 6,465,165 

Rate base funded utility plant-in-service balance $ 34,384,850 $ 20,691,820 $ 13,693,030 

Total current and future ERUs 
	

28,502 

Calculated reimbursement fee 
	

$ 	480 

The improvement fee is based on the cost of planned future facilities that expand the 
stormwater system's capacity or increase its level of performance to accommodate 
growth. In developing an analysis of the improvement portion of the fee,each project in 
the City's capital improvement plan was reviewed to exclude costs related to correcting 
existing system deficiencies or upgrading for historical lack of capacity. The 
improvement SDC is calculated as a function of the estimated number of additional 
ERUs to be served by the City's facilities over the planning period. There are two 
elements to the proposed improvement fee, water quality and water quantity. Table 10-
14 shows the water quality improvements identified through the Stormwater Master Plan 
project and allocates these costs proportionally by including the total stormwater 
customer base in the allocation. 

UM 10-21 



Clapter1O 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-14 
Stormwater uuaittv improvement SDU 

City 01 Wilsorwille 
Stormwater - System Development Charge Analysis 

Water Quality Improvement Fee Calculation 

Estimated 
Project Project 
Number Location Cost 

LID1 Memorial Park Parking Lot Vegetated Swales (3) 203,148 
LID3 SW Camelot Green Street Mid-Block Curb Extensions (2 extensions) 58,482 
LID3 SW Camelot Green Street Mid-Block Curb Extensions (18 extensions) 526,338 
Ll07 SW Wilsonville Road Stormwater Planters 362,794 
LIL)2 SW 1-human cireen Street Stormwater Curb Extensions 2361 98 

Total Low Impact Development Projects Cost $ 	1,387700 

Total Existing and Future ERUs (2012-2031) 28,502 

Unit Water Quality Improvement Fee $ 	 49 

The second element of the improvement SDC is related to future stormwater projects 
which were individually evaluated as part of the master planning process in terms of 
growth vs. non growth related capacity allocation. The resulting growth related costs are 
allocated only to future ERU growth in the City's stormwater utility/system. These results 
are shown in Table 10-15. 

10-22 



Chapter 10 
Financial Anal vsis 

Table 10-15 
Stormwater Quantity ImDrovement SDC 

City at WilsorwillO 
Siormwaler. System DoveIopnrenl Charge Analyels 

Water Ouantily Improvement Fee Calculation 

EstImated 
Project Project SOC Eligibility 

Percent Cost Number Location Cost 
Rel,ofll .tivorgteen Repsir Project 265000 NA 
BC-? Boeckman Creek Realignment 577,296 46% 265.556 

Study ST-S Low Impact Development Design Standards and irnplementaton Guide 57.000 NA 
Study ST-8 inslal Two Permanent Storniwatnr Flow Monitoring Stations and Two Rain Gages 45,488 NA - 

Study ST-9 Purchase InIoSWMM Model 18240 NA - 

Study ST-6 Charbonnou tntrastnjcture Replacement Study 142,500 NA - 
SC-A Gesoilsehaft Water Well Channel Restar000n 135.774 0% - 

0% 
BC-S Canyon Creek Esiates Pipe Removal 129,504 24% 31.081 

SD4208 & SD4209 Barber Street Pipe Replacement 213,196 11% 23.452 

-. 0% 
CLC-3 Lommerce eaclo Creannel Nentaretlon 564.071 98% 552.190 

Siudy ST-I Study to analyze area north of Eitlgsen RCII East oil-S 57.000 NA - 
PP 1-uluro l-'roect Ltuvetopment and implementation 285,000 NA - 

S 	2,510.067 $ 	672,878 SubIoiai - H/pie Priority Profocls -0-5 yours 

BC-2 Boockrnon Creek OutICil Rehobliulatton 167.580 NA 
BC-6 Mutilplo Detention Pipe InstallatIon 2419,380 18% 436488 

BC-S Boeckmnn Creek Outfall Realignment 38,441 3% 1,153 
OC-3 Cascade Loop Detention Pipe inataletlori 810.109 0% - 

BC-ID Memorial Park Stream and Wetland Enhancement 84,360 24% 20,246 
BC-9 Memorial Delve Pathway and Storm Drain Repair 111,720 0% - 

CLC-2 SW Parkway Avenue Stream Rotoralion 279,420 0% 25,118 
CLC-9 Jobaey Lane Culvert Replacement 115.028 7% 8.052 

S05707, 5109, 5714, 5719 SW Parkway Pipes Replacement 497.405 0% - 

Study ST-2 Advance Road School Site Study 57.000 NA 
CLC-1 Oetention/Wetiand Entrancement near Tributary to Basalt Creek 3.516.900 98% 3.446.582 

$09038 Irnench Prairie Road In NW Charbonneau Pipe Replacement 867,417 0% - 
SD9052 Curry Drive and French PrairIe Road In NW Charborrnaau Pipe Replacement 1,043.801 0% 

pp Future Project Doeolopmenl and Implementation 285.000 NA  

S 	10,293,261 S 	3.936,650 SublotnI - Med/urn P,rionly Projects -5-10 years 

Study ST-A Master Plan and Model Update 342,000 NA 
Study ST-3 Survey of Open Channel Conveyance 57,000 NA - 

BC-i Wlederirne Road Regional Stormwater Oetontiov/Stroare Enhancement 5.446.350 21% 1.143,734 
CLC4 Ridder Road Wetland Restorallon 283.778 3% 8,513 

CLC-5 Coffee Lake Creek Stream and Riparlan Enhancement 339,844 5% 16.992 
CLC-6 Coffee Lako Creek South Tributary Wetland Enlargement 490,286 39% 191.212 
CLC-7 Cotton Lake Creek South Tributary Slream Restoration 496,114 19% 94.262 

0D4021 & S04022 Boberg Road Culvert Replacement 65.393 20% 13,079 

CLC-8 Coffee Lake Creek Reutorailon 486,877 48% 233,701 
Study ST-i Boockman Creek at Boockman Reed Stormwaier Siudy 57.000 NA 

$04025 - $04028 Boborg Road Pe Replacement 733,590 12% 88,031 

$ 	8.798,232 $ 	1.789.523 Subtolal-LowPriovi4.Phojects-tO-l5yeoret 

TothlMPrionlyProjecta 	 I $ 	21.601,560 f 	31% 	1 S 	6.599.051 

Total luture capital eupenditures incurred to serve future customers (2009-2025) ...... ................. .......  ............. ............... ......S6,599,051 

Enitmated future ERUn added (2012-2031) .................................................................................................................... 7.978 

Calculatedhnprovemenl fee SOC ..................... . .......... ........ ................. .... ............................ .. ........... .......................... 	S 	827 

UM 10-23 



Staff Report Addendum 

Financial lmDacts - Ci 

As designed, the system development charge and user fee increases will provide the necessary 

resources to pay for improvements, repairs and maintenance of the stormwater system. 

System Development: SDCs will increase from $492 per equivalent dwelling unit to $1,356. The increase 

will be phased in over three years. The additional revenue is collected for system improvements and 

includes projects such as Villebois school site, Commerce Circle improvements and Realignment of 

Boeckman Creek under Wilsonville Road Bridge. 

Operating: Current monthly fees are $3.72 and are proposed to be increased to $5.60 over the next four 

years. The rates would initially increase to $5.00 per month in July 2012 and then incremental increases 

each year thereafter. The increase is needed to pay for significant capital projects that will protect 

existing assets and include Rivergreen drainage and Realignment of Boeckman Creek under Wilsonville 

Road bridge. The rates will also pay for increasing maintenance costs that allow the system to operate as 

designed. 

After 2016: Further rate increases are expected after 2016. As contained in the master plan and rate 

study, the rates could to nearly $9.00 per month by 2020. The additional increases are needed for 

numerous capital improvement projects which must be paid from operating resources. However, the 

accompanying resolution only covers rate changes through 2016. A separate resolution will be brought 

forward at a later date to address the next future needs. 

Financial lmacts - Rate Payers 

Homeowners' monthly payment would initially increase $1.38 ($16.56/year) and 15 or 20 cents annually 

thereafter. Rates for nearby communities: Tualatin $5.41; Sherwood $12.77; Lake Oswego $8.97; 

Portland $22.37 

Multifamily, commercial and industrial rates would increase by the same percentage as residential. The 

fee is based upon the amount of impervious area. Each 2750 square feet of impervious surface area is 

charged $3.72/month at current rates. 



Stormwater Rates 

Portland 	 $22 

Sherwood 	 $13 

Lake Oswego 	 $9 

Beaverton 	 $7 

Tigard 	 $7 

Tualatin 	 $5 

West Linn 	 $5 

Wilsonville 	 $4 



Stormwater Rates 

Portland 	 $22 

Sherwood 	 $13 

Lake Oswego 	 $9 

Beaverton 	 $7 

Tigard 	 $7 

Tualatin 	 $5 

West Linn 	 $5 

Wilsonville 	 $4 



A MANUAL FOR THE 

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

OF PRIVATELY OWNED 	 March 2012 

STORMWATER FACILITIES 

Working together 

towards a 

common 

goal... 

clean watei 

and 

healthy rivers. 

City of \XTilsoriville 
Natural Resources Program 

(503) 682-4960 
vivv.ci.vi1sonvil1e.or.us  



City of Wilsonville 

TABLE OF CONTENT 

INTRoDUCTION: CARING FOR YOUR FACILITY 3 

YOUR CONNECTION TO WILSONVILLE'S STREAMS, WETLANDS AND RIVER 4 
The Problem with Stormwater Runoff 

A Better Way to Flow 

What Else is the City Doing? 

INSPECTING, MAINTAINING AND REPORTING ON YOUR FACILITY 6 

Protecting Your Resources 6 

Inspection and Maintenance Logs 6 

Sediment Removal and Disposal 8 

Vegetation Management 10 

Erosion, Bank Failure, Channel Formation 12 

Structural Deficiencies 13 

Ponding Water 14 

Pests 15 

Pollution You Can See or Smell 16 

Safety 17 

Paying for Maintenance 18 

Reporting 18 

WHERE TO GET MORE hELP 	 19 

OTHER WAYS TO PROTECT OUR STREAMS, WETLANDS AND RIVER 	 21 

City of Wilsonville 

Natural Resources Program 

(503) 682-4960 

www.ci.wilsonville.or.us  

This document was created in March 2012 by Lisa Nead, 
Environmental Education Specialist 

Printed on recycled paper. 



A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 
	

Page 3 

CARING FOR YOUR 
STORMWATER FACILITY 

THANK YOU 
As the owner of a sN 0 1i\\It  ur 11 

facility, you are making a meaningful contribu-
don to the health of Wilsonville's streams, wet-
lands and the Willamette River. This handbonk 
will help you maintain your facility to make 
sure it performs the W( )rk it is designed to 
accomplish. 

WHAT ARE STORMWATER FACILITIES? 
Stormwater facihucs arc any combination of landscape and structural 
features that slow, filter, or infiltrate (absorb) runoff on your property 
after a rainfall. Types of facilities include vegetated systems (planters, 
wales, ponds, created wetlands, etc.), and structural systems (ecoroofs, 

1orous pavement and manufactured facilities). Piping, inlets and catch 
1)asins are also important components that need adequate maintenance 
to assure facility function. All of these serve a common purpose: con-
trolling the quality and quantity of stormwater runoff from your site to 
help safeguard our valuable water resources. 

PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES 
Federal, state and local agencies created management regulations and guidelines so as to improve stormwater 
quality and protect watersheds, rivers, streams and drinking water resources. The City of Wilsonville has a 
Stormwater Maintenance and Access Easement that includes the following requirements: 

• Annual maintenance on storm drainage facilities in conformance with City of Wilsonville's Public Works 
Standards. For more information go to: 	v.cLlsonville.or.us/Indcx.aspxpage=  127 Go to Important 
Links at the bottom of the page and click on Public Works Construction Standards 2006 (section 
301.6.00 Operations and Maintenance Req.) 

• Removal of debris, leaves and sediment from manholes, detention outlet structures, and catch basins. 
• Disposal of all oils, sediment and debris in an approved dumpsite. 
• Replacement of all dead or dying plants in ponds and swales. Maintenance of original plantings. 
• Removal of trash from ditches, swales, catch basins, or any stormwater conveyance. 

The steps we take today will greatly influence Wilsonville's environmental health and quality of life for years 
to come. Individual actions can make a big difference. Thank you for the significant part you and your 
stormwater management facility are playing. 

For information or questions about your facility, call the Natural Resources Program at (503) 682-4960 



Page 4 	 City of Wilsonville 

YOUR CONNECTION TO WILSONVILLE'S 
STREAMS AND THE WILLAMETTE RIVER 

THE PROBLEM WITH STORMWATER RUNOFF 

When it rains, the stormwater runs off impervious surfaces (such as roofs and paved areas) instead of 
soaking into the ground. 

Conventional stormwater management directs runoff into drains and pipes that carry it offsjte and even-
tually discharge it into a local stream. This approach has a number of harmful effects: 

• Impervious areas generate large volumes of runoff relatively quickly. The increased volume and 

speed of the runoff can cause flooding and erosion and damage natural habitat. 

• The runoff picks up a variety of pollutants including oil, pesticides, metals, chemicals, and sediment 

that negatively impact water quahty and fish habitat. 

• During warm weather, the runoff absorbs heat from impervious surfaces. This increases the temper-

ature of the receiving waters, with negative impacts on fish and other aquatic life. 

• Less water is able to infiltrate into the ground. This reduces groundwater recharge, which reduces 

summer flows in streams. 

For information on the City's stormwater permitting 
requirements please visit: 

www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/Index.aspx?page=693  



A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 
	

Page 5 

ABETTER WAY TO FLOW 

The City of \Vilsonviile is actively pursuing a 
variety of measures to reduce stormwater im-
pacts. One important approach is to manage 
storrnwater on the property where it originates. 
This is commonly referred to as Low Impact 
Development. It includes the use of vegetated 
wales, pervious concrete, rain gardens, eco-

roofs, etc. Onsite stormwater management uses 
processes that mimic nature. Onsite facilities 
:dlow runoff to soak into the ground, help filter 
Lut pollutants, and slow the flow rate of runoff 
leaving your site. This significantly reduces the 
volume and pollution levels in stormwater leav-
ing your property and ending up in local 
streams and the \Villamette River. 

WHAT ELSE IS THE CITY DOING? 
Onsite management, through the use of Low Impact Development, is just one component of a comprehensive 
citywide program to limit stormwater runoff impacts. Here are some other steps the City is taking: 

• The City requires onsite stormwater management for new construction and redevelopment on public and 

private property. 

• Adhering to and updating the procedures outlined in the Stormwater Master Plan. 

• Natural areas, especially riparian areas adjacent to rivers and streams, help filter out pollution, control ero- 

sion, and provide shade, food, and habitat for fish and wildlife. The City uses a variety of measures to pre-
serve these critical areas including development and land use zomng requirements and enhancement and res-
toration efforts. 

• In partnership with numerous other organizations, the City provides education and technical assistance 

aimed at reducing stormwater impacts and promoring watershed health. 



Page 6 	 City of Wilsonville 

INSPECTING AND MAINTAINING 
YOUR FACILITY 

PROTECTING YOUR RESOURCES 

It is essential to maintain your facility Sc) it functions as 
intended and limits off-site environmental impacts. You 
are required to inspect your facility at a minimum of once 
a year to determine maintenance needs. Routine inspection 
and maintenance can help keep overall maintenance costs 
low by detecting problems early and avoiding large repair 
or replacement costs. This section identifies general guide-
lines on what to look for and how to maintain your facility. 
It also notes non-routine maintenance that may require 
professional assistance. If you are unsure of what type 
of facility you have, call the City of Wilsonville's 
Natural Resources Program at (503) 682-4960. 

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS: OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 

As a property owner, you are legally required to follow all of the maintenance tasks and schedules outlined in your 
recorded maintenance and access easement. An Annual Inspection and Maintenance Report must be submitted to 
the City of Wilsonville no later than May 1 each year (see sample form on page 7). Pictures included with the re-
port are very helpful. Include copies of invoices of work performed by contractors. While inspecting your facility, 
please keep in mind that it will be necessary for you to refer to your landscape plan in order to maintain your facil-
ity as it was originally designed. 

INSPECTION SCHEDULE: HOW OFTEN 

It is recommended that you inspect your facility at least:: 

• Quarterly for the first two years 

• Once a year thereafter, and 

• Within 48 hours of major rainfall events (more than one inch of rain over a 24-hour period). 

- . ..c. 

06 



A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 
	

Page 7 

SAMPLE REPORTING FORM 

Stormwater Annual Inspection and Maintenance Report 
• 	The owrier st or owner designee dm11 lie regionsihle for having inspectIons conducted and olaintesance performed on the above private 

stormwater facilities annually, in conformance with Section 301600, "Operation arid Maintenance." of the City ofWilsonville Public 
Works Standards. All oils, sediment and debris will be removed and deposited in an approved waste diosaI site. Any damaged 
equipment will be repaired promptly.  

• 	Particular attention will be given to sedimentation and pollution control manholes, and stormwater facitit inlet and outlet structures. All 
debris shall be removed to aswire proper functioning. 

• 	The grates of all catch basins shall be kept free of debris and leaves. 
• 	The stormwater facility outlet structure(s) shall be checked to awure that sediment accumulation has not encroached on the required 

stormwater facility volume. Sediment stall be removed as necessary to maintain that required volume. 
• 	The outlet control manhole Stall be inspected to assure that all parts are intact and the orifice is flee of any debris that could cause 

malfunction - 
• 	Inspect all siormwater facilities for nirvival and viability of plantings. Replace all dead or dying plants with in-kind plantings, and 

remove sediments and debris. Maintain all original landscaping In swales, ponds, etc. 
• 	This includes all stormwatcr facilities including but not limited to: catch basins, pipes, treatment manholes, manholes, trash racks, and 

structural controls. 
The above inspection and maintenance activities Small be documented annually by sending a signed original letter format report of what 
was completed to the City of Wilsonville at the mailing address below. The Annual Inspection and Maintenance Report must be 
submitted no later than May 1 each year. 

City of Wilsoniville 
Stormwater Management Coordinator 

29799 SW Town Center Loop 

Wilsonvilte, OR 97070 
(Stormnwater facilities Maiuttenance Plan Exhibit B Stormwater Maintenance and Access Essenient) 

Name of Development 

Contact 
Telephone 
Mailing Address  

Location 
Tax Lot 
Street Address 

Facilities to be maintained 
'l'rapped catch basin(s) (nuniber of each) 

- 	Pollution control manhole(s) (number of each) 
Outlet control manhole(s) (number of each) 

-- Detention pond(s); 	tank(s) (number of each) 
WQ pond(s) swales; 	MH(s); 	vault(s); 
All other flicilities as described on plans____________________________________ 

Inspection l)ate  

Describe inspection, maintenance, repair or replanting 

(Attach invoices for work performed) 	 (Continue above on additional sheet if needed) 

Owner, Owners or their Representative Signature 

Date  



Page 8 	 City of Wilsonville 

SEDIMENT REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL 

FACILITIES AND SYSTEM COMPONENTS THIS 
APPLIES TO 

Vegetated Facilities: ecoroofs, infiltration basins, pli n tei, 

swaics, trccs, vegetated filters, and created wetlands. 

Structural Facilities: catch basins, curb cuts, inlets, iiintiIiciureJ 

facilities, piping, sedimentation manholes, and vaults. 

Pervious Pavement: porous concrete or asphalt, permeable pa 

IMPACT ON FACILITY PERFORMANCE 
The purpose of a stormwater treatment facility is to remove pollutants, including suspended solids, by capturing 
sediment. Sediment can include dirt, leaves, and litter. These materials can restrict or clog the facility. Timely re-
moval of sediment will improve infiltration rates, water quality, and help prevent clogging and flooding. 

WHAT TO LOOK FOR 
Check the depth of accumulated sediments. 
Sediment markers can be placed in the facility to 
help identify depths. Remove sediment when: 

Vegetated Facilities: 

• Sediment is 4" deep, 

• Sediment depth is damaging or killing vegetation, 

or 

• Sediment is preventing the facility from draining 

within a 24-48 hour period. 

Structural Facilities: 

• At least once a year, or 

• When the basin is half full of sediment. 

Pervious Pavement: 
Sediment is preventing the facility from draining 

in 24 hours. 

~4 

1!!'

--T' 
• 	.. 	.-- -.---- . 	.,.-, 

. 	 / 	. 	 I 	-J  

WHAT TO DO 
Often sediment can be removed by hand. Large 
facilities and underground facilities will need to be 
cleaned with heavy equipment by trained pro fession-

als. 

• Remove sediment during dry months when it is 

easier to remove, weighs less, and creates fewer 
secondary environmental impacts (such as wet 
sediment running off the site). 

NOTE: It is illegal to hose sediments through 
your system. 

Doing it yourself 
Vegetated Facilities: 

Use rakes and shovels to dig out accumulated 

sediment. 

• Avoid damage to existing vegetation. 

• If sediment is deep, plants may need to be 

removed or even replaced in order to excavate 
sediment. 

• Reseed and mulch disturbed areas to prevent 

erosion. 

• Excavate sand or gravel and clean or replace. 



A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 	 Page 9 

Doing it yourself ('continued,) 

Structural Facilities, Dispersion Trenches and Pervious Pavement: 
• Catch Basins: Clean debris off the grate and bars. Lift the grate and use a bucket to remove water and a shovel 

to dig out sediment. 

• Curb cuts, piping and other conveyance facilities: Use a shovel, router, air hose or other dry method to clear 
sediment and debris. 

• I)ispersion Trenches: Excavate sand or gravel and clean or replace. 

• Pervious Pavement: Remove accumulated sediment from the surface with a dry broom, vacuum system, or 
other hand tools. 

Hiring Pro/èssionals 
Cleaning certain facilities will require professional assistance. 

• Underground facili tics such as manholes, and manufac-
tured facilities must he cleaned by a vactor truck. Do 
not enter these facilities. They are defined by the 
Oregon Occupational Safety and Health Division as 
confined spaces and require proper certification to enter. 

• Certain components such as collection basins, piping or 
pervious pavement systems may require vacuuming with 
a vactor truck or street sweeping equipment. 

DISPOSAL 
When deciding how to dispose of sediment, you need to consider the types of activities and pollutants on site. 
Sediment from commercial or industrial sites is usually not considered hazardous waste. However, as the generator 
of this waste you are responsible for deciding how to properly manage the removed solids. 

Contaminated Water and Sediment 
Catch basins and stormwater facilities in areas used for chemical or hazardous waste storage, material handling or 
equipment maintenance may collect the chemicals used in these activities from spills or via stormwater runoff. If 
you observe an oily sheen, odors, discoloration, or other signs of pollution, hire a professional laboratory or sam-
pling firm to assess whether the material needs specialized hauling, treatment or disposal to comply with Oregon 
State Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) rules. If you need assistance deciding whether the solids 
should be managed as hazardous waste, contact I)EQ. 

Non-Contaminated Water and Sediment 
If the pollutant load is non-hazardous, water may be spread across vegetation onsite. Let the solids dry out, then 
properly dispose of them. Temporary erosion control measures may be needed to contain the material onsite. Dry 
materials may be reused elsewhere on your site, may be eligible for reuse by others, or can be disposed of at a des-
ignated solid waste facility. 



Page 10 

REDUCING SEDIMENT ACCUMULATION AND 
POLLUTION IN YOUR FACILITY 
• Minimize outside sources of sediment, such as eroding soil upstream of your 

facility. 

• Sweep paved areas on your property regularly. 

• Make sure chemical and waste storage areas are not exposed to rainfall and 
stormwater runoff. 

• Don't let water from washing vehicles or equipment drain to your stormwater 
facility. 

RESOURCES 

City of Wilsonvilic 

City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards: ww\v.ci.wilsonville.or.us/ I ndex.aspx?page = 127 
Go to Important Links at the bottom of the page and click on Pidi/ic Works Construction Standards 2006 (secdon 
301.6.0() Operatlons and Maintenance Req.) 

Environmental Protection Agency: www.cfpub.epa.gov/npdes/home.cfrn?program —id=6 

Department of Environmental Quality: www.oregon.gov/DEQ  

Private Maintenance Companies hsted below are just a few examples of companies that provide maintenance 
services, more companies are available): 

• Clearwater Environmental Services in Wilsonville (503) 582-1951 

• River City Environmental in Portland (503) 252-6144 

• Bravo Environmental NW in Portland (503) 261-9800 

Stormwater runoff has 

substantial impacts on the 

water quality and habitat that 
fish depend on. By reducing 
those impacts, we are taking 

direct action on behalf of 
threatened species as well 

as other fish and wildlife that are under stress. 



A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 	 Page 11 

VEGETATION MANAGEMENT 

FACILITIES THIS APPLIES TO 

Vegetated Facilities: ecoroofs, infiltration basins, planters, ponds, svales, trees, vegetated filters, and created 
wetlands. 

IMPORTANCE TO FACILITY PERFORMANCE 
Plants play an important role in stormwater facilities. They absorb water, improve infiltration rates of soil, prevent 
erosion by stabilizing soil, cool water, and capture pollutants. Plants create habitat for birds and other wildlife and 
provide aesthetic value to a property. Proper maintenance of vegetation improves the appearance and perfor-
mance of your facility. Your facility must be kept in accordance with the original landscape design. 

WHAT TO LOOK FOR 
When identifying maintenance needs it is helpful to have a copy of your landscape plan, this shows the plants you 
are required to have in your facility. Facilities should be checked for maintenance needs quarterly for the first two 
years and once a year after that. - __ - 

Fathty needs maintenance when: 	 .. 	 -. 

• Areas of soil are bare. 	 - 

• Vegetation is buried by sediment. 	 •' 
• Vegetation appears unhealthy or has died. 

• Nuisance and invasive plants are present. 

• Vegetation is compromising the facility's structure by blocking inlets 	 . 
or outlets, or roots are intruding into a component of the facility.  

• Dropped leaves and other debris are contributing to sediment accumulation or are blocking inlets or outlets. 

WHAT TO DO 
Maintenance activities can easily be incorporated into existing site landscape maintenance contracts. Vegetation 
can be maintained with a formal or more natural appearance depending on your preference. 

General Maintenance 

• Remove dropped leaves, dead plants, and grass and other plant clippings. Plant debris adds nutrient pollution 
as it breaks down, and can clog facility piping and reduce infiltration. 

• Avoid using feruiizers, herbicides, or pesticides in the facility. These products add to the pollution problems 
the facilities are designed to remedy. 

• Use mulch to inhibit weed growth, retain moisture, and add nutrients. Replenish when needed. Ensure mulch 
does not inhibit water flow. 

Irrigate all new plantings as needed for the first two years. 

(Jaring/or wanted vectation 

Facility owners are responsible for maintaimng healthy vegetation and must replace any plants that have died or 
been removed. 

• You are required to maintain vegetation to the density approved on your landscape plans or specified in the 
City's Public Works Standards. 

• Replant with vegetation approved for use in the original planting plan or from the recommended plant list in 
the City's Public Works Standards. 



Page 12 	 City of Wilsonvitic 

Well maintained swale 

I._ 
OY i"•i 

gc4 

qoC 

;:. 

.. 
* 

A 

 

 

Poorly maintained stormwater facilities 

/ 
4 

s' 	 P 	- •*- 

Ii1tcr tabric sFi uld be rcln( 's-cd fr )111 ( )UtlCt 	Irasli Sh( )Uld be rcm( )VCd tr( m swale 



A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 
	 Page 13 

Well maintained rain garden 

Poorly maintained planter boxes 

I 

Invasive plant species need to be removed Dead plants need to be replaced 



Page 14 	 City of Wilsonville 

(aringJr wanted vegetation ('continuea) 

• Plant in late fall or early spring so plant roots can establish 
during the cool, rainy seasons, before summer. 

• Amend and aerate compacted soils before replanting by 
adding compost to increase nutrients and enhance soil tex 
ture. 

• If plants are not surviving, determine the reason for the 
plant die-off. Survivability may be improved by planting 
vegetation better suited for the site conditions or by irrigar 
ing more. You may need to test planting bed soils for pH. 
moisture, and other factors such as nutrient levels, soil 
structure, and organic matter content. 

Mowing 

Grassy facilities are designed for routine mowing. Mow at least twice a year. 

Grass should be mowed to keep it 4" to 9" tall. Grass that is at least 4" tall captures more pollutants and is 
hardier. Do not allow grass to become a fire hazard. 

f\Juisance and unwanted vegetation 

• Remove nuisance and invasive vegetation, such as Himalayan blackberry, English ivy and reed canarygrass, 
before it goes to seed in the spring. Do additional weeding in the fall. A list of nuisance plants can be found in 
the Portland Plant List (see below). 

• Immediately remove vegetation that is clogging or impeding flow into the facility. 

• Remove potentially large and deep-rooted trees or bushes when they might impede the flow path or compro-
mise facility structures. 

• Provide ground cover on any dirt exposed by vegetation removal. 

lVi/d/ifr 

Vegetated facilities create habitat, especially for birds. The Migratory Bird Treaty Act protects all nanve bird spe-
cies. Birds and other animals will generally adjust to human activity. However, there are simple measures that 
should be taken to avoid disturbance: 

Avoid maintenance during bird nesting season from early March to late July. Prune and mow during late sum-
mer. Many baby birds will spend some time on the ground after leaving a nest. 

Walk the site before you do maintenance. Look for nests, burrows and animals in the facility. Reroute around 
animal areas by at least a few yards. 

RESOURCES 
(,'/i,ckanjas (:0/1/1/)! Resources. 

Clackamas County Soil and Water Conservation District: www.conservationdistrict.org  

P/an! Iden/i,/ication: 

Native Plant Society: www.npsoregon.org  

Master Gardeners: www.extension.oregonstate.edu/mg  

I\'ateve P/az! I'\,mneries: 

Native Plant Nursery: www.plantnative.org  



A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 	 Page 15 

EROSION, BANK FAILURE, 
CHANNEL FORMATION 

FACILITIES THIS APPLIES TO 
Vegetated Facilities: ecoroofs, infiltration basins, planters, ponds, swales, trees, vegetated filters, and created 
wetlands. 

IMPORTANCE TO FACILITY PERFORMANCE 
Stormwater flowing through a facility can cause erosion. Erosion can increase sediment build up, clog outlets, re-
duce water quality benefits, add to pollution and cause facility components to fail. Eroded channels create an easy 
path for water to travel down reducing the ability of the facility to filter pollutants and infiltrate water. 

WHAT TO LOOK FOR 
Any area with erosion more than two inches deep needs maintenance. Signs of erosion and common locations: 

The formation of flow restricting channels in the bottom of the facility, around inlet pipes and curb cuts, or at 
overflows. 

• Undercutting, scouring, and slumping along banks or berms. 

• Channels and undercutting through check dams (check dams are small berms built across a facility to slow wa-
ter and create small areas of ponding). 

p 

1 

/ 

4 

t . 

WHAT TO DO 
• Fill the eroded area with soil, compact it lightly, and cover with mulch, compost, seed, sod, or other erosion 

prevention materials. 

• Plant banks with deep or heavily rooted plants to permanently stabilize soil. 

• Install or repair structures designed to dissipate energy and spread flow, such as splash blocks on downspouts, 
or riprap around inlet pipes and curb cuts. See the City's Public Works Standards for requirements. 

• If erosion continues to be a problem, consult a professional to determine the cause and a solution. 

• Replant in accordance with the landscape plan. 



Page 16 	 City of Wilsonville 

STRUCTURAL DEFICIENCIES 

FACILITIES THIS APPLIES TO 
Most stormwater facilities have some structural 
components. Some facilities such as vaults, drywells, 
and sediment manholes are completely structural. In 
vegetated facilities, structural components often cont 
how water enters, travels through, or exits a facility. 
Common structural components include: 

• Inflow and outflow pipes, curb cuts, and trenchc. 

• Valves, orifices, trash racks, and pipes. 

• Concrete, metal, and plastic structures and compo-
nents such as curbs, retaining walls, and manholes. 

• Manufactured devices such as filter cartridges. 

• Earthworks such as embankments, check dams, 
dikes, berms and side slopes. 

• Riprap and other flow spreading elements. 

• Access roads, gates and signs. 

i. 	P 1 !I 

IMPORTANCE TO FACILITY PERFORMANCE 
Ihese elements need to be in good working order to route flows into a facility and for the facility to function 
properly. 

WHAT TO LOOK FOR 
Look at the general condition of these elements. Do they need repair or replacement? Are they still properly 
aligned? Look for: 

• Cracks, scratches, dents, rust, or other conditions of wear. 

• Loose fittings, broken or missing components. 

• Insufficient oil/grease for moving parts. 

• Appropriate gravel cover or bedding to support the structures. 

• l\lisaligned parts or other impediments to the component's ability to still pass flow. 

MAINTENANCE 
• Immediately repair or replace any major damage to prevent catastrophic failure. This includes any structural 

component that is cracked, loose or askew. You may need to consult a professional engineer or hire a trained 
contractor to design and perform any repairs. Refer to page 10 for a list of resources. 

• Minor damage such as dents, or rust spots may not need immediate replacement but should be monitored. 

• Maintain access to the facility by keeping the access route open and structurally sound, fence gates and vault 
lids oiled and locks functioning. Access must be available in an emergency. 



A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 
	

Page 17 

PONDING WATER 

FACILITIES THIS APPLIES TO 
Vegetated Facilities: dry ponds, infiltration basins, planters, rain gardens, sand filters, swales, created wetlands, 
and vegetated filter strips. 

Structural Facilities: manufactured facilities and pervious pavement. 

NOTE: Some facilities are specifically designed to always hold water such as: wet ponds, spill control 
manholes, and sedimentation manholes. 

IMPORTANCE TO FACILITY PERFORMANCE 
Most facilities are designed to drain in a certain amount of time. This varies from 2 to 48 hours depending on the 
type of facility. This time is stated in the Operations and Maintenance Plan for the type of facility. Ponding water 
is usually a sign that the facility's outlet is clogged or it is not infiltrating properly. 

WHAT TO LOOK FOR 
• Clogging of overflows or outlets with debris, trash or other obstructions. 

• Fine sediments filtering into the soil or other filtration media (like sand or gravel) that can prevent proper infil-
tration. 

• Water that has remained ponded for more than 48 
hours. 

MAINTENANCE 
• For surface facilities, first try raking the top few inches 

of soil to break up clogged sections and restore water 
flow. 

• Clean out overflows and outlets with hand tools, if pos-
sible. Difficult or hard to access blockages may require a 
professional contractor. 

• Identify sources of sediment and debris to prevent them 
from entering the facility. Simple actions like sweeping a 
parking lot regularly can keep sediment out of facilities. 

• Make sure the facility has enough vegetation. Vegetation absorbs water and roots help keep soil loose so it can 
infiltrate water. 

For more thorough instructions on removing sediment, see the "Sediment Removal and Disposal" section of this 
handbook. Sediment accumulated in stormwater facilities may be considered hazardous waste and must be han-
died and disposed of properly. 

If ponding still occurs, contact a landscape architect, professional engineer or trained contractor for more 
assistance. 



Page 18 
	

City of Wilsonville 

PESTS 

FACILITIES THIS APPLIES TO 
All types of stormwater facilities 

IMPORTANCE TO FACILITY PERFORMANCE 
Mosquitoes can breed in ponded or other stagnant water. Vegetated areas 
can be attractive habitat for rats, nutria, beaver, and a variety of birds and amphibians. \(Thi1e  some species are de-
sirable, others can be public health or nuisance concerns. In particular, mosquitoes and rats can breed quickly and 
cause a public health hazard if not removed. The presence of pests does not necessarily impact the ability of your 
facility to treat and manage stormwater but may indicate maintenance needs, such as lack of proper infiltration. 

WHAT TO LOOK FOR 
• Check for mosquito larvae in any system with open, slow, or non-moving waters - especially during warmer 

weather. Larvae look like tiny wiggling sticks floating perpendicular to the water's surface. 

• Look for nutria, rat, and other animal droppings year round. Also check for structural indicators such as bea-
ver dams and rodent holes and burrows. 

WHAT TO DO 
Mosquitos 

• The best way to avoid breeding mosquitoes is to prevent ponding water. Mosquitoes need standing water to 
lay their eggs, and for their larvae and pupae to develop. Most stormwater facilities are designed to drain in at 
least 48 hours. If your facility is not draining properly see the "Ponding Water" and "Sediment Removal and 
Disposal" sections of this handbook. 

• As a temporary control for mosquitoes, the county or other licensed professionals can apply pesticides to kill 
mosquito larvae in the water or adult insects in the air. 

Rats 

Rats need shelter, food and water to survive. 

• Remove plant debris that may provide shelter for rats from the facility. 

• Remove fruits and nuts that fall to the ground. 

• Fill in burrows. 

• Trap and remove individual animals. 

Other Wildlife Other non-native and invasive animal species may take up residence in your facility. Contact the 

Oregon I)epartment of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) to help identify these species and suggest removal processes. 
Permits from ODFW are required to capture and relocate native wildlife. Some common non-nativc species arc: 

• Opossum 	 • Fox squirrel 	 'Snapping turtle 

• Eastern gray squirrel 	. Eastern cottontail 

• Nutria 	 'Egyptian goose 

• Bullfrog 	 . Red-eared slider turtle 



A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 
	

Page 19 

PEST RESOURCES 
Rats and mosquitoes: 

Clackamas County Vector Control (includes Washington County) 
ww\v.clackamas.us\vector  
(503) 655-8394 

Other pest issues: 

Look in yellow pages or on the internet under "Pest Control" 

Other lVild/iJè: 

Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife 
www.dfw.state.or.us/wildlife/  
(503) 947-6000 or (800) 720-6339 

POLLUTION YOU CAN SEE OR SMELL 

FACILITIES THIS APPLIES TO 
All types of stormwater facilities. 

IMPORTANCE TO FACILITY PERFORMANCE 
Stormwater fac• Sties often collect a variety of trash and debris. Trash and debris, especially floating debris, can 
clog pipes or treatment media. It can also cause odors through decay or by collecting spilled or dumped materials. 

Stormwater facilities are designed to help prevent pollutants from entering rivers and streams. Any visible water 
quality pollutants may wash out of the facility spreading the pollution problem. 

WHAT TO LOOK FOR 
Check monthly for Trash and debris. 

Any unusual or unpleasant smells from sources such as: 

• Natural plant decay. 

• I)ying plants trapped under sediment. 

• A spill or a leak (e.g., gasoline or sewage). 

Visible pollution such as: 

• Sheens 

• Turbid (cloudy) water 

• Discoloration, or 

• Other pollutants on the surface of the water. 
( )il u! 	rin\,lIc! Ll()111 nIl\ 



Page 20 	 City of Wilsonville 

Pollution ou Can See /1 nd Smell ('con/in/led) 

WHAT TO DO 
• Regularly remove trash and plant debris. 

• Remove accumulated sediment (see "Sediment Removal and Disposal" in this manual). 

• Make sure inlets and outlets are not clogged. 

• Identify the source of trash, debris or pollutant, such as a spill, leak, or illicit discharge. 

• If there is evidence of a spill or leak, contact a professional laboratory or sampling firm to assess whether the 

material needs specialized removal, treatment, and disposal. Use trained professional staff for any cleanup and 

remediation. 

SAFETY 

In addition to keeping the facility in good working order, maintenance should also strive to meet safety and aes-
thetic goals that benefit the community and protect your site workers. Consider establishing maintenance triggers 
and practices that respond to the following issues below. Keep in mind the safety of both the employees who 
maintain your facility and the general public. 

WHAT TO LOOK FOR 
Site (onditions 

Conditions, such as steep slopes, slick surfaces, and vegetation debris, can create a falling hazard to employees and 
visitors. 

Public Sa/ty 

Some stormwater facilities, such as ponds and created wetlands, can be "attractive nuisances" attracting undesira-
ble activity, vandalism, or use that could be harmful to public safety. Consider the safety features now in place at 

your facility. 

WHAT TO DO 
• Use barrier plantings or fencing to bar entry into the facility area. 

• Install road bollards, lighting, and signage to discourage illegal dumping. 

• Avoid maintaining facilities in wet weather to reduce the risk of injuries from slipping. Always make sure that 

appropriate safety gear (e.g., harness, gloves, face shields, safety line) is used. 

• For underground facilities, avoid entering anything defined as a confined space. Vaults, deep ponds, manufac-

tured facilities or manholes are examples of confined spaces. These areas require special permits, training and 
entry techniques. Some can be inspected and cleaned from above without entering. Always use caution when 
working with underground facilities. Reference Oregon Occupational Safety and Health Division (OR-OSHA) 

requirements for such activities. 

RESOURCES 	r..~ ' 

Confined space entry: 

OR-OSHA (confined space entry requirements) 

(503) 229-5910 

www.orosha.org/subjects/conflned_spaces.html  



4 
.0 

1 4 	1 

A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 
	 Page 21 

PAYING FOR MAINTENANCE 

Specific maintenance costs depend on the characteristics of the facility, the site, and the area draining to the facili-

ty. The general rule of thumb is that annual maintenance costs will be 5 to 1 OV0 of the facility's total capital cost. 

Routine, scheduled maintenance can help keep overall costs down by addressing problems before they require ma-
jor attention. Contact your stormwater system manufacturer for information about your system. 

FINANCING MAINTENANCE 
You need to determine how you will finance your maintenance needs. A facility maintenance fund is recommend-
ed for both capital maintenance procedures (e.g., facility replacement and non-routine maintenance, such as sedi-
ment removal, facility component repair or replacement, major replandng, or safety structure construction) and 
operating maintenance procedures (routine activities such as facility inspection, debris removal, and vegetation 
management). For homeowner associations, this could be a portion of homeowner fees or a specific assessment. 

HOW MUCH TO SAVE 
• An average 5 to lOo per year of the facility's capital cost for annual routine maintenance. 

• A percentage of the non-routine maintenance costs per year (i.e. for sediment removal, vegetation replace-

ment) based on the needed frequency. For example, if the facility is designed to need mechanical sediment re-
moval every five years, 20% of the total cost should be put aside each year. 

• An additional 3 to 5% of the facility's capital cost per year for eventual facility replacement (based on the facil-

ity's life expectancy). Most of these facilities have a life expectancy of 25 to 50 years. 

VEGETATED FACILITIES 
• Most required routine maintenance (excluding major repair and replacement) is estimated to have an annual 

cost of $200 to $600 dollars per acre of facility, above current landscape maintenance costs. Costs can vary 

depending on the types and level of maintenance practices used. 

• The cost and intensity of maintenance activities are usually higher during the two-year plant establishment pe-

riod. During this time, plants will need additional watering and plants that die will need to be replaced. 

A l 
 

..: 



Page 22 	 City of Wilsonville 

WHERE TO GET MORE ASSISTANCE 

City of Wilsonville Natural Resources Program 
\vww.ci.wilsonv111c.or.us/1ndex.aspx?pagc91  
(503) 682-4960 

City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards: 
wwv.ci.wi1sonv1lle.or.us/lndex.aspx?page=  127 Go to Important Links at the bottom of 
the page and click on Pith/ic Works Construction Standards 2006 (section 301 .6.0() Opera-
dons and Maintenance Req.) 
(503) 682-4092 

HIRING CONTRACTORS 
Professional maintenance services phone book/internet references: 
Vgeta1ion Mana,gement: 

"Landscape Contractors" 

Sediment Removal and Diiposal: 
• 	Qnxtrnnn 

"Waste Disposal" 

Facility Alteratioii. 

• "Landscape Architects" or 

• "Engineers - Civil" 

A1anuictured Facilities: 

• Find the specific manufacturer 

CONFINED SPACE ENTRY 
Oregon Occupational Safety and l-Iealth Division (OR-OSFIA): 
www.orosha.org/subjects/confined_spaces.html  
(503) 229-5910 



A Detailed Guide to Stormwater Operations & Maintenance 	 Page 23 

PEST RESOURCES 
Rats and mosquitoes: 

Clackamas County Vector Control (includes Washington County) 
www. clackamas. us\vector 
(503) 655-8394 

Other pest issues: 

Look in yellow pages or on the internet undcr "Pest Control" 

Other lVi/dli/è: 

Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife 
www.dfw.state.or.us/wildlife/  
(503) 947-6000 or (800) 720-6339 

Portland Audubon Wildlife Care Center 
Help with injured animals and animal identification questions: 
ww\v.audubonportland. org  
(503) 292-0304 

OREGON 

Fish &WIldItfe 

gr 
7'/ie Audubon 1ildl/e Gire Center is 

the oldest and busiest wildlzji 

rehahthtation!iucility in Orgon. 

Bach year they treat over 3,000 wild 

animals ftir release back to the wild and 

reipond to more than 15,000 wildli/i 

related inquiries. 

• 
I-.- - 

.,- 

.. 	 .. 

Vt(iLIAIIUIN 

Clackamas County Resources: 

Clackamas County Soil and Water Conservation District: 
ww\v. conservationdistrict.org  

Plant Ident/Ication: 

Native Plant Society: 
www.npsoregon.org  

Master Gardeners: 
www.extension.oregonstate.edu/mg  

Native Plant Nurseries: 

Native Plant Nursery: 
www.plantnative.org  



29799 SW Town Center 
Loop F 

Phone: 503-682-4960 
Fax: 503-682-7025 

\vww.cl.wllsonvllle.or. us 

This brochure was prepared by 
Lisa Nead, l.nvironmental 
Lducation Specialist. 

March 2012 

N( )'lF: .\ considerable amount of 
information was obtained from the 
City of Portland's Stormwater 
Management Facilities Operations 
and Maintenance for Private Prop 
erty ( )wner5 guide. 

City of 
Wils o nville 

Printed on recycled paper. 

OTHER WAYS TO PROTECT OUR STREAMS AND THE 
WILLAMETTE RIVER 

In Your Home or Business 

• Use nontoxic cleaners. 

• Properly dispose of hazardous materials. 

• Conserve energy: switch to compact fluorescent bulbs, turn down the heat, do 

the laundry with cold water, purchase energy-efficient appliances. 

• Use water wisely: fix leaks, use low-flow showerheads, use only the water you 

need. 

In Your Yard 

• Plant native vegetation. 

• Consider planting perennials versus annuals. 

• Sweep instead of hose. 

• Cover bare soil with mulch or plants. 

• Compost yard debris. 

• Disconnect downspouts (where appropriate). 

• Use drip irrigation. 

In and Out of Your Car 

• Properly maintain vehicles. 

• Wash vehicles where water is recycled. 

• Drive less: use transit, bike, walk, or carpool. 

• Recycle motor oil. 

Clean up spills or leaks. 

In Your Community 
Volunteer for tree planting, cleanup, stream restoration, or invasive plant species 

removal projects. 

• Report spills and illegal dumping (call 503-823-7180). 

• Don't litter, and pick up litter when you see it. 

• Pick up pet waste and put it in the garbage or toilet. 

In Parks and Natural Areas 

• Stay on designated hiking trails and biking areas. 

• Keep dogs on leashes and away from the streambanks and water. Pick up pet 

waste and put it in the garbage or toilet. 

THANK YOU 
for helping keep Wilsonville dean, healthy 

and sustainable and for ste warding this 
beaurifuiplace that we all share. 



City of 	 II 

WILSON VILLE 
in OREGON 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
INFORMATION ITEM 

Proposed Stormwater Fee and System Development Charge 

Meeting Date: March 19, 2012 
	

Contact: Keny Rappold 
Report Date: March 13, 2012 

	
Contact Telephone Number: 503-570-1570 

Source of Item: CD/Natural Resources Program 
	 Contact E-Mail: rappold@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

ISSUE STATEMENT 
The City Council approved an update to the Stormwater Master Plan with Ordinance No. 700 on February 23, 
2012. The master plan includes policies, a Capital Improvement Program, and a funding model for stormwater 
management. Chapter 10 (i.e., Financial Analysis) of the Stormwater Master Plan identifies modeling 
assumptions and outcomes, and proposed stormwater fee and system development charge (SDC) to fund the 
stormwater management program. 

Based on the funding model in the master plan, the stormwater fee would increase from $3.72 to $5.00 per 
equivalent residential unit (ERU), and an increase in the stormwater system development charge from $492 to 
$1,356 per ERU would be phased over three years. These increases are necessary to support the existing and 
future needs of the City's stormwater system. The following table provides the schedule for implementing the 
increases in the stormwater fee and SDC over the next five years: 

Forecast of Stormwater Rates 
(Per ERU) 

Current July 1,2012 July 1,2013 July 1, 2014 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2016 

Stormwater Fee $3.72 $5.00 $5.10 $5.25 $5.45 $5.60 

SDC 
$492 $620 $748 $876 $876 $876 

Improvement Fee 

SDC 
0 $160 $320 $480 $480 $480 

Reimbursement Fee 

Total SDC $492 $780 $1,068 $1,356 $1,356 $1,356 

BACKGROUND 
The existing stormwater fee and SDC were established by Resol'ution No. 1732 that was adopted by the City 
Council on November 19, 2001. The resolution included a stormwater fee of $3.58 per ERU and a SDC of $421 
per ERU. 

Ordinance No. 433, adopted by the City Council on September 19, 1994, established the overall program for the 
stormwater fee for storm drainage services and stormwater quality management. In conjunction with Ordinance 
No. 433, Resolution No. 1129, which was adopted by the City Council on August 15, 1994, provided the first 
stormwater fee of $1.40 per ERU. 

The statutory basis for system development charges in Oregon is included in ORS 223.297 through 223.314. The 

Council Agenda Report 	 Page 1 of 2 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\Storm  Water 31912 Work Session\CC Work Session 3 19 12.doc 



purpose of these statutory requirements "is to provide a uniform framework for the imposition of system 
development charges by local governments, to provide equitable funding for orderly growth and development in 
Oregon's communities and to establish that the charges may be used only for capital improvements". The overall 
guidance for system development charges in Wilsonville was established by Ordinance No. 386, which was 
adopted by the City Council on July 1, 1991. 

The proposed method of funding for the Capital Improvement Program, contained within the recently approved 
Stormwater Master Plan, is to use a combination of revenue bonds, stormwater system development charge and 
stormwater fee. The funding methodology included the following assumptions: 

20-year revenue bonding at an interest rate of 5.0% 
A coverage factor of 1.25 times maximum annual debt service 

' 	3. Level debt service 
An Operating Fund balance at no less than $200,000 
ERU growth of 1 3/4 % per year 
Cost escalation generally at 3% with the exception of 4.5% for personal services and 4.5% for transfers 

The methodology for calculation of the stormwater fee and system development charge is contained within 
Chapter 10 of the master plan, attached as Exhibit A. The Finance Director has provided some additional 
comments about the proposed stormwater fee and system development charge, attached as Exhibit B. A 
comparison of the proposed stormwater fee with other jurisdictions is found within Exhibit C. 

City staff hosted a public meeting on April 29, 2010 to provide an overall summary of the system development 
charge methodology and to answer any specific questions. Potentially impacted developers were invited to the 
meeting. An updated notice will be mailed to the same parties for the scheduled public hearing on April 2, 2012. 

RELATED CITY POLICIES 
Comprehensive Plan, Public Facilities and Services (Storm Drainage Plan) 
Stonnwater Master Plan (Ordinance No. 700) 
Stormwater fee 
a. Ordinance No. 433 
Stormwater system development charge 
a. Ordinance No. 386 

NEXT STEPS 
Conduct a public hearing on April 2, 2012 to adopt the proposed stormwater fee and system development charge. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Chapter 10 of Stormwater Master Plan 
Finance Director's Comments 
Comparison of stormwater fee with other jurisdictions 

Council Agenda Report 	 Page 2 of 2 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\Storm  Water 31912 Work Session\CC Work Session 3 19 12.doc 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.0 FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

10.1 INTRODUCTION 

Stormwater management services within Wilsonville are provided through two City 
departments, Public Works and Community Development. City staff are responsible for 
managing both the quantity and quality of stormwater runoff while ensuring there is 
adequate stormwater drainage capacity. These activities are performed in a manner 
consistent with the City's goal of protecting local streams and habitat to ensure that 
connections to the stormwater system are constructed and maintained in compliance 
with all federal and state water quality regulations. Stormwater staff is responsible for 
the operation and maintenance of all publically owned catch basins, pipes, 
sedimentation manholes along with water quality facilities and stormwater detention 
ponds. All of these stormwater services are funded through the Stormwater Utility fee 
which is also referred to as the City's "stormwater surcharge" in some of Wilsonville's 
documentation. 

10.2 STORMWATER UTILITY FEE 

Stormwater management utilities are authorized by Oregon statute as enterprise funds 
within a City's budget structure. They are defined as being financially self-sufficient and 
can be designed to furnish a comprehensive set of services related to stormwater 
quantity and quality management. Services that stormwater management utilities 
provide include not only the construction and maintenance of facilities necessary to 
control flooding and improve the character of surface runoff, but also implementation of 
best management practices (BMPs) designed to address nonpoint source pollution. 
These BMPs may include water quality sampling, public education and plan review, 
stormwater system maintenance, site inspections and basin planning. All of these 
program elements are part of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit requirements. 

Wilsonville's current Stormwater Utility fee (see Resolution No. 1732) is applied to 
customers based on an 'equivalent residential units" (ERU) approach. Under this 
structure, single-family homes are counted as one ERU and, on average, contain 2,750 
square feet of impervious area. All non single-family residential customers are charged 
based on their measured impervious surface area for each developed property which is 
then divided by the ERU value of 2,750 square feet of impervious surface. This 
determines the total number of ERUs billed to that non single-family residential 
customer. The City's current monthly stormwater rate is $3.72 per ERU. 

10.3 STORM WATER RATE MODEL 

The technical analysis contained in Wilsonville's Stormwater Master Plan produced 
operations, maintenance and capital improvement program activities and costs. This 
financial review assesses the impact of the program on the City's Stormwater Utility 

10-1 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

rates and SDCs. A funding model was developed as an electronic spreadsheet-based 
(Excel) work product. This model simulates the fiscal management of the City's 
Stormwater Utility and accommodates the following conditions: 

A 20-year forecast horizon (the current start year is fiscal 2012) 

o A Capital Projects Fund where capital improvement projects are budgeted 

• A Stormwater SDC Fund where system development charges are 
budgeted 

An Operating Fund where revenues and expenses are budgeted 

Issuing and servicing debt to fund capital improvements 

• Rate-making based on the revenue requirements for the utility during each 
forecast year. 

The model then calculates monthly user charges (rates) based on variable inputs for 
inflation, operating costs, customer base (i.e., number of ERUs) and capital improvements. 
The model is designed as an integrated set of spreadsheets that also provides toggles for 
various input assumptions. These are summarized in Table 10-1. 

Table 10-1 
Summary of Modeling Assumptions 

MODELINPUTS 

USerinputs Required, 	.. 	. Purpose 

Financing Assumptions Type of debt financing to be used, term of indenture, Debt sizing and 
interest rates, etc. In Wilsonville's case the debt is servicing 
issued through revenue bonds 

Capital Improvement Project cost, description, year of implementation, CIP costing 
Projects and Schedule CIP inflation rate 

Operating Revenues and Start year budgeted revenues and expenses by line Cash flow and 
Expenses item, billable ERUs, general cost inflation index, income statement 

projected growth in ERU (as a percent) for the utility 

ERUs Growth in ERUs through the planning period Forecast of 
estimating billable 

ERUs 

10.3.1 Assumptions 

Key modeling assumptions were developed over multiple meetings with City staff and 
are summarized below: 

20-year revenue bonding at an interest rate of 5.0% 

10-2 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

A coverage factor of 1.25 times maximum annual debt service 

Level debt service 

An Operating Fund balance @ no less than $200,000 

• 	ERUgrowthofl 3h%peryear 

• 	Cost escalation generally at 3% with the exception of 4.5% for personal 
services and 4.5% for transfers. 

10.3.2 Model Outputs and Reports 

The model has a series of standard reports which include: 

Schedule of financing assumptions - This report itemizes the user 
inputs that are required by the model to create debt issuances and bond 
proceeds that will be used to pay for capital improvements. It is always 
assumed that debt proceeds are only used to pay for capital 
improvement projects and related coverage, issuance and reserve 
funding requirements. This disallows use of bond proceeds to fund the 
cost of operations and maintenance expenses. These costs are 
assumed to be funded through user charges (rates). 

Debt sizing and servicing report - This report itemizes the calculated 
amount of annual debt service for each forecast year. The analysis is 
based on the level of capital improvement spending in any forecast year 
and the revenue bond debt funding costs including principal, interest, 
coverage and reserve funding requirements. 

Listing of capital projects and construction fund activity - This 
report itemizes the capital improvement projects (last edition October 
2011) over the planning period. The model adjusts project costs for the 
effects of inflation as future projects are scheduled for implementation. 
This report also tracks the activity within the capital projects fund for 
transfers, interest earnings on fund balance and beginning and ending 
fund balances. 

Schedule of revenue requirements and monthly rates - The rate-• 
making results are displayed in this report. The model uses two tests to 
solve for rates. The first is for the sufficienc?of cash flows to fund 
operations and debt service. The second is a test of bonded debt 
coverage requirements. After solving for each of these tests in each 
forecast year, the model calculates a user, charge that will be sufficient to 
fund the more stringent test. 

Statement of revenues and expenses - This report calculates the 
results of operations for each forecast year prior to rate adjustments. 
Based on a start-year level of operating revenues and expenses, the 
model forecasts the net utility income if revenues and expenses are 

UM 	10-3 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

incurred as projected based on inflation assumptions and customer base 
growth. 

Debt service worksheet; revenue bonds-This worksheet shows the 
debt servicing for revenue bonds by year and by issuance. The model 
assumes level debt service for all revenue bonds that are issued over 
the forecast horizon. The purpose of this report is to show the total debt 
service in any year, but also to see how much of the total service 
consists of interest and principal repayment. 

10.4 GENERAL ECONOMIC AND PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS 

The model assigns independent inflation factors for various categories of costs. 
These are noted in Table 10-2: 

Table 10-2 

Inflation and Economic Forecastina Assumotions 
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Inflation Forecast: 
Personal sen.ices Budget 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 
Materials and sen#ces Budget 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 300% 3.00% 
Capital outlays Budget 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Transfers to other funds Budget 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 

Reenue Growth Forecast: 
lntergo.emmental Budget 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Transfers from other funds Budget 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
ln.estment Income Budget 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 
Miscellaneous Budget 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 
Growth Customer Base 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 1.74% 

Unit SWM SOC $ 	492 	$ 780' $ 1,068' $ 1,356' $ 1,356' $ 1,356' $ 1356' $ 1356' $ 1,356' $ 1,356 
ERU Ibrecast: 

Estimated ERUs beginning 20,172 20,524 20,882 21,246 21,616 21,993 22,376 22,766 23,163 23,567 
Annual additions 352 358 364 370 377 383 390 397 404 411 

Estimated ERU5 ending 20,524 20,882 21,246 21,616 21,993 22,376 22,766 23,163 23,567 23,978 

10.5 STORM WATER SDC FUND 

• The Stormwater SDC Fund receives revenues collected from the City's SDCs 
and, when required, transfers money to the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund to 
pay for construction. Historically, annual revenues from SDCs have varied from a 
high of $402,000 in 2008 (actual) to $91 ,233 (actual) in 2010. For forecast 
purposes based on 1% % growth and the proposed phasing in of the full SDC 
through 2015, annual SDC revenues are expected to be more in the $400,000 
per year range. The forecast does not anticipate the issuance of any long term 
debt for the first five (5) years to finance capital needs. Internally generated free 
cash flows are assumed to be sufficient to meet SWM system capital investing 
needs over this first five years of the forecast. The forecast does assume the 
City will be issuing revenue bonds in years six through fourteen to meet the 
funding requirements of the capital improvement plan. Starting in 2013, the 

nw 	 10-4 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

increasing capital needs and escalating operating costs in excess of customer 
growth will require increases in rates (see Table 10-3). 

• Two funding sources for capital construction will be revenues from the 
Stormwater SDC Fund and the Stormwater Operating Fund which will be 
transferred to the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund. 

The estimated FY 2011 ending fund balance in the Stormwater SDC Fund was 
$41 1,844 (see Table 10-4). Over the forecast horizon, this balance is drawn 
down to zero and held at that level. In each forecast year, all cash entering the 
Stormwater SDC Fund is transferred to the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund to 
support master plan construction work. In addition to these resources, the 
Stormwater Capital Projects fund receives cash transfers from the Stormwater 
Operating Fund in excess of $100,000 per year in each of the forecast years 
FY20 1 2-2022. 

Table 10-3 
Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates 

$1200 	
. 	Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates - $ per Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) 

$10.00 

$6.05 

ifi utilE 
2012 	 2013 	 2014 	 2015 	 2016 	 2017 	 2019 	 2019 	 2020 	 2021 

	

Monthly rate bated on revited ClP - October 7,2011 	- 	Currentnionthty rate-$3.72 pen IOU per Month 

* assumes a rate increase to $5.00IERU effective 1/1/12 

I i J  zo 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-4 
Forecast of Stormwater SDC Fund Cash Flows 

City of WilsonMite 
Analysis of Stormwater SOC Fund Cash Flow 

Budget Budget    Forecast 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Resources: - 

Beginning Fund Balance 673,247 608,432 475,002 - - - - - - - - 
Sales and Ser'.ces: 

System DeeIopment Charges 
Interest Income 

256,588 
13,000 

293,227 
5,000 

279016 
4,750 

388,701 
- 

502,122 
- 

510,867 
- 

519,776 
- 

528,828 
- 

538,045 
- 

547,428 
- 

556,976 

Miscellaneous - - - - - - - - - - 

Total Resources $ 	942,835 $ 	906,659 $ 	758,768 $ 	388,701 $ 	502,122 $ 	510,867 $ 	519.776 $ 	528,828 $ 	538,045 $ 	547,428 $ 	556,976 
Requirements: 

Materials and 5er,ces 1,430 1,430 1,473 1,517 1,563 1,609 1,658 1,707 1,759 1,811 1,866 

Transfers OUT: 
Streets Capital Projects Fund - - - - - - - - - - - 

Storm Water Capital Projects Fund 332,973 430.227 757,295 387,184 500,560 509,257 518,119 527,121 536,287 545,616 555,110 
332,973 430,227 757,295 387,184 500560 509,257 518,119 527,121 536,287 545,616 555,110 Subtotal Transfers OUT 

Contingency 196,588 - - - - - - - - - - 

Ending Fund Balance 411,844 475,002 - - - - - - - - - 

Total Requirements $ 	942.835 $ 	906,659 $ 	758,768 $ 	388,701 $ 	502,122 $ 	510,867 $ 	519,776 $ 	528,828 $ 	538,045 $ 	547,428 $ 	556,976 

10-6 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.6 STORM WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

The Stormwater Master Plan produced the capital improvement program and schedule 
summarized in Table 10-5: 

Table 10-5 
Schedule of Capital Improvement Projects 

City of 86tsonvillo 
Summary of Stormwolo, Systam CapitOl Improvement Plan 

Cost Escalation Rate 	 300% 

MP 	Cost In Y 
Rank 	2011 	 Vase PrOCI 

Axmual 
Mjlntsnancs Cost 

Pvof,ct 
Numb.r 

H,P1IyPmscti.0.5Yurs _____________  
285.000 2012 Riveeptoen Repair °To(ect 2.200 Reffidhi 
577.296 2012 Bo.c4 	 it 2200 BC-? 
57.000 2012 Low it IpaGLWek*mnt Lieslgn Standards two implementaiton (3ultte 0 taudy 57-5 
45.486 2013 lnstat wo Ponnimon Stonreater Ftuw Monhicaint Stalitma find Two Rain Gages 0 Study ST-a - 18240 2013 fOSWMM1AOCeI 0 SCaly ST-S 
142.500 2013 Charbonnew Infrastructure Replacement Study 0 Study ST-C 
135,774 2014 Gese$Iscfl 	W 	RestoratIon 1,000 BC4 
203,148 2014 PetIt Pafltwg 	Wgo 'lad Swabs (3) 6.500 LtOl 
129.604 2014 '-'yon 0r- 	nt 	P pe 	last 1.500 BC-C - 213.196 2015 Barber Street Fl,,.. ...,,...ce  1200 0042066804209 - 56.482 2015 SW Camelot 	 id-C 	tiC Eatonoona (2 eXionSbonO) 	 - 5,300 Lt03 - 564 0t'l 2015 Commerce Circle Cflanneb Restoration  5,700 CLC-3 - 57,000 2018 rhOdy7to analyze 	 mc 	#dlEast of I'S 0 Study ST-I 
28000 2018 PL. Proj.ciOevoioyene 	 tontatlor, U PP 

161,580 2017 Cowanw., Ceoe,, Outfntt Rctd,b*tatbO  1.900 80-2 
1,366,948 2017 iki8t(lI 	 Plpo  1.100 SC.6 - 38,441 2017 oec* 	ôu 	fl 	Sperm  1,300 BC-S 
810,109 2016 Rpe 	'Uo  (.100 00-3 
84.360 2018 one wounno tnnnncemorm 2.900 60-10 
111,720 2018 Momtviti 5X3 Pathway Md Storm DmIn RopeS 0 60-8 
528.338 2019 * (ameIot 	 Estunt,ons (16 extensIons) 41,700 UO3 - 362394 2019 SW Waonvae Road Smmnvator Plardars 6.100 U07 
219,420 2019 SW POr1rwy 	S 	en'.'. ton 4.800 CLC-2 
115.028 2020 .oOoyL 	UUNMWOploCeMoW 2.200 01.C19 

491,405 2020 Sw PatlfwayP(pchi Reptvoererit  2.200 
605707.5109. 5714 

5719 
51.000 2020 Advance Road Scncxd Suj  0 SCaly 51-2 

3,518.900 2021 DeIerdhpeWekand Enhancament near Tributary to 85885 CtO*k 4,900 CLC'l 
861.417 2021 French PTnlfl8 Rood in NW ChrithonmInu 51P0 Repeicomenl 1.500 S09638 

1.043,501 . 	2021 Curry Dflao and  11henchl 	i'W 	t.'R.P Chatbonnou,u Pipe Replacement 2.100 000062 
285.000 2021 'luture promo) bovem 	 tuition _____  FP 

1 .5.20 Vases 
342.000 2022 - (r Plan end 'loditi Upda 

________ 
Skidy STab - 51,000 2022 S racy 	Open 	Convey ace 0 - SCaly St-3 

44t 350 2022 WInds 	i( 	Reokt,d 	tutor OetflathO,VStteam Enhancement 4.900 80-1 
283.118 2023 Rldo..r Rood VweUamd Rorrtamuan 2.900 Cl-C-a 
236.538 2023 SW Kaman Green Street SWffrmter Curb Extenson, 4,000 UO2 - 339.844 2023 t........ Laka Crack Stream and ....paflan Enbsancerrent 2.900 CLC-5 
490.200 2024 olfee Lake ôreck 0uth Thbutary YhtettenC Enlorgontent p900 Cl-C-C 
406,114 2024 Colfee Lake Creek SOuth T,hbutry Stream RestoratIon 2.900 C1.c.7 
85.393 2024 o8erRondCulvenRopincemcnt 	 - 2,200 0040218 904022 - 486.871 2025 ?o*(e. 1.850 Cmek Raelonttlon 4,300 Cl-C-C 
57.000 2025 Coachman Crank at Boecktnmn Road Slorrnwtlter St1,dy 0 Study ST-i 

733,590 	i 2025 	Itiallem Road Pipe Replacement 2.200 004025- SD4028 
1052.432 ' i4iApie Oonlion Pipe txat0trnaln . tirtd5sCroCk AartmavtO 1,100  
$22,989,260 Nel Ccns9ucdon Cost 5136.500  

The total cost for the high priority projects (years 0 - 5) is $2,771 ,697 or $3,014,636 
(inflated). These high priority projects are to be funded from a combination of cash on 
hand and future internally generated cash. No long term debt issuances are expected 
to be used to fund these high priority projects. Contributions are anticipated in 2013 
from the Stormwater SDC Fund of $757,295 and from the Stormwater Operating Fund 
of $130,000. Stormwater SDC Fund transfers will drop to about $500,000 per year after 
2013 while the analysis assumes continued use of Operating Fund resources at about 
$400,000 per year through 2022. 

The total cost of the medium priority projects is $10,129,961 (years 5- 10) 
($13,146,987 inflated). The total cost of the low priority projects (years 10- 20) is 

uRIS 	10-7 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

$10,087,602 ($14,387,059 inflated). In order to fund the medium and long term priority 
projects, it is assumed the City will issue revenue bonds starting in fiscal 2017. The 
modeling assumes long term debt will be issued in each forecast year from fiscal 2017 
to fiscal 2025. As discussed above, it is assumed the City will be contributing free cash 
flows in support of these future construction costs. Over the 2017 to 2025 time frame, 
modeling indicates the City will contribute $7,075,000 in support of these medium and 
low priority master plan projects. 

Also, over this time frame, the modeling indicates the City will borrow a total of 
$22,488,464. This total exceeds the net inflated cost of the projects (i.e., inflated costs 
of projects less equity contributions from the City) because of issuance costs and 
upsizing of borrowings to fund anticipated revenue bond reserve account requirements. 
This highlights the need to bundle projects (and debt) to minimize issuance costs. 

Bond covenants require that stormwater user fees be set at a rate sufficient to recover 
at least 1.25 times the actual amount of current bonded debt service in addition to 
operating expenses, and require a reserve equal to the highest principal and interest 
payments due in any future year. The stormwater financial model takes these coverage 
and reserve requirements into account and tests for sufficiency in every year of the 
forecast. Table 10-6 shows the forecast of annual costs for the high priority projects. 

Table 10-6 
Annual Master Plan High Priority Capital Improvement Costs (years 0-5) 

UM 	10-8 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-7 
Forecast of Stormwater Capital Projects Fund Cash Flows 

City of WilsoniIIe 
Analysis of Stormwater Capital Projects Fund Cash Flow 

Budget Budget    Forecast 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 1 	2019 	1 2020 2021 

Resources: 
Beginning Fund Balance 
Reienues: 

11,272 10,272 10,272 555,993 445,453 515,623 753,324 392,245 721,959 1,078,661 1,449,305 

lntergoi.emmental - 410,000 - - - - - - - - 
lnestment income 
Contributions 

1,000 
500,000 

- 
- 

103 
- 

5,560 
- 

4,455 
- 

5,156 
- 

7,533 
- 

3,922 
- 

7,220 
- 

10787 
- 

14493 
- 

Subtotal reenues 
Transfers from other funds - IN: 

501,000 410,000 103 5,560 4455 5,156 7,533 3,922 7,220 10,787 14,493 

Stormwater Operating Fund 
Stormwater SDC Fund 

159,760 
332,973 

252,373 
430,227 

130,000 
757,295 

137,000 
387,184 

640,000 
500,560 

260,000 
509,257 

400,000 
518,119 

550,000 
527,121 

550.000 
536.287 

775,000 
545,616 

400,000 
555,110 

492,733 682,600 887,295 524.184 1,140,560 769.257 918,119 1,077121 1,086.287 1,320,616 955,110 Subtotal transfers IN 
Bond proceeds: 

Oregon DEQ rething loans - - - - - - - - - - 
New rei,enue bonds. resere requirement 
New reenue bonds - project funding 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- - 
- 

59,819 
678,207 

51,818 
587,486 

73,233 
830,287 

6,479 
73,458 

644,101 
7,302,550 

- - - - - 738,027 639,303 903,520 79,937 7,946,650 Subtotal bond proceeds 

Total Resources $ 1,005,005 $ 1,102,872 $ 	897,670 $ 1,085,737 $ 1,590,467 $ 1,290,036 $ 	2,417,003 $ 	2,112,591 $ 	2,718,985 8 2,490,002 $ 10.365,558 
Requirements: - 

Expenditures: 
Capital projects 873,450 975,000 218,785 511,862 940,643 396,472 1,878,207 1,237,486 1,480,287 873,458 7,677,550 

Transfers to other funds - OUT: 
General Fund 8,469 11,300 11,809 12,340 12,895 13,475 14,082 14,716 15,378 16,070 16,793 
Community DeeIopment Fund 110,814 106,300 111,084 116,082 121,306 126,765 132,469 138,430 144,660 151,169 157,972 

119,283 117,600 122,892 128,422 134.201 140,240 146,551 153,146 160,037 167,239 174,765 Subtotal transfers to other funds - OUT 

Contingency 12,272 - - - - - - - - - 
New reenue bonds - resere reqtrirement - - - - - - 59,819 111637 184,870 191,349 835,450 

- 10,272 555,993 445453 515,623 753,324 332,425 610,323 893,791 1,257,955 1,677,794 Unappropriated ending fund balance 

Total Requirements $ 1,005,005 $ 1,102,872 $ 	897,670 $ 1.085,737 $ 1,590,467 $ 1,290,036 $ 	2,417,003 $ 	2,112,591 $ 	2,718,985 $ 2,490,002 $ 10,365,555 

10-9 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

It should also be noted that there are annual transfers out of the Stormwater Capital 
Projects Fund (see Table 10-7) to the General Fund ($11,300) and to the 
Community Development Fund ($106,300). These have been included in this 
analysis. 

10.7 STORMWATER OPERATING FUND 

• The estimated 2012 Stormwater Operating Fund beginning balance is $497,712. 
As reflected in this rate forecast, the Operating Fund receives approximately 
$1 ,000,000 annually from stormwater service charges. The Fund's major 
expenses are for personal services at $236,000; materials and services at 
$487,000 and, as estimated in the Master Plan, additional maintenance costs 
related to the recommended new facilities of between $10,000 and $144,000 
annually (see line item "materials and services - new CIP" in Operating Fund 
detail sheet). 

• Transfrs Out - The second largest financial requirement of the Stormwater 
Operating Fund (see Table 10-8) is cash transfers to other funds. The financial 
model fully funds all required transfers out including the following (2012 budget): 

General Fund.................................................................................$166,700 

• 	Community Development Fund .......................................................$77,000 

Stormwater Capital Projects Fund.................................................$252,373 

• Contingency and unappropriated ending fund balances - For the base case 
fprecast, it has been assumed that future rates will be set to meet all financial 
requirements, and keep an ending fund balance at a threshold of not less than 
$200,000. 

LIj 	 "UI,] 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-8 
Forecast of Stormwater Operating Fund Cash Flows 

City of Wilsonille 
Analysis of Stormwater Operating Fund Cash Flow 

Budget Budget    Forecast 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 	2020 2021 

Resources: 
Beginning Fund Balance 653450 497,712 353,767 501,767 617,767 202,767 277,767 292,767 263,767 281,767 274,767 

Reenues: 

Stormwater utility charges 
lntergoemmental 

955,000 
- 

1,073,816 
- 

1,278,072 
- 

1,299,621 
- 

1323,204 
- 

1,478,701 
- 

1,665,250 
- 

1,872,462 
- 

2,112,575 
- 

2,375,116 
- 

2745,174 
- 

lnestment income 
Miscellaneous 

10,000 
- 

2,000 
- 

3,538 
- 

5,018 
- 

6,176 
- 

2,028 
- 

2,778 
- 

2,928 
- 

2,638 
- 

2818 
- 

2,748 
- 

Subtotal reenues 965,000 1,075,816 1,281,609 1,304,63B 1,329,381 1,480,729 1,668,027 1,875390 2,115,213 2,377,934 2,747,922 

Total Resources $ 	1,618,450 $ 	1,573,528 S 	1,635,376 $ 	1,806,405 $ 	1,947,148 $ 	1,683496 $ 	1,945,794 $ 	2,168,156 $ 	2,376,980 $ 	2,659,701 $ 	3,022,689 
Requirements: 

Expenditures: 
Personal serces 
Materials and serMces - base line 
Materials and serices - on new CIP 
Capital outlays 

219,440 
502,338 

- 

2,500 

236,290 
487,398 

- 

- 

246.923 
502,020 

- 
- 

258,035 
517,081 

10,397 
- 

269,646 
532,593 
24,040 

- 

281,780 
548,571 

24,761 
- 

294,460 
565,028 

30,025 
- 

307,711 
581,979 

35,702 
- 

321,558 
599,438 
109,705 

- 

336,028 
617,421 
118,570 

- 

351,149 
635,944 
133,217 

- 

Subtotal expenditures 724,278 723,688 748,943 785,512 826,279 855,112 889,513 925,392 1,030,701 1,072,019 1,120311 

Transfers to other funds - OUT 
General Fund 
Community De'lopment Fund 

Stormwater Capital Projects Fund 

163,700 
73000 

159,760 

166,700 
77,000 

252,373 

174,202 
80,465 

130,000 

182,041 
84,086 

137,000 

190,232 
87,870 

640,000 

198,793 
91,824 

260,000 

207,739 
95,956 

400,000 

217,087 
100,274 
550,000 

226,856 
104,786 
550,000 

237,064 
109,502 
775,000 

247,732 
114,429 
400000 

396,460 496,073 384,667 403,126 918102 550,617 703,695 867,361 881.642 1,121,566 762,161 Subtotal transfers to other funds 

Debt service: 
DEQ reoIing loans - - - - - - - - - - 

New Revenue bonds - - - - - - 59,819 111,637 184870 191,349 835,450 
- - - - - - 59,819 111,637 184,870 191,349 835,450 Subtotal debt service 

Contingencies/Designations 50,170 272,563 

Unappropriated ending fund balance 447,542 81,204 501,767 617,767 202,767 277,767 292,767 263,767 281,767 274767 304,767 

Total Requirements $ 	1,618,450 $ 	1,573,528 $ 	1,635,376 $ 	1,806,405 $ 	1,947,148 $ 	1,683,496 $ 	1,945,794 $ 	2,168,156 $ 	2,378,980 $ 	2,659,701 $ 	3,022,689 

ME 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.7.1 Analysis of Revenue Requirements 

This task calculates the revenue needed from rates. It is driven by utility cash flow or 
income requirements, constraints of bond covenants and specific fiscal policies related 
to the development, operation and maintenance of a "stand alone" stormwater 
management utility. Based on cost and planning information discussed above, and 
shared with City Staff, the following forecast, displayed in Table 10-0, of future 
stormwater revenue requirements was developed: 

UM 10-12 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-9 
Forecast of Stormwater System Revenue Requirements 

City of Wilsonville 
Projection of Stormwater Operating Fund Revenue Requirements 

Budget    Forecast 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 	2020 2021 Ue Item Description 2012 

Projection of Cash Flow: 
Revenues: 

Stormwater utility charges 1073816 1073816 1.278072 1,299,621 1.323204 1,478.701 1.665,250 1,872,462 2,112,575 2,375,116 
Intergovernmental - - - - - - - - - 
Investment income 2,000 3,539 5,018 6,178 2,028 2.778 2.928 2,638 2.818 2,748 
Miscellaneous - - 

1,075.816 1.077,353 72ai,089 7305,798 1,325,231 1,481,479 1.668,177 1,875,100 2,115,393 2,377,864 Subtotal revenues 
Expenditures: 

Operations and maintenance 723,688 748,943 785.512 826,279 855,112 889,513 925,392 1.030,701 1.072,019 1,120.311 
Transfers to OtherFunds . excluding SWM constrection hind 243,700 254,667 266,126 278,102 290,617 303,695 317,361 331,642 346,566 362.161 

Debt serene - - - - 59,819 111,637 184,870 191,349 835.450 
Use of Operating Fund balance 100,580 278,000 253,000 225,000 335,000 415,000 521,000 568,000 768,000 430,000 

1,067,968 1,281.609 1,304,638 1.329.381 1,480,729 1,668,027 1.875,390 2,115,213 2,377.934 2,747,922 Subtotal expenditures 

Net Cash 7,848 (204256) (21,549) (23,583) (155,498) (186,548) (207,212) (240,113) (262,541) (370,058) 

Net Deltciency/(Surplus) (7,848) 204,256 21,549 23,583 155,498 186.548 207,2121 240,113 262,541 370,058 

Test of Coverage Requirement: 
Operating Revenues: 

Slormwaterutillly charges 1,073,816 1,073,816 1,278,072 1.299,621 1,323,204 1,478.701 1.665,250 1.872,462 2,112,575 2.375,116 
Intergovernmental 	 , . - . . - 
System Development Charges 293,227 279,016 388,701 502,122 510,867 519,776 528,828 538,045 547,428 556,976 
Transfers (To) From Rate Stabilization Account - - - - - - - - - - 

1,367,043 1,352,832 1,866,773 1,801,743 1,834,070 1,998,478 2,194078 2,410,507 2,660,003 2,932,092 Total Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenses: 

Operations & Maintenance Expense 723,688 748,943 785,512 826,279 855,112 889,513 925,392 1,030,701 1,072.019 1.120,311 
Transfers to Other Funds 243,700 254,667 266126 278.102 290,617 303,695 317,361 331,642 346,568 362,181 

967.388 1,003,609 1,051.638 1,104,381 1,145,729 1,193,208 1,242,753 1,362,343 1,418,585 1,482,472 Total Operating Expenses 

Net Operating Income 399,655 349,222 615,135 697,362 688,341 805,270 951,325 1,048,164 1.241,418 1,449,620 

Nosoperating Income (Expense): 
Interest lncom8: 

StorrnwaterOperallng Fund 2,000 3,538 5,018 6,178 2,028 2,778 2,928 2.638 2,818 2.748 
Slorrr,waler Capital Projects Fund . 103 5,560 4,455 5,156 7,533 3,922 7.220 10.787 14,493 
Stom,waler SOC Fund 5,000 4,750 - - 

Other Nonaperaling Income (expense) 
Miscellaneous - - - - - . . - - - 

7,000 8,390 10,576 10,632 7,184 10,311 6,850 9.857 13,604 17,241 Total Nonoperating Income 

Total Net Revenues Avoilablo for Debt Service 406,655 357,613 625,712 707,994 695,525 815,581 958,175 1,058,022 1.255.022 1,466,861 

Debt Service: 
Senior Uen Partly Obligations: 

Oregon OEO Revolving Loan - . . . 
New revenue bonds - - - 59,819 111.637 184,870 191,349 3450 

. . - - - 59.819 111,637 164,870 191,349 Total Senior Uen Parity Obligations 835,450 

Senior Lien Partly Obligations Coverage Recognized 1/IA N/A N/A N/A N/A 13.63 8.58 5.72 6.56 178 
Senior Uen Parity Obligations Coverage Required 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 

Senior Lien Coverage t)e8ciency - - . . . - - 

Net Oelciency/(Surplus) - - 

Projection of Revenue Sufficiency: 
Maximum Deficiency - 204,256 21,549 23,583 155,498 186,548 207,212 240,113 262,541 370,058 
Percent Increase Required Over Current Rate Revenues 0.004' 19.02% 1.69% 1.81% 11.75% 12.62% 12.44% 12.82% 12.43% 15.581 

Stom,water rates reconciliation: 
Revenues recognized From current rates 1,073,816 1,073,816 1,278,072 1,299,621 1,323,204 1,478,701 1,665,250 1,872,462 2,112,575 2,375,116 

Add revenues from rate increase - 204,256 21,549 23,583 155,498 186,548 207,212 240,113 282,541 370,058 

1,073,816 1,278,072 1,299,621 1,323,204 1,478,701 1.665.250 1,872,462 2.112,575 2,375,116 2,745,174 Total revenues recognized hoe, rate increase 

IJRIIS 	10-13 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.8 RATE ANALYSIS 

In Wilsonville, service charges for stormwater management reflect a rationale that those 
who contribute runoff to the stormwater system should proportionately contribute to the 
costs of providing services. This approach is now regarded by most administrators and 
the courts as an appropriate technique for financing stormwater programs. A basic 
assumption in this rate analysis is that services will continue to be billed on the basis of 
impervious surface. For single family residential property owners, the average amount 
of impervious area on a developed residential lot is 2,750 square feet. This value 
provides the basis for and equates to one ERU. Non-residential property owners are 
billed based on their measured impervious area divided by 2,750 which is then 
multiplied by the rate per ERU of $3.72 (current rate). The base case forecast has 
assumed that the percentage change in revenue requirements in any forecast year will 
be applied to the prior year's rate to arrive at that year's calculated rate per ERU. Table 
10-10 shows the rate forecast per ERU over the forecast horizon. 

Note: the budgeted rate for fiscal 2012 is $4.33; the forecast assumes a rate increase to $5.00 effective 
1/1/12. 

Table 10-10 
Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates per ERU 

City of Wilsonsilte 
Projection of Storrnwater Operating Fund Revenue Requirements and Derivation of Monthly Rates per ERU 

Budget  Forecast  
2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2012 

Gross revenues requ/red from rates: 
Operations and maintenance expense 723688 748,943 765,512 826.279 855,112 889513 925.392 1,030,701 1,072,019 1,120,311 
Operating fund capital outlays . . . . - . . . - - 
Transfers to otherfrmnds - less transibrs to construction 243,700 254,667 266,126 278102 290,617 303,695 317,361 331,642 346,566 362,161 
Debt sersico - . - - 59,819 111,637 184,670 191,349 835,450 
(Use)/Replacement of Operating Fund balance 100,580 278,000 253,000 225,000 335,000 415,000 521,000 568.000 768,000 430,000 

1,067,968 1,281,609 1,304,838 1,329,381 1,480,729 1,668,027 1,875,390 2,115,213 2,377,934 2,747,922 Subtotal gross revenues required from rates 
Revenue offsets to cost of sendce: 

Intergovernmental - . - . - 

Investment income 2,000 3,538 5,018 6.178 2.028 2,778 2,928 2,638 2,818 2,748 
Miscellaneous  

2,000 3,538 5,018 6.178 2026, 2,718 2,928 2,638 2,818 2,748 Subtotal revenue offsets to cost of serdce 

Net revenues requ/red from rates 1,065,968 1,278,072 1,299,621 1,323,204 1,478.701 1.665,250 1,872.482 2,112.575 2,375,118 2,745,174 

Forecasted billabte retaii ERUs 20,524 20,882 21,246 21,618 21,993 22.376 22,768 23,163 23,567 23,978 

Current monthly rate-$3.72 per ERU per Month $ 	3.72 S 	3,72 $ 	3.72 $ 	3,72 $ 	3.72 S 	3.72 $ 	3.72 S 	3.12 $ 	3.72 S 	3.72 
Monthly rate based on reulsed CiP 	October 7,2011 $ 	4.33 $ 	5.10 $ 	5.10 S 	5.10 $ 	5.60 $ 	6,20 $ 	6.85 $ 	7.60 S 	8.40 S 	9.54 

UM 10-14 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

As the data in Table 10-11 shows, the longer range rate forecast shows significant 
increases as the cumulative effect of issuing revenue bonds to pay for the capital 
improvements is reflected in the rate. This forecast also assumes that the City will use 
available resources within its Stormwater SDC and Operating Funds to support 
identified capital needs during the initial phase of capital construction. These rate 
projections and specifically the rate effects related to capital funding are also based on 
increasing the City's current Stormwater SDC of $492 per ERU based on the following 
step increases: 

July 1,2012 -$780 per ERU 

• July 1,2013 -$1,068 per ERU 

• July 1,2014 - $,356 per ERU 

Table 10-11 
Long Range Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates per ERU 

$12.09 
Forecast of Monthly Stormwater Rates - $ per Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) 

$10.00 

 

$ 

$6.40 

$8.00  

$6.65 

6.20 
$6.00  

t 

	

:::tII 	illi 
2012 	 2013 	 2014 	 2015 	 2616 	 2017 	 2008 	 2019 	 2020 	 2021 

	

Monihiy rein boned on rrvined CiP - October 72011 	 —U-- Current rnonthiy rote - $3.72 per 160 per Month 

UM 10-15 



/ 

Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.8.1 Service Charge Credits 

Implementation of a stormwater funding structure requires policy direction regarding 
whether specific classifications of property or uses of such property will qualify for 
service charge exemption or credit. The amount of a property's service charge must be 
linked to its proportionate share of stormwater program costs. Issues of equity or legal 
defensibility arise when exemption or credit policies move away from this utility rate 
making premise. Service charges must be fair and reasonable and bear a substantial 
relationship to the cost of providing services and facilities. 

Many basic policy decisions revolve around "who pays" when a stormwater service 
charge is applied to individual properties. The ERU approach is based on impervious 
area and would, therefore, exempt undeveloped properties which, by definition, do not 
have impervious area. If truly undeveloped i.e., left in its natural state, it is difficult to 
include undeveloped land in a rate structure based on impervious area and contribution 
of runoff factors. 

Most stormwater service charge structures do not consider property ownership in 
establishing rates. Instead, charges are based on property conditions/improvements' 
which affect runoff in some manner. One exception is publicly owned properties where 
a variety of policies have been implemented. Some utilities apply stormwater service 
charges to public properties in the same manner as private properties. Others do not 
charge public properties because it is believed that the process only takes money from 
one City fund and transfers it to another. However, the method most often employed is 
to bill all public owned facilities (schools, city buildings, etc.) but exempt publicly owned 
streets. The logic supporting the exemption for streets being that they are designed and 
operated as part of the City's stormwater conveyance system. 

Another question in the stormwater rate is exemption or reduction of the charge based 
on social issues of low income or elderly. No general rule has been set which enables 
service charge reductions based solely on ability to pay or age making this issue one 
established by local policy. The stormwater charge should be consistent with the City's 
other rate structures. 

The issue of tax-exempt properties being excluded from the service charge is legally 
straightforward. For the sake of maintaining consistency with legal requirements of 
service charges, the stormwater fee should be applied to properties owned by churches, 
non-profit agencies and others having tax exempt status. 

Most stormwater utilities do provide for credits against service charges to recognize the 
effects of on-site detention, water quality mitigation or other means of stormwater 
control. Wilsonville's stormwater rate is related to each property's contribution of runoff 
to the system. The objective of a service charge credit system is to provide incentives 
for developers to meet or exceed stormwater quantity/quality requirements. The level of 
credit should reflect the reduced effect a property with on-site controls has over a similar 
property lacking this mitigation. The amount of reduction is a function of the service 

ID3r 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

charge rate structure. Under the impervious surface approach, the credit results in a 
reduction of the equivalent units attributable to the property. 

The next question is how much of the service charge should be made available for 
credit. The case for making the entire charge available for credit would assume that if 
the site totally retains stormwater runoff, that customer is not being served by any of the 
programs or services offered by the utility. However, given the fact that access to the 
property is available during storm events and those stormwater utility activities such as 
water quality management, channel maintenance, regulatory compliance and public 
information will continue to benefit all the City's customers, it is questionable whether 
any property is left totally unserved by the program. Based on this logic, it is generally 
accepted that some level of the fee remain in place regardless of the on-site facility 
constructed by the customer. The level of credit available is then a function of allocating 
program costs to "base" versus "use" factors. Base can be defined as program costs 
that are largely unaffected by storm water flows. These typically include water quality 
management, regulatory compliance and billing/administration. Use costs are those that 
are related to storm water flow and may include budget categories such as maintenance 
and some capital improvements. 

A final consideration deals with the calculation of the credit itself. There are a number of 
variations all of which revolve around the desired level of simplicity, equity and 
administrative ease. At its simplest, a service charge credit is calculated as a 
percentage reduction based on the type of facility. A detention facility equals a certain 
percentage reduction; a retention facility another percentage; sumps another 
percentage. A higher level of accuracy is achieved when the calculation is based on a 
case by case comparison of pre and post development flows from the site. 

The City's current Resolution No. 1732 (Part Ill Article l.A) stipulates the following 
regarding eligibility for a reduction in the stormwater service charge: 

The applicant must show to the Department of Public Work's (DPW) 
satisfaction, the amount of permanent reduction to the total run-off or run-off 
coefficient for the property. Extra capacity facilities or improvements above 
the requirements as described in the Storm water Master Plan as described 
in Part II Definitions of this Resolution that are installed and maintained by 
the applicant may be Used to show the amount of permanent reduction to 
the total runoff or runoff coefficient. 

This credit procedure does provide the City with the mechanism to establish rate 
incentives for upsizing or providing levels of treatment that go beyond the requirements 
established for the stormwater program. However, the Resolution could be improved by 
including a more specific calculation of how the oversizing or other stormwater 
improvements on the property are translated into a reduction of the rate. It is assumed 
that the current methodology applies the same percentage reduction of flows from the 
site as the basis for a percentage reduction of the service charge applied to the site. 

U&S 	10-17 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

10.9 SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE METHODOLOGY 

10.9.1 Background 

This update of Wilsonville's system development charges (SDC) for stormwater was 
done in conjunction with completion of the Stormwater Master Plan. As part of this 
update process, issues related to the current stormwater SDC structure were addressed 
through Wilsonville's Finance and Community Development Departments. These 
groups, working with the URS Project Team, established the proposed direction on the 
structure and calculation of the draft stormwater SDCs. 

For this SDC update, Wilsonville established a number of objectives: 

. Review the basis for the SDCs to ensure a consistent methodology; 

Develop a reimbursement element of the SDC; and 

Consider possible revisions to the structure or basis of the charge that might 
improve equity or proportionality to demand. 

The City's current stormwater SDC is $492 per ERU. This SDC was established in 2001 
(CIP costs have been escalated over time but the basis for the charge has not been 
updated since 2001). The sole basis for the SOC is future project costs allocated to 
growth which in 2001 were valued at $4,543,981. This cost base was allocated over 
planned future growth in ERUs of 9,189. The City then applied a "debt service 
reduction" of $74 per ERU which resulted in a total SOC of $421 in 2001. Again, as 
capital costs have been adjusted over time, this rate has increased to the current $492. 

This Stormwater Master Plan also identified a new category of project referred to as low 
impact development (LID) which are projects oriented toward improved stormwater 
quality. Because of the overall benefit to the City's stormwater program these water 
quality projects will provide, it was not possible to apportion specific projects or 
elements of projects to growth. Rather, the approach was to take the total LID project 
cost of $1 ,387,700 and divide that amount by total ERUs (current and future) in the 
system of 28,502. This proportionately allocates these LID costs over the entire 
stormwater customer base as opposed to specific project allocations to growth in ERUs. 

Finally, the City requested that a reimbursement element of the stormwater SOC also 
be evaluated as part of this project. Based on the City's fixed asset schedule, the costs 
for existing stormwater facilities were identified. From this base all developer 
contributions and grant funded improvements were subtracted from that total as 
contributed capital not eligible for SDC reimbursement. As is the case for the LID 
projects, there was no attempt to allocate specific assets to growth. Rather, the overall 
stormwater system assets (less contributed capital) provide capacity to new 

IlIJUIS 	
10-18 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

connections, the cost of which has been paid by the City and its ratepayers. These 
costs should be proportionately shared by new connections to the system. Therefore, 
the book value of stormwater system assets (less contributed capital and less 
depreciation) of $13,693,030 is divided by the total ERUs in the system (current and 
future) of 28,502 to derive the reimbursement SDC of $480. 

Table 10-12 summarizes the elements of the proposed stormwater SDC: 

Table 10-12 
summary ot lroposea btormwater us 

City of Wilsonville 
Stormwater - System Development Charge Analysis 

Summary of Fee Components 

Reimbursement fee 
Improvement fee: 

Water quantity 
Water quality 

Total improvement fee 

Total System Development Fee 

$480 

827 
49 

876 	 876 

$1,356 

10.10 STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS 

Wilsonville's Resolution No. 1732 Article Ill establishes the Stormwater SDC for the 
City. While indexed to reflect current construction costs indices, the Resolution was last 
updated in November 2001.. The intent of the City through this proposed stormwater 
SDC is to ensure that each project contained in the Stormwater Master Plan is 
evaluated in order to determine whether or towhat extent each project is eligible to be 
included in the SDC cost base. The evaluation of these stormwater projects for SDC 
eligibility employed the following guidelines: 

ORS 223 Requirements: 

Capital improvements mean the facilities or assets used for stormwater 
management. This definition DOES NOT ALLOW costs for operation or routine 
maintenance of the improvements. 
The SDC improvement fee shall consider the cost of projected capital 
improvements needed to increase the capacity of the stormwater system to 
accommodate future growth. 

Lu 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

3. 	An increase in system capacity is established if a capital improvement increases 
the "level of performance or service" provided by existing facilities or provides 
new facilities in order to accommodate anticipated growth. 

Under this aDDroach. the followina rules were followed: 

Repair costs are not included; 
Replacement costs will not be included unless the replacement includes an 
upsizing of stormwater system capacity; 
Costs will not be included which bring deficient systems up to established 
standards. 

Wilsonville's Stormwater Utility service charge and SDC are based on measured 
impervious surface area. The average amount of impervious area on a single family 
residential developed lot within the City is set at 2,750 square feet. This equates to one 
ERU. Both rates and SDCs are calculated as a function of ERUs meaning that each 
property's fee is calculated as follows: Measured Impervious Surface / 2,750 Sq Ft. = 
# of ERUs. The number of ERUs is then multiplied by the unit rate to determine the 
service charge or SDC amount. 

The number of ERUs currently connected to the City's system is 20,524 as established 
through the City's Stormwater Utility billing records. Based on growth projections of 
1% % per year, the total number of ERUs in Wilsonville at the end of the forecast period 
will be 28502. This reflects growth of 7,978 ERUs. 

10.11 SDC STRUCTURE 

Under ORS 223.297-.314, there are two elements to an SDC: 

The reimbursement fee considers the cost of existing facilities, prior contributions by 
existing users of those facilities, the value of the unused/available capacity, and 
generally accepted ratemaking principles (see Table 10-13). The objective is that "future 
system users contribute no more than an equitable share to the cost of existing 
facilities." The calculation of the reimbursement fee is based on the original cost of 
stormwater system facilities identified in the City's fixed asset schedule. An original cost 
base better reflects the fact that most stormwater infrastructure is not mechanical in 
nature and prone to the same level of depreciation as are water and sewer systems. 
Any outstanding principal on debt for these facilities has been removed to more 
accurately reflect the actual investment made by the City and its stormwater customers. 
Accordingly, any grant funded facility costs were also removed from the reimbursement 
fee calculation.. 

10-20 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-13 
Stormwater Reimbursement SDC Corn ponents 

City of Wilsonville 
Stormwater - System Development Charge Analysis 

Reimbursement Fee Calculation 

Original 
(-) 

Accumulated 
(=) 

Book 
Cost Depreciation Value 

Total SWM utility plant-in-service balance $41,276,993 $ 21,118,799 $ 20,158,194 
less projects funded from: 

Grants 338,033 4,225 333,807 
Contributed capital 6,278,174 407,217 5,870,957 
System Development Charges 275,937 15,536 260,401 

Total 6,892,144 426,979 6,465,165 

Rate base funded utility plant-in-service balance 	$ 34,384,850 $ 20,691,820 $ 13,693,030 

Total current and future ERUs 	 28,502 

Calculated reimbursement fee 
	

$ 	480 

The improvement fee is based on the cost of planned future facilities that expand the 
stormwater system's capacity or increase its level of performance to accommodate 
growth. In developing an analysis of the improvement portion of the fee, each project in 
the City's capital improvement plan was reviewed to exclude costs related to correcting 
existing system deficiencies or upgrading for historical lack of capacity. The 
improvement SDC is calculated as a function of the estimated number of additional 
ERUs to be served by the City's facilities over the planning period. There are two 
elements to the proposed improvement fee, water quality and water quantity. Table 10-
14 shows the water quality improvements identified through the Stormwater Master Plan 
project and allocates these costs proportionally by including the total stormwater 
customer base in the allocation. 

UM 10-2 1 



Chapter 10 
Financial A 

Table 10-14 
Stormwater uuaiitv improvement biiu 

City of Wilsonville 
Stormwater - System Development Charge Analysis 

Water Quality Improvement Fee Calculation 

Estimated 
Project 	 Project 
Number 	 Location 	 Cost 

LID3 	SW Camelot Green Street Mid-Block Curb Extensions (2 extensions) 	 58,482 
LID3 	SW Camelot Green Street Mid-Block Curb Extensions (18 extensions) 	 526338 
LID7 	SW Wilsonvilte Road Stormwater Planters 	 362,794 
LIUZ 	SW Hifiman Green Street Stormwater Curb hxtensions  

Total Low Impact Development Projects Cost 	 $ 1,387,700 

Total Existing and Future ERUs (2012-2031) 	 28,502 

Unit water Quality Improvement Fee 	 49 

The second element of the improvement SDC is related to future stormwater projects 
which were individually evaluated as part of the master planning process in terms of 
growth vs. non growth related capacity allocation. The resulting growth related costs are 
allocated only to future ERU growth in the City's storniwater utility/system. These results 
are shown in Table 10-15. 

10-22 



Chapter 10 
Financial Analysis 

Table 10-15 
Stormwater Quantity Improvement SDC 

- 	 City 01 WilsOrwitto 
Stormwator - System Developmeni Charge Analysis 

Waler Ouanhily Improvement Fee Calculation 

Estimated 
Project Project SOC Eligibility,  
Number Localion Cost Percent Coat 
Retjlil r8vurgreorr Repair Project 285.000 NA 
BC-i Boeckman Creek Realignment 571.200 48% 285.556 

Study ST-S Low Impact Development Design Standards and tmplenientadon Guldo 57.000 NA - 
Study 51-8 Install Two Permanent Stormwater Flew MonItoring Stations and Two Rain Gages 45,400 NA - 
Study ST-ti Purchase InI0SWMM Model 18.240 NA - 

Study ST-6 Charbonnoau Infrastructure Replacement Study 142.500 NA - 
BC4 Gesellsdttaft Waler Well Channel Restoration 135,774 0% 

0% 
BC-8 Canyon Creek Estates Pipe Removat 129.504 24% 31.081 

SD4208 & SD4209 Barber Street Pipe Replacement 213196 11% 23,452 

0% 
CLC-3 eommerco 'ir00 t,5anaeI Restoration 564.071 98% 552.750 

Sludy ST-i Study 10 analyze area north 01 Etlirjsen RdiEast 011-5 57.000 NA 
FP suture Protect Ltovetopment and tnlpterflenlatloh 285,000 NA - 

S 	2.510.067 $ 	872,878 SublOttil - High Priority Projects -0-5 yoars 

BC-2 Boeckman Creek Ovttolt Rehublutalion 167,580 NA 
BC-6 Multipla Detention Pipe Inslattation 2.419,380 18% 435.488 
BC-S BoeckmanCeekOultaItReatlgnmont 38.441 3% 1,153 
BC-3 Cascade Loop DetentIon Pipe Instalaitor, 810,109 0% - 

BC-110 Memorial Park Stream and Wetland Enhancement 84,360 24% 20,246 
8C-9 Memorial DrIve Pathway and Storm Drain RepaIr 111,720 0% 

CLC-2 SW Parkway Avenue Stream Roatoratlon 279.420 9% 25.148 
CLC-9 Jobsoy Lane Culvert Replacement 115.028 7% 8,052 

SD5707, 5709, 5714, 5719 SW Parkway Pipos Replacement 497,405 0% - 
Study ST-2 Advance Road SOhoot Sitn Study 57,000 NA - 

CLC-1 DolentlonMrnitand Enhancement neat Tributary to Basalt Crook 3.516.900 98% 3.446.562 
SD9038 French PraIrie Road in NW Charbonneau Pipe Replacement 867,417 0% 
S09052 Curry Drive and French Prlrto Road In NW Charbonneau PIpe Replacement 1.043.501 0% 

FP Future Project Development and Implementation 	' 285,000 NA  

S 	10,293,261 S 	3.936.650 Subtotal - Medium Pkio,ity Projects -5-20 years 

Study ST-4 Master Plan and Model Update 342,000 NA - 
Study ST-3 Survey of Open Channel Conveyance 57.000 NA - 

BC-i Wledeman Road Regional Stormwaler DelenttorslSlream Enhancement 5.446.350 21% 1.143,734 
CLC-4 Ridder Road Wetland Restoration 283,778 3% 8.513 

CLC-5 Coffee Lake Crook Stream and Riparlan Enhancement 339,844 5% 18,992 
CLC-6 Coffee Lake Creek South Tributary Wetland Enlargement 490.286 39% 191,212 
CLC-7 Coffee Lake Croah South Tributary Stream RestoratIon 498.114 59% 94,262 

St)4021 S S04022 Bolsorg Road Culvert Replacement 85.393 20% 13,079 
CLC-8 Cotton Lake Creek Relorauion 486,877 48% 233,701 

Sludy ST-i Boeckman Creek at B000krnars Road Stonr,waier Study 57.000 NA 
SD4025-S04028 8000rgRoadPipeReptacoment 	- 733,590 12% 88031 

S 	8.798,232 S 	1.789.523 &jblotal-Low Priority,  Projocts-10-l5yeora 

TotalAll Priority Projects 	 1 $ 	21.801.560 r 31% 	1 S 	0.599.051 

Total tuture captlal expenditures incurred to serve tuture customnrs (2009-2025) ..................................................... ........... 	S6,599.0S1 

Estimated tutufe ERUs added (2012-2031) .................................................................................................................... 7978 

Calculated improvoment tee SOC ................... .................... ............................................................................... .......... 	S 	827 

UM 10-23 



Staff Report Addendum 

Financial Imoacts - Ci 

As designed, the system development charge and user fee increases will provide the necessary 

resources to pay for improvements, repairs and maintenance of the stormwater system. 

System Development: SDCs will increase from $492 per equivalent dwelling unit to $1,356. The increase 

will be phased in over three years. The additional revenue is collected for system improvements and 

includes projects such as Villebois school site, Commerce Circle improvements and Realignment of 

Boeckman creek under Wilsonville Road Bridge. 

Operating: Current monthly fees are $3.72 and are proposed to be increased to $5.60 over the next four 

years. The rates would initially increase to $5.00 per month in July 2012 and then incremental increases 

each year thereafter. The increase is needed to pay for significant capital projects that will protect 

existing assets and include Rivergreen drainage and Realignment of Boeckman Creek under Wilsonville 

Road bridge. The rates will also pay for increasing maintenance costs that allow the system to operate as 

designed. 

After 2016: Further rate increases are expected after 2016. As contained in the master plan and rate 

study, the rates could to nearly $9.00 per month by 2020. The additional increases are needed for 

numerous capital improvement projects which must be paid from operating resources. However, the 

accompanying resolution only covers rate changes through 2016. A separate resolution will be brought 

forward at a later date to address the next future needs. 

Financial Impacts - Rate Payers 

Homeowners' monthly payment would initially increase $1.38 ($16.56/year) and 15 or 20 cents annually 

thereafter. Rates for nearby communities: Tualatin $5.41; Sherwood $12.77; Lake Oswego $8.97; 

Portland $22.37 

Multifamily, commercial and industrial rates would increase by the same percentage as residential. The 

fee is based upon the amount of impervious area. Each 2750 square feet of impervious surface area is 

charged $3.72/month at current rates. 



Cily of 

WILSON VILLE 
in OREGON 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
INFORMATION ITEM 

WWTP - DBO Owners Representative Contract Quarterly Report 

Meeting Date: March 19, 2012 
	

Contact: Eric Mende, Deputy City Engineer 
Report Date: March 05, 2012 

	
Contact Telephone Number: 503-570-1538 

Source of Item: Engineering 
	 Contact E-Mail: mende@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

THERE IS NO RECOMMENDATION, THIS IS AN INFORMATION ITEM. 

BACKGROUND 

To assist the City in the development and implementation of the Design-Build-Operate concept for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrades, the City reliedheavily on expert advice provided by the 
Consulting Team of R.W. Beck Inc. and Brown and Caldwell. Four phases of Owners Representative 
services were originally identified. These included: 

Phase A: Development of the DBO Project Management approach, key technical criteria, DBO 
procurement strategy, and development of a Request for Qualifications; 

Phase B: Development of a Request For Proposal document, draft DBO service contract and technical 
appendices, and assistance with proposal evaluation and negotiations; 

Phase C: Monitoring of the contractual and technical compliance of the DBO Contractor during the 
Construction Phase of the project, including acceptance testing; and 

Phase D: Ongoing support related to plant performance. 

Phases A and B are complete. The Phase C Professional Services Agreement was approved by Council in 
November 2011. One of the Tasks under Phase C is a Quarterly Report to the Wilsonville City Council 
pertaining to the performance of the DBO Contractor - CH2M-HilI. Tonight is the first of these quarterly 
reports. 	

11, 

R.W. Beck subsequently merged/was purchased by SAIC Corporation. Representatives from SAIC and 
Brown and Caldwell, who have been with the project through Phases A, B, and C, will provide a briefing 
to Council, and answer any questions that arise. The formal Quarterly Report is attached. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Project Performance Report - September 2011 through February 2012 

Council Worksession 03/19/12 	 Page I of I 



Project Performance Report for 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Improvements Design-Build-Operate 
Project #2082 - September 2011 
through February 2012 

City of Wilsonville 

March 5, 2012 

5AIC   



Project Performance Report for 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Improvements Design-Build-Operate 
Project #2082 - September 2011 
through February 2012 

Cfty of Wilsonville 

March 5, 2012 

SAIC 



This report has been prepared for the use of the client for the specific purposes identified in the 
report. The conclusions, observations and recommendations contained herein attributed to 
SAIC constitute the opinions of SAIC. To the extent that statements, information and opinions 
provided by the client or others have been used in the preparation of this report, SAIC has relied 
upon the same to be accurate, and for which no assurances are intended and no 
representations or warranties are made. SAIC makes no certification and gives no assurances 
except as explicitly set forth in this report. 

© 2012 SAIC 
All rights reserved. 



Project Performance Report for WWTP Improvements 
Design-Build-Operate Project #2082 - 

September 2011 through February 2012 
City of Wilsonville 

Table of Contents 

Table of Contents 
List ofAttachments 
List of Tables 

Project Performance Report - September 2011 through February 2012 ............... 1 
1.1 Project Participants and Project Summary...................................................1 
1.2 Company's Schedule and Design-Build Price Budget Status......................2 
1.3 Work Completed..........................................................................................3 

1.3.1 	Meetings and Workshops.................................................................3 
1.3.2 	Deliverables .....................................................................................4 
1.3.3 	Other Activities and Design Issues..................................................4 

1.4 	Permitting (Governmental Approvals) ........................................................ 5 
1.5 	Changes and Clarifications to the DBO Agreement....................................6 

1.5.1 	DBO Agreement Amendments ........................................................ 7 
1.5.2 	Change Orders .................................................................................7 
1.5.3 	Contract Administration Memoranda..............................................7 

1.6 	Schedule ....................................................................................................... 8 
1.6.1 	Current and Ongoing Activities ....................................................... 8 
1.6.2 	Unresolved Issues ............................................................................8 
1.6.3 	Planned Activities............................................................................8 

List of Attachments 
A 	Design-Build Work Schedule 
B 	Status of Governmental Approvals 
C 	Status of DBO Agreement Amendments 
D 	Status of Change Orders 
E 	Status of Contract Administration Memoranda 

List of Tables 

Table 1 Summary of Design-Build Price and Company's Pay Requests .......................2 
Table 2 Meetings and Workshops...................................................................................3 

File: 2651111031 	 SAIE.  



Project Performance Report - September 2011 through 
February 2012 

This Project Performance Report summarizes the performance of CH2M HILL 
Engineers, Inc., (the Company) from September 2011 through the February 2012 
relative to the Company's execution of the Design-Build Work in compliance with the 
Design-Build-Operate Agreement (DBO Agreement) for the City of Wilsonville 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Improvement DBO Project #2082. This report 
summarizes completed, current and planned activities as well as changes to the DBO 
Agreement. The majority of the design work was completed during this time period, 
and applications for several Governmental Approvals were prepared and submitted. 
No major deviations from compliance with the DBO Agreement have been identified. 

Included with this report is a CD containing the project files maintained by SAIC for 
the City's use. 

1.1 Project Participants and Project Summary 
DBO Company: 	 CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc. 

Design-Build Manager: Robert Pieper 

Owner: 	 City of Wilsonville 

Project Manager: Eric Mende, Deputy City Engineer 

Owner's Representative: 	SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC 

Project Manager: Jessica Guerrette 

Brown and Caldwell 

Project Manager: Art Molseed 

The DBO Agreement was executed between the City and CH2M HILL Engineers, 
Inc., on July 22, 2011. The scope of the DBO Agreement includes permitting, 
operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the existing and upgraded WWTP 
and the Lift Stations, as well as some additional ancillary services. This report focuses 
on the Design-Build Work which generally includes permitting, designing, 
constructing, start-up, commissioning and ensuring passage of an Acceptance Test for 
Wastewater System Capital Improvements to increase the average dry weather flow 
capacity of the plant from 2.25 million gallons per day (mgd) to 4 mgd, with 
accommodations for future expansion up to 7 mgd. The Project began in September 
2011 and is projected to end with the acceptance of the Wastewater System Capital 
Improvements by the City and Project closeout in March 2014. 

File: 2651111031 	 SAIE.  



1.2 Company's Schedule and Design-Build Price Budget 
Status 

The design level of completion as of February 29, 2012 is approximately 95 percent. 
The design work completed to date has been on schedule and within budget. 
However, there were several significant aspects of the design in the 95 percent design 
submittal that should be further defined or clarified in the final design submittal which 
will be received in March. These design items include: 

• Plumbing issues including priming of floor drains and exposure of area drains 

• Fire alarm system design including water flow alarms and audible alarms 

• Compaction testing requirements 

• Equipment control strategies including ultraviolet (UV) disinfection 

• DEQ equipment redundancy requirements for UV disinfection 

• Routing and configuration of selected elements of civil site piping design 

• Hydraulic control and flow distribution 

• Selected elements of the stormwater design 

• Detailing of selected elements of the structural design 

• Configuration of influent raw sewage piping 

• Process safety requirements of the biosolids dryer and dried product handling 
system 

• Cooling tower pump hydraulics 

• Selected elements of the electrical and instrumentation and control systems 

Table 1 summarizes the current status of the Design-Build Price (see also Section 
1.5.1 Change Orders), pay requests made by the Company, and the amount paid out by 
the City to date. 

Table 1 
Summary of Design-Build Price and Company's Pay Requests 

Original Design-Build Price $35,707,414.00 

Change Order amounts ($8,000.00) 

Current Design-Build Price $35,699,414.00 

Pay Requests as of February 29, 2012 	 $4,094,508.70 

Paid to Date 	 $4,094,508.70 

An abbreviated version of the Company's latest Design-Build Work schedule is 
included as Attachment A. The full master Design-Build Work Schedule is 28 pages 
long and has not been included for brevity. 

2 SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC Project Performance Report thru Februaiy 2012 FINAL.docx 3/5/12 



Project Performance Report - September 2011 through February 2012 

1.3 Work Completed 

1.3.1 Meetings and Workshops 
Table 2 lists the meetings and workshops that have been held with the City, the 
Company, and the Owner's Representative including weekly design review meetings; 
monthly construction meetings; design submittal review workshops; and design and 
construction chartering meetings. These meetings are documented in meeting minutes 
and/or Monthly Progress Reports, submitted by the Company to the City. In addition, 
the Owner's Representative has maintained a spreadsheet table summarizing all 
technical and design decisions and changes made during these weekly meetings and 
indicating when these decisions and/or changes became a DBO Agreement 
Amendment, Change Order or Contract Administration Memorandum. This 
spreadsheet table and other meeting documentation are included on the attached CD. 

Table 2 
Meetings and Workshops 

Meeting Type Date 

Design Chartenng Meeting August 31, 2011 

Weekly Design Review Meeting September 8, 2011 

Weekly Design Review Meeting September 15, 2011 

30% design review workshop September 29, 2011 

Weekly Design Review Meeting October 6, 2011 

Weekly Design Review Meeting October 13, 2011 

Weekly Design Review Meeting October 20, 2011 

Monthly Construction Meeting October 27, 2011 

Weekly Design Review Meeting November 3, 2011 

Weekly Design Review Meeting November 10, 2011 

Monthly Construction Meeting December 1, 2011 

60% design review workshop December 1, 2011 

Weekly Design Review Meeting December 8, 2011 

Weekly Design Review Meeting December 15, 2011 

Weekly Design Review Meeting December 20, 201 

Weekly Design Review Meeting January 5, 2012 

Monthly Construction Meeting January 12, 2012 

95% design review workshop January 26, 2012 

Construction Chartering Meeting February 22, 2012 

Monthly Construction Meeting February 23, 2012 

One additional meeting was held on February 9, 2012, to begin discussing the 
Company's Acceptance Testing Plan. The Company's preliminary Hydraulic Test 
Plan was presented. 

File: 2651111031 	 SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC 3 



In addition, the Company has conducted two Health Safety Security Environment 
(HSSE) Training at the WWTP site for Company, City and Owner's Representative 
staff who plan to be on the WWTP site at any time during construction. 

1.3.2 Deliverables 
The Company has submitted the following contractual deliverables for review by City 
and Owner's Representative: 

• 30 percent design documents submitted (September 19, 2011) 

• 60 percent design documents submitted (November 16, 2011) 

• 95 percent design documents submitted (January 17, 2012) 

• Design-Build Work Schedule (draft and updates) 

• Design Submittal Protocol (draft and final) 

• Submittal Plan (draft and updates) 

• Construction Plan (draft and update) 

• Quality Management Plan (draft and final) 

• Stormwater Management Plan (draft) 

1.3.3 Other Activities and Design Issues 
As part of the 30 percent design submittal, the Company submitted the following 
technical memos on design issues that have been discussed with the City and the 
Owner's Representative: 

1. Project Summary 

'2. Basis of Design—Process and Facilities Overview 

Attachment 1 - NPDES Permit 

Attachment 2 - Mass Balances 

Plant Hydraulics 

Preliminary Treatment 

Aeration Basins, RAS Stabilization Basins, and Process Blowers 

Secondary Clarifier, RAS/WAS Pumping 

Tertiary Filtration and Cooling 

Attachment 1 - Cooling Equipment Process Flow Diagram 

Attachment 2 - Cooling System Performance Analysis 

Disinfection and Outfall 

Solids Handling - WAS Storage, Thickening, Dewatering and Drying 

Odor Control 

4 SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC Project Performance Report thru Februaty 2012 FINAL.docx. 3/5/12 



Project Performance Report - September 2011 through February 2012 

Architectural 

Structural Design Criteria 

Mechanical Design Criteria 

HVAC/Plumbing/Plant Drain Design Criteria 

Electrical Design Criteria 

Instrumentation and Control 

Materials and Corrosion Control 

Geotechnical Conditions 

Attachment - GeoDesign, Inc. 2009 Geotechnical Report 

Site Work 

Landscaping 

Construction Sequence 

Additional technical memoranda submitted subsequent to the 30 perëent design, and 
also reviewed and discussed with the City and Owner's Representative at weekly 
design meetings included: 

• WAS Flow Control Sizing and Design Approach, October 6, 2011 

• Network Communications, November 1, 2011 

• Utilization of Existing Pumps and Drives, November 10, 2011 

• SCADA Public Works Remote Access Proposal, November 29, 2011, revised 
January 5, 2012 

• Aluminum Conductors for Large Feeders, December 7, 2011 

The Company has reviewed and commented on the City's proposed special inspection 
contract which will be executed between the Owner's Representative and the special 
inspection company. 

The Company prepared an easement request for ODOT which is needed for the outfall 
work. ODOT will likely issue a permit for this outfall modification rather than an 
easement. 

The Company selected Wildish Building Company as the prime construction 
contractor. This is documented in CAM -013 (see Attachment E). 

The Construction Date Conditions were verified and the binder was signed by the 
Company and the City on February 29, 2012. 

1.4 Permitting (Governmental Approvals) 
Attachment B lists all of the permits (Governmental Approvals) that have been 
identified for the Project construction. The status of each permit is given. The 
following permits have been obtained/issued/approved: 

File: 2651111031 	 SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC 5 



The following approvals have been issued to date: 

• Development Review Board Decision and Resolution No. 221 - dated 
December 1, 2011 - granting approval on request for a Stage 1 Preliminary Plan 
and waiver, Conditional Use Permit for Phases I and II, Willamette River 
Greenway Conditional Use Permit, Site Design Review (Phase I), and a Type 
'C' Tree Plan to upgrade the WWTP 

• DEQ Predesign Report Approval (with comments) - dated December 22, 2011 

• NPDES Stormwater Discharge Permit - dated December 27, 2011 

• Grading and Erosion Control Permit - dated January 27, 2012 

• 1200-CN - dated January 27, 2012 

The following applications have been submitted to the appropriate agency and are 
pending review and approval: 

• Joint Permit Application - DSL Removal/Fill Permit application for outfall 
work - decision expected March 8, 2012 

• Early Building Permit - Flow Control Structure 

• Early Building Permit - Plant Drain Pump Station 

• Early Building Permit - Secondary Process Facility 

• Demolition Permit 

• Tree Removal Permit 

An issue arose during the 60 percent design review workshop regarding the need for 
sprinklers to be included in the Dewatering and Drying (D&D) building. After 
extensive discussions with the Company, City staff and the Owner's Representative, 
the City's Building Official concluded that the classification of the building dictates 
that a sprinkler system is required and therefore must be installed as part of the 
Design-Build Work. As this is an issue of code interpretation, the City rejected a 
request by the Company to share the cost of this requirement. 

1.5 Changes and Clarifications to the DBO Agreement 
There are three mechanisms used for changes or clarifications to the DBO Agreement 
related to the Design-Build Work. 2 A DBO Agreement Amendment (DAA) is a 
written amendment to the DBO Agreement which is duly authorized, approved or 
ratified by the City (as and to the extent required by Applicable Law) and duly 
authorized by the Company. 

A Change Orders (CO) is a type of DAA which specifically is a written order issued 
by the City and agreed to in writing by the Company making a Design and 
Construction Requirement Change, whether made at Company request, due to 
Uncontrollable Circumstances, as a result of a term or condition imposed by a 
Governmental Body, or at the direction of the City. COs are generally used to make a 
Fixed Design-Build Price Adjustment, an adjustment to the Scheduled Acceptance 

6 SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC Project Performance Report ihru February 2012 FINAL.docx 3/5/12 



Project Performance Report - September 2011 through February 2012 

Date or other change to the Technical Specifications relating to the Design-Build 
Work. 

A Contract Administration Memorandum is the principal formal tool for the 
administration of routine matters arising under the DBO Agreement between the 
parties that do not require a DBO Agreement Amendment (see subsection 17.4(B) 
(Contract Administration Memoranda) of the DBO Agreement for more information). 

1.5.1 DBO Agreement Amendments 
Attachment C lists the DAA initiated to date, along with a brief description and 
indication of its current status as of the date of this report. 

1.5.2 Change Orders 
Attachment D lists the COs that have been initiated to date, along with a brief 
description and indication of the current status of each CO as of the date of this report. 
Executed CO-005 has an associated cost, which lowered the Fixed Design-Build Price 
by $8,000 as shown on the table. This resulted from the deletion of the Design and 
Construction Requirement for redundant communication at the Lift Stations as well as 
the elimination of redundant communication with process automation controller 
components at the WWTP. All of the executed COs are included on the attached CD. 

The draft CO-001 is expected to be revised and resubmitted by the Company to reflect 
all of the significant changes made to the Secondary Technical Criteria during design. 
Following recent negotiations with the City on cost estimates, the Company is 
currently preparing four additional Change Orders for City review which generally 
include: 

Water line bypass - Bypass around the City water meter at reuse pump station. 

Sewage influent line - Upsize and reroute the existing 15-inch-diameter 
influent sewage line to 18-inch-diameter. 

Sidewalk - Add sidewalk around Dewatering and Dryer (D&D) building and 
change access at Headworks to stairs. 

Ventilation in D&D and Gallery Buildings - Uncontrollable Circumstance due 
to Change in Law - National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 820 Change 
in Air Changes per Hour (ACH) for WWTP rooms. 

Administration 1uilding - Addition of automatic fire alarms and smoke 
detectors. 

1.5.3 Contract Administration Memoranda 
Attachment E lists the CAMs that have been initiated to date, along with a brief 
description and indication of the current status of each CAM as of the date of this 
report. All of the executed CAMs are included on the attached CD. 

File: 2651111031 	 SMC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC 7 



1.6 Schedule 

1.6.1 Current and Ongoing Activities 
• Final design work 

• HSSE Safety Training for anyone who plans to be on the WWTP site during 
construction 

• Additional permitting activities (see Attachment B) 

• Mobilization activities at the WWTP site 

• Development of draft Acceptance Test Plan and Hydraulic Test Plan 

• Development of additional COs identified in Section 1.5.2 

1.6.2 Unresolved Issues 
One unresolved issue related to the design work is that the Company is waiting for the 
City to determine which of the three remote access options for SCADA presented in 
the January 23, 2012 memorandum is preferred. 

1.6.3 Planned Activities 
• 	Final Design Documents March 12, 2012 

• 	Further refinements to the Company's planned construction Ongoing 
sequencing 

• 	Long lead time procurement items to be ordered Ongoing 

• 	Establishment of Construction Date and start of construction TBD 
activities 

• Groundbreaking Ceremony March 19, 2012 

• 	Monthly Construction Meeting March 22, 2012 

Initial construction activities will include tree removal and grading, yard piping 
changes, and demolition of the existing primary clarifiers. 

8 SAIC Energy, Environment & Infrastructure, LLC Project Performance Report thru February 2012 FINAL.docx 3/5/12 



Attachment A 
DESIGN-BUILD WORK SCHEDULE 

File: 2651111031 

	 SAlE. 



DBO Agreement for WWTP Improvements 

City of Wilsonville, Oregon 

Current Design-Build Work Schedule 

Updated: 3/2/2012 

2012 2013 1 2014 

3 1 4 1 5 1 6 ! 7 1 8 1 9 1 10 1 1112  112 1 3 1 4 1 5 1 6j7 1 8 1 9101112 

Existing Process Gallery 6/2/2012 10/11/2012 __________
It  

Stabilization Tank 7/10/2012 11/15/2012  

Blower Building 9/11/2012 12/4/2012  

Aeration Basin 3/16/2012 12/12/2012MME U I I U I I I 
Biofilter 8/8/2012 2/7/2013 I I I U I 
Cooling Tower and Pumps 7/2/2012 4/5/2013 • • 
Flow Control Structure 1/4/2013 4/11/2013 I I 
Filters 7/2/2012 4/11/2013 I I 
Operations Building 4/15/2013 5/24/2013  

Yard Piping 3/16/2012 7/25/201310 • • • I I U 
UV Disinfection 5/2/2012 7/30/2013 I NEJU I I U I I U 
Secondary Clarifier 1/4/2013 8/13/2013 I I I I I I U I 
Dewatering Building 7/1/2012 8/27/2013 I I I I I I I 
Sludge Storage/Digestion 1/2/2013 8/27/2013 1 I I U I I U I 
Headworks 12/27/2012 10/3/2013 U 1 II I I U I U 
Site Electrical 3/23/2012 10f18/201 I I I II I I I I I U I 
Sitework 1 	3/16/2012 1/14/201 i...ia.. 



Attachment B 
STATUS OF GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS 

File: 2651111031 

	 SAlE. 



DBO Agreement for WWTP Improvements 

City of Wilsonville, Oregon 

Status of Governmental Approvals 

Undated: 2I14/201 

Permitting Agency Permit or Approval 

I Anticipated 

Submittal 
Submittal 

Date 
Date  

Status 
Authorization 

Date 

City of Wilsonville Land Use Approvals 

Land Use Approvals  

Site Design Review 

Zone  

9/30/2011 - 	Approved w/ Conditions 11/28/2011 

Conditional Use Permit - Government Buildings in RA-H 9/30/2011 Approved w/ Conditionv 11/28/2011 

Conditional Use Permit - Willamette River Greenway 

Development  

9/30/2011 Approved w/ Conditions 11/28/2011 

Stage I Master Plan 	-- 	 - 

Type C Tree Removal Plan 

9/30/2011 

 9/30/2011 

9/30/2011 

Approved w/ Conditions 

Approved w/ Conditions 

11/28/2011 

11/28/2011 

Waiver for Street Improvement Standards: Sidewalks Approved w/ Conditions 11/28/2011 

Type C Tree Removal Permit  2/7/2012 Submitted 

Building Permits  

Grading & Erosion Control Permit  1/24/2012 Approved 1/27/2012 

-- Demolition Permit 	- 	- 	 - 	 - 

40- Secondary Process Facility 

2/7/2012 

 2/7/2012 

-- 

Submitted 

 Submitted  

53- Flow Control Structure  2/7/2012 Submitted  

07- Plant Drain Pump Station  2/7/2012 Submitted  

10- Headworks 4/4/2012  

78- Drying & Dewatering Building 4/4/2012  

82- Sludge Storage Basins & Biofilters 4/4/2012  

55 - Cooling Towers 4/4/2012  

70- UV Disinfection Channel 6/20/2012  

60- Disk Filters 6/20/2012  

50-Secondary Clarifier No. 3 6/20/2012  

Mechanical Permits  

10 - Headworks 	 J6/20/2012 

40- Secondary Process Facility 4/2/2012  

78- Drying & Dewatering Building 6/20/2012  

Plumbing Permits  

Site  4/2/2012  

10- Headworks  6/20/2012  

40- Secondary Process Facility  4/2/2012  

78 - Drying & Dewatering Building  6/20/2012  

Other  

1200-CN 

Public Works Permit 2/29/2012  

Approved 1/27/2012 

Clackamas County 

Electrical Permits  

Site Electrical/40 - Secondary Process Facility 3/7/2012  

07- Plant Drain Pump Station  4/2/2012  

78- Drying & Dewatering Building  4/2/2012  

53- Flow Control Structure 5/16/2012  

55-Cooling Towers 5/16/2012  

82- Sludge Storage Basins & Biofilters 5/16/2012  

10- Headworks 6/20/2012  

50-Secondary Clarifier No. 3 6/20/2012  

60 - Disk Filters 6/20/2012  

70- UV Disinfection Channel 6/20/2012 

State Permits  

Oregon Department of State Lands  

Joint Permit Application. Removal Fill 11/8/2011 submitted; public comment period 

closed - no comments; estimated 

approval date: 3/8/12 

Oregon Department of Environmental Quality  

NPDESStormwater Discharge Permit  submitted by city of Wilsonville 12/27/2011 

Air Contaminant Discharge Permit 4/4/2012 ___  

Predesign Report  10/25/2011 Approved with Comments 12/22/2011 



Attachment C 
STATUS OF DBO AGREEMENT AMENDMENTS 

File: 2651111031 

	 SAIC 



DBO Agreement for WWTP Improvements 
	

Approved/Complete 

City of Wilsonville, Oregon 
	

Rejected or Deleted 

Status of DBO Agreement Amendments (DAAs) 
	

BIC = Ball in Court 

Updated: 3/2/2012 
	

APP/CLO = Approved/Closed 

- Tracki Change to 

CO ng Contract Initiation Operating Date 

No. No. Name Reference Description Date BK Status/Comments Charge Complete 

le  Artic 	IX, 
CPI and ECI Adjustment Factors shall be based on 

1 NA CPI and ECI Adjustment factors subsections 
the average of the 12-month CPI or ECI values 

1/12/2012 CITY 
Approved. Signed by Bob and forwarded to the City for 

$0.00 

9.3(C( and (D( 
occuring in the calendar year (rather than signature on 3/2/12. 

Contract Year( preceding the Contract Year. 

	

Original Contract Year Operating Charge Prior to Acceptance Date: 	$1,395,605.01 

	

Total Change to Operating Charge: 	 $0001 

	

Revised Contract Year Operating Charge Prior to Acceptance Date: 	$1,395,605.01 



Attachment D 
STATUS OF CHANGE ORDERS 

File: 2651111031 

	 SAIC 



OBO Agreement for WWTP Impronements 
	

Approved/Complete 

City of Wilsonville, Oregon 
	

Rejected or Deleted 

Status of Change Orders (COs) 
	

SIC = Ball in Court 

Undated: 3/2/2012 
	

APP/CLO Aoroved/Closed 

CO Tracking Type Contract Initiation Change to Date 

No. No. (A, B, C, D) 1  Name Reference Detcription Date SIC Status/Comments DBO Price Complete 

City approves the substitution but has requested a cost 

Appendin 4, Substitution ofa flow control valve for (2) contract ettirnatefrorn CH for this change. 	CH2M to modify clraoge 
1 13 A WAS pumps 

Section 41 1 mandated WAS pumps. 
11/2/2011 CH2M 

order to include numerous other changes to Design and 

Constrrjction Requirements.  

CH proposes the use of TSHO light ballast in lieu of 

Appendix 4, 18 due to better lighting in high bay applications, 
2 15 A Lighting Ballast 11/2/2011 APP/dO Executed. $0.00 12/20/2011 

Section 4.4,15 less maiotenaoce, superior technology and smaller 

footprint  

Appendix 4 
Oregoo Energy Efficiency Specialty Code that says 

3 16 C Electrical Room Temperatures 	i a room should be designed toll degrees for 11/2/2011 APP/CLO Executed. $000 12/20/2011 
Section 	13 

cooling  

Requires building to be insulated. CH proposes 

4 14 A Oregon Energy Code - Grout 
Appendix fillingl/2ofblockcellswmthinsulationinlieuof 

11/2/2011 APP/dO Eoecuted. $000 

criteria 

12/20/2011 

 page 

S 42 A 
Redundant Neorb Redundaot communication is out necessa 	at the 

12/6/2011 APP/CLO Eoecuted. -$8,000.00 12/20/2011 
Comnroeications  

third paragraph) 
Lift Stations. 

Appendiu 4, 
Correcttypxth:tcalls for 2 grit cyclone-classifiers 

6 50 A Grit Cycloees 	 Section 4.1.1, 
q 

12/8/2011 APP/CLO Executed. $0.00 12/21/2011 

pageit-2 

I NA G dPI and Eq Adjuctmcnt ractors 

- 
tic c 

cubrcctiun: 

Pl and ECI Adjuctrncot Factors uhall be bared on 

'he average of the 12 month dPI or Eq values 

iccurinc in the culoedar year )rathcr than Contrac' 

'car) prcccding the Contract Year. 

1/12/2012 6444 CLOSED, Turned into DBO Agreenreot Amendment No.1 8WO NA 9.3(C 

Appeodin 4, 

8 NA 0 Electrical Construction Materials 
Section 4.4.15, Sections modified to reflect the actual CH2M HILL 

2/8/2012 CITY 
Approved. Signed by Bob and forwarded to the City for 

$000 
pages 4-26 and 4- design and also to clarify use of Type BX cables signature 003/1/12. 

27 

9  NewdityWaterMeter  CH2M 

10 18in WWTP Influent Sewer Line CH2M 

Additional Sidewalk around D&O 
CII21A 

Ventilation Uncontrollable 
12 

Circumstance )UC) 
CH2M 

13 Fire Alarm System in Ops Bldg  CH21V 

(1) Types of Change Orders. 

A - Changes Made at Company Rnqrrest 

B - Changes Made due to Uncontrollable Circumstances 

C - Changes Required by Governmental Bodies 

D - Changes Required by the City 

Original Contracted Design-Build Price: $35,707,414.00 

Total Change to Design-Build Price: 	-$8,000.00 

Renised Contract Amount: $35,699,414.00 

Wilsonville_Change_Leg . 2012-03-0S.olso Change Orders 	 1 of 1 	 3/5/2012 



Attachment E 
STATUS OF CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION MEMORANDA 

File: 2651111031 

	 SAIC 



080 Agreement for WWTP Improvements 
	

Approved/Complete 

City of Wilsonville, Oregon 
	

Rejected or Deleted to become a CC 

Status of Contract Administration Memorandums (CAM) 
	

BIC = Ball in Court 

Updated: 3/2/2012 
	

APP/CLO = Approved/Closed 

Trki 

CAM ng Contract Initiation Date 

No. 
- 

No. Name Reference Description Date BIC Status/Comments Complete 

1 

- 

4 
_________ 
t'crmitting 

ppendin 6, Table dodi fi cation of Table 6 1 to delete responsibility for 
REJECTED 

The City 	this cA.1 	 080 Contractor is 

12/3/2011 

rcjectt 	as unnecestar/. 

for identifying csponible 	 and obtaining all requircd permits 

md itu not 	 to 	Table 6 	 to 	the neceenary 	update 	 reflect 	current -4 
_____________ 
certain permitc 

10/31/2011 

list of permits.  

Section 10.3; 

Appendix 5, 

2 2 
Special 

Section 5.3.3; 
DBO Agreement is silent on who pays for special 

10/31/2011 APP/CLO Executed. 2/1/2012 
Inspe ct ions/Testing inspections to the entent such inspections are required. 

Appendix 7, 

Section_7.5.4  

CH2M HILL requests approval from the City to engage 

3 3 Power City Section 17.11 (B) Power City, who will provide Contract Services valued in 9/2/2011 APP/CLO Executed. 9/27/2011 

excess of $50,000  

Company is required to provide all temporary and 

4 4 
Use of existing T-1 - permanent Utilities needed in order to perform the Design- 9/1/2011 APP/CLO Executed. 9/27/2011 
telephone line 

Build Work and the Management Services, including but 

not limited to providing telephone lines 

Rolling Stock and Mobile Equipment needs lobe modified 

5 S Rolling Stock to include the addition of tractor and current values for 10/31/2011 APP/CLO Executed. 2/1/2012 

equipment where no vaue is stated 

Deletes the requirement for the Pre-Design Report 

6 6 
WWTP Site Plan for Appendix 6, 

submittal to include equipment data sheets related to the 9/29/2011 APP/CLO Executed. 2/1/2012 
Expansion to 7 mgd Section 6.4.1 

7 mgd enpansion 

7 44 Oregon Energy Code 
Ap__pend__in 1

___, _ 

Article 1.1.11 

tequires building to be insulated. CH 	filling 1/2 

11/2/2011 APPiitG6 CLOSED. Turned into COR-004 on 11/3/2011 11,13/2011 

proposes 

block eells 	inuIatipn in lieu 	being 	Mutt if 	 with 	 of 	grouted. 

We able to meet categsry 3 seismic 

B 44 
____ 
ighting Ba___llas

___ 
Lt 

Appendix 1, 

Article 1.1.15 

:u 	the 	T5HO light ballast in Iuie 	TB due proposes 	use of 	 of 

11/2/2011 ARP/GLQ CLOSED. Turned into COR-002 on 11/3/2011 11/3/2011 o better lighting in high bay applications, less 

naintneance, superior 	 and smaller technology 	 footprint 

9 4B 
Electrical Room 

Temperatures 

.,ppendin 1, 

Article 1.1.13 

'Trogon Energy Efficiercy Specialty Code that says a room 
ARP/GEQ 

sheuld be designed to 75 degrees for cooling  
CLOSED. Turned into COR-003 on 11/3/2011 11,'3/2011 11/2/2011 

CH2M HILL requests approval from the City to engage 

10 7 Greenworks Section 17.11 (B) Green Works, who will provide Contract Services valued in 9/20/2011 APP/CLO Executed. 9/27/2011 

excess of $50,000  

Appendix 3, 

11 NA 
E-coli Liquidated Tables 3-1 Clarification of trigger for permit violation and liquidated 

1/6/2012 APP/CLO Executed. 2/1/2012 
Damages through 3-4 and 3 damages for E-Coli samples. 

9 

CH2M HILL requests approval from the City to engage 

12 NA Wildish Section 17.11 (B) Wildish, who will provice Contract Services valued in 1/25/2012 APP/CLO Executed. 2/10/2012 

excess of $50,000  

MG Land Improvements 
CH2M HILL requests approval from the City to engage MG 

13 NA Section 17.11 (B) Land Improvements Company, who will provide Contract 2/20/2012 APP/CLO Executed. 2/23/2012 
Company 

Services valued in excess of $50,000 

Wilsonville_Change_Log_2012-03-05.nlsx CAM 	 1 of 1 	 3/5/2012 



Cily of 

WILSON VILLE 
in OREGON 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSESSION 
INFORMATION ITEM 

Water System Master Plan Update 

Meeting Date: March 19, 2011 	 Contact: Eric Mende, Deputy City Engineer 
Report Date: March 06, 2011 	 Contact Telephone Number: 503-570-1538 
Source of Item: Engineering 	 Contact E-Mail: mende@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

THERE IS NO RECOMMENDATION, THIS IS AN INFORMATION ITEM. 

BACKGROUND 

Council approved a $207,000 contract with Keller Associates for completion of a Water System Master 
Plan on February 7, 2011. The purpose of the Master Plan is to document the current condition and 
demand of the Water System, predict future demand, and evaluate the cost and timing of necessary 
operational, maintenance, and capital improvements over the next twenty years. The current plan is a 
major revision and update to the 2002 Water System Master Plan, which was completed before the 
Willamette River Water Treatment Plant began operation. 

The Draft Master Plan (Task 1) was submitted by the consultants for initial internal review on February 
27, 2012. The Draft Executive Summary is attached. 

Staff introduced the Master Plan and presented the Executive Summary to Planning Commission at a 
Work Session on March 14, 2012. A similar briefing to City Council will be presented March 19, 2012. 
The City's Project Manager will discuss the findings of the Master Plan, and brief Council on the input 
received from the Planning Commission as to the timing of Public Input (e.g., Open House and/or 
meetings). The target date for a formal Planning Commission Hearing is May 09, 2012, with 
consideration by Council in June or July of 2012 

KEY FINDINGS 

• Improvements to Wilsonville's water billing database since the year 2000 allowed the consultant 
to document actual water usage for 85% of current water demands. This had not been done 
previously and allowed much greater accuracy in estimating future demands. 

• Comparing current (2010) data to the estimated 2010 usage from the 2002 Master Plan showed 
that the 2002 Master Plan overestimated residential and commercial/industrial demand by 
approximately 107% and approximately 120% respectively. Interestingly, population estimates 
were within 5%. 

• Annual water demand has been dropping since a 2007 peak of 3.16 MGD. The 2010 Average 
was 2.82 MGD. 

• Pump Tests of the City's eight wells showed only one well (one of the Charbonneau wells) 
achieved sustainable yields at their rated (water right) capacities. None of the wells have been 
used for day-to-day water supply since the Water Treatment Plant came on-line in 2002. 

Council Work Session Report 03/19/I1 	 Page 1 of 2 



The Charbonneau storage reservoir and wells provide "extra" emergency capacity to the rest of 
the system, rather than vice versa, as previously thought. What this means is that under stand-
alone emergency conditions, the Charbonneau facilities are fully capable of providing the water 
demands of the Charbonneau area by themselves, however, the amount of future tankage needed 
for the rest of the City will be slightly higher than previously calculated. 
Based on the current analysis, estimated "unaccounted for" water (the difference between 
produced water and billed water) is approximately 15% - 17%. Industry standard is 10%. The 
likely cause appears to be in meter discrepancies rather than major leaks or unmetered taps. 
No major pressure or volume deficiencies were identified. Some older, smaller lines do need 
replacement to meet fire flow requirements. 

POLICY ISSUES 

• The methodology used to calculate future water demand does not meet Metro methodology for 
estimating growth in employment and population, but does not need to do so to meet 
Comprehensive Plan criteria. In the Master Plan, future water demands are based on estimated 
growth in households (for residential demand) and estimated growth in developed acreage (for 
commercial / industrial demand) instead of Metro estimates of population and employment. 

• To reduce estimated future storage needs (i.e., new water tanks) some (but not all) of the existing 
wells have been assumed to provide emergency water supply to the system. However, all wells 
need improvements (i.e., capital spending) in order to function as a reliable emergency supply. 

• For emergency supply calculations with the treatment plant off-line, water supply to the City of 
Sherwood is assumed to be zero. 

• All of the above issues tend to reduce the long range Capital Improvement estimate for the Water 
System. A lower Capital Improvement Estimate will reduce SDC and User Fee calculations 
contained in a revised Rate Study - to be performed subsequent to this Master Plan. 

NEXT STEPS 

Schedule Open House 
Determine scope/schedule of other public meetings 
Revised Draft (Rev. 2) for internal review 

ATTACHMENTS 

Draft Executive Summary 

Council Work Session Report 03/19/11 	 Page 2 of 2 



Wilsonville Water System Master Plan 	 DRAFT February 29, 2012 

Water System Master Plan 
Executive Summary 	 - - 

KELLER 
sesocietes 

ES.O EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Keller Associates, Inc. was commissioned in 2011 to complete a Water System Master Plan 
that would update the 2002 plan. This section summarizes the major findings of the updated 
master plan, including brief discussions of water system asset conditions and deficiencies 
and recommendations for improvements to the water distribution system. 

ES.1 DESIGN CONDITIONS 

ES.1 .1 Demographics 

The study area includes the area within the existing Urban Growth Boundary, 
plus portions of Clackamas and Washington County Urban Reserve Areas 
(URAs) expected to be incorporated into Wilsonville. These URA5 include 
Area 6 and Area 7 identified in the 20-Year Look (2008). The study area is 
intended to coincide with the ongoing Transportation System Plan update. 

Based on an evaluation of population projections from various sources, an 
annual residential growth rate of 2.9% was assumed. Both single family and 
multi-family dwelling units were assumed to grow at this rate until build-out of 
their respective parts of the study area. 

For nonresidential development, the number of employees in the study area 
was projected (per previous planning studies) to double over a 20-year period. 
This equates to an annual average nonresidential growth rate of 3.5%. In 
addition, three future large users were assumed. 

ES.1 .2 Water Demand 

Water production data from 2005 to 2009 was used to establish water demand 
patterns (due to current economic conditions, 2010 was not considered 
representative of normal usage). Table ES.1 shows the values used to 
estimate future demands. 

211010/3/11-254 	 Page ES-1 



Wilsonville Water System Master Plan 
	

DRA I I February 29, 2012 

TABLE ES.1 - Water Demands by User Type 

Average Annual Demand 

GPM/Household 	 247 	 162 	 - 	
- 

GPM/Acre 	 - 	 - 	 1.93 	 0.56 

Max Day Demand 

GPM/Household 	 606 	 283 	 - 	 - 

GPM/Acre 	
- 	

- 	 3.3 	 0.84 

For build-out, industrial demands were increased by an additional 25 percent 
to reflect redevelopment, additional infill, and higher water users within 
existing structures. Three large future industries (one at 0.5 mgd, and two at 
0.25 mgd) were also included in future water usage projections. 

The existing treatment plant and Wilsonville transmission and system will also 
provide supplemental potable water supply to the City of Sherwood. 

Table ES.2 summarizes the future demands for residential and nonresidential 
users, future industry, and supplemental supply for the City of Sherwood. A 
peaking factor of 1.7 (peak hour/peak day) was used to determine peak hourly 
demands. 

211010/3/11-254 	 Page ES-2 



Wilsonville Wafer System Masfer Plan 
	

DRAI I February 29, 2012 

TABLE ES.2 - Future Water System Demands 

Population 	 19,525 22,525 	25,986 	29,979 	34,585 52,400 

Households 	 7,873 9,083 	10,478 	12,088 	13,946 21,129 

RESIDENTIAL 

Average, mgd 	 1.70 1.96 	2.26 	2.60 	 3.00 4.21 

Peak Day, mgd 	 3.62 4.17 	4.82 	5.56 	6.41 8.74 

Peak Hour, mgd 	 6.16 7.10 	8.19 	9.45 	 10.9 14.86 

NONRESIDENTIAL 

Average, mgd 	 1.50 1.79 	2.12 	2.52 	 2.99 3.09 

Peak Day, mgd 	 3.08 3.66 	4.35 	5.16 	 6.13 6.35 

Peak Hour, mgd 	 5.24 6.23 	7.40 	8.79 	 10.4 10.80 

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS 

3 Future Large Industries 	0.00 0.50 	0.75 	1.00 	 1.00 1.00 

Sherwood 	 0.00 5.00 	5.00 	10.0 	 10.0 20.0 

TOTAL SYSTEM 

Average, mgd 	 3.20 9.24 	10.1 	16.1 	 13.0 28.3 

Peak Day, mgd 	 6.70 13.3 	14.9 	21.7 	 22.5 36.1 

Peak Hour, mgd 	 11.4 18.8 	21.3 	29.2 	 32.3 46.7 

ES.2 WATER SYSTEM EVALUATION 

The City of Wilsonville's primary supply comes from the Willamette River. A state- 
of-the-art treatment plant produces high-quality finished water that is pumped into a 
63-inch transmission pipeline and conveyed to the City's distribution system through 
three delivery points ("turnouts"). The system also includes four storage reservoirs, 
two booster stations, over 107 miles of distribution pipeline, three pressure zones, 
and eight wells. 

211010/3/11-254 	 Page ES-3 



Wilsonville Water System Master Plan 
	

DRAFT February 29, 2012 

ES.2.1 Storage 

The City's four existing storage reservoirs provide 7.6 million gallons (MG) of 
effective storage. With an additional 1.1 MG available in the treatment plant 
clearwell, the system provides a total of 8.7 MG effective storage. Storage in a 
water system is provided for operational flexibility, to meet peak demands in 
excess of the source capacity, for fire flows, and for emergency conditions. 
Based on a worst case scenario (no backup wells to supplement storage 
water during a two-day emergency event), the total storage required is 
anticipated to increase from 9 MG to almost 18 MG by 2030. 

The City is proceeding with an initial 3.0 MG storage reservoir near the 
intersection of Tooze and Baker Road. This reservoir will provide sufficient 
storage for the City's needs provided that the City continues to maintain the 
majority of the existing backup wells (i.e. all but Nike and Canyon Creek wells) 
to offset emergency storage needs. 

ES.2.2 Pumping 

The Charbonneau Booster Station and the B-to-C Booster Station are 
currently the only two pumping facilities in the distribution system. The 
Charbonneau Booster Station runs only periodically because the 
Charbonneau District can usually receive needed flows and pressures through 
the connection to the main distribution system (Zone B). The B-to-C Booster 
Station works together with the C Level Reservoir to meet the pressure and 
flow needs of the C Level pressure zone. No additional booster pumping is 
required, but several upgrades to the existing booster stations are 
recommended. 

ES.2.3 Distribution System 

The distribution system was evaluated in terms of physical condition, water 
pressure, and capability to provide fire flows. 

Physical Condition 

Most of the pipe materials are ductile iron or cast iron, which can have a life of 
75-100 years in non-aggressive soil environments. However, recurring 
problems have been reported with some cast iron pipe - particularly those 
sections installed in the 1970s (approximately 32,800 feet of pipeline). These 
problematic pipeline sections are recommended for replacement within the 
next 20 years. In addition, small diameter steel and concrete pipe sections 
may need to be replaced, since these pipe materials are generally in poorer 
condition. Replacement of 34,500 feet of pipe over the next 20 years is 
recommended; this would involve replacing an average of 1,725 feet of pipe 
per year. 

In addition to the pipeline sections that need to be replaced, the City has 
identified 40 fire hydrants that need replacing. Hydrant and pipeline 
replacement projects should be coordinated with each other and with planned 
street repairs wherever possible to minimize costs. Replacements should also 
be coordinated with the Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue. 

211010/3/11-254 	 Page ES-4 



Wilsonville Waler System Master Plan 
	

DRAFT February 29, 2012 

Keller Associates recommends that the City continue their meter testing and 
replacement program, and expand the residential meter testing program to 
include a representative sample (100±) each year. 

Fire Flows 

Based on water system modeling, there are about 55 locations in the system 
that cannot currently meet the established fire flow standard (1500 gpm 
residential, 3000 gpm commercial/industrial). 

Pressure 

Water system modeling shows that much of the water system will typically 
experience water pressure greater than 80 psi. In these areas, individual 
pressure regulators are recommended for all connections. Where mainline 
pressures will be more than 120 psi, special piping is recommended. There 
are also some areas of low pressure in the northern portion of the system. 
While none of the areas are less than 40 psi, these may be areas the 
operations crew should monitor as the system continues to evolve. 

Other Issues 

Other system vulnerabilities and inefficiencies were found while evaluating the 
existing water system. Improvements were recommended to address these 
issues. 

One of the vulnerabilities discovered in Wilsonville's system was single line 
connections to large parts of the system. In the event that the single line were 
to rupture, the entire downstream area would be without water. Looping is 
recommended. 

Another vulnerability found in the system was hydrant coverage shortage in 
several of the more populated sections of the water system (based on a 
maximum service area radius of 300 feet from the hydrant). Hydrants, and in 
some cases new or upsized pipelines, are proposed to provide adequate 
coverage in the evaluated areas. 

ES.2.4 Wells 

The City owns and maintains eight potable groundwater wells that once 
supplied all of the City's drinking water. Since the completion of the water 
treatment facility, these wells serve only as an emergency backup water 
supply. Keller Associates reviewed the well conditions, water rights status, 
availability of standby power, and water quality with City staff to prioritize 
which well facilities warrant upgrades and continued maintenance, and which 
ones should be considered for abandonment (or conversion to nonpotable 
wells that could provide local irrigation needs). 

Given the potential for the Charbonneau District to become isolated from the 
remainder of the system, it was felt that the two Charbonneau wells should be 
maintained as a critical backup supply source. Keller Associates recommends 
that the Canyon Creek and Nike wells be removed from the potable water 

211010/3/11-254 	 Page ES-5 



Wilsonville Water System Master Plan 
	

DRAFT February 29, 2012 

system. Because of the significant expense to upgrade Caiiyon Creek well 
and its questionable capacity, it may be more cost effective to just abandon 
this well. As for the Nike well, Keller Associates recommends that the well be 
preserved for local irrigation purposes. Costs are presented for improvements 
that would be needed to maintain the all but the Canyon Creek well. 

ES.2.5 Treatment Overview 

The Willamette River Water Treatment Plant (WRWTP), completed. in 2002, is 
owned by the City of Wilsonville and the Tualatin Valley Water Control District. 
Most of the existing treatment plant is rated for 15 mgd, with portions capable 
of handling 70+ mgd. Though a detailed treatment study was outside the 
scope of this master plan, hydraulics and process capacities were analyzed. 

The only limitation of the treatment plant relative to its capability to handle 15 
mgd was in the clearwell storage volume needed to meet disinfection 
requirements. For disinfection purposes, the capacity of the clearwell was 
determined to be 12 MGD for the summer and 7 MGD for the winter (at a 
chlorine dose of 1 mgIL). Several options were presented for expanding the 
clearwell capacity to 15 MCD. A more comprehensive water treatment study is 
to be conducted at a later time. 

The high service pump station pulls water from the clearwell and delivers it to 
the City through a 63-inch diameter transmission line. A power failure can lead 
to surge conditions if the pumps were to suddenly stop while delivering flows 
between 12.5 :t0 15 MGD. A 750 cubic foot hydropneumatic tank is 
recommended to mitigate against transient surge damage. 

ES.3 RECOMMENDATIONS 

ES.3.1 Capital Improvement Plan 

The recommended improvements resulting from the system evaluation are 
presented in this section by priority. These improvements are necessary to 
meet the available fire flow standards, provide hydrant coverage, address 
hydraulic restrictions, correct deficiencies in the physical condition of the 
existing system components, increase system storage capacity, and provide 
reliable backup well capability. Also included are the development-driven and 
City-identified capital improvement projects. 

Prioritization of the improvements was developed in consultation with City 
staff. 

Priority 1 improvements (Table ES.3) represent more urgent facility and 
pipeline improvements, and projects to increase fire flows that are currently 
less than 1,000 gpm. These improvements are recommended within the next 
5-10 years. Priority 2 improvements (Table ES.4) are those that will likely 
happen within the next 20 years, and include lower priority facility upgrades 
and replacements, and projects to improve fire flows currently between 1,000 
and 1,500 gpm. Hydrants needed for residential area coverage not tied to a 
Priority I improvement, are considered Priority 2: 

211010/3/11-254 	 Page ES-6 



Wilsonville Water System Master Plan 
	

DRAFT February 29, 2012 

Priority 3 improvements (Table ES.5) include future facility replacements and 
pipeline improvements, to be implemented when needed as development or 
redevelopment occurs. These may include improvements intended to correct 
marginal fire flow deficiencies, to address poor hydrant coverage in developed 
industrial/commercial areas, or to provide water to currently unserviced areas 
(future distribution piping item in Table ES.5) 

Each improvement is assigned a numeric identifier which corresponds to the 
Capital Improvement Plan map (Appendix A). The primary purpose for the 
recommended improvements is also noted in the capital improvement tables, 
along with an opinion of probable cost. 

The various improvements listed in the capital improvement plan may have a 
portion of the cost attributed to future growth because they are, at least in part, 
intended to benefit growth. Where this is the case, the incoming development 
or redevelopment is responsible for the growth portion of the cost. To assist in 
future system development charge evaluations, Keller Associates has 
estimated the portion of the improvement cost that could be attributed to 
growth. 

211010/3/11-254 	 Page ES-7 



Wilsonville Water System Master P)an 
	

DRAFT February 29, 2012 

TABLE ES.3 - Priority 1 Capital Improvements 

.1':,' 	 hem 	 Primary':.: 

Priority I Improvements (2012 - 2022) 
Water Supply 

(by 2017)  

100 Nike Well Rehab & Misc, lmprosements Maintenance $ 	30000 0% $ 	 - $ 	30,000 

101 Abandon Canyon Creek Well Maintenance $ 	26,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	26,000 

102 \Medeman Well Misc, Improsements Maintenance $ 	24,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	24,000 

103 Boeckman Well Rehab Pump Maintenance $ 	20,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	20,000 

104 Gesellschaft Building Maintenance Maintenance $ 	4,500 0% $ 	 - $ 	4,500 

105 Elligsen Well Compressor & Controls Maintenance $ 	8,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	8,000 

106 lPortable Flow Meter (for well tests) Operations $ 	13,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	13,000 

(by 2022)  

110 INike Well Telemetry& Misc. Improvements Operations $ 	35,000 32% $ 	11,300 $ 	23,700 

111 lMedeman Well Generator & Telemetry Operations $ 	98,000 12% $ 	11,300 $ 	86700 

112 Boeckman Well Telemetry Upgrade Operations $ 	26,000 43% $ 	11,300 $ 	14,700 

113 GesellschaftSCADA& Instrumentation Operations $ 	32,500 35% $ 	11,300 $ 	21,200 

114 Elligsen Well Instrumentation Operations $ 	20,000 29% $ 	5,700 $ 	14,300 

Water Storage 

(by 2017)  

120 1 Elligsen Res, - Replace Ladder Fall Protection System Compliance $ 	12,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	12,000 

121 C Level Reservoir Improvements Operations $ 	18,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	18,000 

122 Charbonneau Seismic Evaluation (current 2012 project) Maintenance $ 	35,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	35,000 

123 Charbonneau Reservoir Improvements Mainti Operations $ 	11,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	11,000 

124 Automated Valve at ToozeMfestfall (West Tank( Operations $ 	58000 100% $ 	58,000 $ 	 - 

125 3.0 Million Gallon Tank and 24-inch Transmission (West Tank) Growth $ 	5,840,000 100% $ 	5,840,000 $ 	 - 

126 lAItitude Valve (Elligsen West Tank) Operations $ 	31,000 100% $ 	31,000 $ 	 - 

(by 2022)  

127 Replace Sealant at Base of C Level Reservoir Maintenance $ 	7,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	7,000 

128 Charbonneau Reservoir Improvements Replacement $ 	13,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	13,000 

129 Charbonneau Seismic Upgrades Maintenance TBD 0% $ 	 - $ 	 - 

Booster Stations & Turnouts 

(by 2017)  

140 Charbonneau Booster PRV& SCADA Operations $ 	22,000 20% $ 	4,400 $ 	17,600 

141 B to C Booster Improvements Replacement $ 	21,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	21,000 

142 Painting & Safety Nets at Turnouts Maintenance $ 	22,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	22,000 

(by 2022)  

143 
Charbonneau Booster MCC & Flow Meter Vault 

Replacement] 
$ 	65,000 

Operations  
24% $ 	15,700 $ 	49,300 

144 1  Replace Cover on Burns PRV Replacement $ 	9,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	9,000 

Water Distribution Piping (by 2022) 

160 8-inch upgrade on Jackson St Fire Flow $ 	64,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	64,000 

161 8-inch upgrade on Evergreen St. Fire Flow $ 	83,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	83,000 

162 8-inch Loop N of Seely St. Fire Flow $ 	8,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	8,000 

163 18-inch Loop on Barber St. (Montebello to Kinsman) Growth $ 	371,000 100% $ 	371,000 $ 	 - 

164 10-inch Extension on Montebello St. Growth (School) $ 	217,000 100% $ 	217,000 $ 	 - 

165 48-inch Transmission on Kinsman St. (Barber to Boeckman( Growth $ 	3,960,000 100% $ 	3,960,000 $ 	 - 

166 8-inch Loop between Boberg St. & RR (north of Barber) Fire Flow $ 	78,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	78,000 

167 8-inch Loop on Boones Ferry (north of Barber) City Project $ 	19,000 0°!o $ 	 - $ 	19,000 

168 10-inch Loop (Appts E. of Canyon Creek/Burns) Fire Flow $ 	41,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	41,000 

169 8-inch Loop between Viahos & Canyon Creek Fire Flow $ 	42,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	42,000 

170 8-inch upgrade on Metolius cul-de-sac Fire Flow $ 	54,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	54,000 

171 8-inch Loop on Metolius private drive (City project) City Project $ 	20,000 0% 1 $ 	 - $ 	20,000 

172 8-inch Upgrade on Middle Greens - Charbonneau Hydrant Coverage $ 	68,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	68 000 

173 Fairway Village Hydrant on French Prairie - Charbonneau Hydrant Coverage $ 	10,000 0 1 !, $ 	 - $ 	10,000 

Total Prto,ity I Improvements  $ 	11,536,000 -- $10,548,000 $ 	988,000 

*C osts  are in 2012 dol(ars 

211010/3/11-254 	 PageES-8 



Wilsonville Water System Master Plan 
	

DRAF-f February 29, 2012 

TABLE ES.4 - Priority 2 Capital Improvements 

•i':, ' 	 i]ii 	 PrimaryIi.:.. 

' Priority 2 Improvements (by 2020- 2030) 

Water Supply 

200 Nike Well Building Impro vements Maintenance $ 	21,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	21,000 

201 Wedeman Well Building lmproements Maintenance $ 	28,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	28,000 

202 Boeckman Well Pump Motor& Building Improvements 
Replacement/ 
Maintenance 

$ 	21,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	21,000 

203 Gesellschaft Well Generator& Building Improvements 
Maintenance/ 
Operas ons 

$ 	90,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	90,000 

204 Elligsen Well MCC upgrade & Building Improvements 
Replacementl 
Maintenance 

$ 	22,000 25% $ 	5,400 $ 	16,600 

205 Charbonneau Well Mechanical Building Operations $ 	81,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	81,000 

Water Storage 

220 Paint Elligsen Reservoirs Maintenance $ 	460,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	460,000 

221 Paint C Level Reservoir Maintenance $ 	180,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	180,000 

222 Reseal Charbonneau ReservoirRoofCoating Maintenance $ 	11,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	11,000 

Booster Stations & Turnouts 

240 Relocate ParkwayPRV Replacement $ 	75,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	75,000 

241 Mater Valve at Vitlsonville Rd turnout City Project $ 	118,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	118,000 

Water Distribution Piping 

260 10-inch Extension on 4th St (E of Fir) Fire Flow $ 	69,000 7% $ 	4,900 $ 	64,100 

261 8-inch Loop - Magnolia to Tauchman Fire Flow $ 	59,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	59,000 

262 8-inch Upgrade on Olyoipic cul-de-sac Fire Flow $ 	44,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	44,000 

263 8-inch Loop near Kinsman/Wlsonvlle Fire Flow $ 	36,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	36,000 

264 10-inch Loop near Kinsman/Gaord Fire Flow $ 	82,000 6% $ 	5,200 $ 	76,800 

265 8-inch Upgrade on Lacelot Fire Flow $ 	100,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	100,000 

266 Fire Hydrants (main City) Fire Flow $ 	119,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	119,000 

267 Fire Hydrants (Charbonneau) Fire Flow $ 	46,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	46,000 

268 8-inch Loop near Kinsman (between Barber& Boeckman) Fire Flow $ 	126,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	126,000 

269 8-inch Upgrade near St Helens Fire Flow $ 	26,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	26,000 

270 8-inch Loop near ParkwayCenterlBurns Fire Flow $ 	66,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	66,000 

271 8-inch Loop near Burns/Canyon Creek Fire Flow $ 	110,000 1 0% $ 	 - $ 	110,000 

272 10 & 8-inch Loop near Parkway/Boeckman Fire Flow $ 	315,000 4% $ 	12,600 $ 	302,400 

273 12-inch Loop crossing Boeckman City Project $ 	16,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	16,000 

274 8-inch Loop at Holly/Parkway City Project $ 	56,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	56,000 

275 8-inch upgrade on Wallowa Fire Flow $ 	62,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	62,000 

276 8-inch Upgrade on Miami Fire Flow $ 	68,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	68,000 

277 8-inch Extension for fire flow on Lake Bluff - Charbonneau Fire Flow $ 	63,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	63,000 

278 8-inch Upgrade on Arbor Glen - Charbonneau Hydrant Coverage $ 	92,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	92,000 

279 8-inch Loop at Fairway Village - Charbonneau Fire Flow $ 	42,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	42,000 

280 8-inch Extension for fire flow - private drive/Boones Bend - Charbc Fire Flow $ 	18,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	18,000 

281 8-inch Upgrade on East Lake - Charbonneau Fire Flow/Hydrant $ 	187,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	187,000 

282 8-inch Extension for fire flow on Armitage - Charbonneau Fire Flow $ 	55,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	55,000 

283 8-inch Upgrade on Lake Point- Charbonneau Hydrant Coverage $ 	56,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	56,000 

284 8-inch Loop - Franklin Stto Carriage Estates Quality $ 	94,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	94,000 

285 8-inch Upgrade on Bonners Ferry Rd (south of 2nd St( Replacement $ 	44,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	44,000 

286 Valves at Commerce Circle & Ridder Rd/Bonners Ferry 1-5 Cross Operations $ 	44,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	44,000 

287 Replace service lines - ParkwayAve City Project $ 	77,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	77,000 

288 Replace service lines - Wlson cul-de-sacs City Project $ 	227,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	227,000 

289 Replace service lines - Mariners Drive - Charbonneau City Project $ 	22000 0% $ 	 - $ 	22,000 

290 Replace service lines - Old Town City Prolect $ 	15000 0% $ 	 - $ 	15,000 

Total Prionty2 Improvements $ 	3,543,000 $ 	28,100 $ 3,514,900 

0Costs are in 2012 dollars 

211010/3/11-254 	 Page ES-9 



Wilsonville Wafer System Master Plan 
	

DRAFJ February 29, 2012 

TABLE ES.5 - Future Capital Improvements 

Future Improvements (beyond 2030) or Development Related Improvements 

Water Supply  

300 Nike Well - Replace MCC Replacement $ 	15,000 43% $ 	6,500 $ 	8,500 

301 Wedeman Well MCC & Building lmproements Maintenance $ 	18,000 33% $ 	5,900 $ 	12,100 

302 Gesellschaft Well Building Improsements Maintenance $ 	5,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	5,000 

Water Storage 

320 JPaint Elligsen Reser'oirs Maintenance $ 	310,000 0% $ 	 - $ 	310,000 

321 IPaint C Lesel Reser'oir Maintenance $ 	115.000 0% $ 	 - $ 	115,000 

Water Distribution Piping  

360 16-inch \Mllamette Riser Crossing to Charbonneau District Operations $ 	1,532,000 $ 	 - $ 	1,532,000 

361 Zone D Booster Station at 82nd St Tanks Operations $ 	609.000 100% $ 	609,000 $ 	 - 

362 Upsize costs for future distribution piping Growth $ 	9,659.000 100% $ 	9,659,000 $ 	 - 

- TolPtomj31mprovemonts  $ 	12,263,000 $10,260,400 $ 1,9$2,*' 

- 	TOTALWASTEiNATERIMP)VBtBlTSCOSTS(reund.d)  $ 	27,342,000 $20,856,500 $ 6,485,500 

*C osts  are in 2012 dollars 

ES.3.2 Operations and Maintenance Recommendations 

In addition to the capital improvement projects identified in the preceding 
tables, there are several larger routine maintenance activities, recurring 
management related projects, and ongoing replacement/rehabilitation 
activities that should be completed. These activities are summarized in the 
following table. Keller Associates recommends that future user rate 
evaluations consider needed capital improvements as well as future increases 
in maintenance and replacement budgets. 

TABLE ES.B - Recurring Maintenance Costs 

Wash exterior of aboveground reservoirs 	 $5,000/each 

Clean and inspect interior of reservoirs 	 $5,000/each 

Pipeline and valve replacement (to be coordinated 	$ 173,000 
with planned street improvements) 

Meter replacement 	 $ 	50,000 

Hydrant replacement 	 $ 	30,000 

Well hole rehabilitation 	 $15,000-$20,000 

GIS and water model updates 	 $ 	6,000 

Water Master Plan update 	 $ 150,000 

Water Management and Conservation Plan (WMCP) 	$ 	20,000 

WMCP progress reports 	 $ 	5,000 

Every 5 years 

Every 10 years 

Annual recommended budget for 
20-year planning period 

Annual recommended budget 
(assumes 20-year life) 

Annual recommended budget 

Annual budget (includes all wells) 

Recommended annual budget for 
3rd party support 

Every 5 years 

Every 10 years, beginning 2022 

Every 10 years, beginning 2017 

211010/3/11-254 	 PageES- lO 



H 
r 

Current Configuration 

Q 4? 
1/ 

WilsonviHe Road 

[T 
	

/ 

1/ 

Date 	 March 16 2012 

29799WTownCenterLoopEast 	 Wilsonville Road Lane Shifting Scale: 

Wilsonville OR 97070 	 Drawn By: _ 
503-682-4960 	 Current Configurat ion 	Date Plotted: _Mrcft1.,2Q12 

FAX (503)682-7025 	
Drawing Name:aieik 19__1 

fr) 



March 26 Configuration 

C 
C 
o 

C 
C 
0 Y C t 

o 0 
Cl) Z 

41  

= 
ng 

/1 

Ii 

/ 

	

/ 	Msg 

	

/ 	
Board 

co 
/ 

/ 

If 

Electronic 
Message Board 

WilsonvUle Road 

I 
(% 

1, \ 

\ 

City of Wilsonville Date: 2012 

29799 SW Town Center Loop East \J\fj I son vi lie Road Lane S hi fti fl g c  S ale: N.T.S. 	- 	- - - - 
Wilsonville OR 97070 DrawnBy: SJ 	- 

503-682-4960 IVlarch 26, 2012 Date Plotted: March 	16, 2012 
FAX (503)682-7025 

I  Drawing Name: WiIsonviIIedExhibit3_1 9_iZ 



Basalt Creek Transportation 
Refinement Plan 

Wilsonville City Council Work S 

March 19, 2012 



Planning Proc -ess Overview 

• Purpose: 

- Determine the major transportation network 

(including a SW 124th  Avenue Extension) 

- Determine future interface options with 1-5 

- Allow Concept Planning to proceed 



Planning Process Overview 

• Agency Approved Evaluation: 

- Costs (construction, ability to fund improvements) 

- Ability to phase improvements 

- Support for development 

- Impacts (environmental, right-of-way, etc.) 

- Consistency with RIP 

- Iraffic operations 



Phasing: 2020 

SWNOOTKAST 	 RD 	T f 	—a 
ARK :1 	 1 	I  

	

) 	 3-lane 124th  Extension__UIN 	LOOP 	RD 	LN 

	

Tonquin 	Grahams Ferry/Tonquin  

& 	: 	WALDO 	TONQUIN PL 	 Improvement 	
/ 

	

I 	 / 	- 	A 	/1 

	

QA/ 	TCiniij 

 

 - 	

- CLAY 	 ST 	

3-lane Boones Ferry Road 	
cr UP 

	

3-lanejonquin 	

eGrahamsFerryRoad 
 

- 	 - 
Improvement 

\ 	,. 	( ' 	- 	 DAY 	- 	T 

Legend 	

-- 	 r 	-1'Td 	- 	lONEER 

Contour-5 	
- 	 CT 	

SW SALISH 	LN 
Wetland 	

\ 
	 OERCE C.\ 

-10 Floodplain 

Te3Areas 	 J 	0 

- 	 0 	 I 
Parls 

ELLIGN - 	
-=--t 	ELLIC• 



Phasing: 2030 
I 5-lane 124th  Extension Options I 

s'A/ 

SWNOOTKAST 	 RD ST 

	

WHITEBARK 	 L.L 
SW c' 

TONQUIN 	LOOP 	RD 	LN 

Tonquin 
TONQLf 5-lane Tonquin Road 

T()Nillij" 	RD 

w GREENHILL LN 
A 

flow  

WALDO WY 

A ~ 

5-lane Boones Ferry 

S lane East-West facility 	ST_  

- 	 BFR/Commerce 

a 	 Access control 
rn 4 	 I 
Legend 	 : 	 DAY •.cT 	

- 	 /1 
Phasing 	 H 
-- East-West Concept 	 - 	 5-lane Day;ad 	 9NEER 

Diagonal Concept 	
ERCE 	 __ 	

SALISH LN 

Both Concepts 	 " '

UIA 3-lane 1-5 SB turn lane 

ELLIGSEN 	Kinsman R 	 improvement 



Overcrossing Concepts: 2035 

SW NOOTKA ST 	 RD
WHITE:ARK' 	 A SW 	TONQUIN 	LOOP 	RD 	LN 

Tonquin 
WALDO WY 	TONQUIN PL 	

FEast-West alignment to Stafford area 

CIO 

— 	

, 1 — — — — — — — — — — — — — — 

0 

CLAY 	 ST 

co 

CAHALIN 	 — 

QI, 

—PIONEER 

Day or Diagonal alignment to 	 SW S 	LN 

Elligsen Road 

(fl 	 \ - 	 (_) 
/7 

ELLIGSEr4 	 L\__T 	°' 	ELLIG WI&V 

(7 

0 

Legend 

Contour - 5 

Wetland 

Floodplain 

Title 3 Areas 

Parks 

0106006 060 600 000 l,1L.1.110 1400 



2035 Overcrossing Option A: 

Day to Parkway Center 

I 
I -.-- 

I 

s 

;J1 
I. $ 

luIp' .  

104 *0 
7 

Ir  - 

r7ç 

4 
1• 

-. 

po5ed Brdge 

• 
Slope Unt - Cut  

SlopeLine - F; 

Orpnai Ground 

Fisn Gcde Prc',p 

i  

I 3 	 EIIigsen R 
	

AA 
	

I. 

) 
	

__e 



2035 Overcrossing Option B: 

Day to Canyon Creek 

A 
'e 8tdQe 

•: ; 	WO5 

Prcxs4 Trf Ic S;QPd 

Sloc. Ut,. - 00 

S. Lfrie - F,*If  

Or;OfW Groimd Ling  

FInish Grod. Prcf lie 

Ilk  

ii 

I
.  

;.p 
•.-ir 	4 

;. 
:1 

d:: 	 •j 

Road 	r- 
- — -. 

• 



East -West Lowest -Cost Alignment 
0 2W 4W IOO.  MW 	 Basalt Creek Preliminary Design - East-West Connector 	 jany2012 

CO 

LLL 

• 	4 I 	ii 	k ____ 	 ______ 

-t___'- • 

___ '- 	 ________ 	 •'- 

S.. 	 / 

__ 	 'I 	
4'• 	 "NW!' 

a 
I 	 -

41 

Proposed 8ridge 	 AV 

, 

Pote,,ro(RetojninqWops 	••\.\ 	 1 	 ' " Sa.-- . 	
I 

40 

IL 

Finsh Grode Prof e 
 

0 



Ongoing Policy Questions 

• Full estimated project costs (including right of 

way) and jurisdictional funding responsibility 

• MSTIP Project Phasing 

• Right of Way Preservation 

• Clackamas County coordination 

• Items that will need to be addressed in Concept 

Planning (stormwater, local access, City Limits, 

etc.) 



Next Steps 

• TWG Meeting - March 22nd  (review 
evaluation) 

• PAG Meeting - April 26th  (review evaluation) 

• Public Outreach (review'evaluation) 

• TWG Meetings — May (findings/ 

recommendations) 

• PAG Meetings —June (recommendations) 



CITY COUNCIL ROLLING SCHEDULE 

Board and Commission Meetings 
2012 

MARCH 

Date Day Time Event Place 

3/26 Monday 6:30 p.m. DRB Panel B Council Chambers 

3/28 Wednesday 6:30 p.m. Library Board Library 

APRIL 

Date Day Time Event Place 

412 Monday 7 p.m. City Council Meeting Council Chambers 

4/9 Monday 6:30 p.m. DRB Panel A Council Chambers 

4/11 Wednesday 6 p.m. Planning Commission Council Chambers 

4/12 Thursday 6:30 p.m. Parks & recreation 
Advisory_Board  

Council Chambers 

4116 Monday 7 p.m. City Council Meeting Council Chambers 

4/25 Wednesday 6:30 p.m. Library Board Library 

4/30 Monday 7 p.m. Budget Committee 
Meeting  

Council Chambers 

May 3 Thursday 7 p.m. Budget Committee 
Meeting  

Council Chambers 

COMMUNITY EVENTS 

April 7— 10 a.m. Easter Egg Hunt Memorial Park Ball Fields 

April 20 - 7:30 p.m. Middle School Dance (Last dance of the school year) 

April 24 - Earth Day 2012 Celebration 

CITY COUNCIL ROLLING SCHEDULE 	 PAGE 1 
Items known as of 03/09/12 	 n:cityre\rolling\RollingSchedule 



Wilsonville City Council 
Liaison Responsibilities for 2012 

Updated March 5, 2012 

Mayor 
Knapp 

Celia 
Nññez 

Steve 
Hurst 

Richard 
Goddard 

Scott 
Starr 

Primary_Liaison_Responsibilities  
Chamber of Commerce - Leadership  X  

Chamber of Commerce - Board X 
DRB  X 

Library  X  X  
Parks & Recreation  X  

Planning Commission  X  
WCSI  x 

County_Liaison_Responsibilities  
Clackamas County Business Alliance  X  

WashingtonlClackamas County Coordinating Committee X Alternate  
West Side Business Alliance X 

Regional_Partners for Economic_Development  

N:\City  Recorder\Board & Commission Roster\Liaison Responsibilities 2012.docx 



City of 	 l!II 

WILSON VILLE 
in OREGON 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
INFORMATION ITEM 

Communications 

Meeting Date: March 19, 2012 
	

Contact: Peggy Watters 
Report Date: March 6, 2012 

	
Contact Telephone Number: 503-570-1579 

Source of Item: Community Services 
	 Contact E-Mail: watters@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

THERE IS NO RECOMMENDATION, THIS IS AN INFORMATION ITEM. 

BACKGROUND 

The Tourism/Match Grant program is administered by the Community Services Department. This annual 
grant award makes funding from the Transient (Hotel/Motel) Tax available to local non-profit 
organizations for the purpose of programs, projects or events that enhance the livability of the community 
through civic engagement, cultural and historic events, public entertainment and other activities that serve 
to draw visitors into the City, and to support local businesses. The City provides $25,000 annually for this 
grant program. 

Notice of the Tourism/Match Grant packet is posted in December on the City website and through press 
releases to the local media. The deadline for applications is the first Friday of February. 

The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board serves as the citizen review board for the city grant programs. 
The board will be meeting on March 8, 2012 to review grant applications. Representatives of the 
applicant organizations are invited to attend this meeting to make a brief presentation to the board 
regarding additional information in support of their project. The results of the board's decision are 
followed by letters to the organizations and press releases to the media announcing the grant awards. 

In the past several years, the City Council has requested the opportunity to present the grant award checks 
to the organizations at a Council meeting. The current grant awards will be made at the upcoming March 
19, 2012 meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A total of 5 applicants, with a total request amount of $27,155 was submitted for the current fiscal year 
grant funds. 

The applicants for the 2011-2012 fiscal year Tourism/Match Grant funding include: (See table of 
applicants below) 

Council Agenda Report 	 Page 1 of 2 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\3  1912 Council Packet materials\Parks & Recreation Board Report 3.19.1 2.doc 



Community Services Tourismfl\/latch Grant 
Application/Award Log 

2011-2012 
Organization Event $Reguest $Award 
Wilsonville Rotary Foundation Summer Concert Series $8,230 
Curt Kipp, Past Pres. TBA 
P.O. Box 362 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 - 
curtek@gmail.com  

Wilsonville Arts & Culture Council Festival of the Arts $5,000  
Theonie Gilmore, Executive Dir. June 2,3, 2012 
P.O. Box 861 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 
Theonie@WilsonvilleArts.org  

Wilsonville Celebration Days Fun in the Park Festival $8,000  
Bob Woodle, Marketing Dir. August 4, 2012 
P.O.Box 1511 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 
bobwoodle@centurytel.net  

Wilsonville Kiwanis Club Kiwanis Kids Fun Run $4,000  
Gary Wappes, Treasurer July 28, 2012 
29030 SW Town Center Loop Ste. 
202-256 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 
lzwappes@gmaii.com  

Wilsonville-Boones Ferry Hist.Soc. Wilsonville History Exhibits $1,925  
Mick Scott, Project Chair 
32370 SW Arbor Lake Drive 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 
mickps@aol.com  

TOTALS 5 APPLICANTS $27,155 

Council Agenda Report 	 Page 2 of 2 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\31912  Council Packet materials\Parks & Recreation Board Report 3.19.12.doc 



Cily of 

WILSON VILLE 
in OREGON 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Revise Metro Local Share Project List 

Meeting Date: March 19, 2012 
	

Contact: Kerry Rappold 
Report Date: March 9, 2012 

	
Contact Telephone Number: 503-570-1570 

Source of Item: CD/Natural Resources Program 
	 Contact E-Mail: rappold@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

ISSUE STATEMENT 
In order to provide adequate funding for the development of Engelman Park in the Montebello neighborhood, 
staff requests a revision to the list of Metro Local Share projects approved by the City Council on February 28, 
2006. The Local Share funding would be shifted from the Boeckman Creek Trail project, which is dependent on 
the future design and improvements associated with the Boeckman Creek sewer line (CIP Project 2045). Due to 
the delays in completing the sewer line design and the corresponding impact to the Boeckman Creek Trail, it will 
not be possible to meet Metro's funding deadline of March 31, 2013 without receiving an extension. Engelman 
Park construction will start in May and be completed by August 2012, and, therefore, fits within the funding 
window. 

The City received a $200,000 grant from Oregon Parks and Recreation Department (OPRD) to design and 
develop Engelman Park. The neighborhood park will include trails, native plantings, play structure, natural play 
area, benches, picnic shelter, and a lawn area. The design for Engelman Park was approved by the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board on December 8, 2011, and subsequently approved by the Development Review Board 
on February 27, 2012. 

The preliminary cost estimate for Engelman Park exceeds the OPRD grant amount, and will need to be 
augmented with the Local Share funding. Metro staff has approved the reallocation of the Local Share funding to 
Engelman Park. 

BACKGROUND 
In November 2006, Metro received voter approval for a Greenspaces Bond Measure that was similar in many 
ways to the 1995 bond effort. The bond amount was $227 million dollars and included three distinct pots of 
funding for different project types. The bond measure identified $168 million dollars for continued acquisition in 
regional target areas like the Tonquin Scablands and the Willamette River Greenway, $15 million dollars for a 
regional matching grant program that would allow for non-profit organizations to partner on a wide variety of 
projects and $44 million dollars for Local Share projects. 

The Local Share money is passed down to local park providers and park districts to complete projects at the local 
level. Staff met with Clackamas County park providers and came up with an allocation methodology that the 
Council reviewed and adopted in Resolution No. 1968. The City of Wilsonville received $806,521 ($754,417 
from Clackamas County and $52,104 from Washington County) of Local Share money to complete locally 
selected projects. 

In order to help market the benefits of the bond measure to all metropolitan area citizens, Metro asked each of the 
Council Agenda Report 	 Page 1 of 2 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\31912  Council Packet materials\Res2349 Staff Report.doc 



park providers to generate a list of potential Local Share projects. Project lists helped citizens to understand what 
improvements to expect in their cities, making the bond measure proposal more personal. 

The City Council approved the list of Wilsonville's Local Share projects in Resloution No. 1981 on February 28, 
2006. The project list included the following: 

• Implement projects in the Graham Oaks Natural Area (GONA) Master Plan: 
* Develop the CREST Environmental Center "gateway" to GONA with restrooms and associated 

amenities 
• Trail head improvements and pathway construction 
• Interpretive graphics, picnic and wildlife viewing areas 
• Oregon white oak savanna and woodland restoration 

Implementprojects in the Memorial Park Trails Plan: 
• Construct multi-use paths in Memorial Park 
• Construct Willamette River overlook platforms (3) and associated amenities such as seating and 

signage 

Implement the Boeckman Creek Trail 
* Determine alignment 
* Acquire public access easements for the trail 

To date, the local share funding has been used to complete the improvements identified within the Graham Oaks 
Natural Area Master Plan. The Memorial Park trails and overlooks and the Boeckman Creek alignment study and 
acquisition of easements have not been undertaken. 

RELATED CITY POLICIES 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
Graham Oaks Natural Area Master Plan 
Memorial Park Trails Plan 

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The Council approves a revision to the Local Share project list and reallocates funding ($126,521) 
from the Boeckman Creek Trail project to Engelman Park. 
The Council maintains the existing Local Share project list, which would mean another source of 
funding would be have to be identified for Engelman Park. 

SUGGESTED MOTION 
Staff recommends the Council revise the list of Local Share projects, and reallocate funding from the Boeckman 
Creek Trail project ($126,521) to Engelman Park. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution No. 2349 
Engelman Park description 
Engelman Park site plans 

Council Agenda Report 	 Page 2 of 2 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\31912  Council Packet materials\Res2349 Staff Report.doc 



LI(I)I[SIWM 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE REVISING A "LOCAL SHARE" 
PROJECT LIST TO BE FUNDED WITH A PORTION OF METRO'S NOVEMBER 2006 
NATURAL AREAS BOND MEASURE 

WHEREAS, Metro received voter approval for a regional Natural Areas Bond Measure in 

November of 2006 to continue to purchase significant natural areas, and fund related capital 

improvement projects, similar to the Greenspaces Bond passed in 1995; and 

WHEREAS, the total general obligation bond amount was $227 million dollars, with $44 

million passed down to local park providers as part of the Local Legacy Program (aka "Local 

Share") to implement projects at the local level; and 

WHERAS, the City of Wilsonville, as a local park provider received $806,521 from the bond 

measure passed by the regional voters; and 

WHERAS, Metro requested each of the local park providers to support the Local Share per 

capita allocation methodology, which the City Council adopted in Resolution No. 1968; and 

WHEREAS, Metro requested that each of the local park providers establish a Local Share 

project list, which the City Council adopted in Resolution No. 1981; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Wilsonville has adopted three significant Master Plans, the Parks and 

Recreation Master Plan, the Graham Oaks Natural Area Master Plan and the Memorial Park 

Trails Plan that contain priorities and cost estimates of projects that would be eligible for Local 

Share funding; and 

WHEREAS, these Plans have been through substantial public process and represent 

community and City Council priorities; and 

WHEREAS, without receiving an extension, the funding deadline for Local Share projects is 

March 31, 2013; and 

WHERAS, the Boeckman Creek Trail project, included in the Local Share project list, will 

not meet the Local Share funding deadline due to significant delays in starting the project; and 

WHEREAS, Engelman Park, which was approved the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

on December 8, 2011 and the Development Review Board on February 27, 2012, is eligible for 

Local Share funding and will be designed and constructed in 2012; and 

RESOLUTION NO. 2349 	 PAGE 1 OF 3 
N:\City  Recorder\Resolutions\Res2349.doc 



WHEREAS, the City of Wilsonville received a $200,000 grant from Oregon Parks and 

Recreation Department to design and develop Engelman Park; however, additional funds are 

necessary to develop the park; and 

WHEREAS, Metro staff has approved the reallocation of $126,521 in funding from the 

Boeckman Creek Trail project to Engelman Park; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Wilsonville is supportive of Metro's effort and is desirous to assist 

Metro in establishing a successful regional Greenspaces program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WILSON VILLE RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

The City of Wilsonville revises the following Local Share project list: 

Implement projects in the Graham Oaks Natural Area (GONA) Master Plan: 

* Develop the CREST Environmental Center "gateway" to GONA with restrooms 

and associated amenities 

* Trail head improvements and pathway construction 

* Interpretive graphics, picnic and wildlife viewing areas 

* Oregon white oak savanna and woodland restoration 

Implement projects in the Memorial Park Trails Plan: 

* Construct multi-use paths in Memorial Park 

* Construct Willamette River overlook platforms (3) and associated amenities such 

as seating and signage 

• Implement Engelman Park in the Montebello Neighborhood 

* Construct trail improvements 

* Provide play and picnic areas and associated amenities 

This resolution becomes effective upon the date of adoption. 

ADOPTED by the Wilsonville City Council at a regular meeting ,thereof this 191h  day of 

March 2012, and filed with the Wilsonville City Recorder this same date. 

Tim Knapp, MAYOR 

RESOLUTION NO. 2349 	 PAGE 2 OF 3 
N:\City  Recorder\Resolutions\Res2349.doc 



ATTEST: 

Sandra C. King, MMC, City Recorder 

SUMMARY OF VOTES: 

Mayor Knapp 

Councilor President Nüflez 

Councilor Hurst 

Councilor Goddard 

Councilor Starr 

RESOLUTION NO. 2349 	 PAGE 3 OF 3 
N:\City  Recorder\Resolutions\Res2349.doc 



Engelman Park in the Montebello Neighborhood 

Background: 
The City of Wilsonville' s Parks and Recreation Master Plan (2007) identified the need for a park in the 
Montebello neighborhood as one of its top priorities. This neighborhood is home to numerous low-
income housing units and higher density developments and is underserved with park space and 
recreation opportunities. In September 2006 the City acquired a .68 acre parcel that is contiguous to a 
City-owned .21 acre beautification area in this neighborhood. The City's intent is to redevelop the 
combined parcels into a neighborhood park. 

In March 2011, staff presented a conceptual plan to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board in 
advance of reapplying for an Oregon Parks and Recreation grant after being denied the grant the 
previous year. To increase the likelihood of receiving grant funding, staff hired a consultant to develop 
a more refined, concept plan for the park. 

In addition, staff implemented an outreach plan to receive input from the Montebello neighborhood. A 
postcard was mailed to residents of the neighborhood in early December 2010, which included an 
invitation to an open house in January 2011. A survey was also posted on the City's website. The 
overall feedback from the public was positive and a fair amount of input was received on the desired 
features of the park. This input was incorporated into the presentationlapplication to the Oregon Parks 
and Recreation Grant Advisory Committee. 

In July 2011, the Oregon Parks and Recreation Commission granted the City $200,000 for the 
development of a neighborhood park that includes trails, native plantings, natural play area, benches, 
picnic shelter, interpretive signage, and lawn area. Staff formed a multi-departmental internal design 
team and selected GreenWorks to complete the final design and construction documents, and assist 
staff with soliciting bids for the construction of the park. A grand opening for the park is anticipated in 
the summer of 2012. 

Renaming the Park: 
Linda Engelman, a long-time resident whose family history has been tied to the Montebello Park 
property since the early 1900s, has been a part of the public outreach process and has met with staff to 
discuss the family history for the interpretive sign that will be placed in the newly developed park. The 
City's internal design team met to discuss the option of changing the name of the park to better 
represent its history and connection to the community. We discussed the theme of the park with the 
focus on the urban forest and determined that the role of the Engelman family in planting the trees that 
currently exist, including the Engelmann Spruce, make the park what it is today. The Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Boardapproved the renaming of the park at their meeting on December 8, 2011. 

Final Site Plan and Public Outreach: 
Input from the public outreach efforts along with several meetings with the internal design team and 
GreenWorks helped shape the process from the draft concept plans to the final site design. 

Working with GreenWorks and the internal design team, staff has developed a final site plan, which 
was based on the conceptual design for Engleman Park. The park includes opportunities for play, 
walking, picnicking, relaxation, and contemplation of nature. Accessibility, safety and low 
maintenance needs were all important considerations in the design. 



DRAWING INDEX 

SHEET DESCRIPTION 	SHEET NUMBER 

DEMOUTION AND TREE PROTECTION PLAN 11.0 

MATERLALS P1.421 .2.0 

GRADING PLAN 1-10 

IRRIGATiON PLAN NOT INCLUDED 

PLANTiNG PLAN L5.0 

SITE DETAILS LB S 

SITE DETAILS L8.1 

SITE DETAILS 1.02 

IRRIGATION 051AILS L6.3 

ENGELMAN PARK 
CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
29799 SW TOWN CENTER LOOPE 

WILLSONVILLE. OR 97070 

GREENWORKS, PC 
LANDSCN'E ARCHITECTURE 
ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN 

24 NW 2ND AVENUE, SUITE 106 
PORTLAND, OREGON 97209 

P (503) 222-6612 

LAND USE PERMIT SET 
FEBRUARY 1.2012 



DEMOLITION LEGEND 

It CEENSTRUCTION ACCESS 

EXISTiNG EVERGREEN TREE TO RE PROTECTED IN 
- O PLACE TO REMAIN UNDIOTUWSED 'SEE TREE 

PROTECTiON SPOCIFICATTGIIS 

"I 
EXISTING OECOUOUS TREE TX BE PROTECTED IS 
PL,ACETOREMAINUNXIDTURXED-SEETSOR 
PROTECTiON SPECONCATTEXIX 

EXIDTI!STTIEETDRE BElOVED 

O 
I \ \ \ \ \ \ I 

TREES TO BE FELLEDNID REUSED IN 
LANDSCAPE 

CLEMMAD GRUB 

EXCAVATE FOR SIDEWALKS NC PAAVAMABT 
SEE BRAiSING PLAN MM) DETAXIS FOR DEPTHS) 

EXCAVATE FOR DRY CREEK RED 
(SEE GRADING REAPING DETALS FOR DEPTHS) 

PAVESIENT REMOVAL 

TREE PROTECTION FENCING 

- - - SITOPROPERTYLIC 

EXiSTING PENCE TORE RERWARD 

NOTES 

I. ALL TREES, EXCEPT THOSE DESIGNATED ON THIS DRAVANG TO RE REMOVED SHALL. RE 
PROTECTED IN PLACE 'SEE DESCRIPT1CNS 

2. SEE AMONST REPORT BY OTTERS 

PLACE TREE PROTECTOR FENCING PRIOR TO ANY SITE WORKER DEMOLITTEPI AT THE 
CONCI.USON OF ALL OTTER CONSTRUCTION ACTTLTTEE 

4 STOEIIPLE PULlED TREES SN STTETO ME REUSED IN LMMSSCMPE - LIES MG) IRANCAES 
TOIECIJ'PEDNND STOOSILED FOR PIABITRIG AREA. 

TREES NOT SELECTED FOR REUSE SHALL BE REMOVED IBID DEPOSED OFF-SITE 

TrIM 56 & 54 

KEY NOTES 

1 EXISTING SIDEWALK TO REMAIN - PRESERVE 
MAO PROTECT 

cONSTRSCTTGI ENTRANcE 	TYSEM,SORARLE 
STAXASNNES 

EDISTIIO DRNEWAY - SAWOJTNID REMOVE CONCRETE 
SCEWAJY MID CURB 

SAWC)JTAJID REMOVE EXETRID AC FOR NEW CISIR MID 
GUTTER 

5 EXISTING CONCRETE PAD AT BIBS STOP TO REANJI - 
PRESERVE NC PROTECT 

ERUTINS MASOAWY WALL -REMOVE WRUNG POSTINGS 

7 EXISTING UTLITY TRIBISFORIER TO REMAIN - PRESERVE MAO 
PROTECT 

8 EXISTING UTIITY NCTBRD TO RENAME- PRESERVE NC 
PROTECT 

f) EXISTING ARET'AL PENCE TD REMAN 

EXISTING WOOD FENEETO REMAIN 

EXISTING UTLTTY IOU TO REMAIN 
PRESERVER NC PROTECT 

O SAWCUTMG REMOVE EXISTiNG CURB MAD PAVEMENT 
FOR NEW ADA RUB' 

B 	TB 	32 	NORTH 



EAT. CKAJNLINK FENCE 

TRASH RECEPTACLE, TYP. 

BENCH, TAP 

FUTURE 

	

PLAYGROUND AREA 2 	 - 

	

6' HT. CHAJNUNK 	 • 'c 

	

FENCE 	

4 	
"- 	

4'O 

.G  

o0  

INTERPRETiVE 
SIGN. 

 
BARBEQUE 

	

PREFAB PICEEC 	 0 
SHELTER 

PICNIC TABLE, TYP. 

	

COLORED CONCRETE 	 . 	 0 	 0 

PAViNG, TYP. 

SPLIT RAIL FENCE  

AND SIDEWALK PER 
CITY OF \AILSOFIV1LLE 

STANDARDS 

GR[[DIIIII}1 
MATERIALS LEGEND S—w0.. 

E.XISISEG EVERGREEN TREE 

ERST1IIG DEC/CUOGS TREE 

— PUNCH 

PICIOCTH&E TEOSTTNGI 

CD GORBEGIJE 

ORIIQNGFOUNTM  

CD TRASH RECEPTACLE 

IX) DOG SRNITHISY DISPENSER 

III BIIERACE 

BOULDERS: ir - 2C ROUND FIELDSTONE 

ACCENT BOULDER 24. RE ROUND REI.OSTOPE 

o 
lAPSE LOG- SELECTED FROM ON-SITE TREE REMOVUL 

L\L 

I I I 	 ---- -----.-- OIAJOLIII(PENCE 

SPUTROJLFENCL j 
- - - - STTEPRDEERTILJNE 

tO) 
CONO1SIEPAVING 0 

Lii a 

COLOBWGONcREIEPAS1NG Z 

0 0. 
DRYO1EEEBED 

Cl) 

o 
- 	-. 	-- 	- 	- 	' PLAYSAcIBG.RtNBERGEOSlREHCE — 

Lu 

MAlONE TRAJL.OEJSIPORSOI S 

FUITJEE DEMONSTRATION PEUNTINS AREA 

DOle: 02-01-12 

R,vi$lOnI: 

JPJRE DEMONSTRATION PLANTING AREAS, TYP. 

JRSE LOG 

HEEK BED 

NT. CI.L6JNLINK FENCE 

GE 0VS 6 DRY CRE EI( 

GROUND AREA I 	NEW CONCRETE CURB AND SIDEWALK 

6, Tvp 	 PER CITY OF WTLSONVILLE STANDARDS 

RACK 	
DOG SANITARY STATION, TAP, 

TRASH RECEPTACLE, TAP. 

CONCRETE PAVING, TYP. 

6' IT. CHAINLEAK FENCE 

9 

FUTURE 

PlANTING AREA 	 UTILITY BOX 

EXISTING 	 ENTRY SIGN 
BUS SHELTER 

JOE NO 	110356 

CE) 
0 	8 	16 	32 	NORTH 

SEARI 	OS.XRI 	II 



R{[DhIIII]]I 

N- 

0 

C . 

E 

LU 

I; F 

0 

0 

a 

z 
0 

C-, 

GRADING LEGEND 

ERSTRGERERGREEN TREE 

EXSSTWG DEcIOJOUS TREE 

15150) URSIRIG SPOTaEvATSIM 

PROPOSED REST ELEVATiON 

DRECTTORNC PEROSNTAOP OF SLOPE 

W.TOH aEVATLOBIS 

- - - STEPROPERI1L& 

ABBREVIATIONS 

SW 	TOP OF WALL 
OW 	BOTTOM OFWAAJ. 
TO 	 TOPOECERS 
80 	BOTTOM OF CIRO 
HP 	HIQIPOINT 
LP 	 LOW POINT 
BPS 	HIGH POWTOFSWALE 
LBS 	LOWPORITOFSWALE 
15 	 FRISUED SURFACE 
FG 	 FPIISTIEO SIQDE 

01.1., 	 02-01-10 

R.yISIyflS: 

D1.wfl By: 	 HO 

Ch.CN.d By 	SI 
Job NO. 	 110308 

D :: 
8 	 16 	 32 	NORTH 



I LI NEW PLANTiNG AREAS SHALL BE RIREGATTO UTTLBENG AN FULLYA 	BITE UTIDERGRO(RID ROJGATION 	5 TREE REMOSIL AND PROTECTiON SVRJJ. RE PER 
SYSTEM IRRIGATiON SYSTEM SHALE RICORPORATE A SMART CONTROlLER, IN COMBINATiON WITH LOW 	 ARDORISIRECTRHBENDATIOA 'SEE REPORT BY 
PRECPITAOON SPRAY YE.ADS MID OMP DISTRHLYITON TTRENG IARJGATTCII BRENT ETO PROVREE SUFFESDYIT 	MORGAN HELEN RED ASSOCIATES DATED 
WATER T0 ESTABUDI) NEW PLANTiNGS WITHIN THE FiRST TWO YEARS, MID THEN SLOWLY DECREASE 	 11-73.11 
WAIERBIG, UNITED TO DRY MONTHS. OR FORESEE OF DROUGHT THE FOlL,CWYIG (3)  YEARS 

B. LOGS FROM SITE TREE REMOVAL ID BE BURRO 
E CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TOPSOL, SOB. AICM)HENTS AND BELCH AS SPECFIED 	 ITS TO II? II ORDERED. 

RUE FLM4TS SAALL BE INSTAlLED II ACCORDMICE WITH TEE DETALS AND SPECEFICAI1C*IS PROVIDED AS PART 	7 DUSTING TELOCAT1CNIIEOIYIIAITREI 
SF151 CONSTRUCTiON DOCUIENT PACKAGE 	 PROVIDED BY CITYOF W13OBPE1.UTE 

QUANTITiES ARE LiSTED FOR THE CONTRACTORS CEBAVEMENCE DIlLY. ALL CVSR4IOITBE YENNED BYTYC 
CONTRACTOR Al TIC CASE SPA DISCREPMICY BETWEEN IRE LEGEND AND THE PLA40 PLANTS INDICATED ON 
THE P1)11 SHALL SI,B'ERCEDE GWUITTTCS LISTED II THE UESDYL) 

TREE REMOVAL ABC PROTECTEW SHALL BE PER RBIENIST RECOSHBENDNT1ON SEE REPORT BY MORGAN 
HELEN MID ASSDCIAIES SATED 11.23.11 

B LOGS FROM SITS TREE REMOVAL TO BE BLREGO) 15 10 lID 11 OROMI 

7 CESTRIS TREE LOCATiON I ICOBEIBT1OBI PRONTOED BYTITYOFINIS(BIVILE 

PLANTING LEGEND 	 R[[DI1JII]1 
TREES 

O 	ESISTRIG DECEROUS TREES TO RESIRIN LRISISIORBW 

O 	
SEE DC*JTLBI MID TREE WOGOBORTEM PLAN 

EXOTRIG CONIFER TREES ID REMAREWIGSILIIBETS 
SEE DEMCIJT1ON MID TREE PREURORET1ON PLAN 

0 	SYI6RCNATOW 

C 	
.V1BE ME. RIO BAR, SPACERS SHOWN. MELTS STEM (3 STEM Nil) 

OTYICOMIIIS IRJTTAJJJI'SDOC'S MITE REWITAN 
• 	 PACF1C OOVWOHO C CAL., BIB  

c 	

OTY1OEII,ERI&CERRSIFCRMIS 
INDIMI PLIBEE4. 5 GAL CONT 

• 	 QTVIPSEIA)OTSUGA HENSESA 
5DOUELAS FRI. P-FE BIB, SPACERS SIIGYIBI 

QIYINNMWJS PLIESIRMIA 

O 	
CASCARA IC CAL CREEl SPACERS 51106111 

• 	 QTY)THULAPLJCATA'FADTTGIATA' 
4jHOGIR 	AR P-F RIB. SPACERS 5140601 

SHRUBS/GRASSES/PERENIALS/GROUNDCOVER 

/ 
STYCENRSTHUS THYRSIPLSRUS 

/ 0 BLUE BLOSSOM. S GAL. COAT, SPACERS 5110601 

0 SlYCOMbS SERICEA 
RED TWIG 000W000I 5GAL CONT. SPACERS 51106114 

O STY COL)IUSSEROEASLRVRIM&A' 
III YEUiSWTWTG DOGWSOE S GAL CaNT., SPACE HG SHOWN 

STY ORICUS PAIEBS 
CRLJFOBIILA GREY RUSH: I GAL COST SPACE AS 5*106114 

() STY HOLORISCUS DISCOLOR 
O SCEMISPRAY: S SAL. CENT., SPACE AR SAENII 

GOTMANONIAAGIJFOLGJN 0. 
0 OMOON GRAPE: 5 GAL COAT., SPACERS 5*40601 

MY OTT MAIHDENA NENADGA 
OREGON GRAPE, 5 GAL. CONT., SPACE AR WIOMI 

E o _____________________________________ . 
RISWORDFERN:DSAL. cowl., SPACEHRSIIOY*I W 

RIBESS?NEOM 0) 	; 
O RED ROWERIWO CURRANT, SGAL COBIT SPACERS SROYNI • 	C 

OW 	Q0 SIYRERREADOUITEBSB 
S DOVALAS SPIBREA lUAU. COAT., SPACERS SHCNNRI 

O STY VACCIMUN ORATOR 
O EVERGREEN IRJCIO.ENERRY: S GAL CENT. SPACERS SHOWN  

Ill 

O STY W000WAPOIAFTIMRINTA 01 

O OMIT CSEMI REM, SOIL CENT., SPACE AR 51106111 w 	0. 

U.. IBERCHSIRAWRERRY:IGALCREIT.,T?O.C. 
ii 

GAELIREREASIKRLLON Z 
SRLALLIGRL.EONT.ICOC. - 

DICENTRAFONIIOSA 
PRCIRCBLGEDIIR HEART: I GAL CENT,, IC S.C. N 

TI 
H H 

UMIREILAREPENS _____________ 
cREEPINGMNIOAE&ISALCORI COC 0 I 	 ODD 	I? 

I SEEOEDLAMI  
DEII)NDTRATTON PB.INITNGAALAS  

'1 PLANTS 75 BE  FIJRJAISBEO MID RIEIMUED BY 060CR 

DI.WIIBR 
DRYcRDERBGD SE 

Job NOr 	110308 

BOUDEBEIC.WROLBCFU.SSTDI& AHOIRO.E_DL 

RINSE LSG.SBEECTED FROM RElATE TREE REMOVAL 

A 	16 32 	NORTH 

Sheet TO 	X RI 	S 



100015 SC00 JOINT 

CONCRETE *0ABPDINFORCED WI 605050 
EVIVEOR IS DEPTH SEE SPEOFICATI0000 
FOR FORGOES NW COLORS 

NORT1C04LRESIOSETTON 

ATOLl, VERTiCAL RES'T06CTSONXI. 

0PACTED 602E ROOD! 

CRMPRCTEO SIJ600ROE 

IWX3WDEEP70OLEDSCOREJON4T-
SEE P1.011 FOR LOCAT1061 

PI COTE RWEACE - SEE PIJAE FOR FIO4S4I 

1M RADIUS TOOlED EDGE 

MASTIC FILLER-SMOOTH S100VACE TOURSITC. 
MASTIC COLOR TO MATCH ADJACENT 
CONCRETE COLOR 

TEAR OFF PLASTiC STRP 

10PN0001R,010 EOFNEOON JOINT. 
TOE 110*21 FOR LOCATiON 

60003*00*1*4.200MW DEPTH 

lOP SM MMIX CCRI'ACTEE 000(1 BASE 

RE[DFIIIIIt1 

6 r 	
r ® EXPANSION & SCORE JOINT 	

I. 

- 
I-. 

a- 
C . 

E 

tO) 

LLJ 

I I 
0.0. 	 02-01-I2 

R.0I510n! 

01*9* By 	 WO 

CIl.cE.dRs B.) 
JOB N. 	 I100_ 

*10*100.0 	DL 

L6.O 

sheet nO U A gO 0 

FORGO 06060E@  510001*011 
II? IN LANCE 000 RADIUS 0 EDGE. TOP 

¶ lIEN SORER) OROCARICONER 
AREAS 

N 606 HOR*0 CCHR1P*1J0US 

UNDISTTWEED SLRERRGEORF*J, 
IGEFRCTED PER 
SPECF1CATKD 

130000096000 OP P01100661 
0*1960 ADJ*0ENTTOSOLOR 

EXISTREG PAVNG 

CONCRETE PAVING 

00 IS! 10000* OAR, 010501 	 & *050100 	 *0*3! 
*1*00000 	 000 300101100*110 

"110111 '1 I 	 110000305 SHILL N 1*09(01110 RE 01 	W'IIISIT 
ON PS *1 29 0*35 

01 1010 *00 0' ONON35 

*11195 00 *3 0*5-0*0060, 09*021 001*50*01*0 

9*040*10 *3 *10 — SIN 'I FOP 
2 	 ONIt 50*0 *3 WE ¶007 *3014 &l 	 0*0001 017011 *011*41 

01*00 ROLLS II  SR 1*0000 11*541 SIOIXF100I 
0' II WEll, *50*500 5 *01030* 

I 	 11401*0 5001 %1 
0 	 III 01*11*3 0*51 *3100*0*1,90* 
I 	 0101*0 *C 	 "*30 DEFOE 1019 540, 41 

1011101005 

1000111 	 53*0' 	 01,0,5 	 1'O 50,03*0 	 CETI 	71 

05*0*3*0 15*9*3* 	 1-1090 	 090*3*1 *30 	 1, 	 I 	'-r 	who, 	t 	r 

ASPHALT STREET CURB AND GU1TER 

Co*1',00IooE,10,o'0*o 	 ciT's 	OF 	 '* 	 - 

	

501*30 5-0400 	 004*00 00 1010 	 50101 3011 	 WOSONVILLE 

	

'- 00000.4 	 01011541 	 0101000's 001 	
ITS*S 	00,50[0010I 

Q GRAVEL CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 
4 02110* 50,001420 

tF. .._' — 

CIJRB TIGHT SDOj.T 

0101010 9*01050' 5100100190 *30005 

1*30* 50115 * 0.01510_N 101*019030 WOO 009*90.1*03041*. IoHIPI *55*10*10*3' 

II *50110*9*1001*0190 9*900 9021 0*0051010011*001*00*9*4110!! OTIS 011301 
30010*01*195 

C0II1T410 000*ooIA CT"Y OF 
WILSONVIL_E 00*00102 500610 	 1-1000 	 100*9 *35 	 3,0 

*0*1' 	 0-0*41 54 	 00054.101 0; 	 11101111, PUBLIC WORKS ST*\IILLFH 

Q CURB TIGHT SIDEWALK 
5 *01*9 0*11001*20 



	

CREEK BOULDERS: VARY SIZE FROM ICTOW. 	 PIOJR-DR-REACERWAERPIAYSLREACE CEDAR-SPLITRAL 
BURY TO DEPTh OF lID HEISPAS LOCATE ORE FENCING NCPOSTR TSP COAT-TOE SPSCIFICRTIONS 
BOULDER PER IS FOET OF DRY CREEK RED 

POUR-BAPLAOE RUBBER PlAY SIACE PREOREL AND ATTACId N GROUPS OF 2-5 

- 	

8ZEMM 

BATE COAT- 5EECFICRT1IOIO DR SD DECKING SCREW FiVES ROCK- SIZES FROM CIT IT 

MERTISETNPOSTDAD 
NECESSARY TO ACCEPT 

	

DRDCR VANES 	 / / 

	

CONCRETE PATh 	 RALS 

: 

COAREACTEDSUBORADE 

	

Q DRY CREEK BED 	 PLAYGROUND SURFACING 	 SPLIT RAIL FENCE 
3 	 ---. 	3 	

5 

NOTES 
1. ALL RARDWURE INCLUDING POSTS, BARS, FRAIRES, LATCIES, HNGES, 
STRAPS BOLTS, ETC TO MATCH COLOR OF FESR FATRIC. 

T LOOSER POST 
- - 	I W TORSION BAR BABE -lTD. 

— MAalAIUPLcoATEDBSAUBE 

	

- 	 -- " 	 STEB,FRREFATRIC,TRESRSDE. 
- 	- 	' 	 G.UCKLEOATTOPMISBOTTON 

	

-' 	 RELOADED 

—TLTRPOST-SPRCENOAOUE 
ITHABBUOC 

rr _ - 

i—BMN.DEPTH3C 

K-AS MAR SPACAIG 

CHAIN LINK FENCE 	
B P IT BE 



PRASAEO GRADE 

TOP SF I&LCE 

FL USA RI LANRA 

IO'ROIJNDVALVE BOX 

SPECIPTEO GUICA COUPLING VALVE 
USURIES 54 ABOVE ORE GRADE 

EPDXY COATED STMLJZES, LOONIES ON APPROVED EQUAL 

	

1 	 VCAEO BIPVC NIPPLE.SIIBFMBA 
SCHED AOPVC STREETB. 

	

.1 	 FLIER FAGRIC 

	

-- 	 EOODIE CONC BLOCK (4) REODIVEC THY 

CMII DII'  WASHED VOl.810 ROCK 

	

[IC. 	 SHED4OPVCTBTWIDEG0 

SOlED OOPVC 8IPPLE3I4XBAIH 
METtlE 

	

\ 	 GO40DIOPVCSTTREETEL 
SOlED IOELSOWORTEE 

'IDlES 
(EXTEND RBGAT1CBI 

SLEEVES 24 BEVCRL) 
EACH SEE OF PAVING 

PAVING 

ROOfSAG NEIL TO MARK 5130)5 

K PAViNG SUBORADE 

- SPEOEESSLEEVE 

SPECFIIO) P40K BEDDING 

C MD, FROM EDGE OF TRENCH, 
PAVING SW FOOTiNG 

CL 
PRISM GRADE 

WI 
SPEcIPEOPIPESACILELL 

——LVTERAL UNE 

- . 	 - 	 ---- MKNLPIE 

STON MAO CONTROL MOD 

NOTE 

I CONTRACTON SHALL REPAIR TRENQI SETTLEBEHIT AND RESTORE 
FINISH GRADES PRISR TO SEEDING OR PLBJITBAG OPEMATTONS 

(5 

C . 

(5 
E 

° C 	EL 

uJ 

BA 
40 

LU 

Z 

0
0 

z,  

ui 

1010 

EBE 

'*bIl- WpS1ftE 
hAVIllAND: 

OIlWfl BA: 	 INS 

CEARA.d Br Si 

Job No 	 110308 

A0OIAERA 	 DE 

NOTE BUETALL BACKIPLOWPREVERTON PER 
CODE AND REOUREI40NTS OF PREVALLING 
AWISDICITONS 

FLOW 

 

TOP OP BOX PEARl BA LAWN 

01€ SOD) EACH 
SIDE 

VALVE BOO WTTV LOOTING 
COVER TOPOPBOX1ICABDAE 
MULCH IN PIJAOTNG ADDS 

SPECEIEO BAcAPIOW 
PREVENTION ASSEB€L V 

SPECE(D MM&P€ TOZTR€S 

1011101 EACH SIlK 

BOO EXTENOODI 

SIWPORT BLOCKS 

MDCII RB CONCRETE BLOCK 

P BIN TIE SOliNG WARMED 
ROOD 

FLIES FAGRIC 

OPECFODPETKGTAL. SEE UAIIOFACTIJTERI 
OPEEIPICATTONS FDA IGABATJRGINSTROCTCA45 

FINISH GRADE-TOP OF BAILETI 
BLACK 4 SNAG CAPS LOCIONG MARKER 
CAP TO REAP DRAIAVALVE 

FlASH GRADE - TiRE ILAWN 

4D14SCKEO AOPVC SLEEVELENGITI 
AS RESEADEO 

SPECIPED DRAIN VALUE (514) 

BBTJGATTEN LATERAL IlK BARN LINE 

ADICIIONcONOADTEBLOCE 

P V C. ELBOW 

PETER FAODC 

201. PT VEECE1ED PEA SWAHRI 

BH[ED11III]ll$I 

P. 

I-INCH PVC 50140 CONOIJIL FTTTPIGS AND SWEEP 
ELi TO ELECTRICAL POINT OF CCRIECTODA 
- SEE ILLIBAINATTON PENIS CODADINATT ELECTRICAL 

CERODCI1ONWTTH SYHIER ARE LOCAL UILIT'( PROSiER 
ALL WIRES TO BE INSTALLED PER LOCAL CODE. 

IDISACRETE PAD: 8-4ACK MINBBi4TH€SS 

TROD MDIII 

I-RICh PVC SCM 40 COTCIIIT. FTrTIAGS MAO SWEEP Eli 

LRCISTTJRBED SR COAWIACTEDSIRORADE 

 

OW4TE ITWEOT MCCII \...J.____ 
WIRES TSRD84OIECEE(TRCLVALUES 17 AIR 

ODIGATSON S18'PLY PROM METER 

BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLY AUTOMATIC CONTROLLER ,' 	 MANUAL DRAIN VALVE ASSEMBLY 
ROTh \) - 	 VEFOBEIJO 

S 	4 	4 	14 5' 	5' 	F 	Ii' ' 

NOTES ROlE: ROTOR 140K) SHALL BEAAMNMBA 
- TRASH GRADE TOP OP RAID) BELCII NOTE SPENT HEAT SHELL SE H SANIOD  FROTH GRADE - TOP OP BARK MULCH LOCATION  Of QU

IC
K COLPEGRIN 

VALVE BOX IS SHOWN FOR 
UAE SIZED GATE VALVE 

GU01COIJP1ERASGEY 

OF tAil) UBAIMSU OF 3 FROM EDGE 
OFWALJI. PAVINAG ORB SW TRASH GRADE- TOP OP TURF lLAMA OF W ER 

GRADE - TOP OP TTJRF I LAWN 

OCARIFICATTON  OiLy IBSTALI  

OFF-SET FROM MAJNIJNE 
INOTHU PER DETAL 

________
2EXRCTFTFTINGREDVIREB.EN1S  

/CE/~:~ 

 

STAJICIARD VALVE BOO WITH 

COMPITIENTSHBPES BAD) SERJEN  GREEN CV 10013110 LAO 
_______________ 

MAVOIFFERFROMTTBATSHOYIN 	
- - TOPOFBOXFLUSHINLAMAIII2 'OP -UP BElL40  

ABOVE IBELCH IN PLAIT ING BOOS 

____________________POP -UP 
SPRAY HEAD AGSEBIDCY 

VALVE ID TAG 

SPECIFIED WATERPROOF FV.0 5030ILEBE NRPLE IS 

REI,

:i P.V.0

IEDGE  

SWING JOINT COMPONENTS ODE CONNECTiON 
—SO BACH LENGTH - COILEO WIRE PVC, SCIJJI 40 STREET Eli - POCV.PIPF 4 MAX  LENGTH, 

SPECIRED CONTROL VALVE 
1) ELBOWS. & (I) MAGLER STREET 

ELBOW  

ELA0WS 
—'V C. IROGAT1ON  LATERAL LINE 

UNION  - EACH SIDE OP VALVE  V.C. SCHED(LE ST NIPPLE,  I'SF BAN. 

4TTSXIPCONC BLOCK  
(4) ADOVYRVOTYRCAL  LBIOSAL LP40 

B8RIGATTONLAIERBL 
- r MIN 314' WASHED ROUND ROD) PV.0 SCIBOILE4O STREET KID. 

TIARLES STREET 0.30W 
—FLTEB FAAIBC 

rvC SOECELEIO ELBOW DR TEE _________________________________ P.V C SCI40DILE 40 lEE OR ELBOW  
N.C. MANJIE 

,' 	 AUTOMATIC CONTROL VALVE ASSEMBLY 'ThROTOR HEAD - PVC SWING JOINT ASSEMBLY ( 	SPRAY HEAD - POLY SWING PIPE ASSEMBLY 
RElAX 4011540140 

_ 
() W CTTSSM.0 WIllOW 

QUICK COUPLER VALVE ASSEMBLY 	
WITIVRDO 	

TR ® IRRIGATION SLEEVES UNDER PAVEMENT 	 ENCHING IN PLANTING AREA 	 L 6.2 
SI1RR) 

7

VA. 0 XI U 



RE[fflUII]$1 
SPECIFIED PLIJATIAG 

SET CR5Y4 OF ROOTRALL I MOVE FRAISH 

GRADE 

REMOVE BURLEE FROM TOP IS OF 
R500BALL 

MLLOI E DEPTH 

ANISE GRADE 

AAENGEO 508. SEE SPECS FOIl DEPTH 
AND AAENDNENTS) 

SCOAFY 513(5MB) BOTTOM 

BAGEPELSOL MLOTURE-SGE 

ROOTBALL SIAM. 02E 	
SPEIOFICAT1ONS 

SGAJTFY SIDES BBOTTT)M 	 LOADS'TVJRBED NETTLE SOIL 

EDGE GE PL82JT BET OBAD4AOOTPI.MJT 
MASSING 

AREA FOR PLANT SPACING BDJSTOTRENT 

ROW AT EDGE OF PI.MTBLV BED, FDIJOM AIELC82ENOWEEOELOTh) K') 	
® 	 BEOLBEAS DELiNEATED ON THE PLMTWD 

FNISHESLABBLWIEDGIBS PER PLAN LOCATE PUASTS ONE EDILF OF 
OETMLOAAPASRGRACEW/DIJT S 	

SPECFEO SPACING DISTANCE FROM EDGE 	 h 
OFREDLINE, OR ADJACENT PANT 	 EDGING () 	 MASSING. UNLESS OTHEROESE SPOOlED 

- - 	

CON11NUOIJS EQUALLY SPACED OUTER 	 PCOWOE PRE-EJERGENT 

TRUEJIGUALARON CEI(TER SPACING AS o 	o SPECIED ON PLANTiNG PLAN 

EDGE OFPAVEBIENT, TERROR OTHER 
REDO SITEAGE 

MN, E TRUED DEPTYVAJJ. MOSWTTH 

SPACING DISTASTE FROM OILY CLRB. 
55iN 	 LOCATE  PUNTS ONE HALF OF SPECFTED 	 A.MEM)MDHTS PER SPECI1CATIEDN 

SIDEWALS. OR OTHER HARD SURFACE 
UNLESS OINERVNYSE SPECREO 

() 

GR  ___OUNDCOVER PLANTING 	 ___  ,' TYPICAL GROUNDCOVER PLANTING  SHRUB PLANTING -  B&B 	
B IT 24' 

MOTES 
MINIA&M S DLII WIES PER SPEEN4. PANE BASING 
SELOOTH PRIOR TO SEEDING GLUE ALL COlLIERS 

7 Z: 
SPODINEOTFIDE  

PLAN  TEW SIDE 

iTT PASTE PVC 

P05111(14 ROOT DIBORIL TANLILE 
FTNISA GRADE 

- WATERHASIN 

VISPORETHEE MAT AVAJLAIALE FROM 
IREEGENTIALS I 8SES48.8239 

ENGR SHADE TOPOF ROOT BALL- 
P,BDE ON NATIVE SUBOIAADE 

INLL- SEE SPEEFTCAT1I39R 

NATiVE SUROGADE 
ROOTRALL 

4X405-EWNDOS DEAD&EN.TYPICAL 

sT ?RTXEP.T. STARE OABWTICWARD SDEOO 
PER PREVALALA VONO 

SPECfUTREE -' 
SO 

C' 	 -\ 
RIOIDASLY 

poomoN ROOTCESTAS P MOVE RMISR 
GRADE 

1, 	S' REMOVE TOP 113 OF BURLUOMTAPPING 

/ FROM ROOT BALL ORCONTALIER 

/ THOR WATER RDTEN1TDR SAUCER 

/ ATOPORE TREE MAT AYAJLA&.E FROM 
TREDSDNTVALS .8825248 8238 

LOOSEN AARO SOBSOI. ON SIDES OF PT 

BACITOLL WITH MOTTLE 508. MRTU$FE 

WIDTH GE 
R501BALL 

IBB)IS1TJRBED NATIVE SOIL 
,, j-  ~.~ 

DRIP LAB) 

DECIDUOUS TREE 

a. 

E 

Im 

LU 

MI 
MI 

Lu 
RI 

o 	ZCl) 
A 

z< 

: ....iu.i 

DII.. 	 0241-12 

RI0ISIBTI: 

® CONIFER TREE PLANTING - GUYING  NATIVE DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING 
SEEITISI 8 13 Il 24' BEEN ETIOBUNO 

MOSRADAIG DR ITTESPAOSA4S INSIDE FENCE FINAL GRADING SHALL NOTALTER SHADE BY MORE 01-HALE 

CONSTRUCTiON FENCING PERANBORISTREPORT SECORE TO STEEL POSTS PLACED C ST INSTALL FEVERED 
PRIOR TO START SF CONSTRUCTIOR REMOVE OILY WITH OWNERS PIAPROVAL 

Q TREE PROTECTION FENCING 
6  VNMOC!01 

OTI*n By: 	 WO 

CleANed By AD 

Job NS 	 10308 

ApoT0010, 	 DE 

L6.3 
sheeT no. A SI S 

70 

 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

A regular meeting of the Wilsonville City Council was held at the Wilsonville City Hall 
beginning at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, March 5, 2012. Council President Niiñez called the meeting 
to order at 7:00 p.m., followed by roll call and the Pledge of Allegiance. 

The following City Council members were present: 
Mayor Knapp - excused 
Council President Nüñez 
Councilor Hurst 
Councilor Goddard 
Councilor Starr 

Staff present included: 
Bryan Cosgrove, City Manager 
Jeanna Troha, Assistant City Manager 
Mike Kohihoff, City Attorney 
Sandra King, City Recorder 

Motion: 	Councilor Goddard moved to approve the order of the agenda. Councilor Starr 
seconded the motion. 

Vote: 	Motion carried 4-0. 

MAYOR'S BUSINESS 

Council President Nunez listed the upcoming board and commission meetings scheduled for the 
month of March. 

COMMUNICATIONS 

Metro Councilor Carl Hosticka, and John Williams, Deputy Director of Community 
Development at Metro, provided an overview of the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios 
Project, what the state required of the region, and shared what was learned during the first phase 
of the Scenarios Project. Councilor Hosticka provided packets to each of the councilors 
containing these documents: Understanding Our Land Use And Transportation Choices, Phase 1 
findings dated January 12, 2012; Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project dated February 
2012; and Understanding Our Land Use and Transportation Choices, Phase 1 Summary, dated 
February 2012. 

The Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project is a multi-year, collaborative effort between 
metro, local governments, and other regional partners. The project is focused on working 
together to find the right combination of land use and transportation actions that will keep 
communities vibrant and prosperous. The project directly responds to state requirements to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions from light duty vehicles. 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 1 OF 3 
MARCH 5, 2012 
N:\City  Recorder\Minutes\35 l2cc.doc 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

An update on the Beauty and the Bridge Project was presented by members of the Student Art 
Council. Students from the elementary, middle and high schools in Wilsonville have 
participated in the project. Upon its completion the tiles and art work will be installedon the 
underpass of 1-5 and Wilsonville Road. The students invited the Council and community to 
attend an open house to preview the artwork. 

CITIZEN INPUT & COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
This is an opportunity for visitors to address the City Council on items not on the agenda. It is also the time to 
address items that are on the agenda but not scheduled for a public hearing. Staff and the City Council will make 
every effort to respond to questions raised during citizens input before tonight's meeting ends or as quickly as 
possible thereafter. Please limit your comments to three minutes. 

There was none. 

COUNCILOR COMMENTS, LIAISON REPORTS & MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Council President Ntlñez - Chamber and Library Board liaison, did not have a liaison report; but 
announced the next event in the Down to Earth Sustainability Speaker Series titled "Secrets from 
the Chef" set for March 13. 

Councilor Hurst - Parks and Recreation Board and Library Board liaison, had no liaison report to 
make. He invited the public to the Daddy Daughter Dance set for March 9. 

Councilor Goddard - DRB and Clackamas County Business Alliance liaison reported the DRB 
approved a plan for lighting at Clackamas Community College as well as a site design review 
and tree plan for new Engelmann Park on Wilsónville Road. He noted the activities of the 
Clackamas Business Alliance meeting. 

Councilor Starr - Planning Commission and Wilsonville Community Seniors Inc. liaison 
reported the Planning Commission would be addressing changes to the Sign Code at their next 
meeting. He announced the next Middle School Dance scheduled for March 16. 

CONTINUING BUSINESS 
A. 	Ordinance No. 702 - reading 

An Ordinance Repealing Wilsonville Code Chapter 10, Section 10.310 And Replacing It 
With New Section 10.310 Restricting Panhandling. 

Mr. Kohihoff read Ordinance No. 702 by title, and noted the language on page 2 of 3, paragraph 
(3)(b) had been changed to read, "In a public transportation vehicle or public transit 
transportation facility;". 

Motion: 	Councilor Hurst moved to adopt Ordinance No. 702 on second reading as 
amended. Councilor Goddard seconded the motion. 

Vote: 	Motion carried 4-0 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 2 OF 3 
MARCH 5, 2012 
N:\City  RecordeñMinutes\35 12cc .doc 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Mayor Knapp - excused 
Council President Nüñez - Yes 
Councilor Hurst - Yes 
Councilor Goddard - Yes 
Councilor Starr - Yes 

CITY MANAGER'S BUSINESS 

Mr. Cosgrove provided a recap of the meeting. 

LEGAL BUSINESS - There was no report. 

ADJOURN 

Motion: 	Councilor Starr moved to adjourn. Councilor Hurst seconded the motion. 

Vote: 	Motion carried 4-0. 

The Council meeting adjourned at 7:46 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sandra C. King, MMC, City Recorder 

ATTEST: 

TIM KNAPP, MAYOR 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 3 OF 3 
MARCH 5, 2012 
N:\City  Recorder\Minutes\35 I 2cc.doc 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

A special meeting of the Wilsonville City Council was held at the Wilsonville City Hall beginning at 
7 p.m. on Thursday, February 23, 2012. Mayor Knapp called the meeting to order at 7:03p.m., followed 
by roll call and the Pledge of Allegiance. 

The following City Council members were present: 
Mayor Knapp 
Council President Nüñez 
Councilor Hurst 
Councilor Goddard - excused 
Councilor Starr 

Staff present included: 
Bryan Cosgrove, City Manager 
Jeanna Troha, Assistant City Manager 
Mike Kohlhoff, City Attorney 
Michael Bowers, Community Development Director 
Sandra King, City Recorder 
Mark Ottenad, Public Affairs Director 
Dan Knoll, Public Affairs Coordinator 
Mike Ward, Civil Engineer 
Steve Adams, Interim City Engineer 
Debra Kerber, Public Works Director 
Kerry Rappold, Natural Resources Program Manager 

Motion: 	Councilor Nüñez moved to approve the order of the agenda. Councilor Hurst 
seconded the motion. 

Vote: 	Motion carried 4-0. 

MAYOR'S BUSINESS 

The Mayor reported he had attended the Westside Economic Alliance meeting, the City had received a 
thank you letter from Art Tech High School for participation in their Down To Earth Sustainability 
speaker series; and a thank you letter from the Skateboard Park Group for designating the location of a 
future skateboard park. The Mayor would be traveling to Washington DC to talk with elected officials 
about transportation funding for the area. 

CITIZEN INPUT & COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
This is an opportunity for visitors to address the City Council on items not on the agenda. It is also the 
time to address items that are on the agenda but not scheduled for a public hearing. Staff and the City 
Council will make every effort to respond to questions raised during citizens input before tonight's 
meeting ends or as quickly as possible thereafter. Please limit your comments to three minutes. 

Sheri Young, Silver Leaf Farms, P0 Box 7, Wilsonville was concerned the Storm Water Master Plan did 
not contain a capital improvement project to replace the culvert between her property and the Bemert' s 
property south of Wilsonville Road near OrePac. She submitted a letter dated January 9, 2012 for the 
record. The current culvert is breaking down making it difficult to get farm equipment over the crossing. 
She asked that the project be included in the Storm Water Master Plan. Ms. Young also noted the zoning 
indications on her land are inaccurate as are the maps. 

CITY CouNcIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 1 OF 9 
FEBRUARY 23, 2012 	 N:\City Recorder\Minutes\2231 2cc.doc 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Mr. Cosgrove would have Mr. Rappold get in touch with Ms. Young to correct the information. Council 
discussed amending the plan to include the culvert project in the list of unfunded projects with the 
understanding if the project was not included it would not be eligible for funding. 

Mr. Kohihoff stated the City's technical staff has spoken with the Young's and Bernert's and have 
recommended the project not be included in the Storm Water Master Plan. The letter from Dave Bemert 
originally sent to the City and dated January 2, 2012 was included in the January 30, 2012 Council Work 
Session packet and would be made a part of the record for this meeting. The project may be included in 
the Plan as an unfunded project; if the project was not included in the Plan tonight it could be included in 
future amendments of the Plan. 

Simon Springall, 7710 SW Roanoke Drive South, Wilsonville, referred to the statement in the Wilsonville 
Spokesman by Councilor Goddard, "The idea that we're going to take additional ten years of projects and 
call them unfunded or potential is of no significant purpose besides muddying up the scope and purpose 
of the plan." Mr. Springall thought the whole point of a long range plan was to have a set of projects that 
could be taken up, and he detected hostility towards the natural resources and the maintenance of the 
natural environment around the city. He suggested Councilors look to their mission statement when they 
are considering such items. 

COUNCILOR COMMENTS, LIAISON REPORTS & MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Council President Nüñez - Chamber and Library Board liaison. Councilor Nüñez had attended the 
Library 301h  anniversary celebration. 

Councilor Hurst - Parks and Recreation Board and Library Board liaison had no reports to make. He 
announced the volunteer planting event scheduled for Saturday February 25. 

Councilor Starr - Planning Commission and Wilsonville Community Seniors Inc. liaison announced the 
middle school dance set for Friday the 24th;  and that the Planning Commission continues their work on 
sign code changes, the water distribution master plan, and city communications plan. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Mr. Kohihoff read the Consent Agenda item into the record. 

A. 	Approval of the minutes of the February 6, 2012 Council Meeting. 

Motion: 	Councilor Hurst moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Councilor Starr 
seconded the motion. 

Vote: 	Motion carried 4-0 

NEW BUSINESS 

A. 	Resolution No. 2347 
A Resolution Of The City Of Wilsonville Authorizing Geotechnical And Design Consultant 
Contract For Continuation Of The Boeckman Road Extension Project To Complete Substantial 
Soil Compression, Repair, And Reconstruction Work. 

Mr. Kohlhoff read the title of Resolution No. 2347 into the record. 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 2 OF 9 

FEBRUARY 239  2012 	 N:\City Recorder\Minutes\22312cc.doc 



CITY OF WILSON VILLE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Steve Adams, Interim City Engineer, presented the staff report for the proposed Resolution. 

Boeckman Road Extension project, CIP #4048, was designed by HDR Engineering, Inc., and then 
constructed by Kerr Contractors, Inc. from autumn 2006 through autumn 2008. After the roadway was 
opened the areas near the Coffee Creek Bridge approaches were observed to settle excessively creating 
undesirably steep grades across the approach slabs to the bridge and impacting the existing culverts and 
wildlife crossings. 

The City of Wilsonville (City) instituted a lawsuit, City of Wilsonville v. HDR Engineering, Clackamas 
County Circuit Court Case No. CV 10070047, over geotechnical and design errors involving the 
subsidence of the road and bridge abutments over compressible soils. In conjunction with this lawsuit, 
the city contracted with Tim Blackwood of Pacific Geotechnical for geotechnical design services. Mr. 
Blackwood provided technical and professional solutions to the sinking roadway along with detailed cost 
estimates. The soils analysis work from this study indicates significant additional settlement is 
anticipated. Pursuant to Resolution No. 2323, adopted by Council on September 21, 2011, a settlement of 
claims was authorized. 

The City has contracted with Hart Crowser for geotechnical design and construction management services 
for a pre-load program through Purchase Order # 003970, dated October 20, 2011. Hart Crowser 
completed a draft report with drawings for the preload, and presented them to the City on December 22, 
2011. 

To proceed with the re-design and re-construction of Boeckman Road, Mr. Blackwood has assembled a 
team consisting of Hart Crowser as project manager and geotechnical engineer, OTAK for civil and 
structural engineering, Mackay and Sposito for survey services, and DKS Associates for traffic 
management. 

As a continuation of the services provided by Tim Blackwood, the City needs to proceed with roadway 
re-design and re-construction phase services for this project. Staff recommends that Hart Crowser be 
named the prime consultant, project manager and geotechnical engineer to lead the re-design and re-
construction of Boeckman Road and award a Professional Services Agreement in the amount of Three 
Hundred Thirty-Four Thousand, Three Hundred Sixty Nine dollars ($334,369.00). The value of this 
contract to be covered by the settlement of claims previously received from HDR Engineering. 

Under the City's Purchasing Procedures Manual, Revised August 2011, the following findings and 
allowances are made: 

Special Procurements 
• Contract-specific Special Procurement: used for entering a single contract or a number of related 

contracts on a one-time basis orfor a single project. 
Finding: 

Hart Crowser, through Tim Blackwood and Pacific Geotechnical, during the legal proceedings 
against HDR Engineering was qualified and hired by the City, through the Office of City 
Attorney, and qualified as the City's main expert on the geotechnical and design issues to provide 
the technical solutions to the subsiding roadway and the costs for the solution. See above 
findings as well. 

Following the settlement of claims, the City contracted with Hart Crowser for geotechnical 
design and construction management services for a pre-load program. Hart Crowser, Inc. has 

CITY CouNcIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 3 OF 9 
FEBRUARY 23, 2012 	 N:\City Recorder\Minutes\22312cc.doc 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

the professional expertise and project specific knowledge to continue forward with being the 
project manager for the redesign and re-construction of Boeckman Road. 

Oregon Revised Statures 
• 279C.115 Direct contracts for services of consultants. 

As used in this section, "consultant" means an architect, engineer, photogrammetrist, 
transportation planner or land surveyor. 

A contracting agency may enter into a contract for architectural, engineering, 
photogrammetric mapping, transportation planning or land surveying services or related services 
directly with a consultant if the project described in the contract consists of work that has been 
substantially described, planned or otherwise previously studied or rendered in an earlier contract 
with the consultant that was awarded under rules adopted under ORS 279A.065 and the new 
contract is a continuation of the project. 

A contracting agency may adopt criteria for determining when this section applies to a 
contract for architectural, engineering, photogrammetric mapping, transportation planning or land 
surveying services or related services. [2003 c.794 §94; 2011 c.458 §5] 

Finding: 
Hart Crowser, through Tim Blackwood and Pacific Geotechnical, has previously explored, tested 
and analyzed the local soil conditions and has substantially described, planned, and otherwise 
studied the geotechnical issues and design solutions to mitigate the compressible soils problem 
and repair the road and bridge abutment issues. Hart Crowser, Inc. is currently under contract 
to provide geotechnical design and construction management services for a pre-load program of 
the compressible soils on the site. 

The adoption of the resolution will be the next step in the re-improvement of the Boeckman Road project. 
The areas of the bridge that are subsiding will be surcharged with rock and soil. When sufficient 
compression has occurred, the road will be rebuilt next year. Staff was not engaging the same 
geotechnical firm that originally built the roadway and was confident this repair would prevent further 
subsiding. Originally it was thought the repairs would take 6-8 months; however, testing done last fall 
indicates there is more settlement expected than what was thought last summer. Rather than have the 
surcharging material placed now and rebuild the road in November, staff chose to delay placing the 
material until late summer with the hope the surcharging would be completed by mid-spring 2013, and 
then the road would be rebuilt. The roadway would be closed this August and reopen in August of 2013. 

Motion: 	Councilor Nunez moved to approve Resolution No. 2347. Councilor Hurst 
seconded the motion. 

Vote: 	Motion carried 4-0. 

CONTINUING BUSINESS 

A. 	Ordinance No. 700 - continued decision 2nd  reading 
An Ordinance Of The City Of Wilsonville Adopting A Storm Water Master Plan, Repealing The 
2001 Stormwater Master Plan And Amending The City's Comprehensive Plan To Include The 
Newly Adopted 2011 Stormwater Master Plan to Replace the 2001 Stormwater Master Plan. 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 4 OF 9 
FEBRUARY 23, 2012 	 N:\City Recorder\Minutes\223 1 2cc.doc 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Ordinance No. 700 was read into the record by title only on second reading by Mr. Kohihoff who noted 
the Council had been requested during Citizen Input to add an unfunded project to the SWMP for culvert 
replacement south of Wilsonville Road. 

Mr. Rappold prepared the following staff report for the second reading. He, Debra Kerber, Public Works 
Director, and Michael Bowers, Community Development Director presented an abbreviated PowerPoint 
originally given January 30, 2012, 

The City Council discussed the Stormwater Master Plan at a special work session on January 30, 2012. 
Various aspects of the proposed master plan were reviewed with staff. As a result of the discussion, the 
City Council directed staff to bring the master plan back for a second reading at their February 23, 2012 
meeting. 

As part of the dfscussion, the City Council wanted capital project LID8 (SW French Prairie Green Street) 
removed from the master plan. Staff has made the following revisions to the plan to accommodate this 
request: 

Revised the following pages in the master plan (Exhibit A): 
Page ES-S - revised total cost for capital improvement program 
Page ES-8 - removed project from Table ES-I, and revised unfunded and total costs for CIPs 
Page 8-31 - reference changed from eight to seven LID projects 
Page 8-45 - removed project from Table 8-2, and revised subtotal and total costs for CliPs 
Page 9-10 - removed project from Table 9-1 
Page 9-13 -. revised unfunded and total cost for CIPs 
Page 9-16 - removed project from Table 9-2, and revised unfunded and total costs for CIPs 
Figure ES-i - removed project from figure 
Figure 8-1 - removed project from figure 

2. Removed the following pages in the master plan (Exhibit B): 
Page 8-39 - project description 
Appendix F - project description 
Appendix H - summary cost sheet 

Councilor Goddard arrived at 7:38 p.m. 

Mr. Rappold pointed out the storm water requirements are based on the health of the Willamette River, 
the Federal Clean Water Act and the responsibilities the city has in managing storm water. The Storm 
Water Master Plan sets the framework for how the city manages its system in developing policies, and 
implementation measures that guide what is done. A part of developing the SWMP included looking at 
problem areas where there is erosion, coupled with where the city needed to meet the requirements 
because of the Federal Clean Water Act and the State DEQ requirements. Out of this effort comes the 
capital improvement program which identifies projects and the funding for the projects as well as 
operations and maintenance. This feeds in to the City Code, Development Code, and Public Works 
Standards where the specifics of managing storm water are set out. Tied to this is the federal 
requirements which come through the city's NPDES permit (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System). 

Debra Kerber noted the costs of the SWMP program include program management as well as operations 
and maintenance activities to meet the requirements of the NPDES permit. 

CITY CouNcIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 5 OF 9 
FEBRUARY 23, 2012 	 N:\City Recorder\Minutes\22312cc.doc 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Michael Bowers talked about future growth and identified what was in the program, and what was not 
included in the CJP program. The 20 year master plan project list has been divided into three ten-year 
segments. For the most part the master plan includes services inside the city, including the existing urban 
growth boundary areas (Coffee Creek Industrial Area, Villebois build out, and Frog Pond residential 
area). The capital improvement list does not include areas that are beyond the UGB limits, including 
Basalt Creek north of Day Street, and areas east of Frog Pond to Advance Road. These are listed on the 
unfunded project list. The SWMP will be reviewed at the ten year point to reevaluate and rebalance the 
projects in the unfunded projects list. 

Mayor Knapp asked for staff's perspective on the culvert on Coffee Lake Creek south of Wilsonville 
Road. 

Mr. Rappold responded by identifying the location of the culvert on a map, which was south of OrePac. 
and cOnnected the two farm fields owned by the Bernert's and the Young's. He said it was difficult to 
determine the specifics of a 30-year old project and he was unable to find evidence of a public easement 
or agreement for long term maintenance, at this point the culvert crossing serves to connect two private 
properties. Mr. Rappold explained part of the decision process included consideration of the Brown Road 
extension which would require a new crossing of Seeley Ditch or Coffee Lake Creek and which could be 
located at either Baily Street or 51h  Street. He felt it was in the best interest of the city to place a new 
crossing that would function properly and be part of the city's transportation system. Mr. Rappold 
provided a project number - CLC-10 Coffee Lake Creek Culvert Replacement - should the council want 
to include the project on the funded list; however he was not recommending adding the project. 

Projects located on private lands were chosen for the opportunities they presented, restoring wetlands for 
example; but the majority of the projects were on public land. However, it was possible to pursue a 
public/private project outside the framework of the SWMP. 

Mr. Kohihoff added the city could enter into an agreement to share the cost of an improvement if it had a 
public benefit. The project could be added at a later date, or listed in the Storm Water Master Plan as an 
unfunded project to be reassessed in the future. 

Motion: 	Councilor Hurst moved to approve Ordinance No. 700 as is on second reading. Council 
President NIñez seconded the motion. 

Councilor Hurst commented his motion to adopt the SWMP as written did not belittle Ms. Young's 
concern and request. Staff raised a good point, should there be development plans for the area the issue 
may be addressed then; or if it became a pressing enough matter impacting the public it could be 
approached outside of the SWMP. Adopting the Storm Water Master Plan was necessary to allow studies 
and improvements to begin, set the Systems Development Charges appropriately, and have staff move 
from planning to executing the CIP projects listed in the SWMP. He noted each project would be 
reviewed and approved by council as they are brought forward to be implemented. 

Councilor Starr stated as a newer councilor, he has more appreciation for the Stormwater Master Plan 
than before he was elected. Having a robust stormwater master plan is one of the elements that make 
Wilsonville such a livable town. As we move into the future to be able to plan and do our part for the 
environment is important. The Councilor reiterated the CIP budget is reviewed by the Budget Committee 
and some of the projects can be unfunded should the Budget Committee reprioritize the projects. 

Councilor Starr amended the motion to include Ms. Young's property in the Plan as unfunded since the 
future was uncertain. 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 6 OF 9 
FEBRUARY 23, 2012 	 1J:\City Recorder\Minutes\223 12cc .doc 



CITY OF WILSONViLLE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Amendment to Motion: 	Councilor Starr moved to amend the motion by adding to the unfunded 
section the project identified as CLC-10 Coffee Creek Culvert Replacement Project. 
Councilor Goddard seconded the motion. 

Vote on Amendment: Motion failed 2-3. 
Councilors Starr and Goddard voting "Yes". 

Councilor Goddard supported the adoption of the Storm Water Master Plan to have funding available for 
the highest priority storm water projects. He did not believe including the unfunded project category in 
the Storm Water Master Plan was an efficient use of staff time for projects that may not remain intact 
over the next thirty years, and he did not want to create legislative confusion by including that project 
category. In addition, it was likely the regulations and requirements will change over the next 30 years. 

Mayor Knapp thought it was important to keep long range unfunded list in the Plan since this aids in 
planning for funding, as well as coordinating future development proposals. If Systems Development 
Charges are not adequate to pay for new development then existing residents are charged extra because 
new development has not paid its own way. The City's general philosophy is for new development to pay 
its own way. 

Vote: 	Motion carried 5-0. 
Council President Nüfiez - Yes 
Councilor Hurst - Yes 
Councilor Goddard - Yes 
Councilor Starr - Yes 
Mayor Knapp - Yes 

PUBLIC HEARING 

A. 	Ordinance No. 702 - First reading 
An Ordinance Repealing Wilsonville Code Chapter 10, Section 10.310 And Replacing It With 
New Section 10.310 Restricting Panhandling. 

Mr. Kohlhoff read Ordinance No. 702 into the record by title only. 

Mayor Knapp opened the public hearing at 8:12 p.m. and read the hearing format for the record. 

Michael Kohlhoff presented the staff report. 

W.C. 10.310 has not been updated since the original adoption of the City Code. There have been 
substantial developments in both Oregon and Federal constitutional law since the adoption of the original 
City Code. As it is currently written, W.C. 10.310 would fail to pass a first-amendment challenge under 
the federal constitution or a challenge under Article 1 Section 8 of the Oregon constitution. An update of 
this Code section is necessary to bring the law in conformity with current constitutional law. 

Background 
Currently, W.C. 10.310 reads, "Begging. No person shall beg or solicit money or other gratuities upon the 
streets or any public place in the City." 

This issue came before the Legal department when a defendant was found guilty by the Wilsonville 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 7 OF 9 
FEBRUARY 23, 2012 	 N:\City Recorder\Minutes\22312cc.doc 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Municipal Court of violating 10.310. Judge Gleeson suspended imposing the conviction because he was 
concerned about the constitutionality of the Code section. 

After researching the topic, the legal department concluded that, as currently written, 10.310 would be 
considered an impermissible regulation of speech content. This is because to enforce the law, a police 
officer would have to listen to words spoken by a person to determine if the law is being broken—a police 
officer would have to hear the content of the speech to be able to decide if the law applied. When a law 
restricts speech based on its content, the US Supreme Court has determined that it must be tied to a 
compelling government interest and be implemented via the least onerous means possible—very few laws 
meet this high standard. Judge Gleeson also found W.C. 10310 would violate constitutional free speech 
standards. 

While governments are not allowed to regulate the content of speech in public fora, they can adopt 
reasonable time, place, and manner regulations under which communications are made. Time, place, and 
manner restrictions do not prohibit content, but they regulate the way that individuals are allowed to 
convey the content to the public. A common example would be a noise ordinance that restricted the use 
of a bullhorn—the speakers' content is not being regulated, just the manner in which they are allowed to 
convey their message to the public. Wilsonville can implement reasonable time, place, and manner 
restrictions on panhandling that do not reach the speakers' content. 

Related Policies/Budget Considerations 
It is not the content of a panhandler's speech that makes individuals uncomfortable traveling or 
spending time in public places. However, often the attendant circumstances surrounding the 
panhandling or the physical actions of the panhandler can result in annoyance, discomfort, 
distress, or fear. By regulating the conduct and attendant circumstances of panhandling activities 
the City can alleviate these burdens on the use of public property. 

Enforcement of this ordinance would not require any extra expenditure of City resources, it 
simply updates the current section 10.310 to comport with constitutional standards. 

Under § 1983, municipalities can be responsible for compensatory and nominal damages if they 
are held to have violated an individual's constitutional rights. The municipality can also be held 
responsible for paying the attorney's fees of the party that brings the claim. It is important to 
remove clearly unconstitutional code sections to avoid exposing the City to legal liability. 

Council Options 
In order to comply with the Oregon and Federal constitution W.C. 10.3 10 cannot continue to be enforced 
in its current form. The Council could repeal it entirely and try to rely on other provisions in the Oregon 
Criminal Code such as assault (ORS 163.160-163.185), menacing (ORS 163.190), coercion (ORS 
163.275), or stalking (ORS 163.732). This option would address the most onerous panhandling activities, 
but would not reach all the activities that have the potential to annoy, distress, or place individuals in fear 
as they navigate public spaces. 

To better address the specific concerns raised by panhandling activities, the City Council could adopt a 
targeted ordinance that places reasonable restrictions on the time, place, and manner of panhandling 
activities designed to focus on the particular concerns raised by such activities. 

The Mayor invited public comment, hearing nothing he closed the public hearing at 8:40 p.m. 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 8 OF 9 
FEBRUARY 23, 2012 	 N:\City Recorder\Minutes\223 I 2cc.doc 



CITY OF WIL50NvILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Motion: 	Councilor Hurst moved to approve Ordinance No. 702 on first reading. Councilor Starr 
seconded the motion. 	 / 

Vote: 	Motion carried 5-0. 

CITY MANAGER'S BUSINESS 

Mr. Cosgrove provided a recap of the meeting. He noted the city had signed a contract with Eco 
Northwest and asked for council direction on forming a ten member economic development task force. 
Mr. Cosgrove identified potential task force members as major employers, small business owners, and 
people in the community who wear multiple hats. Councilors Starr and Hurst would sit as ex officio 
members and facilitate the meetings, which would be open to the public. The meetings would begin in 
March and end in June with an economic summit. 

Mr. Cosgrove advised he was in the middle of the internal budget review process, and the departments 
were providing a status quo budget or less than last year's. 

LEGAL BUSINESS - No report. 

ADJOURN 

Motion: 	Councilor Niiñez moved to adjourn. Councilor Hurst seconded the motion. 

Vote: 	Motion carried 5-0. 

The Council meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sandra C. King, MMC, City Recorder 

ATTEST: 

TIM KNAPP, MAYOR 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
	

PAGE 9 OF 9 
FEBRUARY 23,2012 
	

N:\City Recorder\Minutes\223 l2cc.doc 



City of 	 ito 
WILSONVILLE 

OREGON 

CITY COUNCIL 

STAFF REPORT 

Tooze Road (11 01h  to Grahams Ferry Road) Local Agency Agreement with ODOT 

Meeting Date: March 19, 2012 	 Contact: Kristin Retherford, Urban Renewal Manager 

Report Date: March 6, 2012 	 Contact Telephone Number: 503-570-1539 

Source of Item: Community Development 	 Contact E-Mail: retherford@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

Issue Statement 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a 
Local Agency Agreement and a Right of Way Services Agreement with ODOT to allow the 
City to receive $799,863 of Appropriations Act 56C0 federal funds for the reconstruction of 
Tooze Road between 110th  and the intersection with Grahams Ferry Road. 

Background 

The City of Wilsonville is the recipient of $799,863 of Appropriations Act 56C0 federal funds 
for the reconstruction of Tooze Road between 110th  and the intersection with Grahams Ferry 
Road. These funds can be used for preliminary engineering and right of way acquisition. 

When the City received federal and state funding for the design and construction of 
Boeckman Road from 95 1h  Street to 110th,  the initial award included reconstruction of Tooze 
Road through the intersection of Grahams Ferry Road. Due to rising construction cost 
estimates the City made the request to break the project into two phases. The initial federal 
and state funding was applied solely to the first phase of construction of Boeckman Road, 
with the agreement that the City would either start the Tooze Road reconstruction project by 
the end of 2011 or initiate an amendment to the original Local Agency Agreement to extend 
the Tooze Road project timeline beyond 2011.. 

Subsequently, the City was awarded an additional appropriation of $799,863 specifically for 
the Tooze Road project. This Local Agency Agreement creates new terms for this phase of 
the original project. It extends the City's timeline for the reconstruction of Tooze Road and 
allows the City to begin using the additional appropriation for design and right of way 
acquisition. A significant amount of preliminary engineering for this phase was completed 
during the original Boeckman Road project and the majority of the legal descriptions needed 
for right of way acquisition are in existence at this time. By entering into this agreement the 
City can formally extend its obligation to complete the reconstruction of Tooze Road, and 
complete sufficient engineering and permitting work to allow property acquisition to move 
forward. 

BJH254I -05 



Costs of construction will be paid in part by future development, with the balance funded 
through SDCs and Urban Renewal. The total project cost estimate is $6,700,000. The City 
will have ten years from the date of the agreement to complete the project. 

Kristin Retherford 	 Date 
Urban Renewal Manager 

BJH2541 -05 



RESOLUTION NO. 2348 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 
TO EXECUTE A LOCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILSON VILLE AND THE OREGON 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE RECONSTRUCTION OF TOOZE 
ROAD BETWEEN 110TH  AVENUE AND THE INTERSECTION WITH GRAHAMS 
FERRY ROAD (WILSONVILLE). 

WHEREAS, the reconstruction of Tooze Road between 110th  Avenue and the 

intersection of Grahams Ferry Road is a project identified in the City's Transportation System 

Plan and in its West Side Urban Renewal Plan, and is necessary to complete development at the 

north end of the Villebois Master Plan Area; and 

WHEREAS, the City's original Local Agency Agreement with ODOT for the 

construction of the Boeckman Road Extension Project included reconstruction of this section of 

Tooze Road; and 

WHEREAS, due to increasing construction cost estimates, the City negotiated with 

ODOT to construct only the extension of Boeckman Road from 951hi  Avenue to 110th,  and to 

defer the reconstruction of Tooze Road westward to the intersection of Grahams Ferry Road to a 

future date; and 

WHEREAS, under the terms of the renegotiated agreement with ODOT, the City agreed 

to either initiate the Tooze Road reconstruction project prior to the end of 2011 or amend the 

prior Boeckman Road Local Agency Agreement to further extend the timeline for reconstructing 

Tooze Road; and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to this agreement the Transportation, Housing and Urban 

Development, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2010 (Division A of the Consolidated 

Appropriations Act, 2010, Public Law 111-117) identified 353 projects totaling $292,879,000 for 

Surface Transportation Priorities Projects. The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 

allocated $292,829,000 of program code 56C0 funds (DELPHI code 

15X0564B50.0000.05056C0500) to States, with an equal amount of obligation authority; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Wilsonville has been appropriated $799,863 of these funds to be 

used for preliminary engineering and right of way acquisition for the reconstruction of Tooze 

Road between 110th  Avenue and the intersection with Grahams Ferry Road; and 
RESOLUTION NO. 2348 	 Page 1 of 3 
N:\City  Recorder'Resolutions\Res2348.doc 



'A 

WHEREAS, the total project cost estimate for reconstructing Tooze Road is $6,700,000 

with construction to be funded by future development, SDCs and Urban Renewal; and 

WHEREAS, until federally appropriated funds are obligated through an agreement they 

are at risk of being rescinded; and 

WHEREAS, the currently proposed Local Agency Agreement and Right of Way Services 

Agreement will obligate this $799,862 appropriation, allow the City to begin expending these 

appropriated funds on preliminary engineering and right of way acquisition, and establish new 

conditions for the Tooze Road reconstruction project by extending the construction timeline for 

ten years beyond the date of the new Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CiTY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE 

RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

The City of Wilsonville City Council authorizes the Mayor to execute Local Agency 

Agreement No. 28135 for Surface Transportation Project Tooze Road: 110th  Avenue to Grahams 

Ferry Road (Wilsonville) and the associated Right of Way Services Agreement No. 28136 

attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated as if fully set forth herein, between the City of 

Wilsonville and the Oregon Department of Transportation; 

The effective date of this Resolution is March 19th  2012. 

ADOPTED by the Wilsonville City Council at a regular meeting thereof this 191h  day of 

March 2012, and filed with the Wilsonville City Recorder this date. 

TIM KNAPP, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Sandra C. King, City Recorder, MMC 

RESOLUTION NO. 2348 	 Page 2 of 3 
N:\City  Recorder\Resolutions\Res2348.doc 



SUMMARY OF VOTES: 

Mayor Knapp 
Council President Ntiñez 
Councilor Hurst 
Councilor Goddard 
Councilor Starr 

List of Exhibits 

Exhibit A - Local Agency Agreement No. 28135 for Surface Transportation Project Tooze Road: 
110th Avenue to Grahams Ferry Road (Wilsonville) and the associated Right of Way Services 
Agreement No. 28136 

RESOLUTION NO. 2348 	 Page 3 of 3 
N:\City  Recorder'Resolutions\Res2348.doc 



Key No. 17212 

Misc. Contracts and Agreements 
No. 28135 

LOCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT 
SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROJECT 

Tooze Road: 1 10th  Avenue to Grahams Ferry Road (Wilsonville) 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between THE STATE OF 
OREGON, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred 
to as "State," and THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE, acting by and through its elected 
officials, hereinafter referred to as "Agency," both herein referred to individually or 
collectively as "Party" or "Parties." 

RECITALS 

Tooze Road, 1  loth Avenue, and Grahams Ferry Road are all a part of the city street 
system under the jurisdiction and control of Agency. 

By the authority granted in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 190.110, 366.572, and 
366.576, State may enter into cooperative agreements with the counties, cities and 
units of local governments for the performance of work on certain types of 
improvement projects with the allocation of costs on terms and conditions mutually 
agreeable to the contracting parties. 

The Transportation, Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 2010 (Division A of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2010, 
Public Law 111-117) identified 353 projects totaling $292,879,000 for Surface 
Transportation Priorities Projects. The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 
allocated $292,829,000 of program code 56C0 funds (DELPHI code 
15X0564B50.0000.05056C0500) to States, with an equal amount of obligation 
authority. 

The Surface Transportation Priorities Projects funds are available until expended, 
and the Federal share is 100 percent. These funds are not subject to obligation 
limitation and the obligation authority is available until used. 

The funding for the Surface Transportation Priorities Projects will be treated as demo 
or high priority project funding, and Demo IDs have been assigned for each project. 
Each project has been assigned a unique Demo ID that links the funding to the  
specific project description. The Demo ID for the Tooze Road: 110th Avenue to 
Grahams Ferry Road (Wilsonville) project is 0R198. 

NOW THEREFORE, the premises being in general as stated in the foregoing Recitals, it 
is agreed by and between the Parties hereto as follows: 

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

1. Under said provisions, Agency agrees to road improvements of Tooze Road from 
110th Avenue (terminus of Boeckman Road extension project) west to Grahams 
Ferry Road hereinafter referred to as "Project." Project includes reconstructing and 
widening the existing road to include turn lanes and to tie into State's Boeckman 
Road extension Oregon Transportation Investment Act Project that was completed 

Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

in 2008. Project will also include new sidewalks, landscaping, bike lanes and 
stormwater facilities as well as wet utilities to be constructed at the Agency's 
expense. The location of the Project is approximately as shown on the sketch map 
attached hereto, marked Exhibit A, and by this reference made a part hereof. 

The total Project cost is estimated at $6,700,000, which is subject to change, and 
will be paid for in Agency and federal funds. A portion of the Project shall be 
conducted as part of the Transportation, Housing And Urban Development, and 
Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2010 (Division A of the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act, 2010, Public Law 111-117) Demo ID #0R198. 	The 
Appropriations Act 56C0 federal funds for the Project are limited to $799,863. These 
56C0 federal funds are not subject to obligation limitation and do not require 
matching funds. Agency shall provide any non-participating costs, including all costs 
in excess of the Appropriations Act 56C0 federal funds. Only work begun after the 
effective date of this Agreement and notice to proceed from the State is eligible for 
Appropriations Act 56C0 funds. The funds shall be used for Preliminary Engineering 
(PE) and Right of Way. No State Gas Tax Funds shall be used on this Project. 

The Demo ID Number and Project Description are as shown in the table below: 

F Demo TD Number 	Project Description 

-- 	
0R198 	 Tooze Road, OR 

The federal funding for this Project is contingent upon approval by the FHWA. Any 
work performed prior to acceptance by FHWA or outside the scope of work will be 
considered nonparticipating and paid for at Agency expense. 

State considers Agency a subrecipient of the federal funds it receives as 
reimbursement under this Agreement. The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
(CFDA) number and title for this Project is 20.205, Highway Planning and 
Construction. 

The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date all required signatures are 
obtained and shall terminate on completion of the Project and final payment or ten 
(10) calendar years following the date all required signatures are obtained, 
whichever is sooner. The attached Special Provisions may contain additional 
termination conditions. 

Agency shall require its contractor(s) and subcontractor(s) that are not units of local 
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold 
harmless the State of Oregon, Oregon Transportation Commission and its members, 
Department of Transportation and its officers, employees and agents from and 
against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, 
including attorneys' fees, arising from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 
30.260, caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of Agency's contractor or any of the officers, agents, 

2 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

employees or subcontractors of the contractor ("Claims"). It is the specific intention 
of the Parties that State shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from 
the negligent or willful abts or omissions of State, be indemnified by the contractor 
and subcontractor from and against any and all Claims. 

Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Agency's contractor and 
subcontractor nor any attorney engaged by Agency's contractor and subcontractor 
shall defend any claim in the name of the State of Oregon or any agency of the State 
of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative of the State of Oregon or any of 
its agencies, without the prior written consent of the Oregon Attorney General. The 
State of Oregon may, at anytime at its election assume its own defense and 
settlement in the event that it determines that Agency's contractor is prohibited from 
defending the State of Oregon, or that Agency's contractor is not adequately 
defending the State of Oregon's interests, or that an important governmental 
principle is at issue or that it is in the best interests of the State of Oregon to do so. 
The State of Oregon reserves all rights to pursue claims it may have against 
Agency's contractor if the State of Oregon elects to assume its own defense. 

This Agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent of both Parties. 

State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of written notice to 
Agency, or at such later date as may be established by State, under any of the 
following conditions: 

If Agency fails to provide services called for by this Agreement within the 
time specified herein or any extension thereof. 

If Agency fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement, 
or so fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this 
Agreement in accordance with its terms, and after receipt of written 
notice from State fails to correct such failures within ten (10) days or 
such longer period as State may authorize. 

If Agency fails to provide payment of its share of the cost of the Project. 

If State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its 
reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to make payments for 
performance of this Agreement. 

If federal or state laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or 
interpreted in such a way that either the work under this Agreement is 
prohibited or State is prohibited from paying for such work from the 
planned funding source. 

11.Any termination of this Agreement shall not prejudice any rights or obligations 
accrued to the Parties prior to termination. 

3 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

12. The Special and Standard Provisions attached hereto, marked Attachments I and 2, 
respectively, are by this reference made a part hereof. The Standard Provisions 
apply to all federal-aid projects and may be modified only by the Special Provisions. 
The Parties hereto mutually agree to the terms and conditions set forth in 
Attachments 1 and 2. In the event of a conflict, this Agreement shall control over the 
attachments, and Attachment I shall control over Attachment 2. 

13.Agency, as a recipient of federal funds, pursuant to this Agreement with the State, 
shall assume sole liability for Agency's breach of any federal statutes, rules, program 
requirements and grant provisions applicable to the federal funds, and shall, upon 
Agency's breach of any such conditions that requires the State to return funds to the 
Federal Highway Administration, hold harmless and indemnify the State for an 
amount equal to the funds received under this Agreement; or if legal limitations apply 
to the indemnification ability of Agency, the indemnification amount shall be the 
maximum amount of funds available for expenditure, including any available 
contingency funds or other available non-appropriated funds, up to the amount 
received under this Agreement. 

14. If Agency fails to meet the requirements of this Agreement or the underlying federal 
regulations, State may withhold the Agency's proportional share of Highway Fund 
distribution necessary to reimburse State for costs incurred by such Agency breach. 
Agency will be ineligible to receive or apply for any Title 23, United States Code 
funds until State receives full reimbursement of the costs incurred. 

15.Agency certifies and represents that the individual(s) signing this Agreement has 
been authorized to enter into and execute this Agreement on behalf of Agency, 
under the direction or approval of its governing body, commission, board, officers, 
members or representatives, and to legally bind Agency. 

16. State's Project Manager for this Project is Tom Weatherford, Local Agency Liaison, 
123 NW Flanders Street, Portland, OR 97209-4012, (503) 731-8238, 
thomas.l.weatherford@odot.state.or.us , or assigned designee upon individual's 
absence. State shall notify the other Party in writing of any contact information 
changes during the term of this Agreement. 

17.Agency's Project Manager for this Project is Kristin Retherford, Urban Renewal 
Project Manager, 29799 SW Town Center Loop E, Wilsonville, OR 97070, (503) 
570-1539, retherford@ci.wilsonville.or.us , or assigned designee upon individual's 
absence. Agency shall notify the other Party in writing of any contact information 
changes during the term of this Agreement. 

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all 
of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, 
notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each 
copy of this Agreement so executed shall constitute an original. 

This Agreement and attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the 
Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or 

4 
Resolution No. 2348 



KeyNo. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. No 
waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either 
Party unless in writing and signed by both Parties and all necessary approvals have 
been obtained. Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall be 
effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. The failure 
of State to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by 
State of that or any other provision. 

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing 
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its 
terms and conditions. 

This Project is in the 2010-2013 Statewide Transportation Improvement Program, (Key 
#17212) that was approved by the Oregon Transportation Commission on December 
16, 2010 (or subsequently approved by amendment to the STIP). 

Signature page to follow 

5 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

CITY OF WILSONVILLE, by and through STATE OF OREGON, by and through 
its elected officials 	 its Department of Transportation 

By 
Highway Division Administrator 

Date 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 

By 
Technical Services Manager/Chief Engineer 

Date 

By 
Region 1 Manager 

Date 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

By 
Assistant Attorney General 

Date 

State Contact: 
Tom Weatherford, Local Agency Liaison 
ODOT - Region I 
123 NW Flanders Street 
Portland, OR 97209-4012 
(503)731-8238 
thomas.l.weatherford@odot.state.or. us 

By 
Mayor 

Date 

By 
Recorder 

Date 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL 
SUFFICIENCY 

By 
Agency Counsel 

Date 

Agency Contact: 
Kristin Retherford, Project Manager 
City of Wilsonville 
29799 SW Town Center Loop E 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 
(503) 570-1539 
retherford@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

6 
Resolution No. 2348 



key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

EXHIBIT A - Project Location Map 

J ToozeRdProjectArea 

n 

-1 

Completed Boeckrnan 1 
Road Project 	J 

IL 

Villebois 

Huodv,e 

- 

WESRR 

:tatlon I 

cwWwwmIM4 
* 

Exhibit A: Vicinity Map 
The City of Wilsonville. Oregon 

Barber St. Coftee LaKC Loop - 

j l s,van Rd (Wilsonville) Key 1408 

City Limit 

4' . UGS 	
GIs 

c 
MDnt*r 2011 

Feet 
0 	1,000 

7 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

ATTACHMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT No. 28135 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

Agency, or its consultant, shall conduct the necessary preliminary engineering and 
design work required to produce final plans, specifications and cost estimates; 
purchase all necessary right of way; obtain all required permits; arrange for all utility 
relocations or reconstruction; perform all construction engineering, including all 
required materials testing and quality documentation; and prepare necessary 
documentation to allow State to make all contractor payments. 

State may make available Region l's On-Call PE, Design and Construction 
Engineering Services consultant for Local Agency Projects upon written request. If 
Agency chooses to use said services, they agree to manage the work done by the 
consultant and make funds available to the State for payment of those services. All 
eligible work shall be a federally participating cost and included as part of the total 
cost of the Project. 

Indemnification language in the Standards Provisions, Paragraphs 46 and 47; and 
Paragraph 4 in regard to tort claims, shall be replaced with the following language: 

If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding 
alleging a tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") 
against State or Agency with respect to which the other Party may have liability, 
the notified Party must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party 
Claim and deliver to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal 
pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to 
participate in the defense of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party 
Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by a Party of the notice and 
copies required in this paragraph and meaningful opportunity for the Party to 
participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third Party Claim 
with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to that Party's liability 
with respect to the Third Party Claim. 

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which State is jointly liable with Agency 
(or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), State shall contribute to the 
amount of expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts 
paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by 
Agency in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of State on 
the one hand and of Agency on the other hand in connection with the events 
which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as 
well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of State on 
the one hand and of Agency on the other hand shall be determined by reference 
to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access. to 
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in 

8 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. State's contribution 
amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped 
under Oregon law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, 
if State had sole liability in the proceeding. 

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Agency is jointly liable with State 
(or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Agency shall contribute to the 
amount of expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts 
pai.d in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State 
in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Agency on the 
one hand and of State on the other hand in connection with the events which 
resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as 
any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of Agency on the 
one hand and of State on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, 
among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information 
and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Agency's contribution amount 
in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under 
Oregon law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it 
had sole liability in the proceeding. 

The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of this 
Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly selected 
mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of 
litigation. 

Agency guarantees the availability of Agency funding in an amount required to fully 
fund Agency's share of the Project. Prior to award of the contract, the Project cost is 
defined as the engineer's estimate plus ten (10) percent. 

Agency shall, at its own expense, maintain and operate the Project upon completion 
at a minimum level that is consistent with normal depreciation and/or service 
demand. 

9 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

ATTACHMENT NO. 2 

FEDERAL STANDARD PROVISIONS 

JOINT OBLIGATIONS 
PROJECT ADMINISTRATION 

State (ODOT) is acting to fulfill its responsibility to the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) by the administration of this Project, and Agency (i.e. county, city, unit of local 
government, or other state agency) hereby agrees that State shall have full authority to carry 
out this administration. If requested by Agency or if deemed necessary by State in order to 
meet its obligations to FHWA, State will further act for Agency in other matters pertaining to 
the Project. Agency shall, if necessary, appoint and direct the activities of a Citizen's 
Advisory Committee and/or Technical Advisory Committee, conduct a hearing and 
recommend the preferred alternative. State and Agency shall each assign a liaison person 
to coordinate activities and assure that the interests of both parties are considered during all 
phases of the Project. 

Any project that uses federal funds in project development is subject to plans, specifications 
and estimates (PS&E) review and approval by FHWA or State acting on behalf of FHWA 
prior to advertisement for bid proposals, regardless of the source of funding for construction. 

PRELIMINARY & CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING 

State, Agency, or others may perform preliminary and construction engineering. If Agency or 
others perform the engineering, State will monitor the work for conformance with FHWA 
rules and regulations. In the event that Agency elects to engage the services of a personal 
services consultant to perform any work covered by this Agreement, Agency and Consultant 
shall enter into a State reviewed and approved personal services contract process and 
resulting contract document. State must concur in the contract prior to beginning any work. 
State's personal services contracting process and resulting contract document will follow 
Title 23 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 172, Title 49 CFR 18, ORS 279A.055, the 
current State Administrative Rules and State Personal Services Contracting Procedures as 
approved by the FHWA. Such personal services contract(s) shall contain a description of the 
work to be performed, a project schedule, and the method of payment. Subcontracts shall 
contain all required provisions of Agency as outlined in the Agreement. No reimbursement 
shall be made using federal-aid funds for any costs incurred by Agency or its consultant 
prior to receiving authorization from State to proceed. Any amendments to such contract(s) 
also require State's approval. 

On all construction projects where State is the signatory party to the contract, and where 
Agency is doing the construction engineering and project management, Agency, subject to 
any limitations imposed by state law and the Oregon Constitution, agrees to accept all 

STDPRO-201 1 .doc 	 10 
Rev. 01-18-2011 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

responsibility, defend lawsuits, indemnify and hold State harmless, for all tort claims, 
contract claims, or any other lawsuit arising out of the contractor's work or Agency's 
supervision of the project. 

REQUIRED STATEMENT FOR UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION (USDOT) FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

If as a condition of assistance, Agency has submitted and the United States Department of 
Transportation (USDOT) has approved a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Affirmative 
Action Program which Agency agrees to carry out, this affirmative action program is 
incorporated into the financial assistance agreement by reference. That program shall be 
treated as a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of 
the financial assistance agreement. Upon notification from USDOT to Agency of its failure to 
carry out the approved program, USDOT shall impose such sanctions as noted in Title 49, 
CFR, Part 26, which sanctions may include termination of the agreement or other measures 
that may affect the ability of Agency to obtain future USDOT financial assistance. 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Obligations. State and its contractor agree 
to ensure that DBE as defined in Title 49, CFR, Part 26, have the opportunity to participate 
in the performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with federal 
funds. In this regard, Agency shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance 
with Title 49, CFR, Part 26, to ensure that DBE have the opportunity to compete for and 
perform contracts. Neither State nor Agency and its contractors shall discriminate on the 
basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the award and performance of 
federally-assisted contracts. Agency shall carry out applicable requirements of Title 49, 
CFR, Part 26, in the award and administration of such contracts. Failure by Agency to carry 
out these requirements is a material breach of this Agreement, which may result in the 
termination of this contract or such other remedy as State deems appropriate. 

The DBE Policy Statement and Obligations shall be included .in all subcontracts entered into 
under this Agreement. 

Agency agrees to comply with all applicable civil rights laws, rules and regulations, including 
Title V and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990 (ADA), and Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

The parties hereto agree and understand that they will comply with all applicable federal, 
state, and local laws, regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the work 
including, but not limited to, the provisions of ORS 279C.505, 279C.515, 2790.520, 
279C.530 and 279B.270, incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof; Title 23 
CFR Parts 1.11, 140, 710, and 771; Title 49 CFR Parts 18, 24 and 26; 2 CFR 225, and 
0MB CIRCULAR NO. A-133, Title 23, USC, Federal-Aid Highway Act; Title 41, Chapter 1, 
USC 51-58, Anti-Kickback Act; Title 42 USC; Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real 
Property Acquisition Policy Act of 1970, as amended and provisions of Federal-Aid Policy 
Guide (FAPG). 

STDPRO-201 1 .doc 	 11 
Rev. 01-18-2011 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

STATE OBLIGATIONS 

PROJECT FUNDING REQUEST 

State shall submit a Project funding request to FHWA with a request for approval of federal-
aid participation in all engineering, right-of-way acquisition, eligible utility relocations and/or 
construction work for the Project. No work shall proceed on any activity in which 
federa!-aid participation is desired until such approval has been obtained. The 
program shall include services to be provided by State, Agency, or others. State shall notify 
Agency in writing when authorization to proceed has been received from FHWA. Major 
responsibility for the various phases of the Project will be as outlined in the Special 
Provisions. All work and records of such work shall be in conformance with FHWA rules and 
regulations. 

FINANCE 

State shall, in the first instance, pay all reimbursable costs of the Project, submit all claims 
for federal-aid participation to FHWA in the normal manner and compile accurate cost 
accounting records. Agency may request a statement of costs to date at any time by 
submitting a written request. When the actual total cost of the Project has been computed, 
State shall furnish Agency with an itemized statement of final costs. Agency shall pay an 
amount which, when added to said advance deposit and federal reimbursement payment, 
will equal 100 percent of the final total actual cost. Any portion of deposits made in excess of 
the final total costs of Project, minus federal reimbursement, shall be released to Agency. 
The actual cost of services provided by State will be charged to the Project expenditure 
account(s) and will be included in the total cost of the Project. 

If federal funds are used, State will specify the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
(CFDA) number in the Agreement. State will also determine and clearly state in the 
Agreement if recipient is a subrecipient or vendor, using criteria in Circular A-i 33. 

PROJECT ACTIVITIES 

State shall, if the preliminary engineering 
I work is performed by Agency or others, review and 

process or approve all environmental statements, preliminary and final plans, specifications 
and cost estimates. State shall, if they prepare these documents, offer Agency the 
opportunity to review and approve the documents prior to advertising for bids. 

The party responsible for performing preliminary engineering for the Project shall, as part of 
its preliminary engineering costs, obtain all Project related permits necessary for the 
construction of said Project. Said permits shall include, but are not limited to, access, utility, 
environmental, construction, and approach permits. All pre-construction permits will be 
obtained prior to advertisement for construction. 

State shall prepare contract and bidding documents, advertise for bid proposals, and award 
all contracts. 

STDPRO-201 1 .doc 	 12 
Rev. 01-18-2011 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

Upon State's award of a construction contract, State shall perform independent assurance 
testing in accordance with State and FHWA Standards, process and pay all contractor 
progress estimates, check final quantities and costs, and oversee and provide intermittent 
inspection services during the construction phase of the Project. 

State shall, as a Project expense, assign a liaison person to provide Project monitoring as 
needed throughout all phases of Project activities (preliminary engineering, right-of-way 
acquisition, and construction). The liaison shall process reimbursement for federal 
participation costs. 

RIGHT OF WAY 

State is responsible for proper acquisition of the necessary right of way and easements for 
construction and maintenance of the Project: Agency may perform acquisition of the 
necessary right of way and easements for construction and maintenance of the Project, 
provided Agency (or Agency's consultant) are qualified to do such work as required by the 
State's Right of Way Manual and have obtained prior approval from State's Region Right of 
Way office to do such work. 

Regardless of who acquires or performs any of the right of way activities, a right of way 
services agreement shall be created by State's Region Right of Way office setting forth the 
responsibilities and activities to be accomplished by each party. State shall always be 
responsible for requesting project funding, coordinating certification of the right of way, and 
providing oversight and monitoring. Funding authorization requests for federal right of way 
funds must be sent through the State's Region Right of Way offices on all projects. All 
projects must have right of way certification coordinated through State's Region Right of 
Way offices (even for projects where no federal funds were used for right of way, but federal 
funds were used elsewhere on the Project). Agency should contact the State's Region Right 
of Way office for additional information or clarification. 

State shall review all right of way activities engaged in by Agency to assure compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations. Agency agrees that right of way activities shall be in accord 
with the Uniform Relocation Assistance & Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as 
amended ORS Chapter 35, FHWA Federal-Aid Policy Guide, State's Right of Way Manual 
and the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 23, Part 710 and Title 49, Part 24. 

If any real property purchased with federal-aid participation is no longer needed for the 
originally authorized purpose, the disposition of such property shall be subject to applicable 
rules and regulations, which are in effect at the time of disposition. Reimbursement to State 
and FHWA of the required proportionate shares of the fair market value may be required. 

Agency insures that all Project right of way monumentation will be conducted in 
conformance with ORS 209.155. 

State and Agency grants each other authority to enter onto the other's right of way for the 
performance of the Project. 

STDPRO-201 I .d.oc 	 13 
Rev. 01-18-2011 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

AGENCY OBLIGATIONS 

FINANCE 

24. Federal funds shall be applied toward Project costs at the current federal-aid matching ratio, 
unless otherwise agreed and allowable by law. Agency shall be responsible for the entire 
match amount, unless otherwise agreed to and specified in the intergovernmental 
agreement. 

25. Agency's estimated share and advance deposit. 

Agency shall, prior to commencement of the preliminary engineering and/or 
right of way acquisition phases, deposit with State its estimated share of each 
phase. Exception may be made in the case of projects where Agency has 
written approval from State to use in-kind contributions rather than cash to 
satisfy all or part of the matching funds requirement. 

Agency's construction phase deposit shall be 110 percent of Agency's share 
of the engineer's estimate and shall be received prior to award of the 
construction contract. Any additional balance of the deposit, based on the 
actual bid must be received within forty-five (45) days of receipt of written 
notification by State of the final amount due, unless the contract is canceled. 
Any unnecessary balance of a cash deposit, based on the actual bid, will be 
refunded within forty-five (45) days of receipt by State of the Project 
sponsor's written request. 

Pursuant to ORS 366.425, the advance deposit may be in the form of 
1) money deposited in the State Treasury (an option where a deposit is made 
in the Local Government Investment Pool, and an Irrevocable Limited Power 
of Attorney is sent to the Highway Finance Office), or 2) an Irrevocable Letter 
of Credit issued by a local bank in the name of State, or 3) cash. 

Agency may satisfy all or part of any matching funds requirements by use of 
in-kind contributions rather than cash when prior written approval has been 
given by State. 

26. If the estimated cost exceeds the total matched federal funds available, Agency shall 
deposit its share of the required matching funds, plus 100 percent of all costs in excess of 
the total matched federal funds. Agency shall also pay 100 percent of the cost of any item in 
which FHWA will not participate. If Agency has not repaid any non-participating cost, future 
allocations of federal funds, or allocations of State Highway Trust Funds, to that Agency 
may be withheld to pay the non-participating costs. If State approves processes, 
procedures, or contract administration outside the Local Agency Guidelines that result in 
items being declared non-participating, those items will not result in the withholding of 
Agency's future allocations of federal funds or the future allocations of State Highway Trust 
Funds. 

STDPRO-201 1 .doc 	 14 
Rev. 01-18-2011 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

Costs incurred by State and Agency for services performed in connection with any phase of 
the Project shall be charged to the Project, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon. 

If Agency makes a written request for the cancellation of a federal-aid project; Agency shall 
bear 100 percent of all costs as of the date of cancellation. If State was the sole cause of the 
cancellation, State shall bear 100 percent of all costs incurred. If it is determined that the 
cancellation was caused by third parties or circumstances beyond the control of State or 
Agency, Agency shall bear all development costs, whether incurred by State or Agency, 
either directly or through contract services, and State shall bear any State administrative 
costs incurred. After settlement of payments, State shall deliver surveys, maps, field notes, 
and all other data to Agency. 

Agency shall follow requirements of the Single Audit Act. The requirements stated in the 
Single Audit Act must be followed by those local governments and non-profit organizations 
receiving $500,000 or more in federal funds. The Single Audit Act of 1984, PL 98-502 as 
amended by PL 104-156, described in "0MB CIRCULAR NO. A-133", requires local 
governments and non-profit organizations to obtain an audit that includes internal controls 
and compliance with federal laws and regulations of all federally-funded programs in which 
the local agency participates. The cost of this audit can be partially prorated to the federal 
program. 

Agency shall make additional deposits, as needed, upon request from State. Requests for 
additional deposits shall be accompanied by an itemized statement of expenditures and an 
estimated cost to complete the Project. 

Agency shall present invoices for 100 percent of actual costs incurred by Agency on behalf 
of the Project directly to State's Liaison Person for review and approval. Such invoices shall 
identify the Project and Agreement number, and shall itemize and explain all expenses for 
which reimbursement is claimed. Billings shall be presented for periods of not less than one-
month duration, based on actual expenses to date. All billings received from Agency must 
be approved by State's Liaison Person prior to payment. Agency's actual costs eligible for 
federal-aid or State participation shall be those allowable under the provisions of Title 23 
CFR Parts 1.11, 140 and 710, Final billings shall be submitted to State for processing within 
three (3) months from the end of each funding phase as follows: 1) award date of a 
construction contract for preliminary engineering (PE) 2) last payment for right of way 
acquisition and 3) third notification for construction. Partial billing (progress payment) shall 
be submitted to State within three (3) months from date that costs are incurred. Final billings 
submitted after the three months shall not be eligible for reimbursement. 

The cost records and accounts pertaining to work covered by this Agreement are to be kept 
available for inspection by representatives of State and FHWA for a period of six (6) years 
following the date of final voucher to FHWA. Copies of such records and accounts shall be 
made available upon request. For real property and equipment, the retention period starts 
from the date of disposition (Title 49 CFR 18.42). 

State shall request reimbursement, and Agency agrees to reimburse State, for federal-aid 
funds distributed to Agency if any of the following events occur: 

STDPRO-2011.doc . 	 15 
Rev. 01-18-2011 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

Right of way acquisition or actual construction of the facility for which 
preliminary engineering is undertaken is not started by the close of the tenth 
fiscal year following the fiscal year in which the federal-aid funds were 
authorized; 

Right of way acquisition is undertaken utilizing federal-aid funds and actual 
construction is not started by the close of the twentieth fiscal year following 
the fiscal year in which the federal-aid funds were authorized for right of way 
acquisition. 

C) Construction proceeds after the Project is determined to be ineligible for 
federal-aid funding (e.g., no environmental approval, lacking permits, or other 
reasons). 

Agency shall maintain all Project documentation in keeping with State and FHWA standards 
and specifications. This shall include, but is not limited to, daily work records, quantity 
documentation, material invoices and quality documentation, certificates of origin, process 
control records, test results, and inspection records to ensure that projects are completed in 
conformance with approved plans and specifications. 

RAILROADS 

Agency shall follow State established policy and procedures when impacts occur on railroad 
property. The policy and procedures are available through State's appropriate Region 
contact or State's Railroad Liaison. Only those costs allowable under Title 23 CFR Part 646, 
subpart B and Title 23 CFR Part 140, subpart I, shall be included in the total Project costs; 
all other costs associated with railroad work will be at the sole expense of Agency, or others. 
Agency may request State, in writing, to provide railroad coordination and negotiations. 
However, State is under no obligation to agree to perform said duties. 

UTILITIES 

Agency shall follow State established Statutes, PolicIes and Procedures when impacts occur 
to privately or publicly-owned utilities. Only those utility relocations, which are eligible for 
federal-aid participation under, the FAPG, Title 23 CFR 645A, Subpart A and B, shall be 
included in the total Project costs; all other utility relocations shall be at the sole expense of 
Agency, or others. State will arrange for utility relocations/adjustments in areas lying within 
jurisdiction of State, if State is performing the preliminary engineering. Agency may request 
State in writing to arrange for utility relocations/adjustments lying within Agency jurisdiction, 
acting on behalf of Agency. This request must be submitted no later than twenty-one (21) 
weeks prior to bid let date. However, State is under no obligation to agree to perform said 
duties. 

The State utility relocation policy, procedures and forms are available through the 
appropriate State's Region Utility Specialist or State Utility Liaison. Agency shall provide 

STDPRO-201 1 .doc 	 16 
Rev. 01 -1 8-2011 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

copies of all signed utility notifications, agreements and Utility Certification to the State Utility 
Liaison. 

STANDARDS 

Agency agrees that design standards for all projects on the National Highway System (NHS) 
and the Oregon State Highway System shall be in compliance to standards specified in the 
current "State Highway Design Manual" and related references. Construction plans shall be 
in conformance with standard practices of State for plans prepared by its own staff. All 
specifications for the Project shall be in substantial compliance with the most current 
"Oregon Standard Specifications for Highway Construction". 

Agency agrees that minimum design standards for non-NHS projects slall be recommended 
AASHTO Standards and in accordance with the current "Oregon Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Plan", unless otherwise requested by Agency and approved by State. 

Agency agrees and will verify that the installation of traffic control devices shall meet the 
warrants prescribed in the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and Oregon 
Supplements". 

41.All plans and specifications shall be developed in general conformance with the current 
"Contract Plans Development Guide" and the current "Oregon Standard Specifications for 
Highway Construction" and/or guidelines provided. 

The standard unit of measurement for all aspects of the Project shall be English Units. All 
Project documents and products shall be in English. This includes, but is not limited to, right 
of way, environmental documents, plans and specifications, and utilities. 

GRADE CHANGE LIABILITY 

Agency, if a County, acknowledges the effect and scope of ORS 105.755 and agrees that all 
acts necessary to complete construction of the Project which may alter or change the grade 
of existing county roads are being accomplished at the direct request of the County. 

Agency, if a City, hereby accepts responsibility for all claims for damages from grade 
changes. Approval of plans by State shall not subject State to liability under ORS 105.760 for 
change of grade. 

Agency, if a City, by execution of Agreement, gives its consent as required by ORS 
373.030(2) to any and all changes of grade within the City limits, and gives its consent as 
required by ORS 373.050(1) to any and all closure of streets intersecting the highway, if any 
there be in connection with or arising out of the project covered by the Agreement. 

STDPRO-201 1 .doc 	 17 
Rev. 01-18-2011 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

CONTRACTOR CLAIMS 

Agency shall, to the extent permitted by state law, indemnify, hold harmless and provide 
legal defense for State against all claims brought by the contractor, or others resulting from 
Agency's failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing defense obligations under Paragraph 46, neither Agency nor 
any attorney engaged by Agency shall defend any claim in the name of the State of Oregon 
or any agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative of the State 
of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written consent of the Oregon Attorney 
General. The State of Oregon may, at anytime at its election assume its own defense and 
settlement in the event that it determines that Agency is prohibited from defending the State 
of Oregon, or that Agency is not adequately defending the State of Oregon's interests, or 
that an important governmental principle is at issue or that it is in the best interests of the 
State. of Oregon to do so. The State of Oregon reserves all rights to pursue any claims it 
may have against Agency if the State of Oregon elects to assume its own defense. 

MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES 

Agency shall, upon completion of construction, thereafter maintain and operate the Project 
at its own cost and expense, and in a manner satisfactory to State and FHWA. 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION COVERAGE 

All employers, including Agency, that employ subject workers who work under this 
Agreement in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required 
Workers' Compensation coverage unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. 
Employers Liability Insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 must be 
included. Agency shall ensure that each of its contractors complies with these 
requirements. 

LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS 

Agency certifies by signing the Agreement that: 

a) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf 
of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer 
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any 
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

STDPRO-201 I .doc 	 18 
Rev. 01-18-2011 
Resolution No. 2348 



Key No. 17212 

Agency/State 
Agreement No. 28135 

b) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, 
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure 
Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 

C) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be 
included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including 
subgrants, and contracts and subcontracts under grants, subgrants, loans, 
and cooperative agreements) which exceed $100,000, and that all such 
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this 
certification is a prerequisite for making. or entering into this transaction 
imposed by Title 31, USC Section 1352. 

Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to ia civil 
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
failure. 

Paragraphs 36, 37, and 48 are not applicable to any local agency on state highway.projects. 

STDPRO-2011.doc 	 19 
Rev. 01-18-2011 
Resolution No. 2348 



Misc. Contracts and Agreements 
No.28136 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES 

Tooze Road: SW 110th  Avenue- SW Grahams Ferry Road 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the STATE OF 
OREGON, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred 
to as "State"; and the CITY OF WILSONVILLE, acting by and through its elected 
officials, hereinafter referred to as "Agency," both herein referred to individually or 
collectively as "Party" or "Parties." 

RECITALS 

By the authority granted in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 190.110, 283.110, 
366.572 and 366.576, state agencies may enter into agreements with units of local 
government or other state agencies for the performance of any or all functions and 
activities that a Party to the agreement, its officers, or agents have the authority to 
perform. 

By the authority granted in ORS 366.425, State may accept deposits of money or an 
irrevocable letter of credit from any county, city, road district, person, firm, or 
corporation for the performance of work on any public highway within the State. When 
said money or a letter of credit is deposited, State shall proceed with the Project. 
Money so deposited shall be disbursed for the purpose for which it was deposited. 

That certain SW Tooze Road, SW 110th  Avenue and SW Grahams Ferry Road are 
City Streets under the jurisdiction and control of Agency and Agency may enter into an 
agreement for the acquisition of real property. 

N/A, is a part of the state highway system under the jurisdiction and control of the 
Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC). 

This Agreement shall define roles and responsibilities of the Parties regarding the real 
property to be used as part of right of way for road, street or construction of public 
improvement. The scope and funding may be further described in Local Agency 
Agreement number 28135. Hereinafter, all acts necessary to accomplish services in 
this Agreement shall be referred to as "Project." 

NOW THEREFORE, the premises being in general as stated in the foregoing Recitals, it 
is agreed by and between the Parties hereto as follows: 

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

1. Under such authority, State and Agency agree to perform certain right of way activities 
shown in Special Provisions - Exhibit A, attached. hereto and by this reference made a 
part hereof. If the State performs right of way services on behalf of the Agency, under 

RIW Services IGA (Revised June 2011) 	 - 1 - 



no conditions shall Agency's obligations for said services exceed a maximum of 
$3,000, including all expenses, unless agreed upon by both Parties. 

The work shall begin on the date all required signatures are obtained and shall be 
completed no later than October 12, 2021, on which date this Agreement 
automatically terminates unless extended by a fully executed amendment. 

The process to be followed by the Parties in carrying out this Agreement is set out in 
Exhibit A. 

It is further agreed both Parties will strictly follow the rules, policies and procedures of 
the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 
as amended, ORS Chapter 35 and the "State Right of Way Manual". 

STATE OBLIGATIONS 

State shall perform the work described in Special Provisions - Exhibit A. 

With the exception of work related to appraisals, State shall not enter into any 
subcontracts for any of the work scheduled under this Agreement without obtaining 
prior written approval from Agency. 

If the State performs right of way services on behalf of the Agency, State shall perform 
the service under this Agreement as an independent contractor and shall be 
exclusively responsible for all costs and expenses related to its employment of 
individuals to perform the work under this Agreement including, but not limited to, 
retirement contributions, workers compensation, unemployment taxes, and state and 
federal income tax withholdings. 

State's right of way contact person for this Project is Wayne Kwong, Right of Way 
Agent, 123 NW Flanders Street, Portland, OR 97209, (503) 731-8439, 
wayne.kwongodot.state.or.us , or assigned designee upon individual's absence. 
State shall notify the other Party in writing of any contact changes during the term of 
this Agreement. 

AGENCY OBLIGATIONS 

Agency shall perform the work described in Special Provisions - Exhibit A. 

Agency certifies, at the time this Agreement is executed, that sufficient funds are 
available and authorized for expenditure to finance costs of this Agreement within 
Agency's current appropriation or limitation of current budget. Agency is willing and 
able to finance all, or its pro-rata share of all, costs and expenses incurred in the 
Project up to its maximum. 

-2- 
28136 



Agency may utilize its own staff or subcontract any of the work scheduled under this 
Agreement provided Agency receives prior written approval of any staff, consultant or 
contractor by the State's Region Right of Way office. 

Agency represents that this Agreement is signed by personnel authorized to do so on 
behalf of Agency. 

Agency's right of way contact person for this Project is Kristin Retherford, Urban 
Renewal Project Manager, 29799 Town Center Lp East, Wilsonville, OR 97070, (503) 
570-1539, retherford@ci.wilsonville.or.us , or assigned designee upon individual's 
absence. Agency shall notify the other Party in writing of any contact information 
changes during the term of this Agreement. 

PAYMENT FOR SERVICES AND EXPENDITURES: 

In consideration for the services performed by State (as identified in the attached 
Exhibit A), Agency agrees, to pay or reimburse State a maximum amount of $3,000. 
Said maximum amount shall include reimbursement for all expenses, including 
travel expenses. Travel expenses shall be reimbursed to State in accordance with 
the current Oregon Department of Administrative Services' rates. Any expenditure 
beyond federal participation will be from, or reimbursed from, Agency funds. 
Payment in Agency and/or federal funds in any combination shall not exceed said 
maximum, unless agreed upon by both Parties. 

2. Agency agrees to reimburse salaries and payroll reserves of State employees working 
on Project, direct costs, costs of rental equipment used, and per-diem expenditures. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

This Agreement may be terminated by either Party upon thirty (30) days' notice, in 
writing and delivered by certified mail or in person, under any of the following 
conditions: 

If either Party fails to provide services called for by this Agreement within the 
time specified herein or any extension thereof. 

If either Party fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement or so 
fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this Agreement in 
accordance with its terms, and after receipt of written notice fails to correct such 
failures within ten (10) days or such longer period as may be authorized. 

If Agency fails to provide payment of its share of the cost of the Project. 

If State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure 
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative 
discretion, to cohtinue to make payments for performance of this Agreement. 

-3- 
28136 



e. If federal or state laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 
such a way that either the work under this Agreement is prohibited or State is 
prohibited from paying for such work from the planned funding source. 

Any termination of this Agreement shall not prejudice any rights or obligations 
accrued to the Parties prior to termination. 

Agency acknowledges and agrees 'that State, the Oregon Secretary of State's 
Office, the federal government, and their duly authorized representatives shall have 
access to the books, documents, papers, and records of Agency which are directly 
pertinent to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, 
and transcripts for a period of six (6) years after final payment. Copies of applicable 
records shall be made available upon request. Payment for costs of copies is 
reimbursable by State. 

Agency shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, regulations, executive 
orders and ordinances applicable to the work under this Agreement, including, 
without limitation, the provisions of ORS 27913.220, 279B.225, 27913.230, 279B.235 
and 27913.270 incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing; Agency expressly agrees to comply with (i) 
Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) 
all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; 
and (v) all other applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and 
rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations. 

All employers, that employ subject workers who work under this Agreement in the 
State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required workers' 
compensation coverage unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. 
Employers Liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 must be 
included. Both Parties shall ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with 
these requirements. 

If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a 
tort as now, or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against State 
or Agency with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified Party 
must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver to 
the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to 
the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third 
Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. 
Receipt by a Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and 
meaningful opportunity for the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and 
settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions 
precedent to that Party's liability with respect to the Third Party Claim. 

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which State is jointly liable with Agency (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), State shall contribute to the amount of 

-4- 
28136 



expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in 
settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Agency in such 
proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of State on the one hand and 
of Agency on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant 
equitable considerations. The relative fault of State on the one hand and of Agency 
on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the 
Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct 
or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or 
settlement amounts. State's contribution amount in any instance is capped to the 
same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon 
Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole liability in the proceeding. 

With çespect to a Third Party Claim for which Agency is jointly liable with State (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Agency shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in 
settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such 
proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Agency on the one hand 
and of State on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant 
equitable considerations. The relative fault of Agency on the one hand and of State 
on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the 
Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct 
or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or 
settlement amounts. Agency's contribution amount in any instance is capped to the 
same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon 
Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the proceeding. 

The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of this 
Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly selected mediator or 
arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of litigation. 

If federal funds are involved in this Agreement, Exhibits B and C are attached hereto 
and by this reference made a part of this Agreement, and are hereby certified to by 
Agency. 

If federal funds are involved in this Agreement, Agency, as a recipient of federal 
funds, pursuant to this Agreement with the State, shall assume sole liability for 
Agency's breach of any federal statutes, rules, program requirements and grant 
provisions applicable to the federal funds, and shall, upon Agency's breach of any 
such conditions that requires the State to return funds to the Federal Highway 
Administration, hold harmless and indemnify the State for an amount equal to the 
funds received under this Agreement; or if legal limitations apply to the 
indemnification ability of Agency, the indemnification amount shall be the maximum 
amount of funds available for expenditure, including any available contingency funds 

-5- 
28136 



or other available non-appropriated funds, up to the amount received under this 
Agreement. 

12.The Parties hereto agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, illegal or in conflict 
with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, 
and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced as if 
the Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 

13.This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all 
of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, 
notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each 
copy of this Agreement so executed shall constitute an original. 

14. This Agreement and attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the 
Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or 
representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. No 
waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either 
Party unless in writing and signed by both Parties and all necessary approvals have 
been obtained. Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall be 
effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. The failure 
of State to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by 
State of that or any other provision. 

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing 
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its 
terms and conditions. 

Signature Page to Follow 

28136 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE, by and through STATE OF OREGON, by and through 
its elected officials 	 its Department of Transportation 

By  By  
Mayor State Right of Way Manager 

Date  Date  

By  APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 
City Recorder 

By  
Date  Region 1 Right of Way Manager 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL Date  
SUFFICIENCY 

By  
By  
Agency Counsel 

Date_____________________________ 
Date  

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
Agency Contact: 
Kristin Retherford By 
Urban Renewal Project Manager Assistant Attorney General 
29799 Town Center Lp East 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 Date___________________________ 
(503) 570-1539 
retherford@ci.wilsonville.or.us  APPROVED 

(If Litigation Work Related to Condemnation 
State Contact: is to be done by State) 
Tom Weatherford 
Region 1 Local Agency Liasion By ISIL 
123 NW Flanders Street Chief Trial Counsel 
Portland, OR 97209 
(503) 731-8238 Date_________________________ 
thomas.I.weatherford@odot.state.or. us 

-7- 
28136 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS EXHIBIT A 
Right of Way Services 

THINGS TO BE DONE BY STATE OR AGENCY 

1. Pursuant to this Agreement, the work performed on behalf of the Agency can be 
performed by the Agency, the Agency's consultant, or a State Flex Services 
consultant. The work may be performed by Agency staff or any of these 
representatives on behalf of Agency individually or collectively provided they are 
qualified to perform such functions and after receipt of approval from the State's 
Region I Right of Way Manager. Said approval must be obtained, in writing, prior to 
the performance of said activities. 

2. With the exception of work related to appraisals, State shall not enter into any 
subcontracts for any of the work scheduled under this Agreement without obtaining 
prior written approval from Agency. 

3. Both Parties will strictly follow the rules, policies and procedures of the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as 
amended, ORS Chapter 35 and the "State Right of Way Manual". 

Instructions: Insert either: State, Agency, or N/A on each line. 

A. Preliminary Phase 

Agency shall provide preliminary cost estimates. 

Agency shall make preliminary contacts with property owners. 

.3. Agency shall gather and provide data for environmental documents. 

4. Agency shall develop access and approach road list. 

5. Agency shall help provide field location and Project data. 

B. Acquisition Phase 

1. General: 

When doing the Acquisition work, Agency shall provide State with a status 
report of the Project quarterly. 

Title to properties acquired shall be in the name of the Agency. 

Prior to the initiation of acquisitions, if title to the properties is to be acquired in 
the name of the Agency, the Agency shall adopt a resolution of intention and 
determination of necessity in accord with ORS 35.235 and ORS 35.610, 
authorizing acquisition and condemnation. If the Oregon Department of Justice 

-8- 
28136 



is to handle condemnation work, prior approval evidenced by Chief Trial 
Counsel, Department of Justice, signature on this Agreement is required; and 
authorization for such representation shall be included in the resolution 
adopted by the Agency. Prior approval by Oregon Department of Justice is 
required. 

2. Legal Descriptions: 

Agency shall provide sufficient horizontal, control, recovery and retracement 
surveys, vesting deeds, maps and other data so that legal descriptions can be 
written. 

Agency shall provide construction plans and cross-section information for the 
Project. 

Agency shall write legal descriptions and prepare right of way maps. If the 
Agency acquires any right of way on a State highway, the property descriptions 
and right of way maps shall be based upon centerline stationing and shall be 
prepared in accordance with the current "State Right of Way & Rail/Utility 
Coordination Manual", "Contractor Services Guide" and the "Right of Way 
Engineering Manual". The preliminary and final versions of the property 
descriptions and right of way maps must be reviewed and approved by the 
State. 

Agency shall specify the degree of title to be acquired (e.g., fee, easement). 

3. Real Property and Title Insurance: 

Agency shall provide preliminary title reports, if State determines they are 
needed, before negotiations for acquisition commence. 

Agency shall determine sufficiency of title (taking subject to). If the Agency 
acquires any right of way on a State highway, sufficiency of title (taking subject 
to) shall be determined in accordance with the current "State Right of Way 
Manual" and the "Contractor Services Guide". Agency shall clear any 
encumbrances necessary to conform to these requirements, obtain Title 
Insurance policies as required and provide the 'State copies of any title policies 
for the properties acquired. 

Agency shall conduct a Level 1 Hazardous Materials Study within project 
limits to detect presence of hazardous materials on any property purchase, 
excavation or disturbance of structures, as early in the project design as 
possible, but at a minimum prior to property acquisition or approved design. 

Agency shall conduct a Level 2 Site Investigation of sufficient scope to 
confirm the presence of contamination, determine impacts to properties and 
develop special provisions and cost estimates, if the Level I Corridor study 

WE 
28136 



indicates the potential presence of contamination that could impact the 
properties. 

• If contamination is found, a recommendation for remediation will be 
presented to State. 

Agency shall be responsible for arrangement of any necessary remediation. 

Agency shall conduct asbestos, lead paint and other hazardous materials 
surveys for all structures that will be demolished, renovated or otherwise 
disturbed. Asbestos surveys must be conducted by an AHERA (asbestos 
hazard emergency response act) certified inspector. 

4. Appraisal: 

Agency shall conduct the valuation process of properties to be acquired. 

Agency shall perform the Appraisal Reviews. 

Agency shall recommend Just Compensation, based upon a review of the 
valuation by qualified personnel. 

5. Negotiations: 

Agency shall tender all monetary offers to land-owners in writing at the 
compensation shown in the appraisal review. Conveyances taken for more or 
less than the approved Just Compensation will require a statement justifying 
the settlement. Said statement will include the consideration of any property 
trades, construction obligations and zoning or permit concessions. If State 
performs this function, it will provide the Agency with all pertinent letters, 
negotiation records and obligations incurred during the acquisition process. 

State and Agency shall determine a date for certification of right of way and 
agree to cosign the State's Right of Way Certification form. State and Agency 
agree possession of all right of way shall occur prior to advertising of any 
construction contract, unless appropriate exceptions have been agreed to by 
Agency and State. 

Agency agrees to file all Recommendations for Condemnation at least seventy 
(70) days prior to the right of way certification date if negotiations have not 
been successful on those properties. 

6. Relocation: 

a. Agency shall perform any relocation assistance, make replacement housing 
computations, and do all things necessary to relocate any displaced parties on 
the Project. 

- 10- 
28136 



Agency shall make all relocation and moving payments for the Project. 

Agency shall perform the relocation appeal process. 

Closing Phase 

Agency shall close all transactiohs. This includes drawing of deeds, releases and 
satisfactions necessary to clear title, obtaining signatures on release documents, 
and making all payments. If Agency is handling the closing, State shall submit all 
signed Final Report packets, information required by the Uniform Act, and 
agreements to the Agency. 

2. Agency shall record conveyance documents, only upon acceptance by appropriate 
agency. 

Property Management 

Agency shall take possession of all the acquired properties. There shall be no 
encroachments of buildings or other private improvements allowed upon the State 
highway right of way. 

2. Agency shall dispose of all improvements and excess land. 

Condemnation 

Agency may offer mediation if the parties have reached an impasse. 

Agency shall perform all administrative functions in preparation of the 
condemnation process, such as preparing final offer and complaint letters. 

Agency' shall perform all legal and litigation work related to the condemnation 
process. (If State agrees to handle legal and litigation work, prior approval 
evidenced by Chief Trial Counsel, Department of Justice, signature on this 
Agreement is required. Where it is contemplated that property will be obtained for 
Agency for the Project, such approval will be conditioned on passage of a 
resolution by Agency substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D, and by 
this reference made a part hereof, specifically identifying the property being 
acquired.) 

Where State shall perform legal or litigation work related to the condemnation 
process, Agency acknowledges, and agrees and undertakes to assure that no 
member of Agency's board or council, nor Agency's mayor, when such member or 
mayor is a practicing attorney, nor Agency's attorney nor any member of the law 
firm of Agency's attorney, board or council member, or mayor, will represent any 
party, except Agency, against the State of Oregon, its employees or contractors, in 
any matter arising from or related to the Project which is the subject of this 
Agreement. 

-11 - 
28136 



F. Transfer of Right of Way to State 

If applicable, Agency agrees to transfer to the State all right of way acquired on the 
State highway which was acquired in the Agency's name. The specific method of 
conveyance will be determined by the Agency and the State at the time of transfer and 
shall be coordinated by the State's Region Right of Way Manager. Agency agrees to 
provide the State all information and file documentation the State deems necessary to 
integrate the right of way into the State's highway system. At a minimum, this includes: 
copies of all recorded conveyance documents used to vest title in the name of the 
Agency during the right of way acquisition process, and the Agency's Final Report or 
Summary Report for each acquisition file that reflects the terms of the acquisition and 
all agreements with the property owner(s). 

G. Transfer of Right of Way to Agency 

If applicable, State agrees to transfer and Agency agrees to accept all right of way 
acquired on the Agency's facility which was acquired in the State's name. The 
specific method of conveyance will be determined by the State and the Agency at 
the time of transfer and shall be coordinated by the State's Region Right of Way 
Manager. If requested, State agrees to provide Agency information and file 
documentation associated with the transfer. 

- 12 - 
28136 



For purposes of Exhibits B and C, references to Department shall mean State, references to Contractor 
shall mean Agency, and references to Contract shall mean Agreement. 

EXHIBIT B (Local Agency or State Agency) 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION 

Contractor certifies by signing this Contract that Contractor has not: 

Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingency fee or other 
consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely for me or the 
above Contractor) to solicit or secure this Contract, 

agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this Contract, to employ or retain the 
services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the Contract, or 

paid or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for me or the above Contractor), any fee, contribution, donation or consideration 
of any kind for or in connection with, procuring or carrying out the Contract, except as here 
expressly stated (if any): 

Contractor further acknowledges that this certificate is to be furnished to the Federal Highway 
Administration, and is subject to applicable State and Federal laws, both criminal and civil. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL CERTIFICATION 

Department official likewise certifies by signing this Contract that Contractor or his/her representative has 
not been required directly or indirectly as an expression of implied condition in connection with obtaining or 
carrying out this Contract to: 

Employ, retain or agree to employ or retain, any firm or person or 

pay or agree to pay, to any firm, person or organization, any fee, contribution, donation or 
consideration of any kind except as here expressly stated (if any): 

Department official further acknowledges this certificate is to be furnished to the Federal Highway 
Administration, and is subject to applicable State and Federal laws, both criminal and civil. 

Exhibit C 
Federal Provisions 

Oregon Department of Transportation 

CERTIFICATION OF NONINVOLVEMENT IN ANY DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor certifies by signing this Contract that to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its 
principals: 

-13- 
28136 



Are not presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or 
voluntarily 	excluded 	from 	covered 
transactions by any Federal department or 
agency; 

Have not within a three-year period preceding 
this Contract been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to 
obtain or performing a public (federal, state or 
local) transaction or contract under a public 
transaction; violation of federal or state 
antitrust 	statutes 	or 	commission 	of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery 
falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements or receiving stolen property; 

Are not presently indicted for or otherwise 
criminally or 	civilly charged 	by a 
governmental entity (federal, state or local) 
with commission of any of the offenses 
enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this 
certification; and 

Have not within a three-year period preceding 
this Contract had one or more public 
transactions 	(federal, 	state 	or 	local) 
terminated for cause or default. 

Where the Contractor is unable to certify to any of 
the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall submit a written explanation to 
Department. 

List exceptions. For each exception noted, indicate 
to whom the exception applies, initiating agency, and 
dates of action. If additional space is required, attach 
another page with the following heading: Certification 
Exceptions continued, Contract Insert. 

EXCEPTIONS: 

Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of 
award, but will be considered in determining 
Contractor responsibility. Providing false information 
may result in criminal prosecution or administrative 
sanctions. 

The Contractor is advised that by signing this 
Contract, the Contractor is deemed to have signed 
this certification. 

INSTRUCTIONS 	FOR 	CERTIFICATION 
REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, 
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS-
PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

By signing this Contract, the Contractor is 
providing the certification set out below. 

The inability to provide the certification 
required below will not necessarily result in 
denial, of participation in this covered 
transaction. The Contractor shall explain 
why he or she cannot provide the 
certification set out below. This explanation 
will be considered in connection with the 
Department determination to enter into this 
transaction. Failure to furnish an explanation 
shall 	disqualify 	such 	person 	from 
participation in this transaction. 
The certification in this clause is a material 
representation of fact upon which reliance 
was placed when the Department 
determined to enter into this transaction. If it 
is later determined that the Contractor 
knowingly 	rendered 	an 	erroneous 
certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government or the 
Department may terminate this transaction 
for cause of default. 

The Contractor shall provide immediate 
written notice to the Department if at any 
time the Contractor learns that its. 
certification was erroneous when submitted 
or has become erroneous by reason of 
changed circumstances. 

The terms "covered transaction", "debarred", 
"suspended", "ineligible", "lower tier covered 
transaction", "participant", "person", "primary 
covered 	transaction", 	"principal', 	and 
"voluntarily excluded", as used in this clause, 
have the meanings set out.in the Definitions 
and Coverage sections of the rules 
implementing Executive Order 12549. You 
may contact the Department's Program 
Section (Tel. (503) 986-3400) to which this 
proposal is being submitted for assistance in 
obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

The Contractor agrees by entering into this 
Contract that, should the proposed covered 
transaction be entered into, it shall not 
knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 

- 14 - 

28136 



transactions with a person who is debarred, This certification applies to subcontractors, material 
suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily suppliers, vendors, and other lower tier participants. 
excluded from participation in this covered 
transaction, 	unless 	authorized 	by 	the • 	Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 29 - 
Department or agency 	entering 	into this 
transaction. Appendix B--Certification Regarding Debarment, 

Suspension, 	Ineligibility, 	and 	Voluntary 
7. 	The Contractor further agrees by entering Exclusion--Lower Tier Covered Transactions 

into 	this 	Contract 	that 	it 	will 	include 	the 
Addendum 	to 	Form 	FHWA-1273 	titled, Instructions for Certification 
"Appendix 	B--Certification 	Regarding 
Debarment, 	Suspension, 	Ineligibility 	and i. 	By signing and submitting this Contract, the 
Voluntary 	Exc!usion--Lower 	Tier 	Covered prospective lower tier participant is providing 
Transactions", provided by the Department the certification set out below. 
entering into this covered transaction without 
modification, 	in 	all 	lower 	tier 	covered 2. 	The certification in this clause is a material 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower representation of fact upon which reliance 
tier covered transactions. was 	placed 	when 	this 	transaction 	was 

entered into. If it is later determined that the 
8. 	A participant in a covered transaction may prospective lower tier participant knowingly 

rely upon 	a certification of a 	prospective rendered 	an 	erroneous 	certification, 	in 
participant in a lower tier covered transaction addition to other remedies available to the 
that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible Federal 	Government, 	the 	department or 
or voluntarily excluded 	from 	the 	covered agency with which this transaction originated 
transaction, 	unless 	it 	knows 	that 	the may pursue available remedies, 	including 
certification is erroneous. A participant may suspension and/or debarment. 
decide the method and frequency by which it 
determines 	the 	eligibility 	of 	its 	principals. 3. 	The prospective lower tier participant shall 
Each participant may, but is not required to, provide 	immediate 	written 	notice 	to 	the 
check the Nonprocurement List published by person to which this Contract is submitted if 
the U. S. General Services Administration, at 	any 	time 	the 	prospective 	lower 	tier 

participant learns that its certification was 
9. 	Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be erroneous when submitted or has become 

construed 	to 	require 	establishment 	of a erroneous 	by 	reason 	of 	changed 
system of records to render in good faith the circumstances. 
certification 	required 	by 	this 	clause. 	The 
knowledge and information of a participant is 4. 	The terms "covered transaction", "debarred", 
not required to exceed that which is normally "suspended", "ineligible", "lower tier covered 
possessed 	by 	a 	prudent 	person 	in 	the transaction", "participant", "person", "primary 
ordinary course of business dealings, covered transaction", "principal", "proposal", 

and "voluntarily excluded", as used in this 
10. 	Except 	for transactions 	authorized 	under clause, have the meanings set out in the 

paragraph 	6 	of 	these 	instructions, 	if 	a Definitions and Coverage sections of rules 
participant 	in 	a 	covered 	transaction implementing Executive Order 12549. You 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered may 	contact 	the 	person 	to 	which 	this 
transaction with a person who is suspended, Contract 	is 	submitted 	for 	assistance 	in 
debarred, 	ineligible or voluntarily excluded obtaining a copy of those regulations. 
from 	participation 	in 	this 	transaction, 	in 
addition to other remedies available to the 5. 	The prospective lower tier participant agrees 
Federal Government or the Department, the by submitting this Contract that, should the 
Department may terminate this transaction proposed covered transaction be entered 
for cause or default. into, 	it shall 	not knowingly enter into any 

lower tier covered transaction with a person 
Ill. 	ADDENDUM 	TO 	FORM 	FHWA-1273, who 	is 	debarred, 	suspended, 	declared 

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS ineligible 	or 	voluntarily 	excluded 	from 
participation 	in 	this 	covered 	transaction, 

-15- 
28136 



unless 	authorized 	by 	the 	department or presently 	debarred, 	suspended, 
agency 	with 	which 	this 	transaction proposed 	for 	debarment, 	declared 
originated, ineligible 	or 	voluntarily 	excluded 	from 

participation in this transaction by any 
6. 	The prospective lower tier participant further Federal department or agency., 

agrees by submitting this Contract that it will 
include 	this 	clause 	titled, 	"Certification -b. 	Where 	the 	prospective 	lower 	tier 
Regarding 	Debarment, 	Suspension, participant is unable to certify to any of 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower the statements in this certification, such 
Tier 	Covered 	Transaction", 	without prospective 	participant shall 	submit a 
modification, 	in 	all 	lower 	tier 	covered written explanation to Department. 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower 
tier covered transactions. IV. EMPLOYMENT 

7. 	A participant in a covered transaction may 1. 	Contractor 	warrants 	that 	he 	has 	not 
rely 	upon 	a 	certification 	of a 	prospective employed 	or 	retained 	any 	company 	or 
participant in a lower tier covered transaction person, other than a bona fide employee 
that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible working solely for Contractor, to solicit or 
or voluntarily excluded 	from 	the covered secure this Contract and that he has not paid 
transaction, 	unless 	it 	knows 	that 	the or agreed to pay any company or person, 
certification is erroneous. A participant may other than a bona fide employee working 
decide the method and frequency by which it solely for Contractors, any fee, commission, 
determines 	the 	eligibility 	of 	its 	principals, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other 
Each participant may, but is not required to, consideration contingent upon or resulting 
check the nonprocurement list, from the award or making of this Contract. 

For breach or violation of this warranting, 
8. 	Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be Department shall have the right to annul this 

construed 	to 	require 	establishment 	of a Contract without liability or in its discretion to 
system of records to render in good faith the deduct 	from 	the 	Contract 	price 	or 
certification 	required 	by 	this 	clause. 	The consideration or otherwise recover, the full 
knowledge and information of a participant is amount 	of 	such 	fee, 	commission, 
not required to exceed that which is normally percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent 
possessed 	by 	a 	prudent 	person 	in 	the fee. 
ordinary course of business dealings. 

2. 	Contractor shall 	not engage, 	on a full or 
9. 	Except 	for 	transactions 	authorized 	under part-time basis or other basis, during the 

paragraph 	5 	of 	these 	instructions, 	if 	a period of the Contract, any professional or 
participant 	in 	a 	covered 	transaction technical personnel who are or have been at 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered any time during the period of this Contract, in 
transaction with a person who is suspended, the employ of Department, except regularly 
debarred, 	ineligible or voluntarily excluded retired employees, without written consent of 
from 	participation 	in 	this 	transaction, 	in the public employer of such person. 
addition to other remedies available to the 
Federal 	Government, 	the 	department 	or 3. 	Contractor 	agrees 	to 	perform 	consulting 
agency with which this transaction originated services with that standard of care, skill and 
may pursue available 	remedies, 	including diligence normally provided by a professional 
suspension and/or debarment. in 	the 	performance 	of 	such 	consulting 

services on work similar to that hereunder. 
Certification 	Regarding 	Debarment, Department shall be entitled to rely on the 
Suspension, 	Ineligibility, 	and 	Voluntary accuracy, competence, and completeness of 
Exclusion--Lower 	Tier 	Covered Contractor's services. 
Transactions 

V. 	NONDISCRIMINATION 

a. 	The 	prospective 	lower 	tier 	participant 
certifies, by entering into this Contract, During 	the 	performance 	of 	this 	Contract, 
that 	neither 	it 	nor 	its 	principals 	is Contractor, 	for 	himself, 	his 	assignees 	and 

- 16- 
28136 



successors in interest, hereinafter referred to as 
Contractor, agrees as follows: 

Compliance with Regulations. Contractor 
agrees to comply with Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, and Section 162(a) of 
the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973 and the 
Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987. 
Contractor shall comply with the regulations 
of the Department of Transportation relative 
to nondiscrimination in Federally assisted 
programs of the Department of 
Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 21, as they may be 
amended from time to time (hereinafter 
referred to as the Regulations), which are 
incorporated by reference and made a part 
of this Contract. Contractor, with regard to 
the work performed after award and prior to 
completion of the Contract work, shall not 
discriminate on grounds of race, creed, 
color, sex or national origin in the selection 
and retention of subcontractors, including 
procurement of materials and leases of 
equipment. Contractor shall not participate 
either directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of 
the Regulations, including employment 
practices, when the Contract covers a 
program set forth in Appendix B of the 
Regulations. 

Solicitation for Subcontractors, including 
Procurement of Materials and Equipment. In 
all solicitations, either by competitive bidding 
or negotiations made, by Contractor for work 
to be performed under a subcontract, 
including procurement of materials and 
equipment, each potential subcontractor or 
supplier shall be notified by Contractor of 
Contractor's obligations under this Contract 
and regulations relative to nondiscrimination 
on the grounds of race, creed, color, sex or 
national origin. 

Nondiscrimination in Employment (Title VII 
of the 1964 Civil Rights Act). During the 
performance of this Contract, Contractor 
agrees as follows: 

a. Contractor will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, creed, 
color, sex or national origin. Contractor 
will take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed, and 'that 

employees 	are 	treated 	during 
employment, without regard to their 
race, creed, color, sex or national origin. 
Such action shall include, but not be 
limited to the following: employment, 
upgrading, demotion or transfer; 
recruitment or recruitment advertising; 
layoff or termination; rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; and 
selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. Contractor agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available to 
employees and applicants for 
employment, notice setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination 
clause. 

Contractor will, in all solicitations or 
advertisements for employees placed by 
or on behalf of Contractor, state that all 
qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without 
regard to race, creed, color, sex or 
national origin. 

4. Information and Reports. Contractor will 
provide all information and reports required 
by the Regulations or orders and instructions 
issued pursuant thereto, and will permit 
access to his books, records, accounts, 
other sources of information, and his 
facilities as may be determined by 
Department or FHWA as appropriate, and 
shall set forth what efforts he has made to 
obtain the information. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance. In the event of 
Contractor's noncompliance with the 
nondiscrimination provisions of the Contract, 
Departrnent shall impose such agreement 
sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine 
to be appropriate, including, but not limited 
to: 

Withholding of payments to Contractor 
under the agreement until Contractor 
complies; and/or 

Cancellation, termination or suspension 
of the agreement in whole or in part. 

6. Incorporation of Provisions. Contractor will 
include the provisions of paragraphs 1 
through 6 of this section in every 
subcontract, including procurement of 
materials and leases of equipment, unless 

-17- 
28136 



VI 

exempt from Regulations, orders or 
instructions issued pursuant thereto. 
Contractor shall take such action with 
respect to any subcontractor or procurement 
as Department or FHWA may direct as a 
means of enforcing such provisions, 
including sanctions for noncompliance; 
provided, however, that in the event 
Contractor becomes involved in or is 
threatened with litigation with a 
subcontractor or supplier as a result of such 
direction, Department may, at its option, 
enter into such litigation to protect the 
interests of Department, and, in addition, 
Contractor may request Department to enter 
into such litigation to protect the interests of 
the State of Oregon. 

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISE (DBE) POLICY 

In accordance with Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 26, Contractor shall agree to 
abide by and take all necessary and reasonable 
steps to comply with the following statement: 

DBE POLICY STATEMENT 

DBE Policy. It is the policy of the United States 
Department of Transportation (USDOT) to 
practice nondiscrimination on the basis of race, 
color, sex and/or national origin in the award 
and administration of USDOT assist contracts. 
Consequently, the DBE requirements of 49 
CFR 26 apply to this Contract. 

Required Statement For USDOT Financial 
Assistance Agreement. If as a condition of 
assistance the Agency has submitted and the 
US Department of Transportation has approved 
a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
Affirmative Action Program which the Agency 
agrees to carry out, this affirmative action 
program is incorporated into the financial 
assistance agreement by reference. 

DBE Obligations. The Department and its 
Contractor agree to ensure that Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprises as defined in 49 CFR 26 
have the opportunity to participate in the 
performance of contracts and subcontracts 
financed in whole or in part with Federal funds. 
In this regard, Contractor shall take all 
necessary and reasonable steps in accordance 
with 49 CFR 26 to ensure that Disadvantaged 

Business Enterprises have the opportunity to 
compete for and perform contracts. Neither 
Department nor its contractors shall 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 
origin or sex in the award and performance of 
federally-assisted contracts. The Contractor 
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 
CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of 
such contracts. Failure by the Contractor to 
carry out these requirements is a material 
breach of this Contract, which may result in the 
termination of this Contract or such other 
remedy as Department deems appropriate. 

The DBE Policy Statement and Obligations 
shall be included in all subcontracts entered into 
under this Contract. - 

Records and Reports. Contractor shall provide 
monthly documentation to Department that it is 
subcontracting with or purchasing materials 
from the DBE5 identified to meet Contract 
goals. Contractor shall notify Department and 
obtain its written approval before replacing a 
DBE or making any change in the DBE 
participation listed. If a DBE is unable to fulfill 
the original obligation to the Contract, 
Contractor must demonstrate to Department the 
Affirmative Action steps taken to replace the 
DBE with another DBE. Failure to do so will 
result in withholding payment on those items. 
The monthly documentation will not be required 
after the DBE goal commitment is satisfactory 
to Department. 

Any DBE participation attained after the DBE 
goal has been satisfied should be reported to 
the Departments. 

DBE Definition. Only 	firms 	DBE 
certified by the State of Oregon, Department of 
Consumer & Business Services, Office of 
Minority, Women & Emerging Small Business, 
may be utilized to satisfy this obligation. 

CONTRACTOR'S DBE CONTRACT GOAL 

DBE GOAL 0 % 

By signing this Contract, Contractor assures 
that good faith efforts have been made to meet 
the goal for the DBE participation specified in 
the Contract for this project as required by ORS 
200.045, and 49 CFR 26.53 and 49 CFR, Part 
26, Appendix A. 

-18- 
28136 



REQUIREMENT CONTACT OFFICE OF 
VII. LOBBYING 
	

CIVIL 	RIGHTS 	AT 	(503)986-4354. 

The Contractor certifies, by signing this 
agreement to the best of his or her knowledge 
and belief, that: 

No Federal appropriated funds have been 
paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any Federal agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of 
any Federal contract, the making of any 
Federal grant, the making of any Federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment or modification of any 
Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative 
agreement. 

2. If any funds other than Federal app.ropriated 
funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any 
Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this agreement, the 
undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-LLL, Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying', in accordance with its 
instructions. 

This certification is a material representation of 
fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. 
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code. 
Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of 
not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

The Contractor also agrees by signing this 
agreement that he or she shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all 
lower tier subagreements, which exceed 
$100,000 and that all such subrecipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 

FOR 	INQUIRY 	CONCERNING 
DEPARTMENT'S 	DBE 	PROGRAM 

-19- 
28136 



RESOLUTION EXERCISING THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN EXHIBIT D 
Right of Way Services 

WHEREAS (insert title of agency) may exercise the power of eminent domain pursuant to (Agency's 
charter) (statutes conferring authority) and the Law of the State of Oregon generally, when the 
exercise of such power is deemed necessary by the (insert title of agency)'s governing body to 
accomplish public purposes for which (insert title of agency) has responsibility; 

WHEREAS (insert title of agency) has the responsibility of providing safe transportation routes for 
commerce, convenience and to adequately serve the traveling public; 

WHEREAS the project or projects known as (insert Project name) have been planned in accordance 
with appropriate engineering standards for the construction, maintenance or improvement of said 
transportation infrastructure such that property damage is minimized, transportation promoted, travel 
safeguarded; and 

WHEREAS to accomplish the project or projects set forth above it is necessary to acquire the 
interests in the property described in "Exhibit A," attached to this resolution and, by this reference 
incorporated herein; now, therefore 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by (Agency's Council, Commission, or Board) 

The foregoing statements of authority and need are, in fact, the case. The project or 
projects for which the property is required and is being acquired are necessary in the 
public interest, and the same have been planned, designed, located, and will be 
constructed in a manner which will be most compatible with the greatest public good and 
the least private injury; 

The power of eminent domain is hereby exercised with respect to each of the interests in 
property described in Exhibit A. Each is acquired subject to payment of just compensation 
and subject to procedural requirements of Oregon law; 

The (insert title of agency)'s staff and the (Agency's Attorney, Counsel, or District's 
Counsel (or) (The Oregon Department of Transportation and the Attorney General) are 
authorized and requested to attempt to agree with the owner and other persons in interest 
as to the compensation to be paid for each acquisition, and, in the event that no 
satisfactory agreement can be reached, to commence and prosecute such condemnation 
proceedings as may be necessary to finally determine just compensation or any other 
issue appropriate to be determined by a court in connection with the acquisition. This 
authorization is not intended to expand the jurisdiction of any court to decide matters 
determined above or determinable by the (Agency's Council, Commission, or Board). 

(insert title of agency) expressly reserves its jurisdiction to determine the necessity or 
propriety of any acquisition, its quantity, quality, or locality, and to change or abandon any 
acquisition. 

DATED this 	day of 	 , 20_ 

- 20 - 
28136 



King, Sandy 

From: 	 Adams, Steve 
Sent: 	 Tuesday, March 06, 2012 2:48 PM 
To: 	 Managers 
Subject: 	 Speed Sign changes 
Attachments: 	 Speed Sign changes, Feb. 2012.doc 

The attached document shows the speed sign changes that will occur within the city in the next few weeks. 

Thanks, Steve 

P.E. 
Interim City Engineer 
City of Wilsonville 
29799 SW Town Center Loop E 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 

ph: 503-682-4960 
email: adams@ci.wiIsonville.or.us  

PUBLIC RECORDS LAW DISCLOSURE: Messages to and from this e-mail address is a public record of the 
City of Wilsonuille and may be subject to public disclosure. This e-mail is subject to the State Retention Schedule. 



Cit of 	 4L 
WILSONVILLI 

Etigineering Deprniinenl 
29799 SW Town Cntr ILp. E. 
WIsoiwIJe, OR 97070 
503-6824960 
03..682-7025 

MEMO 
Community Development Department 

Engineering Division 

DATE: 	February 23, 2012 

TO: 	Arnie Gray 
Public Works Roads 

FROM: 	Steve R. Adams, P.E. 
Interim City Engineer 

RE: 	Speed Sign Changes• 

Arnie, to bring the city into conformance with State of Oregon Speed Zone Orders and 
regulatory statutes several speed limit signs in the city need to be changed and one moved: 

Ridder Road currently signed at 35 mph 
Change to 30 mph between Boones Ferry Road and 95th  Ave. 
Change to 40 mph 95th  Ave west to city limits. 

Boones Ferry Road currently signed at 35 mph 
Change to 45 mph between Ridder Road and 200 ft north of Barber St. 

Freeman Drive 	currently signed at 35 mph 
Change to 25 mph 

Boeckman Road 	current speeds vary from 20 to 35 mph 
Speed shall stay at 20 mph near the bridge with the settlement problems. 
Limited Sight Distance warning, 25 mph shall stay through the dip. 
All other signs need to be changed to 40 mph. 

Wilsonville Road, near Willamette Way West 
West bound we have a 45 mph sign just east of the entrance to Grahams Oak 
Nature Park. This sign and post needs to be relocated to west of the entrance. 

Villebois - Costa Circle and Barber Streets currently signed at 30 mph 
Change to 25 mph 

Please let me know should you have any questions. 



CI'ty of W'11sonv'Ille 
January 2012 

Ilk 

4 

\ L ....; 	14fASC 

EGO 

Clackamas County Sheriff's Office 
2223 Kaen Rd 

Oregon City, OR 97045 

www.co.clackamas.or. us/sheriff 



Monthly Summary 

During January 2012, the Clackamas County Sheriffs Office provided law enforcement service 
to the City of Wilsonville on a 24 hour a day basis. During this time period the Sheriffs Office 
answered 441 calls for service, which was an average of 14.2 calls per day. 

The monthly average for calls for service during the past three years has been 489.3. The 441 
calls in the City during the month of January reflect a 9.9% decrease over the average during the 
last three years. 

Below is a chart showing the number of calls for service in the City during the last 5 years. 

Number Monthly Daily 
Year of Calls Average Average 

2007 6,508 542.3 17.8 
2008 6,271 522.6 17.2 
2009 6,273 522.8 17.2 
2010 - 5,803 483.6 15.9 
2011 5,539 461.6 15.2 

An overall look at the shift activity reflects the following percentages of calls taken, traffic stops 
made and reports taken for January. 

Graveyard: 
Day Shift: 

Swing Shift: 

Percentage of 
Calls Taken 

20.4% 
43.8% 
35.8% 

Percentage of 
Traffic Stops 

31.6% 
52.0% 
16.4% 

• Percentage of 
Reports Taken 

18.3% 
57.0% 
24.7% 

During January 2012, 348 traffic stops were made in the City with the following breakdown for 
each shift. 

Total 	Graveyard 	 Days 	Swing Shift 

	

Stops Made: 	348 = 110 31.6% 	181 52.0% 	57 	16.4% 

	

Citations Issued: 	240 = 	43 17.9% 	167 69.6% 	30 	12.5% 

Included in the above totals are 159 traffic stops (45.7%) and 160 citations (66.7%) issued by 
the Traffic Unit. 

2 



Calls for Service 

Number of Calls 
Per Shift 

January 
2012 

441 

Graveyard 90 	20.4% 
(2100-0700) 

Day Shift 193 	43.8% 
(0700-1700) 

Swing Shift 158 	35.8% 
(1100-0300) 

Average Number of 14.2 
Calls Per Day 

Monthly 
Average 

2011 

461.6 

88.3 	19.1% 

211.7 45.9% 

161.7 	35.0% 

15.2 

The chart on the following page shows the types of calls for service received during the month. 
These calls do not reflect actual criminal activity. In some cases the call was dispatched as a 
particular type of incident, but it was later determined to be of a different nature. For actual 
criminal activity during the month see the "Reports Taken" chart. 

Other Officer Activity 

Type of Activity 
Jry 

2012 

Follow-Up Contact 57 
Foot Patrol I 
Premise Check 40 
Subject Stop 25 
Suspect Contact 4 

Suspicious Vehicle Stop 33 

Warrant Service 15 

Total: 175 

• 2011 
Monthly 
Average 

68.7 
2.1 

40.9 
29.8 

9.8 
28.8 

9.5 

189.5 

3 



Types of Calls 

Type of Calls January
2012 

Abandoned Vehicle  
Accidents (All) 21 
Alarms 62 
Animal Complaint 10 
Assault 4 
Assist Outside Agency 10 
Assist Public 30 
Burglary 6 
Criminal Mischief 21 
Death Investigation  
Disturbance 23 
Extra Patrol Request 1 
Fire Services 7 
Fraud 7 
Hazard 7 
Juvenile Problem 13 
Kidnap  
Mental 4 
Minor In Possession 2 
Missing Person  
Noise Complaints 4 
Open Door/Window 4 
Promiscuous Shooting  
Property Found / Lost / Recovered 9 
Provide Information 22 
Prowler 1 
Recovered Stolen Vehicle  
Robbery  
Runaway Juvenile 5 
Sexual Crime (All) 3 
Shooting  
Stolen Vehicle I UUMV 5 
Suicide Attempt / Threat 3 
Suspicious Circumstances 5 
Suspicious Person 12 
Suspicious Vehicle 10 
Theft I Shoplift 46 
Threat [Harassment / Menacing 20 
Traffic Complaint 26 
Unknown I Incomplete Call 14 
Unwanted / Trespassing 6 
Vice Complaints (Drugs) 3 
Violation of Restraining Order  
Welfare Check 10 
Other Not Listed Above 5 

Total: 441 

2011 
Monthly 
Average 

0.9 
20.4 
51.8 
7.0 
5.3 

12.8 
47.1 
4.8 

15.0 
1.8 

23.5 
3.0 
5.5 

11.6 
9.8 

11.6 
.0 

3.7 
1.4 
2.0 
8.1 
1.1 
0.9 
9.3 

14.3 
1.5 
0.8 
0.5 
4.3 
2.3 
0.1 
3.1 
6.8 
9.5 

17.3. 
10.6 
39.5 
16.5 
22.1 
14.6 

9.1 
7.8 
2.5 

12.3 
7.8 

461.6 



Median Response Times to Dispatched Calls 

All Dispatched Calls All Calls Priotjty I & 2 
Calls 

Input to dispatch: 
(Time call was on hold) 3.0 Minutes 3.0 Minutes 

Dispatch to Arrival: 
(Time it took deputy to arrive 5.0 Minutes 4.0 Minutes 
after being dispatched)  

During January, 186 reports were taken. 18.3% were written by the graveyard shift, 57.0% by 
the dayshift units and 24.7% were written by the swing shift units. 

Reports Taken 

Type of Report 
January

2012 

Accident 13 
Theft 28 
Criminal Mischief 19 
Burglary 5 
Stolen Vehicle 4 
Identity Theft I 
Assault 3 
Drug Crimes  
Miscellaneous Reports 123 

Report Totals: 186 

2011 
Monthly 
Average 

10.8 
29.3 
12.2 
3.4 
2.5 
2.7 
3.1 
3.3 

125.7 
193.0 

Shift Totals 
January 

 
2012 

Graveyard Shift: 34 	18.3% 

Day Shift: 106 	570% 

Swing Shift: 46 	24.7% 

2011 Monthly 
Averaae 

33.8 17.5% 

105.0 54.4% 

54.2 28.1% 

5 



Arrests By Age Group 

January 2012 	 This chart counts the total number of charges. The number of people arrested is totaled at the bottom. 

JUVENILES 

Probable Cause 

Arson Pr  
Assault, Aggravated Pe  
Burglary Pr  
Attempt Murder Pe  
Murder Pe  
Rape Pe - 

Robbery Pe  
Theft (general) Pr 2 
Stolen Vehicles 

ini.Totals 
I 

2 0 

iThl1Ks1liT1II1Iiiii* Probable Cause Warrants 

Assault, Simple Pe 1 
Child Abuse/Neglect Pe  
Criminal Mischief Pr  
Criminal Mistreatment Pe  
Criminal Trespass Be  
Cruelty to Animals Be  
Disorderly Conduct Be 1 
Drug Charges (all) Be  
Forgery Pr  
Fraud Use Credit Card Pr  
Harassment Pe  
dentity Theft Pr  
Kidnapping Pe  
Menacing Pe  
Negotiate a Bad Check Pr  
Offensive Littering Be  
Public/Private Indecency Be  
Recklessly Endangering Pe 1 
Resisting Arrest Be  
Sex Crimes (Other) Pe  
Sexual Abuse Pe  
Sodomy Pe  
Strangulation Pe  
Unlawful Entry into Motor Vehicle Pr  
Violation of Restraining Order Pe  
Weapons Violations Be  
ICrimes Not Listed above 	 Be  

rt 11 / Other Totals 3 

Probable Cause 

0 

Warrants 

ADULTS 

Probable Cause Warrants 

1 2 

1 1 

6 1 

8 4 

Probable Cause Warrants 

3 1 

4 4 

1 1 

6 

12 13 

[Probable Cause Warrants 

[ 	
20 17 

Probable Cause Warrants 

6 4 

8 3 
6 10 

[ 	81 21 

22 	I 11 

Traffic Charges 

Number of People Arrested on These Charges: 

Total 

42 

Total 

12 

13 
17 

10  



T 

/ 
- - - 	I 

0 

II

_EANpR  SW 

WNI 
S 

- 	WHiL 

\ / 
- - 	- - 	- 

- 22'T I 
SWBARBE 

LN 

$W BAILf' 

SW5 

SW 

HST 

SWMo 	

/ 

,< ,J!DAV0S LN 

	

-- 	--- 

	

- 	0 

±JL2 

-- ----/ SWCAHALINRD 
/ -- 

] / / 	z 
/ 

/ 	w 
/ 	o 

0 
I0 

ye  

S. Ti 

CID 

10 

0. 
S 
a 

,w CTNS DR 

sw WLSONVILLE 

Sw 

ISWH 	sl( 

Wilsonville 
January 2012 

Assault 	 R Stolen Vehicle 

Burglary 	 Theft
OD  

Criminal Mischief 
WE E  

SA 

I 	( 	Y  
T (SWISH LN 

- 	 S ED 

0 

SWHTEApERRD y 

S 
SW WIEDEMANN RD 	

W8RIARPATCHLN 
 

r 

Ix 

- 	ECKMNRD 	 SWc0 

L 	Tw B9eCARN RD 

RDR 

J I  

50 

31 	ç,O 

NE BECI 

0I 

OOI 

0 
LU 
z 

-NE  BROWNOALE FARM RD - 

7 



King, Sandy 

From: 	 Cosgrove, Bryan 
Sent: 	 Friday, March 02, 2012 1:14 PM 
To: 	 celianunezOl @gmail.com ; Mayor Tim Knapp; richardgoddard2olo 

@ gmail.com ; scottstarr97070@gmail.com ; Steven.j.hurst@gmail.com  
Subject: 	 FYI 

All, 

I am having a background packet delivered to each one of you on the bike/ped/emergency access bridge. Mark put the 

packet together for a briefing we gave to the local reporter. There is a lot of useful information in the packet related.to 

the history and public involvement portions of this project. I want you to have the report well in advance of the March 

19th work session. As well, some of you may receive calls from Kallen with the Spokesman. I expressed to her that yot 

issue up in the near future, and that no decision has been made on the matter. I also stated that, 
based on all of the information I have at this moment the staff recommendation is leaning toward moving forward with 

the study. The study will be all-inclusive in terms of alternatives (including using the existing railroad, Boone Bridge, etc), 

costs, alignments, etc. 

503.570.1504 (work) 

cosgroveci.wilsonville.or.us  

29799 SW Town Center Loop 

Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 

DISCLOSURE NOTICE: Messages to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 

Gain may be temporary and uncertain; but ever while you live, expense is constant and certain: 
and it is easier to build two chimneys than to keep one in fueL 
Benjamin Franklin 



DRAWING INDEX 

SHEET DESCRIPTION 	SHEET NUMBER 

DEMOU110N AND TREE PROTECTION PlAN 110 

MATERIALS PtAN 12.0 

GRINDING PLAN L10 

IRRIGATION PLIAl NOT INCLUDED 

PLNDT1NG PLAN L5.0 

SITE DETAILS 100 

SITE DETAILS 16.1 

SITE DETAILS 152 

IRRIGATION DETAILS LB 3 

ENGELMAN PARK 
CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
29799 SW TOWN CENTER LOOPE 
WILLSOWILLE, 0097070 

GREENWORKS, PC 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 
EIAI1RONMENTAL DESIGN 

24 NW 2ND AVENUE, SUITE 100 
PORTLAND, OREGON 97209 
P 503)222-5612 

LAND USE PERMIT SET 
FEBRUARY 1.2012 



KEY NOTES 

1 EXOTOOSCEWALKTOREUAA.PRESERVE 
AND PROTECT 

CRUCTTONENHWWERCTYO€ WLSESNRE 
STANOA055 

EXISONODRIUDWAT - SAwSOTAND REBEDUECONCREIC 

SCEWAUTAND CURB 

SAYKUT ND REMOVE EXISTiNG AC FOR NEWCLRBMRI 
GUTTER 

5 - 
LQXIE

TNGCONCRE1O PRO AT BUS SOUR TO REMAN 

PRESERVE RAC PROTECT 

EXXTTRD MAUCNRY WUL-RENGRE WAUI RIO FOOTiNGS 

7 E)SSORAUTtTTTRANSFORIAERTS REW,IB -PRESERVE NBC 
PROTECT 

8 	1818 UTITrR I&TERS TO ANMIB-PRESERNO 820 
PROTECT 

ERRORS METAL FENCE TO REMAIN 

E)OSTRGWOcCFERTO 5018221 

E1OTPBG GlOAT BOX TO REMAN 
\_J PRESERVERAAOPNGTECT 

Q SAWGIJTNC RESCUE EXiSTiNG CURS ASIC PAVEMENT 
FOR REWACARMUE 

Jif 
I- 

0. 

C 	V 

E 
a) 	-0 

LU 

0 0  
- 

<0 
LU 

AN! 	Z-. 

2° 

LU< 
8 

I- a. 

Dale- 	 02-01-12 

ReelliRnS. 

RftI1IU1I]1I 
DEMOLITION LEGEND 

CXNSTRUCT1CRB ACCESS 

EXISTING EVERGREEN THEE TO BE PROTECTED IN 

+ PLACE TO REMAN LBBDISTIED.SEETRDE 
PROTECTFENRBCIFFEAT1CNS 

OSSIWS DEJCRS TREE TOREPROTECTEG II 

+ ORERTO REMAN LNOlSTO-SEE TREE 
PROTECTiON SPEGFRDATASNS 

E)CSTTPC TREE TORE REMOVED 

+ TREEED080FULREWOREGSEORB 
LASOSIIBEE 

cLEAR AND ORES 

EXCAVATE FOR SIDE.NAJJIS ASIC PAVEMENT 
(SEE 	DING PLAN AND OET8JLO PER DEPTHS) 

EXCAVBTE FOR CRY GREEK 8015 
(SEE SCEDING PERil MO DETALS FOR DEPTHS) 

PAVEMENT REMOVAL 

TREE PROTECTiON FENCAIG 

- - SSITPRURERTVUTE 

E.XIXTOBO FENCE TO RE REMOVED 

NOTES 
lACE TREES, EXCEPT ThOSE OLSIGNATED ON 5118 SOAKING TO BE REMIXUOD SHIll BE 
PROTECTED II PEACE- SEE DESGNPTTORS 

2. SEE ASOPIST REPORT BY 011*53. 

S. PUCE TREE PROTOCITOBI FONCIRN PPJOR TO NIT SITE WOIRSER DEMOLITCM AT TlL 

WTIL 	 CCEIJSIOBI OF ALL OTHER COTROCIORIRCTMTES 

4 STOCIKILS POLED TREES ON SITE TORE REUSED RLRBBOSCREE- LIRIOS MID BRANCHES 
TORE CUPPEEMO 3TOCIO1.ED FOB PT.MBTWG AREA, 

5 TREES NET SELECTED FOR REUSE SHILL BE REMOVED AND DIOFOSEE OFF.SITE 

	

B 	 II 	 32 	NORTH 

En.eT SF AU 
Checked BA: RE 
JOE NO. 	 110308 

HEBISRBE 	 TIE 

L1.O 
ITT V 



6HTCHAJNLINKFENCE 	 I 	 fli F I]r 
TRASH RECEPTAC!ETYP l 	 111.1 III 

/ 	
MATERIALS LEGEND 

EXI8ThGEVERGRETh WEE 

FUTURE DEMONSTRATION RANflNG HJEHS, TYP. 

	

FUTURE 	 - %, 	ç' - 	 NURSELOG 	 0 	ESIONGOECDUEESIEEE 

DEMONSTRATION 	 0 	-- 

	

Pt.AN11NG 	 - 	 - 	- CREEXEED 	
I 	 - 

	

AREAJYP. 	 6HT.CHHJNIJNKFENCE 

	

PIAYGROVNDHREA2 	 - 	 PE1CTER15STRGI 

6HT.CHfrJNLINK  

	

FENCE - -- 	 -- 	 - 4'-O 	 (53 	 BARBIE 

DDRSNyITIEYORPEMSER 

	

El 	 - - 	 - - 	
-, 	 -BRIDGE OVER DRY CREEK  

-. 	, ..t' 	- 	 - 	.. 	 - PI.AYGRO&INOAREA1 	NEWCONCRETECURBANDSIDEWAIJ( 	 I I I 	 BIIERAOE 
IN 	 - '-. 	

-BENCH, TYP. 	 PER CITY OF WILSOFYVLLE STANDURDS 

	

- - 	
I 	

DOG SANITANY STATION TYP 	 BSIADERE 1E24RBINDFELDSTWE 

	

BARBEQUE 	 - -. -. 	 - 	.ofl 	 - 	 TRASH RECEPTACLE, TYP 

PREFAB PICNIC 	 -. 	 - 	 CONCRETE PAVING, rEP 	 I 	 0 	 EENTBWIOER24.IBROJIOFELDEIWE 

	

SHELTER 	 - , 	 V-' 	 - 	. 	 6' FIT. CHBJNLINK FENCE 

	

PICNIC TABLE, TYP 
	

EREE LOG-SELECTED FRONI EN-SIrE TREE REBEVAL 

COLOREDCONCRE1E  
PAVING, TYP.\ 	 •. 	 -' - 	 I 	 CHAIN  

SPUTRRLFENCE-, 	- 	- 	•'- 	

- 	í'4'' 	' 	,.  

	

- 	- 	 - 	 t 	 - - 
	 STEPRIERBTYLAE 

CD 
tO) s 

EETEPAVAG 	 C 

Z 0 
DRVBEERBED 	 w 

	

• 	 - ,,-. 	 -, 	 a 

- 	 - 	
''•. I' 	 - 	 \ - 	 --. -- 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 " 	 '", 	 RNVBIACNG-RWBEXZESSLRFAGE 

UJ 

ADACURBRAMPPER 	 ' 	 E -4 	
FUTURE 	 / 	

NATIATETRAL- W 92600006
cc  

CITY OF WILSONVILLE 	 EXPOSED AGGREGATE 	 ,,,/ 	 DEMONSTRATOR 	 / EXISTING 	 _____________ 	 ________________ 
STABDANDS 	ENTRYSIGN 	 CONCRETE 	 PLENTINGHREA 	 UTILIFYBOX 	

RETLREDENSREWE1TRBPlBET92Gma 

	

DRINKING FOUNTAIN 	 NEW CONG. CURB 	 / 	 SWWTLSOFMLLERD. 	 \ 	EXISTiNG 	 ENTRY SIGN 	 - 

	

AND SIDEWALKPER 	 BUSSFIELTER 

	

CITY OF WILSOIYVILLE 	
0e1 	02.01-12 

	

STANDARDS 	
ReylelEhe: 

Checked By: SE 
Job No. 	110308 
HOEI0RBO 	SE 

(J) 	BhB&flOXOf 0 

0 8 	 16 	 32 	NORTH 



GRADING LEGEND 

 

!CB[[AIIJII11 

0 
0 

lSl0) 

.Th 

4-5% 

ABBREVIATIONS 

EX(411N0E1000(EEN 1000 

(6151(460(004)0101000 

EWSTNGOPOTELEVATGI 

P610000(00001(115*111(4 

0H0C11344110 PER10NTAGE OF&cPE 

(01040.05*1)1(45 

SITE F0R1Y DIE 

 

1W TOP OF ALL 
OH (011CM 00 WALL 
IC lOPOFOOH 
BC BOTT0(IOFOOH 
P HCIIPO(4T 
LP LOW P0(41 
IFS HOHPOIBATOFIWALE 
005 LOWPOPATOFCIHPLE 
FS F(IISHEO 611116cC 
FG F00SH00 GRADE 

 

0 

C . 

E 

tO) 	1 

w 010 

LIM 	z 
46 

2 	c 

C, 

ED 
8 	18 	32 	NORTH 

CAL.: 	02-01-12 

Reylylons: 

OrW.n 80: 	WI 

Ch.ck.d By: 8) 
Job No 	110308 

800100.4: 	 DC 

L3.O 
sheet no. jX 



NOTES: 
ALE NEW PLANTING MEWS SHALL SE RIRIGATED UTLIZYIG AN FILLY AUTOMATiC I1*0E.B0IRRIGATION 5 TREE RESIOYM 4010 PRTEECTSA4 9101 BE PER 
SYSTEM IRRIGATiON SYSTEM 5*5*11 INCOPORARATE ASUMY CONTROLLER. IN COMW*ARON WTH LOW MSORJSTRECCEASO*DAOON-SEE RPOOMBY 
PRECIPITATiON SPRAY IIEADSAJ*D DRIP DISTRAUTTON TUBING IRRIGATRIN INTENT IS TO PEARCE SUFFRIIENT M10G*5HCA,ENNASASSOQATRSDATSP 
WATER TO ESTRAIJSII SEW PLANTINGS WITE*N THE FART TWO RERAN, AND THEN OLOAEY DECREASE 11-23-11. 
WATERING, LASTED TO DRY MONTHS, SE FERRIES OP DR000IT THE FILL 	 4G(3}YE*5S 

A LOGS FROM SITE TWA REA*OEALTOAS BURIED  
CONTRACTOR SHALL PRORIDE TOPSOIL SOt AMENDMENTS 4110 lAtCH AS SPECIFRO, 115 10 112 IN GRACED. 

S 	ALL PLANTS ORIOLE BE E*SSIRJJ.EO IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DETALS ARE SPECEILATESOS PROMOMEAS PART I 	ERISTYGYT1EE LOGATIOTI IICBAlATIFAl 
OF THE CONSTROCTRIN DDCIJNONT PACKAGA- PBORCED BY CITY OFWI,SONVIIE 

4 QUANTITiES RAE LISTED FOR THE CONTRACTOIPS COWIGNENCE ONLY ALC0M4TSIMWTB€VEASDSYT}10 
CONTRACTOR IN THE CASE OF ADOCREPM*CY BETAAES THE LEGEAC 40*0 1510 Pt_AOl. PA-BATS BIOICATED ON 
THE P100* SARi. SUPERCEDE QUANTITiES LISTED Al THE LESEAC 

S TREE REOAORAI. WLIPROIECI1OB* SIGNS. BE  PARAREOMSIT BEEOBh4IAI104d-SER AE000T BY I0MG4JI 
ASIAN AND ASSOCIATES DATER Il-ST-Il. 

S. LOGS FROM SITE T1BEE ROIWWA1. TO BE DORIES lISTS 112 IN GAElIC. 

7. ESJS'TW*GTREEI.00ATIONI INFORMATiON PRORAIEO DY CITY OF WLSISIHLLE. 

PLANTING LEGEND 	 RE10IJII1I 
TREES 

O 	EXISTSIGOE00000S TREES TOREI#MB*CISTIPBED 	 - 

O 	
SEE WWTRMASD TREE PRESEWAIOSSIAS 

ESISIS*GCOMFERTREES TOPAIWANI105TIIWED 
- 	 SEE OMJTFAIMID TWA PRESERVATRINPIN* 

O 	QT3ARORCI4ATOM 

O
WE WACO 4-10 BAA P40003 SEIOWW-4&LTT STEM 0TBI AS*) 

GTV1COSIIOS Mi YALtA 000*ESMWTEWTE10A-O 
• 	 PACIFICD GWOARICM. BAA 

c 	

GTY1OEJ.ERI&cERA.SIFERAIS 
ICLBA PITHA, 5-PI SGAL CENT. 

• 	 RTY1PSEITEOT3UGA*04003II 
SIScIJoUW FPi 0-IT BAS, SPACE AS SIl 

GIRl FAIOAIIUS P105014*0 

O 	
SICWSCARA. I SCAL ECR4T.. SPICE AS 3*40MW 

• 	 YITEOJAPUCAIAOAST1G*ATW 
41105*5 SEOtRI f-F WA SPACE AS 5*0MW 

SHRUBS/GRASSES/PERRENIALS/GROUNDCOVER 

/ 
GiRl CEWGTEOO TYITROIFLIWIUS 

/ 01510€ 8105004*1 5GAL CENT 5440005 5HIYMI 

(" OTY1COWIKIS SESICEA 
'—i AIRED TWA DOGWOCTE SSAL CCH4T, SPACE AS B.C. 

O QT11ECASILIS SEASEEAFA,AATRM€A 
AIVOLLOW TWIG OOASN000i SGAL 0M4° SPACE 43 SIIOWN 

O 
QTY1JJMcUSPATEIC 

A1CAIWOI84UAG41EY ROSA I GALCCEITLSPOCEAS 540MW 

QTYAQ.00ISGUSDIOGOLOR 

%j A0cEBIlSPRAY; 5G#LcOET SPAcEASSAGME 

STill MAIACAKAAGIJFOJJU 
XIOREOTHI GRAPE, 5041 CTHIT, SPACEASSIIOWR* 

o QIYMRIICMWIERVERA c 
OREGOTI 054401 SGAA- CEBIT., SPACE AS 910MW 

o GTY1POLYSIICIRIMIIJNITLAA - 

IISWVFISFEAN;25A*..CONT.,SPACEAA510MI 

QTY1RWESSAJ*GEIIEUM  

W 

® A1RED FICWEATIG CIWRSIITIS SAL COME, SPACE AS 500MW P1 C 

QTI1SPIRACADDIJOLASR 
01DI3JO*RS SPORACAU SGAL CEBIT., SPACE AS SIIOINW 

• O QTI1GACOIIIIAS CRATTJM 
Z AIEWOGAEEN HUFAIESESASY; SGAL CIOIT.SPACE AS 3*40MW 4s 

o AJAOIAFDASRIATA 0111 WVCCW
40(10*411 

RO 

FORE BGAL COO. OPACEAS 5*40MW 5 

,. 

GALETY10RIASIAPILOI*1 Z 
SAL#A-IGALE0NT.IFO.C. — 

OIcENIRA FORMOSA 
'° 

PAIDOC 81000*011005111 SAL COST.. irO.C. SI 

I&N4G*IAREPEPIS ___ 
cREEPING M4110M41l OALCEBOL WS.C. 0*50: 	 02-01-12 

RMvIDIOn*. 
SEEDED LAWN  

DEMGCTRODONPS_AMMGAREAS  
PA-RIOTS TO BE FPSIRI€OMEDO5IALIEOBYO*NSCR 

DRY CREEK DOT) CR401035y 	 AC 

JAb No. 	 110305 

BOJASER lr-Sr RCA-Bc ELLOSICAC AOOFOoOS: 	 DE 

NURSE LOS' SECTED FROM SPA-SEE THEE REMOVAl.

(''' I_ 5 0 
SheeT 	flO, 	A 	of 	0 

0 	 8 	 16 	 32 	NOATE EM 



ROW 

WAR./ 

tRIPOD, 5000N500 

5505DM 	 or S/s -ST DO/SHED DOCK 

SE No 'I 

CD'IPSSI SUPEORTE 

TM/NEAR ST OF (L/U' ST CRUSHED TOYS 

UR'1O4(T SIDEWALK 

050H OS. C 	 TO 
SiR S Iii .35. 

HR D/N..H '5/5.1 VDH CXII SC. TOWN C NW lit liDS 01W 10 MaT 010010K 

OFtA T0 TOT S #5055 503035/5 10555 COSTOP otse a aso 501 V 
tRIO YI0 .J ST  RIESEPRO CASIO 

LORD HRD.'/ HOC 51 05150150050.103.75050 0/NE P01 *5 15 COb 

-H_KDll. CR.; TUtORS I*/ OHIO K aRIA 5.714 SIR b •  7 
*10:5.. ;3.TCRCA 7/UMU SALL ROIl 031* WI OAR ARCH: ST OTIS 51100555 

WOE N/SI I WIRONVILLI 

RN 1*00. CO/IS/US PLIELJC WORKS STANDARDS 

I-
( 

0. 

E 

tO) ; 

W QDG 

I.. 

AR 

a 
AR 	— 

4 
o 	)- 

U.' 

Oil.: 	02-01-I2 

Rislilont: 

ORion By: 	IRS 

CR500.0 By: SE 
Job NO. 	 110305 

ARyIssid: 	 DL 

KAROl ESEADE flAR)EWPLK 
lit Pd LAWN 

I lIt PWUWIORWCKOSRS 	
IA RADIUS EDGE, TIP 

PA± 1  
WRIEREAGIAcENTTDSO.OK 

E.RISTSKGPAVPKG 

CONCRETE PAVING  

[_TTT 

AR 3W 540 tARN. 0311W *1  a SW.o. P1W 
0303W 00. HO OH — 

A IOWNHT Ohs 0 HARL% 	 MX. - WOW £0300 

RICANOW IT tW.€aRS 
0.1131- SUM IT awe OF so WI 

MA4DO1KH0 *XW 	 bOiSE IT /5 035 

PA 	 IPFfl5 

 

OF RIP) Ma 
0 *3 IOGH. me a,. D*03.- (KR .FO Ma 

tAR OWbtHlCR/L'.I -DOIT.r0 OflITOASIb 

03< 	 N/TA. 403€ILR I 

	

F 13 11003101 NbA 	 IC 
K WOARAR 	 'PH sOlAR 	 OW11C OAR sos a 

tIn WHIR. 

I CIII CF 

WI SONY ILE 

ctuai.ic WORKS STOJODARES 

EKE S 

COIWITH 03) PEWWIED WA WIG 
OSWAld III DEPTh. GEE WECWRATGIIR 
ERR FPdFSFWS AND COLORS 

HERTEDGE RCSTIOCTW 

ESELASISN OAT (LOCATE PER PLXXSS ARC 
AT ALL VERTICAL RESTIRCITONO) 

- OOIWACTED BASE ROCK 

cowooTHo BIRIGROSE 

LHASEYVEHRI0 ToT,.y 	 CITY OF 

-; /5KrWRX.WEOC r 	 WILSONVILLE 

HYDLIC WORDS STUND.AYDS 

1WX314 DEEP JOQ.BD SCIAREfl4T. 
SEE RIM FOR IRCAT1OR 

CORORETI SUDERCO -SEE P1./N FORPWARF 

lit RRLFJJO TOOLED EDGE 

MASTiC FRJ.DR-SIWAOTH SUP/ACE TO MASTiC-
MASTiC COLOR TO MATOISAIXCENT 
CUSdORETE COLOR 

TEAR OFF PLASTIC STRIP 

IItPR9OLD03WGIJOPhT-
SEE PEKA FOR LDCAI1RR 

HORRID 001*-S/S At DEPTh 

5. 0K 04 MIAOCOWSCTCO000VIC 550K 

COP/MaTHS SUBGRADE 

A[[I1IIJEI]]1 

() EXPANSION & SCORE JOINT 
ot4 	 r PIP 	K 

ASPHALT STREET CURB AND GUTtER 	 GRAVEL CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 	 CURB TIGHT SIDEWALK 	 L 6.0 
WarNs 	 051000 	 85501 no 0 I 

EM 



0. 

C . 
(5 
E h 

zi 

tO) 

w 

CR[[DlIJ[IJ1 

$ 

OEK SOJ.500S-VAEY SIZE FROM IZTO r 
NOSY TO DEPTh CF/S HE/GTE LOCAlS GE 
BOLILDERPERISPE OFDRYCNEEXSEO 
IN GOOSES 0/2.5 

RNER ROCK. SIZES FROM 4 TO? 

- 	 •T//\ 	 WETS VMES 

3, 
CONCRETEFOOTI 

C 	 - 

DRY CREEK BED 	 PLAYGROUND SURFACING 	 SPLIT RAIL FENCE 3 	 3 
0 3 F 	 IS 	 3 3 C 	3 	

SO//lOS 	
0.  0. 2' 	 24 

NOTES 
lOLL RN000MO #OCESDING POSTS, SASS. P50805, LRTGESI NOOSES, 
STRAPS, BOLTE EIC TO MAT/IS CCEOR Of 405/I ISAAC 

ICY/NET TCST 

AT - SEE REECFK.AT1ONS 

RON-PENCE RI.WR PLRY SIR 
EcOAT. SEE R'ECRCATNDNS 

RODE/S 

FENC#AG NOD POSTS 

PREDRIJ. APIS ATTACK 
WISS DEC//SOS SCREW 

MORTISE IN POSTS AS 
NEORSSAWV TO ACCEPT 
ORES 

CHAIN LINK FENCE 
00.12 20. 

	

I I   
DOSE 	 02.01-12 

ClOokod BE  AS 

Job NO, 	 110308 

ROOT/ON/I 	 DE 

L6.1 
Sheet flO. 0 SI S 



NOTE WSTALL 640010* PRERERTOR PER 
CORE 4040 RAQE41EI&I41SOFVMJNG 
IZIRSDICVOVS 	 - 

FLOW 

TOP OF BOX FLUSH IN LAWN 

DATE VALVE lIVE SIZE) 1404 
Sm 

- 	 VALVE BOX WITH LP4O 
COVER. TOPOFBOXII?ABOUE 
1(104 IN P..HNISIO BEDS 

-E 
!1_ 	 PEIIERVTION 454014EV 

SPECIES 4461(1414 TOZOBES 

INBAREAO$ SOC 

601000146GB 

410010 

BRICRORCONVRETV 410CR 

WAWIUS 
ROCK 

SF00000 PEDESTAL, SEE MPO&EAC11.10 
OFECEICOTRAIS FOR MOIMTITBG IBOTRIICIRAC 

1-tRAIPSE SOY 45 CONDUIT FIllINGS NC SWEEP 
Eli. TO ElECTRICAL P06(1 OF COWIVEOTIGI 
-SEE LICAVINNTICN P4.4045. COOPOP4ATC RECITSEAL 
CONNECTION WITH OWINES AND LOC4LUTLflYPR01ER 
ALL WWES TO BR 640140100 PER LOCAL CORE. 

CON00TE PAD: B-PCI WEBMJMIH00VESS 

Fm RAZE 

14404 PVC 504 40 COICLIT, FIrTI4GS AIC SWEEP Si. 

SICC10OSWcO&RACTEOS0.14ORBDE 

F1MBE GR.NDE. TOP OF RICH 

RLAIE4SNCGCAJ'SLVCAIZkOUPJRIER. 
GAO TO READ DRAW VALUE 

P46541 ORADE.TVSEILSAN 

404100410.40 PVC SLEEVE LENGTH 
AX P0044100 

SPECF1ES SNAIl VALVE (14) 

IVTONLATERALORBRNIN LAO 

65101 OR COMOFUTE 41001 

PVC SENOR 

FETES 0*461 

20.4. FT. SPECEED PER SWANS 

6R[[fflUuIJ1i 

lOCUST 41001 - 	 WMES TO REMOTE CGBTRFE VALVES 10 AIR. 

BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLY AUTOMATIC CONTROLLER MANUAL DRAIN VALVE ASSEMBLY 1 2 3 40 040444 
A' 4 	 w p p p 	p 

NOTES NOTE ROTOR HEAD SHAJLBEA46BMAB 
FINISH GRADE -TOP OF NAJRJIARJ,CH 

NOTE SPRAY HEAD SHALl. SEA KINBAUN FINISH GRADE-TOP OF 54041 BEECH 
I. LOCATOR OF SUCK C0I.SEEX II 	 ---LINE 

VIII B.C.SG4R3WN CR 
SIZED GATE VALVE 

10J0RCO1P V 

OF 4.4410 MA41II&IIOFT FROM EDGE 
GRADE TOPOPTEBOIIAA4TB 

OF PASO MAcRIBBON OF P FROM EDGE 
OFWAIJ4.PRVVVG CURS DREDGER. 

I FNGH GRADE TOPOFT1JOPILAWN 

COMPONENT 
RAY DIFFER FROM 151ST YEARN 

P4 E PCEIJP SPRAY HEAD ASSEBOLY 

VALVEID TAG 

5P5CIEDwRTEOPROOF 

OFWALFO  PAVINm Z 

40 i' H 

(2)ELAONIT 

HH- 

OWN 045A4001 010110 45 STREET 01 

---- PETER 4401 .VC.VCAE Q ELBOW PVC SWEDM40TEEOREMM  
PVC 4401(51 

CONTROL VALVE ASSEMBLY ROTOR HEAD - PVC SWING JOINT ASSEMBLY SPRAY HEAD - POLY SWING PIPE ASSEMBLY Q AUTOMATIC 41046 NO'V0442 5 Be 0115W 
, 
U Nthe 141100.00 

NO TEl 
TOP OF 4(101 
	

I)ECTTHBO WNGSTOM 
HOOVES 24 NEYCPI) 

FLUSH II LAWN 
	

EACH DOE OFPAV64G. 

—Jr—*1' 	
t)-° --ID 510640 VALVE SOS 

-- 	- 	Y SPCOFEOOIROIC000ER4GVSLVE 

1 	4) I4DENTRDSIOASOVEDRTRRADE 

ERICH COSTED 51420210 LOOMCVORAPFR01010IEALIAL 

- I SOEDL IOPVC NFRE.SCSTMAB 
B PVC OTREOTRE 

'I.TER 

050511 CONC 41001(4) REOUWED TIP 
5MN 54WEAVEDROEPO5001 t
OdE 

SOlED 4 PVC TXTBOOES EL 

SCALD SOPUC NIPPLE ScorN.. 

OGlED 4OELSOWORTITE 

PAl/BIG 

ROOFPBG AVE TO 4W R.EEVY 

- - - 
' 	SPECIES PEE WING 

S 464. FROM 000EOPTTBOBCR. 
PAVING CR FSOT1NS 

CL 

C 	
SPEcEIED PER NP00IL IN 

-1'--- 	 LNTURALUNE 

NOTE 

1. CSA4TRACTOR SHALL REFER TRENCH SETTLEMENT MV RESTORE 
FA4ISR GRADES PRIOR TO SEEDING OR PLOIZ4TTNG OPERATORS. 

_Ne 
I- 

a. 

C 
In 

E 

Lu 
0. 

'44 
0 
4' 

z 
0 

IRE cc  

Cl) 
-J 

0 

0.5.: 	 02-01-12 

Re 01510,4, 

OFten RE 	 INS 

Checked By: RI 
LOS No, 	 110300 - 

Siorooed: 	 DE 

QUICK COUPLER VALVE ASSEMBLY 	 IRRIGATION SLEEVES UNDER PAVEMENT 	 TRENCHING IN PLANTING AREA 	 L6. 2 
10 	 Sheet 00 V of S• r'T 	 24• $112' 	 24' 



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 

The Urban Renewal Agency held a regular meeting on February 6, 2012 in the Wilsonville City 
Hall. Chair Knapp called the meeting to order at 7:41 p.m. immediately following the 
adjournment of the City Council meeting. Board Members present: Tim Knapp, Chair; Board 
Member Celia Niiflez; Board Member Steve Hurst; and Board Member Scott Starr. Board 
Member Richard Goddard was excused. 

Staff included: Bryan Cosgrove, Executive Director; Mike Kohihoff, City Attorney; Jeanna 
Troha, Assistant City Manager; Gary Wallis, Finance Director, and Sandra King, City Recorder. 

CITIZEN INPUT - There was none. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Mr. Kohihoff read the Consent Agenda items into the record. 

Acceptance of the Annual Urban Renewal Report. 

Minutes of the December 19, 2011 URA Meeting. 

Motion: 	Mr. Hurst moved to approve the consent agenda. Ms. Niiñez seconded. 

Vote: 	Motion carried 4-0. 

ADJOURN 

Motion: 	Mr. Hurst moved to adjourn. Ms. Ni.iñez seconded the motion. 

Vote: 	Motion carried 4-0. 

The Urban Renewal Meeting adjourned at 7:45. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sandra C. King, MMC, City Recorder 

ATTEST: 

Tim Knapp, Chair 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MEETING MINUTES 	 PAGE 1 OF 1 
FEBRUARY 6,2012 
N:\City  Recorder\Minutes\26 12URA.doc 



City of Wilsonville 

City Council Meeting 

March 19, 2012 Sign In Sheet 

Name Mailing Address 

Ca  Rk' 	 S c) 	
( 	 (?c 

3Qu YO f 97073 

"- 

"' 	r • 

O 



City of Wilsonville 

March 19, 2012 City Council Meeting 

SPEAKER CARD 

, -I ~,, 

	 \V% 	 ICA  LL- 

ADDRESS: 1 '1 0 RN 
	

40KE O( 
TELEPHONE: 
	

E-MAIL 

AGENDA ITEM YOU WANT TO ADDRESS: 	 A1'iIR 1. 

Please limit your comments to 3 minutes. Thank you. 



City of Wilsonville 

City Council Meeting 

Action Minutes 

DATE: MARCH 19, 2012 MEETING 

LOCATION: 29799 SW TOWN CENTER LOOP EAST, WILSONVILLE, OR 

TIME START: 7 P.M. 	TIME END: 8 P.M. 	REMARKS: Council Starr arrived at 5:50 p.m. 

AUENDANCE LOG 

COUNCILORS STAFF 

Mayor Knapp Brian Cosgrove 
Council President Nüflez Mike Kohlhoff 
Councilor Hurst Jeanna Troha 
Councilor Goddard Sandy King 
Councilor Starr Kerry Rappold 

Peggy Watters 
Dan Knoll 

AGENDA - ACTIONS 

WORK SESSION  
Concerns CM will provide recruitment profiles to council 

• 	Update on CD & Finance Director recruitments when completed. 
• 	Elevate_attention_to_Parks_&.recreation  

Storm Water SDC and &Utility Rates Public hearing scheduled for April 2 
WWTP Owner 's Rep & Staff Quarterly Report  
Water System Master Plan Council briefed on the plan and steps that need to 

be taken to update including changes in 
methodology, open houses scheduled, & 
aggressive schedule to complete. Will come 
before COuncil in June/July 

1-5/Wilsonville Road Project Update Lanes under overpass will shift next week; 
message board will alert drivers; on schedule for 
July completion. Beauty & Bridge project to be 
installed in June. 

Basalt Creek Update Options for road locations and phasing and I-S 
overpass option talked about. Improvements for 
2020, 20230 and beyond shared and policy 
decisions that need to be made before a final 
decisions made. 

REGULAR MEETING  
New Council Board and Commission Liaison Appointments Approved: X 	Denied: 

• 	Mayor Knapp - Washington/Clackamas County Vote: 5-0 
Coordinating Committee and West side Business 
Alliance  

N:\City  Recorder\Minutes\31912 action minutes.docx 	 Page 1 of 2 



• 	Council President Nüñez - Chamber of commerce 
Leadership and Library Board. 

• 	Councilor Hurst - Planning Commission and Parks & 
Recreation Board 

• 	Councilor Goddard - Chamber of Commerce Board and 
Library Board 

• 	Councilor Starr - DRB Panels A and B, and WCSI 

Consent Agenda: Approved: X 	Denied: 
• 	Resolution No. 2349 - revising "Local Share" project List Vote: 5-0 
• 	Minutes of 2/23/12 and 3/5/12 Council meetings  

New Business Approved: X 	Denied: 
• 	Resolution No. 2348 - authorizing Mayor to sign Vote: 5-0 

agreement with ODOT for reconstruction of Tooze Rd 
between 110th Ave and intersection with Grahams Ferry 
Rd.  

No executive session held 

N:\City  Recorder\Minutes\31912 action minutes.docx 	 Page 2 of 2 




















	2012_03_19 - City Council Meeting Packet
	3.19.2012
	Mayor Knapp Becky Nichols Dawn Wilbur Cindy Tyree
	Mayor Knapp Dan Knoll Cindy Tyree
	Mayor Knapp Mick Scott Cindy Tyree
	Mayor-Knapp-Becky-Nichols-Dawn-Wilbur-Cindy-Tyree-1
	Mayor-Knapp-Dan-Knoll-Cindy-Tyree-1
	Mayor-Knapp-Mick-Scott-Cindy-Tyree-1
	P3195463
	Pat Duke Mayor Knapp Gary Wappes Cindy Tyree
	Pat-Duke-Mayor-Knapp-Gary-Wappes-Cindy-Tyree-1


